
AGENDA 
 

KANSAS LOTTERY GAMING FACILITY REVIEW BOARD 
8:30 am, Tuesday, June 3, 2008 

 
Grand Ball Room - Topeka Ramada Inn 

420 SE 6th Street 
Topeka, Kansas 

 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

C. BOARD ITEMS 

1. Presentation on gaming zone market potential studies by: 
a. Will Cummings of Cummings Associates, Arlington, MA 
b. Richard Wells of Wells Gaming Research, Reno, NV 

2. Discussion, consideration and possible action on: 
a. Amending the July 23 and 24 meeting dates to July 24 and 25 
b. Requesting 60-day extension from the governor for the southeast, south central, 

southwest and northeast gaming zones 
c. Adoption of zone meeting locations and meeting times 
d. Adoption of zone meeting schedules 
e. Adoption of a Lottery Gaming Facility Review Board budget and assessments to each 

prospective lottery gaming facility manager 
f. Implementing provisions of K.S.A 74-8736 (d) (2) 
Staff Presentation: Stephen Martino, Executive Director 
   Jay Hall, Review Board Liaison 
Attached:    Staff Memo 

3. Drawing for order of presentations by prospective lottery gaming facility managers 

4. Discussions with consultants 
a. Will Cumming; Cummings Associates 
b. Candace Evart; Meridian Business Advisors 
c. John Mills, University of Nevada-Reno 
d. Walt Hawkins, Chris Brogan, John Marz, Dan Houston and Matt Cunningham, Probe 

Strategic Solutions and  Civic Economics 
e. Richard Wells; Wells Gaming Research 

06.03.2008  Agenda - Page 1 



AGENDA 
 

KANSAS LOTTERY GAMING FACILITY REVIEW BOARD 
8:30 am, Tuesday, June 3, 2008 

 

06.03.2008  Agenda - Page 2 

 

D. EXECUTIVE SESSIONS 
a.  Attorney-client communications 
b.  Background investigation report 

E. OTHER MOTIONS 

F. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

G. STAFF REPORTS 

1. Executive Director 

2. Chief Gaming Officer 

3. Director of Administration 

H. ADJOURNMENT 
 



Cummings Associates 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Projections for the 
 

Market Potential of the 
 

Four Gaming Zones in Kansas 
 

 
 

DRAFT 
 
 
 
 

May 26, 2008 
 
 
 
 
 

 

135 Jason Street, Arlington, Massachusetts  02476 
Telephone: 781-641-1215 - Fax: 641-0954 - e-mail: cummingsw@aol.com 



DRAFT 

 
Cummings Associates 

 
 
 

Contents 
 
 
        Executive Summary        i 
 
   1.  Introduction              1 
 
   2.  Methodology         3 
 
   3.  Major Assumptions        10 
 
   3.  Projected Gaming Revenues     16 
 
   4.  Conclusions as to Market Potential      24 
 
     Bibliography         25 
 
     Exhibits        1x 
 
 

Appendices 
 
 
   A.  Projections “As If” in 2007 (no changes in competition) 
 
   B.  Baseline Projections (with likely future competition) 
 
   C.  Comparisons at Standard Sizes, and Competition 
 
   D.  “Downside” Projections 
 
   E.  “Upside” Projections 

 



DRAFT 
 
 

List of Exhibits 
 

(All follow the main body of text, but precede the Appendices) 
 

    1. Map of Kansas, Its Gaming Zones, and Nearby Casinos 

    2. Detail for Northeast Kansas 

    3. Detail for Southeast Kansas 

    4. Detail for South Central Kansas 

    5. Detail for Dodge City 

    6. Illustrative Distance Relationships (Mississippi) 

    7. Distance Relationships II 

    8. Distance Relationships III 

    9. Portion of Model Inputs (two pages) 

  10. Gaming-Device Spending Ratios in Major U.S. Markets 

  11. Slot “Power Ratings” for Major Regional Gaming Facilities 

  12. Recent Projections Compared to Actual Results 

  13. Analysis in Brief – “As Was” 2007 

  14. Projection in Brief – KCK 7th Street Casino Added (Solo) 

  15. Projection in Brief – Baseline / Woodlands Added (Solo, with 800 Slots) 

  16. Projection in Brief – Baseline / Woodlands Added (Solo, at $150/day) 

  17. Projection in Brief – Baseline / Kansas Speedway Added ($150/day) 

  18. Projection in Brief – Baseline / KCK Stateline Added ($150/day) 

  19. Projection in Brief – Baseline / Kansas Middle Added ($150/day) 

  20. Projection in Brief – Baseline / All Facilities (at best sites) 

  21. Projection in Brief – Upside / All Facilities (at best sites) 

  22. Summary of Market Potential 

 

 
Cummings Associates 

 



DRAFT 
Projections for the Market Potential 

Of the Four Gaming Zones in Kansas 
 

Executive Summary 
 
 The Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission retained Will Cummings, the author of this 
report to assess the prospects for future gaming revenues (a) within the four gaming zones in 
Kansas on a generic basis, and then (b) at each of the prospective operators’ facilities in 
particular. This report presents my findings regarding the first of these tasks:  Without reference 
to any specific proposal, but looking at each market from a high-level perspective, what can the 
State realistically expect in the way of gaming revenues from facilities in each of the four zones? 
 
 To do this, I have developed and applied a gravity model.  These models are used by 
analysts in assessing many types of consumer activities.  With regard to casino gaming, they are 
based essentially on the demographics of the areas surrounding each facility, in particular the 
number of adults residing at various distances, and the ratio of actual gaming revenues obtained 
to such adult populations at existing facilities.  Access time, not mileage per se, and population 
density are the most critical variables.  Previous projections based on gravity models have 
proved, in my opinion, reasonably accurate, and more often conservative than aggressive. 
 
 One key concept that I employ throughout my analyses is what I call the (slot) “Power 
Rating” of a casino and/or market.  (I focus almost entirely on slot revenues, because they 
comprise roughly 90% of the gaming win and an even greater proportion of the profits of almost 
all casinos in the Midwest.)  A Power Rating of 100 represents spending on slot machines that 
averages $700 per adult in the market, adjusted for distance, competition, and other factors. This 
Power Rating is an extension of the “Fair Share” concept.  If a casino, for example, has 20% 
of the slots within a market but attracts 22% of the slot revenues, then it is getting 110% of its 
“fair share.”  My extension involves the element of comparison not just with other casinos in 
the area but also with the size and distribution of the surrounding population. 
 
 I have selected $700 as the benchmark for these power ratings based on analysis of many 
markets across the U.S.  This figure appears typical of new casinos in the Midwest that are fairly 
ordinary, while not taxed too highly or subject to capacity constraints.  I therefore call this 
benchmark “Midwest Standard.”  
 
 My “Baseline” projections generally assume that new casinos in Kansas will look and 
perform like this Midwest Standard.  The most recent facilities constructed in Iowa, however, 
have typically performed better than this, as do many existing facilities across the Midwest. In 
addition, one of the intents of the Kansas legislation is to promote attractive facilities, and I 
understand that most of the prospective operators’ applications have promised very fine facilities 
indeed.  Something above Midwest Standard may therefore be a realistic prospect, so I ultimately 
consider my “Upside” projections to represent the best estimate for the market “potential” in 
Kansas. 

 
Cummings Associates 



DRAFT 
 
 

 
Cummings Associates 

ii

 

 
 I have generally assessed this potential by adding slot machines to the facilities I assume 
until their win per slot per day descends to $150.  (Total win rises while the average per slot goes 
down.) While the $150 rate is less than most high-quality (and therefore expensive) resort casinos 
would like, I believe it is representative of most markets that are well-served by Midwest 
Standards.  Higher rates of utilization may lead to higher profits, but not, in my opinion, to 
greater revenues. 
 
 I should emphasize that high win per slot per day does not mean “good market” – it 
means little supply compared to demand.  The markets that produce the highest revenues 
compared to population are in fact generally quite competitive, with many facilities, many 
machines, and low win per slot per day.  Such competitive markets often allow only exceptional 
facilities to achieve market rates of return on investment.  I am not assuming such conditions in 
Kansas, except in the Southeast Zone, where competition from Oklahoma will likely be intense.  
My projections therefore indicate low revenues for Kansas facilities in that area, and their 
viability may be in doubt. 
 
 Revenues at Dodge City will also be low due to the small size and low density of population 
in that market.  In the Northeast and South-Central Zones, however, the gravity model produces 
projections for gaming revenues that are very substantial. 
 
 The projections that I believe are most informative are summarized in Exhibit A. 
 
 If the new facilities in Kansas are all essentially Midwest Standard, then total annual taxable 
gaming revenues in the State, leaving aside the non-taxable revenues of the Native American 
casinos and the casino in the Southeastern Zone whose viability is in question, could potentially 
amount to $669 million.  This is presented as of “stabilized operations” for each of these 
facilities, and in terms of 2007 dollars. 
 
 If the new facilities have modestly higher power ratings, typical of recent new facilities in 
Iowa, then the corresponding figure amounts to $797 million.  As this represents roughly the 
upper quartile of all comparable facilities, I believe it most accurately reflects the potential for 
total gaming revenues in the State. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT
Exhibit A: Summary of Projections for Market Potential

(Casinos assumed to be located at the best sites in each zone)
($ million / 2007 dollars)

Downside Baseline Upside
(1) (2)

Slots at Tracks "Solo" (before casinos open)

The Woodlands / 800 slots $36.5 $46.2 $56.6
Camptown / 600 slots $19.4 $24.4 $28.2

Facilities in the Aggregate (after casinos open):

The Woodlands / 800 slots $20.3 $21.6 $22.6
Northeastern Casino $320.1 $424.2 $530.4

Camptown / 600 slots *    *    *    
Southeastern Casino $22.8 * $32.9 * $49.3 *

South-Central Casino $165.4 $188.9 $205.4

Ford County Casino $30.5 $34.7 $38.6
------------ ------------ ------------ 

Total Statewide Taxable (3) $559.1 $702.3 $846.5

Excluding facilities of doubtful viability * $536.3 $669.4 $797.1

(1) Performance essentially "Midwest Standard".
(2) Performance at upper quartile of comparable facilities.
(2) "Taxable" revenues exclude Native American facilities.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT 

 
Cummings Associates 

Projections for the Market Potential 
Of the Four Gaming Zones in Kansas 

 

1.  Introduction 

 In 2007, the State of Kansas enacted legislation that authorizes casino gaming in Kansas 

in the form of “Kansas Lottery Gaming Facilities.”  The Kansas Lottery, Racing and Gaming 

Commission, and Lottery Gaming Facility Review Board are now engaged in their respective 

roles toward achieving the objectives of this legislation.  As a part of this process, the Racing and 

Gaming Commission retained Will Cummings, the author of this report, to assess the prospects 

for future gaming revenues (a) within the four gaming zones in Kansas on a generic basis, and 

then (b) at each of the prospective operators’ facilities in particular. 

 This report presents my findings regarding the first of these tasks:  Without reference to 

any specific proposal, but looking at each market from a high-level perspective, what can the 

State realistically expect in the way of gaming revenues from facilities in each of the four zones? 

 Section 2 describes the gravity-model methodology that I have used and the major 

assumptions underlying my analyses.  Section 3 presents my projections for gaming revenues for 

the most salient scenarios that I have examined, and Section 4 then concludes with my findings as 

to (generic) market potential. 

 A multitude of projections for gaming revenues under alternative scenarios is presented in 

the Appendices to this report. 

 Through the course of this document, the reader will find that a key element of my 

analysis is something that I call the (slot) “Power Rating” of a casino and/or market.  (I focus 

almost entirely on slot revenues, because they comprise roughly 90% of the gaming win and an 



DRAFT 
 

 
Cummings Associates 

2

 

even greater proportion of the profits of almost all casinos in the Midwest.)  As I define it, a 

Power Rating of 100 represents spending on slot machines averaging $700 per adult in the 

market, adjusted for distance, competition, and other factors. This Power Rating is an extension 

of the “Fair Share” concept pioneered by Larry Klatzkin and now used by many casino 

analysts.  If a casino, for example, has 20% of the slots within a market but attracts 22% of 

the slot revenues, it is then attracting 110% of its “fair share.”  My extension involves the 

element of comparison not just with other casinos in the area but also with the size and 

distribution of the surrounding population. 

 I have selected $700 as the benchmark for these power ratings based on my analyses of 

many casino markets across the U.S.  The $700 figure appears typical of new casinos in the 

Midwest that are very ordinary in terms of attractiveness, and have no serious issues with regard 

to taxation or capacity constraints.  I therefore call this benchmark, both in terms of performance 

and as a characterization of such facilities, “Midwest Standard.” 

 My baseline projections generally assume that new casinos in Kansas will look and 

perform like this “Midwest Standard.”  The most recent facilities constructed in Iowa, however, 

have typically performed better than this, as do many existing facilities across the Midwest. In 

addition, one of the intents of the Kansas legislation is to promote attractive facilities, and I 

understand that most of the prospective operators’ applications have promised very fine facilities 

indeed.  Something above Midwest Standard may therefore be a realistic prospect, so I ultimately 

consider my “Upside” projections to represent the best estimate for the market “potential” in 

Kansas. 



DRAFT 
 

 
Cummings Associates 

3

 

2.  The Gravity-Model Methodology 
 
 My projections for the likely performance of new and improved gaming facilities are 

based upon analyses of the experience of the most comparable casinos elsewhere in the Midwest, 

and more broadly, all across the United States.  I use “gravity models” as a key element of this 

process.  This methodology has been refined over the years as others and I have applied it to 

assessing the performance of many gaming facilities, both existing and proposed. It is based 

essentially on the demographics of the areas surrounding each facility, in particular the number of 

adults residing at various distances, and the ratio of actual gaming revenues obtained to such 

adult populations at existing facilities.  Access time, not mileage per se, and population density 

are the most critical variables.  (A bibliography is attached.)  

 To illustrate the relationships among casino revenues, population, and distance, Exhibit 6 

presents a chart comparing rates of visitation versus distance for the casinos of Mississippi, based 

upon survey data from all the casinos across the state.  There is clearly a relationship between 

patronage and distance:  the greater the distance the customer has to travel, the lower the number 

of visits.  Fewer patrons are willing to travel longer distances, and when they do, they usually 

visit less often.  (Offsetting this slightly, when they actually do visit, they typically spend more on 

each occasion than nearby customers who visit more frequently – distance acts as a filter to deter 

more casual fans.)  In addition, as you get further away from the casinos of Mississippi, you often 

get closer to competing casinos in other states, further reducing your rate of visiting Mississippi. 

 Because the rates of visitation appear to decline so dramatically as distance increases, and 

because the scale is so large when looking at statewide data such as these from Mississippi, it is 

useful to transform this data by taking logarithms (“log-transforming the data,” as economists 



DRAFT 
 

 
Cummings Associates 

4

 

                                                

say).  Exhibit 7 presents the Mississippi data in such fashion, and it begins to look more linear.  

When we exclude the most distant data (beyond 250 miles, where competition, as well as 

distance, usually becomes a critical factor), regression analysis indicates a relationship that is 

fairly robust (Exhibit 8).  

 I have analyzed such data from a wide variety of markets, and have estimated that, over a 

reasonable range of distances, the aggregate “elasticity” of spending with respect to distance 

appears to be roughly -0.7, that is, consumers’ total spending declines in somewhat less than 

direct proportion to the distance to be traveled.1  When, however, several facilities compete 

within the same (or closely connected) market(s), the customer overwhelmingly prefers the 

closest.  It appears that in this respect slot machines behave in a fashion very similar to many 

other retail markets, in which the relative “attraction” of each facility is roughly inversely 

proportional to the distance squared.2

 Using these parameters to account for the relationships with distance and demographic 

data for each county in gaming markets across the United States (and in some cases, such as 

Kansas and nearby Missouri, for each zip code), I have calculated the “distance-adjusted” adult 

population surrounding each slot facility or close group of facilities in each market.  (A portion of 

my model for the Midwest, featuring Kansas, is presented in Exhibit 9).  In the metropolitan areas 

of Kansas City, Joplin, and Wichita, I have moreover extended the model by using travel times 

 
1  This is a relatively “long-distance” attraction; if you double the distance, revenues decline by about 
38%. For comparison, race tracks generally exhibit distance coefficients of about -1 to -1.2:  if you 
double the distance, visitation declines by 50% or more.  Generically, this type of relationship is called 
a “gravity model,” because it is similar to Newton’s law of gravitation (for which the “distance factor” 
would be -2.0: if you double the distance, the attraction declines by a factor of 22, or four). 
2   A relationship sometimes called Reilly’s Law of Retail Gravitation, based upon its mathematical 
identity with Newton’s Law, above.  Huff and others have extended these models further with many 
retail applications, whence they are generally known today as Huff models. 



DRAFT 
 

 
Cummings Associates 

5

 

                                                

(obtained from mapquest.com) rather than mileage as the measure of “distance” and therefore the 

major driving force in consumer choice among competing facilities.  I believe this results in 

substantially more accurate projections (and assessments) than analysis by distance alone. 

 Dividing the total revenues, or spending, in each existing market by the adjusted 

population figures results in ratios that measure consumer spending per distance-adjusted adult.  

The gravity model, based upon Reilly’s Law noted above, then distributes these adults (and so, 

by proxy, their spending) across the different casinos, or closely-situated groups of casinos, to 

which they have access.  By summing across geographic areas, we can then estimate the sources 

of revenues (again, consumer spending) for each such group of facilities.  To assess the prospects 

for a new facility, one adds a new center of “mass” (slot machines and table games) to the matrix. 

 To examine the impacts of a renovation, one amends the number of slot machines and/or power 

rating of an existing center of mass, i.e., casino. 

 These models can also be used to compare different markets and facilities against one 

another.  Statistics of this type are presented for the major regional gaming markets of the U.S. in 

Exhibit 10, listed in order of estimated slot (or VLT) spending per person.3   Again, the gravity-

model procedure simply puts the different markets onto a common footing in terms of 

performance, abstracting out differences due to the varying distributions of population around 

each facility.  The figure for each market represents the amount that the “average” adult who lives 

within ten miles of (legal) gaming devices spends on them each year.4

 
3   These figures do not include relatively modest amounts spent at casinos in Las Vegas, the 
Caribbean, and other “remote” locations in the U.S. and abroad. 
4   There is nothing inherently special about the ten-mile figure; it is simply a benchmark to represent 
convenient access. 



DRAFT 
 

 
Cummings Associates 

6

 

 The range of experience across this diverse spectrum of markets is, in my opinion, not all 

that wide. Hardly a factor of two separates the best markets (South Dakota, Colorado, 

Mississippi, and Louisiana) from the worst (the Fairgrounds Raceway in Buffalo, New York, 

followed closely by some of the other modest race track facilities in the Northeast).  Almost all of 

these facilities and markets fall into the range of $500 to $800 in annual spending per distance-

adjusted adult. 

 As indicated by the columns in the exhibit, I have divided the universe of markets into 

three groups:  Northeastern U.S., Iowa markets and its near neighbors, and other markets 

Midwest, South, and West.  More competitive markets generally attract higher rates of spending 

(true even for the Northeastern U.S., but I have placed all these markets in one column for ease of 

comparison), and one finds the lower rungs of each column populated with (a) Northeastern 

“VLT” facilities that are not very attractive, or (b) very “boatlike” boats (and again, VLTs) in the 

Midwest. 

 South Dakota and Mississippi casinos (combined here with Louisiana’s because their 

markets overlap) attract some of the highest rates of spending.  Despite low personal incomes in 

these areas, there are no statutory limits on the numbers of casinos or gaming devices, they are 

correspondingly highly competitive, and there is no competition from state lotteries across wide 

areas of the South (and, for the little that it’s worth, limited pari-mutuel competition, too).  The 

Colorado casinos, too, while restricted to three somewhat remote locations and to $5 bets, are 

also highly competitive, as are the major markets of Iowa.   

 As we move down the right-hand column, we generally find less competitive conditions, 

ultimately reaching areas such as southern Indiana, Detroit, and Milwaukee, where the number of 

facilities and/or gaming devices is nowhere near sufficient to meet the demand for them, and the 



DRAFT 
 

 
Cummings Associates 

7

 

                                                

facilities are typically constrained by cramped conditions, on riverboats or ashore.  As a result of 

these “capacity-constrained” conditions, spending per (distance-adjusted) adult in these areas is 

relatively low.  (Conversely, spending per machine is typically [but not always] very high, as 

people are figuratively lined up at the machines to play them.)5   Even in these markets, however, 

slot spending per “distance-adjusted” adult ranges around $600 per year, not all that far below the 

$700± that most competitive markets demonstrate and even some less-competitive markets 

achieve. 

 It is in the left-hand column, however, that we find the worst performers:  the race track 

VLT facilities in New York State, together with some in West Virginia and the two in Rhode 

Island.  It is surely no coincidence that these are the three jurisdictions with the highest tax rates 

on gaming devices at their race tracks.6  With high tax rates, only modest investments in new and 

improved facilities can earn a reasonable return.  As a result, the new facilities in New York and 

Rhode Island have to date been very modest indeed.  High tax rates also limit the tracks’ ability to 

spend effectively on promoting their gaming product, including in particular player rewards 

programs.  In competitive jurisdictions such as New Jersey, Iowa, and Illinois, casinos typically 

spend more than twenty percent of their gaming revenues on marketing and promotion.  With tax 

 
5   Markets can effectively be capacity-constrained even when, as at many New York and West 
Virginia facilities today, win/day/machine is not at astronomical levels.  If the major issues are 
accessibility and attractiveness (simply in terms of spaciousness, and/or quality of machines, not 
necessarily “glitz”), players may indeed not be lined up to play as they are in other jurisdictions where 
the unsatisfied demand is far more obvious. 
6   The fact that the slot-like gaming devices are housed at tracks rather than at casinos is not a major 
factor. Race track slot machine and VLT facilities have been very successful in Iowa, Delaware, 
Louisiana, New Mexico, and Canada. 



DRAFT 
 

 
Cummings Associates 

8

 

                                                

rates at fifty percent or more, spending any significant fraction of that amount is impossible; thus, 

the poor performance in New York and Rhode Island.7

 Another and perhaps more easily understood interpretation of consumer spending at each 

facility is presented in Exhibit 11:  what I call the Slot Power Rating.  This is basically slot 

spending per distance-adjusted adult compared to a benchmark of $700 per person per year (the 

bar shaded yellow across the middle of these exhibits):  spending of 700 corresponds to a power 

rating of 100, spending of $770 to a power rating of 110, spending of $665 to a power rating of 

95, and so forth.8 I have selected $700 as the benchmark for these power ratings because, based 

on my inspection of Exhibit 10 (and similar analyses in other studies) that appears to represent a 

typical figure for a moderately attractive new casino in the Midwest, assuming no severe tax or 

capacity constraint issues.  I therefore call this benchmark facility “Midwest Standard.” 

 
7   With a tax rate of 50%, the early performance of slots at the race tracks of Florida appears to be 
following a similar path. 
8   The descriptions above are actually somewhat simplified.  My calculations leading to the figures for 
both spending per adult and power rating involve not only population and distance, but also per capita 
income and the “elasticity” of spending with respect to distance.  My estimates assume that per capita 
income below the national average tends to depress spending at casinos, i.e., income acts as a “high-
pass” filter.  I have also assumed that better-performing facilities not only attract more dollars from 
immediate local residents, but that the rate of decline of such spending with distance is not as steep for 
them as the average.  A casino with a power rating of 110, for example, therefore tends to have greater 
“reach” than one with a rating of 100. 

     Again, this Power Rating is similar to “Fair Share” concept pioneered by Larry Klatzkin.  If a 
casino, for example, has 20% of the slots within a market but attracts 30% of the slot revenues, it is 
then attracting 150% of its “fair share.”  I have simply extended this type of concept to include 
reference to the size and distribution of the surrounding population.  That is why, as indicated in 
Exhibit 11, many rural casinos rank high by power rating despite low win per slot per day.  Terrible’s 
Lakeside Casino in Iowa, for example, wins $136 per slot per day but gets a power rating of 114.  
Near the other end of the spectrum, the Par-A-Dice Casino at Peoria wins $290 per slot per day, but 
that earns it a power rating of just 79.  Peoria is so large a market that the gravity model indicates that 
$290/day is actually well below average performance, while the population surrounding Lakeside is so 
sparse that $136/day is really very good. 

     As a related point, I would emphasize that high win per slot per day does not mean “good market” 
– it means little supply compared to demand.  The markets with the highest power ratings (i.e., those 



DRAFT 
 

 
Cummings Associates 

9

 

                                                                                                                                                        

 Previous projections for new facilities based on similar gravity models have proved, in 

my opinion, reasonably accurate, and more often conservative than overly aggressive.  A 

tabulation of actual results versus my projections for facilities that have been completed within 

the past five years is presented in Exhibit 12.  

 
that produce the highest revenues compared to population) are in fact generally quite competitive, with 
many facilities, many machines, and low win per slot per day. 



DRAFT 
 

 
Cummings Associates 

10

 

2.  Major Assumptions 
 
 I have developed my projections under four major sets of assumptions.  All of them 

generally assume that the people of Kansas will be similar to those of the rest of the Midwest in 

terms of “propensity to gamble,” and that its facilities will be comparable to those elsewhere. 

 Appendix A presents projections for casinos “as was” or “as if they were operating” in 

2007 in competition only with the facilities that were actually open then.  This is an anachronism, 

so I will not dwell on these projections in this report.  They may be useful, however, (a) to 

compare with existing facilities as they actually performed in 2007, and (b) to compare with 

applicants’ projections which might have assumed no changes in competition from 2007. 

 The second set, detailed in Appendix B, are my “Baseline” projections, and are based on 

what I believe to be the most reasonable assumptions regarding future competition.  These 

include: 

 1. No relaxation of loss limits in Missouri. 
 
 2. A variety of developments at remote locations (two major new casinos in St. Louis, 

for example). 
 
 3. The expansion of the Sac & Fox Casino at Powhattan to roughly 1,250 slots that has 

already occurred. 
 
 4. Conversely, a modest reduction in the number of slots at the Isle of Capri at Kansas 

City, already implemented, with a not-quite-offsetting increase in power rating 
(riverboats are commonly cramped, and some of their multiple levels marginally 
productive, so pruning is often useful). 

 
 5. New casinos in Oklahoma:  the Buffalo Run casino in Miami (opened in 2007), the 

First Council casino in Chilocco (early this year), the Quapaw Downstream Casino 
Resort across I-44 from the Cherokee Corner site (opening soon), and a host of 
modernizations and expansions at other casinos in Oklahoma. 

 
 6. I generally assume that these new Oklahoma casinos, due to (some) Class II games, 

non-house-banked table games and (generally) lower levels of amenities, have slot 



DRAFT 
 

 
Cummings Associates 

11

 

                                                

power ratings of 95.  The nearly one hundred “old” casinos in Oklahoma are assumed 
to have power ratings of 90.  (My “more intense competition” scenarios assume 
power ratings 5 points higher at each, as well as larger facilities at Downstream and 
Chilocco.) 

 
 7. The Kansas Lottery Gaming Facilities at Woodlands and Camptown (with various 

assumptions regarding numbers of slot machines; generally 800 and 600, 
respectively) have power ratings of 95.  The fact that they are tracks is of little matter. 
 Of greater import, (i) they will have no table games (which do attract additional slot 
play), and (ii) because they will earn much less from their slot machines (only up to 
40% of gross win, versus up to 78% at the full casinos), they will be able to invest 
much less in attractive facilities and player promotion.  The assumption of 95 may in 
fact be aggressive. 

 
 8. No other new casinos, or video lottery terminals, in Kansas or neighboring areas. 

 
 My baseline projections also assume, for the most part, that the casinos in Kansas will 

look like and perform at “Midwest Standard.”9  The newest facilities in Iowa, however, have 

typically performed better than this.  In fact, the average facility in Iowa currently has a power 

rating of 104,10 and five out its six newest facilities have power ratings of 104 or better.  Only the 

Isle at Waterloo11 lags at 99.6. 

 In addition, one of the intents of the Kansas legislation is to promote attractive facilities, 

and, as I understand it, most of the prospective operators’ applications have promised very fine 

facilities indeed.  Something above Midwest Standard may therefore be a realistic prospect, so I 

consider my “Upside” projections (detailed in Appendix E) to ultimately represent the best 

 
9   Rural facilities often have higher power ratings than urban facilities.  This appears due to (a) 
relatively easy access to them is generally not reflected in gravity models (ten minutes on an interstate, 
or even on most country highways, is an easier drive than ten minutes in city traffic) and (b) they face 
less competition from other commercial entertainment activities.  In my baseline cases I have therefore 
assumed that the new casino at Dodge City will have a power rating of 110, and that at Wellington 
107. 
10  This average does not include the Native American facilities, which all appear (in my analysis) to 
be doing better. 
11   Ironically, at roughly $171 million, the most expensive of these new facilities (but not the largest). 



DRAFT 
 

 
Cummings Associates 

12

 

                                                

estimate for the market “potential” in Kansas.  These assume that the new facilities’ power 

ratings are five points above baseline (i.e., 105, for the most part).  This appears broadly 

representative of the upper quartile of modern, uncongested facilities and markets depicted in 

Exhibit 11.12

 To look at the opposite end of the spectrum, I have also examined “Downside” scenarios 

(Appendix D) that assume power ratings five points below baseline (i.e., 95(+)), as well as more 

intense competition from new casinos in Oklahoma. 

 I have generally assessed “market potential” by enlarging facilities (adding slot machines) 

until their win per slot per day descends to $150.13  While this is less than most developers of 

high-quality (and therefore expensive) resort casinos would like, I believe it is representative of 

most markets that are well-served by Midwest Standards.  I should emphasize again that high 

win per slot per day does not mean “good market” – it means little supply compared to 

demand.  The markets that produce the highest revenues compared to population are in fact 

generally quite competitive, with many facilities, many machines, and low win per slot per 

day.  Such competitive markets often allow only exceptional facilities to achieve market rates of 

return on investment.  I am not assuming such situations in Kansas, except in the Southeast Zone, 

 
12  That is, excluding the old-style riverboats that litter the bottom portion of this exhibit, and markets 
such as Illinois that are obviously capacity-constrained. 
13   Total win typically rises with increasing size, but the average win per slot per day typically 
declines. I should perhaps emphasize at this point that “just” adding slot machines to a facility without 
doing anything else will likely do little to raise revenues unless the market is seriously capacity-
constrained.  What I mean (and I believe the gravity models reflect) is to add slot machines and other 
amenities as is typical for larger casinos, i.e., at 1,000 slots you have amenities like those of most 
1,000-slot casinos elsewhere, and at 1,500 slots you have the (usually greater) amenities provided by 
most such casinos elsewhere. 



DRAFT 
 

 
Cummings Associates 

13

 

                                                

where competition from Oklahoma will be quite intense.  Midwest Standard facilities, however, 

are typically profitable at $150 per slot per day.14

 In Appendix C, I have developed projections at “standard sizes” for each facility to 

facilitate apples-to-apples comparisons between alternative locations.  I also present several 

projections here under alternative assumptions regarding competition. 

 At three facilities I have included estimates of potential contributions from passers-by on 

adjoining interstate highways:  the Cherokee Corner in Southeast Kansas on I-44 (where daily 

traffic averages 24,124 vehicles per day, more than one-third trucks), and the Sumner County 

facilities, where long-distance traffic averages 14,600 per day, as measured at the Oklahoma state 

line, and is roughly one-quarter trucks.  Facilities in Iowa and New Mexico in similar situations 

appear to obtain incremental slot revenues of one to two dollars per passing vehicle.  (Long-

distance truck drivers appear to be a particularly good market).  I have assumed one dollar per 

passing vehicle at Wellington, fifty cents at Mulvane (closer to the competing attractions of 

Wichita), and 33¢ at the Cherokee Corner (since there will be a competing casino right across the 

highway, and several more at the next exit down the road in Oklahoma). 

 “Micro-access” to a casino appears, in my opinion, to be one of the most critical aspects 

of “attractiveness” and therefore power rating that is almost independent of size, amenities, and 

glitz. If one has to twist and turn and/or wait at multiple stoplights to get in (or out), customers 

are deterred.  I therefore assume in particular that micro-access to each of the new facilities is at 

least average. 

 
14   Again, highly attractive destination resort casinos will likely require higher rates of return and 
therefore higher wins per slot per day.  I believe, however, that to consider $200 per slot per day as the 
benchmark (as Christiansen Capital Advisors has done in their report) would be overly conservative 



DRAFT 
 

 
Cummings Associates 

14

 

                                                                                                                                                        

 Finally, because they contribute very little to revenues and even less to profit, I did not 

develop separate gravity models for table games.  I simply assume that they will average a 

reasonable proportion of total win for each casino as a whole.  Table revenues averaged 11% 

of total gaming win in Missouri in 2007, 12% in Illinois, and just 9% in Iowa.  I assume that 

the casino in Northeast Kansas will obtain 13% in table win (higher than Missouri because I 

have assumed no loss limits in Kansas), 11% in Southeast and South-Central Kansas, and 

10% in Dodge City.  (Less urban markets typically exhibit lower levels of table play.)  

 To develop projections based on these assumptions, I took the detailed model illustrated 

(in part) in Exhibit 9, calculated the numbers of “distance-adjusted” adults likely to patronize 

each facility, and applied an average rate of spending of $700 for each.  I then added “driveby” 

traffic and table-game revenues based on the assumptions above. 

 All my analyses and projections are presented in terms of 2007 dollars.  In well-

established gaming markets, such as Kansas City and the Southeast Zone, there may be initial 

(first-year) transients on the order of five to ten percent as the new facilities work out kinks, but 

revenues should otherwise soon reach their “mature” levels.  Gaming revenues in the markets 

with less experience (Dodge City and the South Central Zone) may take several years to reach 

their ultimate “stabilized” levels, and start off 20-30% below them.  In each case, I would then 

expect “outyear” win to grow by roughly three percent per year.   

 Finally, a caveat:  I have visited some but not all of the competing casinos in the area, and 

only a few in Oklahoma.  I plan to visit many more in the coming weeks, and may potentially 

change the opinions I express below regarding their competitiveness.  I have also not “walked” 

 
regarding potential market revenues (although perhaps not potential market profits).  For 
comparability, I have also examined several scenarios with $200 per slot per day as the benchmark. 



DRAFT 
 

 
Cummings Associates 

15

 

the sites examined here, nor those proposed by the applicants.  The projections that I am about to 

undertake for specific facilities may therefore differ from those presented here. 



DRAFT 
 

 
Cummings Associates 

16

 

                                                

3.  Projected Gaming Revenues 
 
 To illustrate the workings of the gravity model, I thought it would be useful to present 

some of my projections on a step-by-step basis.  My starting point is Exhibit 13, which depicts, in 

summary fashion, the gravity model’s analysis of the current day.  I call this “As Was” 2007.15  

The number of slot machines (the “mass” of each facility) and its slot power rating are presented 

in the first two columns of this exhibit.  I should emphasize that these power ratings are not 

assumptions:  they are outputs of the model, calculated by refining estimates through multiple 

iterations so that the model’s output for slot win at each facility matches the actual figures. These 

actual figures are presented in the final columns.   

 The estimates (and forthcoming projections) for the Kansas market (not yet open in 2007) 

are summed on the lines in the middle portion of the exhibit.  Aggregate totals which include 

competing facilities in neighboring states are summarized at the bottom. Kansas City, Missouri’s 

four existing facilities, for example, attracted $720 million in total gaming revenues in 2007.  The 

four Northeast Kansas Native American facilities, presented as a group, attracted roughly $205 

million.16 I estimate that the “Greater Joplin” area, which will be the primary market for the 

facility in the Southeast Zone, generated roughly $136 million in gaming win at the multitude of 

casinos in Northeast Oklahoma in 2007, and the “Greater Wichita” area roughly $109 million for 

the half-dozen casinos just south of the state line in Oklahoma.  

 
15   This exhibit is replicated as A-1A in the complete set of “As Was” projections in Appendix A.  
Most of he following exhibits are extracted from Appendix B, the baseline projections that assume 
what I consider to be the most likely scenario for future competition described above and “Midwest 
Standard” performance. 
16   Estimate by Alan Meister for 2006, in his Indian Gaming Industry Report, 2007-2008 edition.  I 
assume little growth in 2007 due to increased competition from new and better facilities in Kansas 
City (the Argosy) and Council Bluffs (the Horseshoe, at Bluffs Run). 



DRAFT 
 

 
Cummings Associates 

17

 

                                                

 Note the low wins per slot per day at these facilities.  Many are not very attractive, and 

are largely filled with Class II machines, which suffer greatly in competition with Class III.  

Oklahoma casinos, however, are also intensely competitive, and rapidly moving up in class.  The 

new machines that are available under compact appear to be taking over many markets, and many 

tribes must be making a profit.  The number of electronic gaming devices in Oklahoma has, by 

my count, roughly tripled over the past five years, many substantial new facilities have been built 

and many more are under construction.  Some of these facilities must be making money despite 

the low average wins per unit; there is probably a wide disparity between the ends of the 

spectrum here. 

 I then added the 7th Street Casino that opened January 10 in Kansas City, Kansas (Exhibit 

14).  Based on its first revenue-sharing payment to the City, is attracting slot play at the rate of 

roughly $20 million per year.  The gravity model assesses this to demonstrate a power rating of 

78 – not good, but not far from some old riverboats, such as the Isle of Capri at Kansas City.  Its 

power rating was essentially the same prior to its recent pruning, which I assume raised its power 

rating to the 80 shown on this exhibit.  In 2007 (Exhibit 13), its power rating was 78. 

 As the (presumed) next step in chronological order, I used the model to assess the 

prospects for 800 slots at the Woodlands prior to the opening of its new casino competitor 

(Exhibit 15).17 These are projected to win $46 million, and average of $158 per slot per day 

(again, all in terms of 2007 dollars). 

 This is not far above my benchmark of $150/day.  The model therefore indicates, as 

depicted in Exhibit 16, that there is not much “headroom” before reaching that figure, at a total of 

 
17   I would expect that slot machines could be up and running at the Woodlands within a year, while 
full-scale destination resort casinos will likely take much longer. 



DRAFT 
 

 
Cummings Associates 

18

 

970 slots.  The 170 additional slots do, however, generate an additional $6 million per year, 

bringing total win to $53 million. 

 With (again, presumably) low overhead at an existing facility like the Woodlands, race 

tracks in other jurisdictions with lower tax rates could profitably operate even more slot machines 

under these conditions.  In Kansas, however, the race tracks are authorized only 25% of gaming 

win, plus up to 15% for expenses.  This low rate of retention will likely provide little return on 

the investments required to make additional slots above this level very productive. 

 Low retention will leave the Woodlands with fewer resources to invest in its facilities and 

in promoting its slots.  It will therefore not be competitive with a major new resort casino in the 

area, as indicated in Exhibit 17 (and all those that follow).  A “Midwest Standard” casino with 

3,960 slots right at the Kansas Speedway is projected to win $217 million from its slots, at 

$150/day, and a total of $249 million including its table games.  Win at an 800-slot Woodlands 

would be cut by nearly half, to $25 million, or $86 per slot per day. 

 The power rating of 95 that I have assumed for the Woodlands is not all that different 

from Midwest Standard, and therefore responsible for only a little of the huge gap in win/slot/day 

at the Speedway casino versus that at the Woodlands.  In researching travel times, it quickly 

became apparent that from almost all parts of the metropolitan area, the way to get to the 

Woodlands was “go to the Speedway, then go six or seven minutes further.”  This is the major 

factor in the performance differential between the two facilities. 

 The Speedway, however, is not all that conveniently located – it is, rather, on the western 

fringe of the metropolitan area.  More than half the population lives in Missouri and the 

Speedway is about as far from them as you can get.  A central location, if not too congested by 

traffic, would be more accessible to more people.  The model therefore indicates (Exhibit 18) that 



DRAFT 
 

 
Cummings Associates 

19

 

                                                

other things being equal, a location right on the state line with Missouri, with good access to I-70, 

would do even better:  the returns would not diminish to $150/slot/day until there were 6,300 

slots, with total revenues for the casino of $397 million.  Other things are, of course, not equal,18 

but riverfront developments have been wildly successful in (some) other cities . . . 

 By moving closer to Missouri, however, you also move closer to the competition, and to 

areas already served relatively well by that competition.  A “middle” site may therefore strike an 

even better balance in terms of proximity both to the population as a whole, including the 

Missouri side, and to the (smaller but more valuable) population on the Kansas side that would be 

less attracted to the casinos in Missouri.  The model indicates that this is indeed the case.  A site 

at the intersection of I-70 and I-635, if developable (in the Argentine? or the Indian Springs 

Mall?) is projected in Exhibit 19 to support a slightly larger facility in Exhibit, with a total of 

6,830 slots and total gaming revenues of $430 million. 

 The differences among the alternative sites have been magnified by my procedure of 

adding more slots until win per unit per day declined to $150.  If one holds the number of slot 

machines at each casino constant, say, at 4,000, then the Speedway site is projected to win $250 

million, the Stateline site $312 million and the Middle site $335 million (Exhibits C-1 to C-3 in 

Appendix C). 

 I have conducted a series of analyses of this type for all the (complicated) gaming 

zones.19 They are presented in “brief” detail in the Appendices.  I will touch only on the major 

results here, by zone. 

 
18   Suburban greenfield sites are usually much easier to deal with, cheaper to build on, and 
intrinsically more attractive to suburbanites than most urban downtowns. 
19  Ford County / Dodge City is much less complicated:  only one facility and no competition nearby 
(see Exhibit 5). 



DRAFT 
 

 
Cummings Associates 

20

 

                                                

 In the Southeast (Exhibits B-8 through B-14), it is very difficult to generate substantial 

revenue, even in the “Upside” scenarios (Exhibits E-8 through E-14).  At Camptown, the issue is 

primarily one of low population density.20  It will not draw significantly from Joplin, and whether 

it lives or dies has very little impact on any casino in Cherokee County.  Such a casino might do a 

little better right at Galena (slightly closer to Joplin, with what appears to be good access via 

Highway 66), but the arguments for a site immediately adjacent to I-44 are strong (what I call the 

“Cherokee Corner”).  The problem is, what appears to be a very substantial competitor is under 

construction right on the other side of I-44, there are five more casinos at Miami (the next exit on 

I-44), four more at Wyandotte, and many more down the border between Oklahoma and 

Arkansas.  This will not be an easy market in which to compete.  In contrast to Kansas City 

(where Missouri may add one more casino, but that appears controversial), and Wichita 

(protected somewhat by distance from Oklahoma), there are no barriers to entry here.21   

 Because the model predicts very low revenues for this area, I have been torn as to how to 

present the results.  I have compromised by dropping Camptown from my summaries and 

statewide totals as non-viable,22 but leaving the casino in, albeit with footnotes, despite the fact 

that its viability is no more certain. 

 In the South Central Zone, with other things being equal, the gravity model predicts 

substantially more revenues for a facility at Mulvane than at Wellington.  Wichita is where the 

 
20   Dodge City is no more populous, but any (and all) competition is much further away. 
21   Or more accurately, to upgrades by one or more of the many existing competitors. 
22   Unlike the Woodlands, which has facilities available as a going concern, the race track at 
Camptown has been shuttered for years and will likely require substantial investment to re-open. 



DRAFT 
 

 
Cummings Associates 

21

 

                                                

people are, and Mulvane is thirteen miles closer (11-12 minutes).23  And while there are a fair 

number of casinos just over the state line in Oklahoma, they are neither so numerous nor nearly 

so accessible as those next to Cherokee County.  At either Wellington or, especially, Mulvane, a 

Kansas casino will dominate this market. 

 Dodge City, as evident from the maps in Exhibits 1 and 5, is remote from any and all 

potential competitors.  It is also remote from substantial numbers of people.  I estimate that a 650-

slot facility there would attract roughly $35 million in total annual win under my baseline 

assumptions, with a power rating of 110.  With 800 slots at a power rating of 115, that figure rises 

only to $40 million. 

 Combined baseline projections for Midwest-Standard facilities at the “best” sites 

(analyzed so far) in each of the zones are summarized in Exhibit 20.  (I have not reduced the 

numbers of slot machines at each facility from those determined in the separate analyses for each 

zone.  Cross-traffic among the zones reduces win per slot per day from my benchmark figure of 

$150.  This is really significant only for Dodge City, which gains roughly $5 million in revenues 

when there is no casino in Sumner County.)  “Taxable” gaming revenues for the State as a whole 

(excluding its Native American facilities) are estimated at $702 million if one includes the 

hypothetical figure for the Southeastern Zone, $669 million if one does not. 

 Further detail for this projection is presented in Appendix B.  Exhibit 20 is replicated as 

Exhibit B-19, then further detail is provided for the projected sources of consumer spending at the 

Kansas casinos in Exhibit B-19B.  These are divided by state, and then into “tourists,” traveling 

more than 100 miles to the facility in question, and “locals,” coming from within 100 miles.  

 
23   A 3,000-slot facility would attract $193 million in total revenues at Kansas Turnpike Exit 33 in 
Mulvane, $149 million at Exit 19 in Wellington. 



DRAFT 
 

 
Cummings Associates 

22

 

                                                

Corresponding detail for projected visitor counts is presented in Exhibit B-19C.24  Similar details 

are provided for a selection of the major scenarios I have examined in Appendices B, C and E. 

 All these projections have assumed that the new facilities in Kansas, and the response of 

its markets to them, are essentially “Midwest Standard” (with allowances for higher power 

ratings at the most rural).  As I stated at the outset, however, four out of the five newest facilities 

in Iowa have exceeded this standard, so it appears realistic to expect more in the way of 

“potential” for Kansas than the existing Midwest average.  I have developed a series of “Upside” 

projections to reflect this higher standard.  These basically assume power ratings five points 

higher than in the base case.  This is not “the high end of the range,” but a reasonable expectation 

for, say, the upper quartile rather than the average performance.  Projections corresponding to 

each of the baseline scenarios in Appendix B are presented under these upside assumptions in 

Appendix E.  The combined projections for each of the zones are summarized in Exhibit 21.  

Under these assumptions, “taxable” gaming revenues for the State as a whole are estimated at 

$846 million if one includes the hypothetical figure for the Southeastern Zone, $797 million if 

one does not.  This total is roughly 20% higher than that indicated in Exhibit 20 under Midwest 

Standard assumptions. 

 To be even-handed, I have developed a similar series of projections under more 

conservative “Downside” assumptions.  These are detailed in Appendix D.  As one would expect 

from what are essentially mirror-image assumptions, they result in total taxable gaming revenues 

 
24   Note that I have first used the model to calculate spending (revenues), then estimated visitation 
based upon projected rates of spending per visitor.  These rise with (a) per capita income, (b) distance, 
and (c) utilization rates at each facility.  Based on admissions counts, spending per visitor averaged 
$59 in Iowa in 2007 and $68 in Missouri.  I have basically assumed that the Kansas City area will be 
like Missouri, and the rest of the State like Iowa. 



DRAFT 
 

 
Cummings Associates 

23

 

within the State about 20% less than the Baseline ($536 million, as indicated at the bottom of 

Exhibit D-19). 

 



DRAFT 
 

 
Cummings Associates 

24

 

4.  Conclusions as to Market Potential 
 
 Exhibit 22 presents a summary what I believe to be the most informative of the many 

scenarios I have examined. 

 If the new facilities in Kansas are all essentially Midwest Standard, then total annual 

taxable gaming revenues in the State, leaving aside the non-taxable revenues of the Native 

American casinos and the casino in the Southeastern Zone whose viability is in question, could 

potentially amount to $669 million.  This is presented as of “stabilized operations” for each of 

these facilities, and in terms of 2007 dollars. 

 If the new facilities have modestly higher power ratings, typical of recent new facilities in 

Iowa, then the corresponding figure amounts to $797 million.  As this represents roughly the 

upper quartile of all comparable facilities, I believe it most accurately reflects the potential for 

total gaming revenues in the State. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

My analyses and projections are based upon the assumptions described herein.  
Some of these assumptions will inevitably not materialize, and unanticipated 
events and circumstances will occur.  The actual results will therefore vary from 
my projections, and such variations may be material. 
 



DRAFT 25

 

BIBLIOGRAPHY 
(Listed in chronological order) 

 
 Christiansen/Cummings Associates, Inc., et al., Legal Gambling in Connecticut: 

Assessment of Current Status and Options for the Future, January, 1992. 
 
 Gerstein et al., Gambling Impact and Behavior Study:  Report to the National 

Gambling Impact Study Commission, National Opinion Research Center at the 
University of Chicago, April 1, 1999. 

 
 Cummings Associates, The Revenue Performance and Impacts of Arizona’s Native 

American Casinos, February 16, 2001.  
 
 The Innovation Group, Video Lottery Terminals at New York Race Tracks:  An 

Economic Study, June, 2001. 
 
 Cummings Associates, Creating New Revenues for the Commonwealth:  A $550 

Million Solution, December 6, 2002. 
 
 Cummings, Will E., If You Build It, They Will Come -- But How Far?  The “Distance 

Factor” in Regional Gaming Markets, a presentation to the 12th International 
Conference on Gambling and Risk-Taking, Vancouver, B.C., May 30, 2003. 

 
 Cummings Associates, Analysis of Current Markets for Casino Gaming in Iowa, with 

Projections for the Revenues and Impacts of Potential New Facilities, October 7, 2003, 
with Update of April 18, 2005. May be found at www.state.ia.us/irgc/Cummings.pdf. 

 
 Cummings Associates, Analysis of the Current Markets for Gaming in South Dakota, 

with Projections for the Likely Impacts of New or Enlarged Facilities, April 5, 2004. 
May be  found at www.state.sd.us/drr2/reg/gaming/Analysis.pdf. 

 
 Christiansen Capital Advisors LLC, The Feasibility of Electronic and/or Casino 

Gaming in Kansas, February 21, 2006, with Supplement dated March 16, 2006, and 
Update of March 27, 2008. 

 
 Cummings Associates, Slot Machines (or Video Lottery Terminals) at the Four Race 

Tracks of Massachusetts: An Opportunity for More Jobs and Tax Revenues, March 17, 
2006.  

 
 Cummings, Will E., Casinos’ Gravity According To Reilly – Amended,  a presentation 

to the 13th International Conference on Gambling and Risk-Taking, Lake Tahoe, 
Nevada, May 25, 2006. May be found at http://www.unr.edu/gaming/13th Conference 
Web files/Files/ Abstracts/index.htm. 

 
Cummings Associates 

 



Cummings Associates 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Projections for the 
 

Market Potential of the 
 

Four Gaming Zones in Kansas 
 
 
 

Exhibits 
 
 
 

DRAFT 
 
 
 

May 26, 2008 
 

135 Jason Street, Arlington, Massachusetts  02476 
Telephone: 781-641-1215 - Fax: 641-0954 - e-mail: cummingsw@aol.com 



DRAFT 
 

 
Cummings Associates 

 
 

List of Exhibits 
 

    1. Map of Kansas, Its Gaming Zones, and Nearby Casinos 

    2. Detail for Northeast Kansas 

    3. Detail for Southeast Kansas 

    4. Detail for South Central Kansas 

    5. Detail for Dodge City 

    6. Illustrative Distance Relationships (Mississippi) 

    7. Distance Relationships II 

    8. Distance Relationships III 

    9. Portion of Model Inputs (two pages) 

  10. Gaming-Device Spending Ratios in Major U.S. Markets 

  11. Slot “Power Ratings” for Major Regional Gaming Facilities 

  12. Recent Projections Compared to Actual Results 

  13. Analysis in Brief – “As Was” 2007 

  14. Projection in Brief – KCK 7th Street Casino Added (Solo) 

  15. Projection in Brief – Baseline / Woodlands Added (Solo, with 800 Slots) 

  16. Projection in Brief – Baseline / Woodlands Added (Solo, at $150/day) 

  17. Projection in Brief – Baseline / Kansas Speedway Added ($150/day) 

  18. Projection in Brief – Baseline / KCK Stateline Added ($150/day) 

  19. Projection in Brief – Baseline / Kansas Middle Added ($150/day) 

  20. Projection in Brief – Baseline / All Facilities (at best sites) 

  21. Projection in Brief – Upside / All Facilities (at best sites) 

  22. Summary of Market Potential 

 



DRAFT 
Exhibit 1:  Kansas, Its Gaming Zones, and Nearby Casinos 

 

 
 

Cummings Associates 
 



DRAFT 
Exhibit 2:  Detail for Northeast Kansas 

 

 

 
Cummings Associates 

 



DRAFT 
Exhibit 3:  Detail for Southeast Kansas 

 

 
Cummings Associates 

 
 



DRAFT 
Exhibit 4:  Detail for South-Central Kansas 

 

 

 
Cummings Associates 

 



DRAFT 
Exhibit 5:  Detail for Dodge City 

 

 

 
Cummings Associates 

 



DRAFT

Cummings Associates

Exhibit 6:  Illustrative Distance Relationships (Mississippi)

0.0

4.0

8.0

12.0

16.0

20.0

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700

Distance (miles)

M
is

si
ss

ip
pi

 V
is

ito
rs

/D
ay

/0
00

 a
du

lts



DRAFT

Cummings Associates

Exhibit 7:  Distance Relationships II

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

3.5 4.0 4.5 5.0 5.5 6.0 6.5 7.0

ln(distance)

ln
(M

is
si

ss
ip

pi
 v

is
ito

rs
/d

ay
/0

00
0)



DRAFT

Cummings Associates

Exhibit 8:  Distance Relationships III

y = -0.4219x2 + 2.9285x + 0.2932
R2 = 0.9621

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

3.5 4.0 4.5 5.0 5.5 6.0 6.5 7.0

ln(distance)

ln
(M

is
si

ss
ip

pi
 v

is
ito

rs
/d

ay
/0

00
0)



DRAFT
Exhibit 9:  Portion of Model Inputs

(one of two pages)

Kansas Slot Estimates
Average Distances:

KCK KCK KCK SE  SE  Sumner Sumner Dodge White
State County / ZIP Woodlnds Spdwaystateline middle Camptn Corner Galena Mulvane Well'n City Cloud Horton Mayetta

KS Allen / 66732 102 100 107 103 43 74 69 128 137 263 155 142 122
KS Allen / 66748 112 110 117 113 56 86 81 114 123 248 154 134 113
KS Allen / 66749 103 101 109 105 61 92 87 121 131 253 146 127 106
KS Allen / 66751 101 98 106 102 56 87 82 125 135 257 145 130 110
KS Allen / 66755 93 91 98 94 51 82 77 134 144 267 146 134 114
KS Allen / 66772 106 104 111 107 40 70 65 126 135 262 159 146 126
KS Anderson / 66014 69 67 74 70 61 94 89 156 166 285 132 121 102
KS Anderson / 66015 92 90 98 94 68 99 94 130 140 259 135 118 97
KS Anderson / 66032 74 71 79 75 76 108 103 147 158 274 121 107 88
KS Anderson / 66033 64 61 69 65 77 110 104 157 168 283 117 106 87
KS Anderson / 66039 82 79 86 82 60 92 87 143 153 273 136 123 104
KS Anderson / 66091 83 81 89 85 71 103 97 138 149 267 128 113 93
KS Anderson / 66093 90 88 96 92 77 108 103 129 140 258 131 110 89
KS Atchison / 66002 40 42 51 49 158 191 185 226 239 339 35 31 44
KS Atchison / 66016 43 44 54 52 158 191 185 214 227 327 36 27 32
KS Atchison / 66023 50 52 62 60 164 196 191 207 220 319 39 20 24

:     :     :  :  :  :  :  :  :  :  :  :  :  :  :  
:     :     :  :  :  :  :  :  :  :  :  :  :  :  :  
:     :     :  :  :  :  :  :  :  :  :  :  :  :  :  

KS Wyandotte / 66106 9 8 8 7 113 146 140 215 227 335 84 79 65
KS Wyandotte / 66109 7 7 11 9 120 153 147 216 228 335 76 70 57
KS Wyandotte / 66111 7 7 8 7 115 148 142 216 228 335 82 76 63
KS Wyandotte / 66112 7 7 9 7 117 150 145 216 228 335 79 73 60
KS Wyandotte / 66118 12 11 7 7 117 147 141 223 234 342 86 81 69

Total KS

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit 9:  Portion of Model Inputs

(one of two pages)

Kansas Slot Estimates

State County / ZIP

KS Allen / 66732
KS Allen / 66748
KS Allen / 66749
KS Allen / 66751
KS Allen / 66755
KS Allen / 66772
KS Anderson / 66014
KS Anderson / 66015
KS Anderson / 66032
KS Anderson / 66033
KS Anderson / 66039
KS Anderson / 66091
KS Anderson / 66093
KS Atchison / 66002
KS Atchison / 66016
KS Atchison / 66023

:     :     
:     :     
:     :     

KS Wyandotte / 66106
KS Wyandotte / 66109
KS Wyandotte / 66111
KS Wyandotte / 66112
KS Wyandotte / 66118

Total KS

 Impacts:
A'star 2006 Adult   --------------------------------------

Powhat KC  Closest Population   2000 PCI Urban?   Dstnce   Urban?   Income Dist-Adj Adults

147 . . . 114 43 229 $15,160 28% 100% 87% 56
139 . . . 125 56 1,991 $15,160 23% 100% 87% 402
132 . . . 116 61 6,015 $15,160 22% 100% 87% 1,144
135 . . . 113 56 719 $15,160 23% 100% 87% 145
139 . . . 105 51 862 $15,160 25% 100% 87% 187
151 . . . 118 40 210 $15,160 30% 100% 87% 54
127 . . . 81 61 231 $15,033 22% 100% 86% 44
123 . . . 106 68 549 $15,033 20% 100% 86% 97
113 . . . 87 71 3,396 $15,033 20% 100% 86% 579
111 . . . 77 61 513 $15,033 22% 100% 86% 97
129 . . . 94 60 464 $15,033 22% 100% 86% 89
118 . . . 97 71 227 $15,033 20% 100% 86% 39
114 . . . 104 77 445 $15,033 19% 100% 86% 72
37 . . . 54 31 9,532 $16,400 42% 100% 90% 3,570
33 . . . 58 27 418 $16,400 39% 100% 90% 146
26 . . . 66 20 888 $16,400 49% 100% 90% 389

:  :  :  :     :     :     :    :    :    :     
:  :  :  :     :     :     :    :    :    :     
:  :  :  :     :     :     :    :    :    :     

85 . . . 16 7 8,071 $15,966 1 100% 100% 89% 14,028
76 . . . 17 7 18,242 $15,966 1 100% 100% 89% 9,160
82 . . . 16 7 3,694 $15,966 1 100% 100% 89% 6,255
79 . . . 16 7 1,991 $15,966 1 100% 100% 89% 6,909
87 . . . 9 7 95 $15,966 1 100% 100% 89% 1

1,943,042 936,580

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit 10:  Gaming-Device Spending Ratios in Major US Markets

(Total Annual Spending on Slots and/or VLTs Per "Distance-Adjusted" Adult in 2007)

Northeastern US Kansas and Other Markets
Markets Its Neighbors Midwest & West

Deadwood, SD $909
S Dakota Indian avg. (8) $873 e

Colorado      (2) $841 Upstate Michigan avg. $840 e

Kansas Natives avg. $821 e

Terribles Lakeside. IA $795
Mississippi / Louisiana $809

Horseshoe / Bluffs Run, IA $792
Diamond Jo Worth, IA $792
Iowa Indian average $782 e
Ameristar Council Bluffs, IA $780

Upstate Wisconsin avg. $770 e
Mt. Pleasant, MI $757 e

IOC Marquette, IA $749 Metropolis, IL/KY $753
Harrahs Council Bluffs, IA $747 Albuquerque, NM avg. $752
Dubuque Greyh Park, IA $747
Emmetsburg, IA $746 Harrahs Joliet, IL $745

Other New Mexico avg. $740
Atlantic City, NJ $730 Riverside, IA $730

IOC Boonville, MO $724
Harrahs NKCMO $719 Wisconsin Dells $711 e

Mohegan Sun, CT $700 Prairie Meadows, IA $699
IOC Waterloo, IA $697

Ameristar KCMO $686 Michigan City, IN $685
Dubuque Riverboat, IA $681
Harrahs W St Louis $679
Argosy Riverside, MO $676 Aurora (Chicago), IL $675

Foxwoods, CT $669 Argosy Sioux City, IA $673 Elgin (Chicago) IL $672
Joliet Empress, IL $667

IOC Bettendorf, IA $658
Southern Delaware $656 Catfish Bend Burlington, IA $656 East St Louis, IL $656

Ameristar St Chas, MO $641 Hammond, IN $636
St Jo MO $635 Resorts, E Chicago IN $636

Charles Town, WV $626 Green Bay, WI $627 e
Rhythm City, IA $622
Caruthersville, MO $615

Salamanca, NY $608 Detroit (avg / 3 facils) $609
Mark Twain, MO $604
Clinton, IA $601 French Lick, IN $601
Jumers Rock Island, IL $593 Cincinnnati (avg), OH/IN $591

Louisville, KY/IN $581
Majestic Star, Gary IN $576
Milwaukee, WI $567 e

Wheeling, WV $561
Vernon Downs, NY $554 Peoria, IL $554
Tioga Downs, NY $544 IOC KCMO $547
Delaware Park $541 KCKS 7th St Casino $543 e South Dakota VLTs $541
Newport, RI $538
Bangor, ME $519
Batavia Downs, NY $513 Admiral / downtown St Louis $515
Finger Lakes, NY $511

Evansville, IN $499
Saratoga Harness, NY $497 Montana VLTs      (2) $497
Mountaineer Park, WV $488
Monticello, NY $471
Tri-State, WV $468
Lincoln Park, RI $463

Fairgrounds (Buffalo), NY $413

(1)  Nevada local markets would be off this scale, somewhere north of $1000/adult.
(2)  Colorado and Montana statistics do not include Native American facilities

Niagara (NY) casino $662

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit 11:  Slot "Power Ratings" for Major Regional Gaming Facilities

(Spending per Distance-Adjusted Adult Compared to "Midwest Standard" of $700)

Northeastern US Kansas and Other Markets
Markets Its Neighbors Midwest & West

Deadwood, SD 129.9
S Dakota Indian avg. (8) 124.7 e

Colorado      (2) 120.1 Upstate Michigan avg. 120.0 e

Kansas Natives avg. 117.3 e

Terribles Lakeside. IA 113.6
Mississippi / Louisiana 115.5

Horseshoe / Bluffs Run, IA 113.1
Diamond Jo Worth, IA 113.1
Iowa Indian average 111.7 e
Ameristar Council Bluffs, IA 111.4

Upstate Wisconsin avg. 110.0 e
Mt. Pleasant, MI 108.1 e

IOC Marquette, IA 107.0 Metropolis, IL/KY 107.6
Harrahs Council Bluffs, IA 106.7 Albuquerque, NM avg. 107.4
Dubuque Greyh Park, IA 106.7
Emmetsburg, IA 106.6 Harrahs Joliet, IL 106.4

Other New Mexico avg. 105.7
Atlantic City, NJ 104.3 Riverside, IA 104.3

IOC Boonville, MO 103.4
Harrahs NKCMO 102.7 Wisconsin Dells 101.6 e

Mohegan Sun, CT 100.0 Prairie Meadows, IA 99.9
IOC Waterloo, IA 99.6

Ameristar KCMO 98.0 Michigan City, IN 97.9
Dubuque Riverboat, IA 97.3
Harrahs W St Louis 97.0
Argosy Riverside, MO 96.6 Aurora (Chicago), IL 96.4

Foxwoods, CT 95.6 Argosy Sioux City, IA 96.1 Elgin (Chicago) IL 96.0
Joliet Empress, IL 95.3

IOC Bettendorf, IA 94.0
Southern Delaware 93.7 Catfish Bend Burlington, IA 93.7 East St Louis, IL 93.7

Ameristar St Chas, MO 91.6 Hammond, IN 90.9
St Jo MO 90.7 Resorts, E Chicago IN 90.9

Charles Town, WV 89.4 Green Bay, WI 89.6 e
Rhythm City, IA 88.9
Caruthersville, MO 87.9

Salamanca, NY 86.9 Detroit (avg / 3 facils) 87.0
Mark Twain, MO 86.3
Clinton, IA 85.9 French Lick, IN 85.9
Jumers Rock Island, IL 84.7 Cincinnnati (avg), OH/IN 84.4

Louisville, KY/IN 83.0
Majestic Star, Gary IN 82.3
Milwaukee, WI 81.0 e

Wheeling, WV 80.1
Vernon Downs, NY 79.1 Peoria, IL 79.1
Tioga Downs, NY 77.7 IOC KCMO 78.1
Delaware Park 77.3 KCKS 7th St Casino 543.0 e South Dakota VLTs 77.3
Newport, RI 76.9
Bangor, ME 74.1
Batavia Downs, NY 73.3 Admiral / downtown St Louis 73.6
Finger Lakes, NY 73.0

Evansville, IN 71.3
Saratoga Harness, NY 71.0 Montana VLTs      (2) 71.0
Mountaineer Park, WV 69.7
Monticello, NY 67.3
Tri-State, WV 66.9
Lincoln Park, RI 66.1

Fairgrounds (Buffalo), NY 59.0

(1)  Nevada local markets would be off this scale, somewhere north of 140.
(2)  Colorado and Montana statistics do not include Native American facilities

Niagara (NY) casino 94.6

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit 12: Recent Projections Compared to Actual Results

(Annual Slot Win / $million)

Projection / Source Actual / Source

   Facility / Market:

Zia Park / New Mexico $53.7 (1) $68.9 (2)

Emmetsburg / Iowa $23.4 (3) $26.4 (4)

Worth County / Iowa $34.2 (3) $67.5 (4)

Riverside / Iowa $82.0 (3) $85.8 (4)

IOC Waterloo / Iowa $96.8 (3) $76.9 (4)

$30.2
$49.9

(1)  The Projected Performance of a New Race Track / Slot Facility at Hobbs, New Mexico (etc.)
        February 15, 2002.
(2)  Penn National Gaming Press Release, 4/17/07 stated total revenue was $76.6 million in
        2006.  I assume that 90% was gaming.  (Revenues have since increased).
(3)  Analysis of Current Markets for Casino Gaming in Iowa, with Projections for the Revenues
        and Impacts of Potential New Facilities -- Update, April 18, 2005.
(4)  Iowa Racing and Gaming Commission, FY2007.  Figure for Riverside is Calendar 2007,
        Waterloo extrapolated from first ten months in FY2008.
(5)  Projections for the Performance of a New Race Track and Video Lottery Facility at Tioga
        Park , September 14, 2004.  Higher projection is without competition from Pocono Downs;
        lower figure is with such competition.  
(6)  New York State Lottery, calendar 2007.  Pocono Downs's temporary slot facility was
        open throughout this period.

Tioga Downs /NY (5) (6)$42.2

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit 13: Analysis in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

"As Was" 2007 -- Before Any New Facilities

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 0 $0.0 $0.0

KCK 7th Street
4 Northeast KS Natives 2,693 117 $180.8 $184 $205.4

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 2,693 $180.8 $184 $205.4

  memo:  Northeast Zone
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $164.2 $228 $182.0
IOC KC 1,523 78.1 $77.3 $139 $83.8
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $175.4 $270 $202.3
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $222.5 $202 $252.6
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,287 $639.4 $211 $720.7

  Greater KC Total 8,287 $639.4 $211 $720.7
  Greater Joplin Total 3,641 $121.1 $91 $136.1
  Greater Wichita Total 3,632 $91.1 $69 $102.4

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit 14: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Baseline -- KCK 7th Street Casino Added (Solo)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 0 $0.0 $0.0

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $19.4 $118 $19.4
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $189.9 $151 $215.8

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 3,893 $209.3 $147 $235.2

  memo:  Northeast Zone
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $155.1 $216 $171.9
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $71.7 $148 $77.8
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $166.4 $256 $191.9
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $212.3 $193 $241.0
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $605.6 $205 $682.7

  Greater KC Total 8,544 $625.0 $200 $702.1
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $145.6 $56 $163.7
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $93.3 $55 $104.8

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit 15: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Baseline -- Woodlands Added (Solo, with 800 slots)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $46.2 $158 $46.2
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 800 $46.2 $158 $46.2

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.7 $114 $18.7
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $188.8 $150 $214.6

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 4,693 $253.7 $148 $279.4

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $46.2 $158 $46.2
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $150.3 $209 $166.6
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.8 $144 $75.7
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $162.5 $250 $187.4
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $207.7 $189 $235.7
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $590.3 $200 $665.5

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $655.2 $192 $730.4
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $145.3 $56 $163.3
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $93.2 $55 $104.7

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit 16: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Baseline -- Woodlands Added (Solo, $150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 970 95 $53.1 $150 $53.1
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 970 $53.1 $150 $53.1

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.5 $113 $18.5
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $187.8 $149 $213.4

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 4,863 $259.4 $146 $285.0

  memo:  Northeast Zone 970 $53.1 $150 $53.1
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $148.5 $207 $164.6
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.2 $143 $75.1
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $161.1 $248 $185.8
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $206.1 $187 $234.0
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $585.0 $198 $659.5

  Greater KC Total 9,514 $656.6 $189 $731.1
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $145.2 $56 $163.1
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $93.1 $55 $104.6

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit 17: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Baseline -- Kansas Speedway Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $25.1 $86 $25.1
KCK Speedway 3,960 100 $216.8 $150 $249.2
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 4,760 $241.9 $139 $274.3

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $13.2 $81 $13.2
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $164.4 $131 $186.8

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 8,653 $419.5 $133 $474.3

  memo:  Northeast Zone 4,760 $241.9 $139 $274.3
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $109.6 $152 $121.5
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $54.4 $112 $59.0
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $127.7 $196 $147.2
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $168.4 $153 $191.1
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $460.0 $156 $518.9

  Greater KC Total 13,304 $715.2 $147 $806.4
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $142.1 $55 $159.6
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $91.5 $54 $102.8

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit 18: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)
Baseline -- KCK Stateline Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $26.2 $90 $26.2
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline 6,300 100 $345.1 $150 $396.6
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 7,100 $371.2 $143 $422.8

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $9.5 $58 $9.5
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $163.0 $130 $185.3

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 10,993 $543.8 $136 $617.5

  memo:  Northeast Zone 7,100 $371.2 $143 $422.8
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $87.7 $122 $97.2
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $38.2 $79 $41.4
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $99.3 $153 $114.5
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $132.8 $121 $150.7
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $358.0 $121 $403.9

  Greater KC Total 15,644 $738.7 $129 $836.1
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $140.5 $54 $157.8
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $91.2 $54 $102.4

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit 19: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Baseline -- KCK Middle Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $21.9 $75 $21.9
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle 6,830 100 $374.1 $150 $430.0
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 7,630 $396.0 $142 $451.9

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $9.0 $55 $9.0
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $159.0 $127 $180.7

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 11,523 $564.0 $134 $641.6

  memo:  Northeast Zone 7,630 $396.0 $142 $451.9
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $82.2 $114 $91.1
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $39.8 $82 $43.2
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $100.4 $154 $115.8
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $136.2 $124 $154.6
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $358.7 $121 $404.8

  Greater KC Total 16,174 $763.7 $129 $865.7
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $140.1 $54 $157.4
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $90.8 $54 $102.0

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit 20:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Baseline -- All Facilities (at best sites)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $21.6 $74 $21.6
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle 6,830 100 $369.1 $148 $424.2
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 600 100 $29.3 $134 $32.9 *
Sumner Mulvane 3,160 100 $168.1 $146 $188.9
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City 650 110 $31.2 $132 $34.7

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 12,040 $619.3 $141 $702.3

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $9.0 $55 $9.0
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $147.9 $118 $168.1

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 15,933 $776.2 $133 $879.4

  memo:  Northeast Zone 7,630 $390.7 $140 $445.8
  memo:  Southeast Zone 600 $29.3 $134 $32.9 *
  memo:  South Central Zone 3,160 $168.1 $146 $188.9

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $81.1 $113 $89.9
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $39.5 $81 $42.9
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $99.0 $152 $114.1
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $134.6 $122 $152.7
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $354.1 $120 $399.6

  Greater KC Total 16,174 $753.8 $128 $854.4
  Greater Joplin Total 7,663 $155.8 $56 $175.1
  Greater Wichita Total 7,792 $231.4 $81 $260.1

*  Likely not viable, reducing total Statewide taxable gaming revenues to $669.4 million.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit 21:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Upside -- All Facilities (at best sites)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 100 $22.6 $78 $22.6
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle 8,600 105 $461.5 $147 $530.4
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 880 105 $43.9 $137 $49.3 *
Sumner Mulvane 3,480 105 $182.8 $144 $205.4
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City 760 115 $34.8 $125 $38.6

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 14,520 $745.6 $141 $846.5

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $7.5 $46 $7.5
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $137.2 $109 $155.9

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 18,413 $890.3 $132 $1,009.9

  memo:  Northeast Zone 9,400 $484.1 $141 $553.1
  memo:  Southeast Zone 880 $43.9 $137 $49.3 *
  memo:  South Central Zone 3,480 $182.8 $144 $205.4

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $69.3 $96 $76.8
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $33.9 $70 $36.7
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $86.0 $132 $99.2
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $118.1 $107 $134.0
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $307.2 $104 $346.8

  Greater KC Total 17,944 $798.9 $122 $907.3
  Greater Joplin Total 7,943 $161.0 $56 $180.9
  Greater Wichita Total 8,112 $243.7 $82 $273.9

*  Likely not viable, reducing total Statewide taxable gaming revenues to $797.1 million.

Cummings Associates



Cummings Associates 
 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Projections for the 
 

Market Potential of the 
 

Four Gaming Zones in Kansas 
 
 
 

Appendices 
 
 
 

DRAFT 
 
 
 

May 26, 2008 
 
 

135 Jason Street, Arlington, Massachusetts  02476 
Telephone: 781-641-1215 - Fax: 641-0954 - e-mail: cummingsw@aol.com 



Cummings Associates 
 

 
 

135 Jason Street, Arlington, Massachusetts  02476 
Telephone: 781-641-1215 - Fax: 641-0954 - e-mail: cummingsw@aol.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Projections for the 
 

Market Potential of the 
 

Four Gaming Zones in Kansas 
 

Appendix A: 
 

Projections “As If” in 2007 
 

DRAFT 
 

May 26, 2008 
 
 
 



DRAFT

List of Exhibits
(All "Projections in Brief")

Exhibit

A-1 Analysis in Brief:  "As Was" 2007 -- Before Any New Facilities
A-2 "As Was" 2007 -- KCK 7th Street Casino Added (Alone)
A-3 "As Was" 2007 -- Woodlands Added (Solo, with 800 Slots)
A-4 "As Was" 2007 -- Woodlands Added (Solo, at $150/day)
A-5 "As Was" 2007 -- Kansas Speedway Added ($150/day)
A-6 "As Was" 2007 -- KCK Stateline Added ($150/day)
A-7 "As Was" 2007 -- KCK Middle Added ($150/day)
A-8 "As Was" 2007 -- Camptown Added (Alone in S.E.)
A-9 "As Was" 2007 -- Cherokee Corner Added (with Camptown)

A-10 "As Was" 2007 -- Cherokee Corner Added (w/o Camptown)
A-11 "As Was" 2007 -- Cherokee Corner "Stretched" to $120/day
A-12 "As Was" 2007 -- Cherokee Galena Added (with Camptown)
A-13 "As Was" 2007 -- Cherokee Galena Added (w/o Camptown)
A-14 "As Was" 2007 -- Cherokee Galena "Stretched" to $120/day
A-15 "As Was" 2007 -- Sumner Mulvane Added ($150/day)
A-16 "As Was" 2007 -- Kansas Wellington Added ($150/day)
A-17 "As Was" 2007 -- Dodge City Added ($150/day)
A-18 "As Was" 2007 -- All Facilities (at "least" sites)
A-19 "As Was" 2007 -- All Facilities (at best sites)
A-20 "As Was" 2007 -- All Facilities (at best sites, at $200/day)

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit A-1: Analysis in Brief ($mn / 2007$)
"As Was" 2007 -- Before Any New Facilities

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 0 $0.0 $0.0

KCK 7th Street
4 Northeast KS Natives 2,693 117 $180.8 $184 $205.4

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 2,693 $180.8 $184 $205.4

  memo:  Northeast Zone
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $164.2 $228 $182.0
IOC KC 1,523 78.1 $77.3 $139 $83.8
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $175.4 $270 $202.3
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $222.5 $202 $252.6
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,287 $639.4 $211 $720.7

  Greater KC Total 8,287 $639.4 $211 $720.7
  Greater Joplin Total 3,641 $121.1 $91 $136.1
  Greater Wichita Total 3,632 $91.1 $69 $102.4

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit A-2: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

"As Was" 2007 -- KCK 7th Street Casino Added (Solo)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 0 $0.0 $0.0

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $19.5 $119 $19.5
4 Northeast KS Natives 2,693 117 $179.3 $182 $203.8

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 3,143 $198.9 $173 $223.3

  memo:  Northeast Zone
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $157.7 $219 $174.8
IOC KC 1,523 78.1 $74.1 $133 $80.3
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $169.7 $261 $195.7
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $216.3 $197 $245.5
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,287 $617.7 $204 $696.3

  Greater KC Total 8,737 $637.2 $200 $715.8
  Greater Joplin Total 3,641 $121.0 $91 $135.9
  Greater Wichita Total 3,632 $91.1 $69 $102.3

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit A-3: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

"As Was" 2007 -- Woodlands Added (Solo, w 800 slots)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $48.9 $167 $48.9
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 800 $48.9 $167 $48.9

KCK 7th Street
4 Northeast KS Natives 2,693 117 $179.2 $182 $203.7

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 3,493 $228.1 $179 $252.5

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $48.9 $167 $48.9
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $158.4 $220 $175.6
IOC KC 1,523 78.1 $75.0 $135 $81.4
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $170.8 $262 $197.0
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $217.2 $198 $246.5
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,287 $621.4 $205 $700.5

  Greater KC Total 9,087 $670.3 $202 $749.4
  Greater Joplin Total 3,641 $120.7 $91 $135.6
  Greater Wichita Total 3,632 $90.9 $69 $102.2

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit A-4: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

"As Was" 2007 -- Woodlands Added (Solo, $150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 1,180 95 $64.6 $150 $64.6
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 1,180 $64.6 $150 $64.6

KCK 7th Street
4 Northeast KS Natives 2,693 117 $177.0 $180 $201.2

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 3,873 $241.7 $171 $265.8

  memo:  Northeast Zone 1,180 $64.6 $150 $64.6
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $154.2 $215 $171.0
IOC KC 1,523 78.1 $73.6 $132 $79.8
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $167.5 $257 $193.1
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $213.5 $194 $242.3
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,287 $608.7 $201 $686.2

  Greater KC Total 9,467 $673.4 $195 $750.9
  Greater Joplin Total 3,641 $120.5 $91 $135.4
  Greater Wichita Total 3,632 $90.9 $69 $102.1

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit A-5: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

"As Was" 2007 -- KCK Speedway Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $25.4 $87 $25.4
KCK Speedway 4,370 100 $239.4 $150 $275.2
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 5,170 $264.8 $140 $300.6

KCK 7th Street
4 Northeast KS Natives 2,693 117 $153.2 $156 $174.0

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 7,863 $418.0 $146 $474.7

  memo:  Northeast Zone 5,170 $264.8 $140 $300.6
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $111.7 $155 $123.9
IOC KC 1,523 78.1 $56.9 $102 $61.7
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $130.8 $201 $150.8
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $172.1 $157 $195.3
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,287 $471.5 $156 $531.7

  Greater KC Total 13,457 $736.3 $150 $832.3
  Greater Joplin Total 3,641 $117.4 $88 $131.9
  Greater Wichita Total 3,632 $88.8 $67 $99.8

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit A-6: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

"As Was" 2007 -- KCK Stateline Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $26.5 $91 $26.5
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline 6,770 100 $370.8 $150 $426.2
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 7,570 $397.4 $144 $452.8

KCK 7th Street
4 Northeast KS Natives 2,693 117 $152.3 $155 $173.1

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 10,263 $549.6 $147 $625.8

  memo:  Northeast Zone 7,570 $397.4 $144 $452.8
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $88.7 $123 $98.4
IOC KC 1,523 78.1 $39.2 $70 $42.5
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $100.8 $155 $116.2
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $134.5 $122 $152.7
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,287 $363.2 $120 $409.8

  Greater KC Total 15,857 $760.6 $131 $862.5
  Greater Joplin Total 3,641 $115.8 $87 $130.1
  Greater Wichita Total 3,632 $88.4 $67 $99.4

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit A-7: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

"As Was" 2007 -- KCK Middle Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $22.3 $76 $22.3
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle 7,250 100 $397.3 $150 $456.7
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 8,050 $419.5 $143 $478.9

KCK 7th Street
4 Northeast KS Natives 2,693 117 $148.4 $151 $168.6

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 10,743 $567.9 $145 $647.5

  memo:  Northeast Zone 8,050 $419.5 $143 $478.9
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $83.5 $116 $92.6
IOC KC 1,523 78.1 $41.2 $74 $44.6
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $102.4 $157 $118.1
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $138.6 $126 $157.3
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,287 $365.7 $121 $412.7

  Greater KC Total 16,337 $785.2 $132 $891.6
  Greater Joplin Total 3,641 $115.5 $87 $129.8
  Greater Wichita Total 3,632 $88.0 $66 $98.9

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit A-8: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

"As Was" 2007 -- Camptown Added (Alone in S.E.)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $48.7 $167 $48.7
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown 600 95 $30.3 $138 $30.3
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 1,400 $79.0 $155 $79.0

KCK 7th Street
4 Northeast KS Natives 2,693 117 $178.3 $181 $202.7

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 4,093 $257.3 $172 $281.6

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $48.7 $167 $48.7
  memo:  Southeast Zone 600 $30.3 $138 $30.3
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $157.9 $220 $175.1
IOC KC 1,523 78.1 $74.9 $135 $81.2
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $170.2 $262 $196.3
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $216.4 $197 $245.6
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,287 $619.4 $205 $698.2

  Greater KC Total 9,087 $668.1 $201 $746.9
  Greater Joplin Total 4,241 $144.0 $93 $161.8
  Greater Wichita Total 3,632 $90.2 $68 $101.4

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit A-9: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

"As Was" 2007 -- Cherokee Corner Added (with Camptown)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $48.4 $166 $48.4
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown 600 95 $26.8 $122 $26.8
Cherokee Corner 1,070 100 $58.7 $150 $65.9
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 2,470 $133.9 $148 $141.1

KCK 7th Street
4 Northeast KS Natives 2,693 117 $176.8 $180 $200.9

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,163 $310.7 $165 $342.0

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $48.4 $166 $48.4
  memo:  Southeast Zone 1,670 $85.4 $140 $92.7
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $157.1 $219 $174.2
IOC KC 1,523 78.1 $74.6 $134 $80.9
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $169.1 $260 $195.0
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $215.1 $196 $244.1
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,287 $616.0 $204 $694.3

  Greater KC Total 9,087 $664.4 $200 $742.8
  Greater Joplin Total 5,311 $171.6 $89 $192.8
  Greater Wichita Total 3,632 $89.0 $67 $100.0

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit A-10: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

"As Was" 2007 -- Cherokee Corner Added (w/o Camptown)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $48.5 $166 $48.5
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner 1,190 100 $65.2 $150 $73.2
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 1,990 $113.7 $157 $121.8

KCK 7th Street
4 Northeast KS Natives 2,693 117 $177.3 $180 $201.5

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 4,683 $291.0 $170 $323.2

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $48.5 $166 $48.5
  memo:  Southeast Zone 1,190 $65.2 $150 $73.2
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $157.4 $219 $174.5
IOC KC 1,523 78.1 $74.7 $134 $81.0
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $169.4 $260 $195.4
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $215.5 $196 $244.6
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,287 $617.1 $204 $695.5

  Greater KC Total 9,087 $665.6 $201 $744.1
  Greater Joplin Total 4,831 $153.1 $87 $172.0
  Greater Wichita Total 3,632 $89.5 $67 $100.5

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit A-11: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

"As Was" 2007 -- Cherokee Corner "Stretched" to $120/day

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $48.4 $166 $48.4
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner 1,850 100 $81.2 $120 $91.2
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 2,650 $129.6 $134 $139.6

KCK 7th Street
4 Northeast KS Natives 2,693 117 $176.6 $180 $200.6

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,343 $306.1 $157 $340.2

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $48.4 $166 $48.4
  memo:  Southeast Zone 1,850 $81.2 $120 $91.2
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $157.0 $219 $174.1
IOC KC 1,523 78.1 $74.6 $134 $80.9
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $169.0 $260 $194.8
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $214.9 $195 $243.9
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,287 $615.5 $203 $693.8

  Greater KC Total 9,087 $663.9 $200 $742.2
  Greater Joplin Total 5,491 $162.9 $81 $183.1
  Greater Wichita Total 3,632 $88.9 $67 $99.8

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit A-12: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

"As Was" 2007 -- Cherokee Galena Added (with Camptown)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $48.4 $166 $48.4
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown 600 95 $25.7 $117 $25.7
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 1,270 100 $69.7 $150 $78.3
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 2,670 $143.8 $148 $152.4

KCK 7th Street
4 Northeast KS Natives 2,693 117 $176.5 $180 $200.5

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,363 $320.3 $164 $352.9

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $48.4 $166 $48.4
  memo:  Southeast Zone 1,870 $95.4 $140 $104.0
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $157.0 $218 $174.0
IOC KC 1,523 78.1 $74.6 $134 $80.9
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $168.9 $260 $194.8
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $214.8 $195 $243.9
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,287 $615.3 $203 $693.6

  Greater KC Total 9,087 $663.7 $200 $741.9
  Greater Joplin Total 5,511 $180.7 $90 $203.0
  Greater Wichita Total 3,632 $88.7 $67 $99.7

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit A-13: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

"As Was" 2007 -- Cherokee Galena Added (w/o Camptown)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $48.5 $166 $48.5
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 1,420 100 $77.8 $150 $87.4
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 2,220 $126.3 $156 $135.9

KCK 7th Street
4 Northeast KS Natives 2,693 117 $176.9 $180 $201.0

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 4,913 $303.2 $169 $336.9

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $48.5 $166 $48.5
  memo:  Southeast Zone 1,420 $77.8 $150 $87.4
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $157.2 $219 $174.3
IOC KC 1,523 78.1 $74.7 $134 $81.0
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $169.2 $260 $195.1
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $215.2 $196 $244.3
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,287 $616.3 $204 $694.7

  Greater KC Total 9,087 $664.7 $200 $743.1
  Greater Joplin Total 5,061 $164.2 $89 $184.5
  Greater Wichita Total 3,632 $89.2 $67 $100.2

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit A-14: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

"As Was" 2007 -- Cherokee Galena "Stretched" to $120/day

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $48.3 $166 $48.3
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 2,120 100 $93.1 $120 $104.6
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 2,920 $141.4 $133 $152.9

KCK 7th Street
4 Northeast KS Natives 2,693 117 $176.1 $179 $200.1

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,613 $317.5 $155 $353.0

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $48.3 $166 $48.3
  memo:  Southeast Zone 2,120 $93.1 $120 $104.6
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $156.8 $218 $173.9
IOC KC 1,523 78.1 $74.6 $134 $80.9
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $168.7 $259 $194.5
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $214.6 $195 $243.6
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,287 $614.6 $203 $692.8

  Greater KC Total 9,087 $663.0 $200 $741.1
  Greater Joplin Total 5,761 $173.9 $83 $195.4
  Greater Wichita Total 3,632 $88.5 $67 $99.5

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit A-15:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

"As Was" 2007 -- Sumner Mulvane Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $48.4 $166 $48.4
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane 3,310 100 $181.3 $150 $203.7
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 4,110 $229.7 $153 $252.1

KCK 7th Street
4 Northeast KS Natives 2,693 117 $165.5 $168 $188.1

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 6,803 $395.3 $159 $440.2

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $48.4 $166 $48.4
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone 3,310 $181.3 $150 $203.7

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $156.7 $218 $173.8
IOC KC 1,523 78.1 $74.6 $134 $80.9
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $168.7 $259 $194.6
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $214.8 $195 $243.8
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,287 $614.9 $203 $693.1

  Greater KC Total 9,087 $663.3 $200 $741.5
  Greater Joplin Total 3,641 $117.2 $88 $131.7
  Greater Wichita Total 6,942 $243.2 $96 $273.2

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit A-16:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

"As Was" 2007 -- Sumner Wellington Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $48.4 $166 $48.4
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington 2,490 107 $136.3 $150 $153.2
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 3,290 $184.7 $154 $201.6

KCK 7th Street
4 Northeast KS Natives 2,693 117 $166.9 $170 $189.7

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,983 $351.6 $161 $391.3

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $48.4 $166 $48.4
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone 2,490 $136.3 $150 $153.2

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $156.9 $218 $173.9
IOC KC 1,523 78.1 $74.7 $134 $81.0
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $168.9 $260 $194.8
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $215.0 $196 $244.1
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,287 $615.5 $203 $693.7

  Greater KC Total 9,087 $663.9 $200 $742.2
  Greater Joplin Total 3,641 $117.1 $88 $131.6
  Greater Wichita Total 6,122 $198.6 $89 $223.1

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit A-17:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)
"As Was" 2007 -- Dodge City Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $48.8 $167 $48.8
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City 700 110 $38.2 $150 $42.5

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 1,500 $87.0 $159 $91.3

KCK 7th Street
4 Northeast KS Natives 2,693 117 $177.3 $180 $201.5

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 4,193 $264.4 $173 $292.8

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $48.8 $167 $48.8
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $158.2 $220 $175.4
IOC KC 1,523 78.1 $75.0 $135 $81.3
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $170.6 $262 $196.7
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $216.9 $197 $246.2
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,287 $620.7 $205 $699.7

  Greater KC Total 9,087 $669.5 $202 $748.5
  Greater Joplin Total 3,641 $120.5 $91 $135.4
  Greater Wichita Total 3,632 $88.6 $67 $99.5

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit A-18:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)
"As Was" 2007 -- All Facilities (at "least" sites)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $24.9 $85 $24.9
KCK Speedway 4,370 100 $233.2 $146 $268.0
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner 1,190 100 $61.2 $141 $68.7
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington 2,490 107 $129.3 $142 $145.3
Dodge City 700 110 $32.6 $128 $36.2

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 9,550 $481.1 $138 $543.1

KCK 7th Street
4 Northeast KS Natives 2,693 117 $140.6 $143 $159.8

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 12,243 $621.7 $139 $702.9

  memo:  Northeast Zone 5,170 $258.1 $137 $292.9
  memo:  Southeast Zone 1,190 $61.2 $141 $68.7
  memo:  South Central Zone 2,490 $129.3 $142 $145.3

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $109.7 $153 $121.6
IOC KC 1,523 78.1 $56.3 $101 $61.1
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $128.1 $197 $147.7
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $168.9 $154 $191.8
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,287 $463.0 $153 $522.2

  Greater KC Total 13,457 $721.1 $147 $815.1
  Greater Joplin Total 4,831 $144.4 $82 $162.2
  Greater Wichita Total 6,122 $190.0 $85 $213.5

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit A-19:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)
"As Was" 2007 -- All Facilities (at best sites)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $21.7 $74 $21.7
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle 7,250 100 $387.6 $146 $445.5
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 1,420 100 $71.8 $138 $80.6
Sumner Mulvane 3,310 100 $174.3 $144 $195.8
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City 700 110 $32.1 $126 $35.7

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 13,480 $687.5 $140 $779.4

KCK 7th Street
4 Northeast KS Natives 2,693 117 $135.0 $137 $153.4

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 16,173 $822.5 $139 $932.8

  memo:  Northeast Zone 8,050 $409.3 $139 $467.2
  memo:  Southeast Zone 1,420 $71.8 $138 $80.6
  memo:  South Central Zone 3,310 $174.3 $144 $195.8

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $81.4 $113 $90.2
IOC KC 1,523 78.1 $40.6 $73 $44.0
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $99.6 $153 $114.9
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $135.4 $123 $153.7
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,287 $357.0 $118 $402.9

  Greater KC Total 16,337 $766.3 $129 $870.1
  Greater Joplin Total 5,061 $152.6 $83 $171.4
  Greater Wichita Total 6,942 $234.5 $93 $263.5

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit A-20:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

"As Was" 2007 -- All Facilities (at best sites, at $200/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $27.0 $92 $27.0
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle 4,150 100 $303.1 $200 $348.4
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 750 100 $54.9 $201 $61.7
Sumner Mulvane 2,300 100 $168.1 $200 $188.8
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City 400 110 $29.3 $201 $32.5

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 8,400 $582.4 $190 $658.5

KCK 7th Street
4 Northeast KS Natives 2,693 117 $145.5 $148 $165.4

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 11,093 $727.9 $180 $823.8

  memo:  Northeast Zone 4,950 $330.1 $183 $375.4
  memo:  Southeast Zone 750 $54.9 $201 $61.7
  memo:  South Central Zone 2,300 $168.1 $200 $188.8

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $97.3 $135 $107.9
IOC KC 1,523 78.1 $48.3 $87 $52.4
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $116.2 $179 $134.0
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $155.7 $142 $176.7
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,287 $417.6 $138 $471.1

  Greater KC Total 13,237 $747.7 $155 $846.5
  Greater Joplin Total 4,391 $144.9 $90 $162.8
  Greater Wichita Total 5,932 $230.9 $107 $259.4

Cummings Associates



Cummings Associates 
 

 
 

135 Jason Street, Arlington, Massachusetts  02476 
Telephone: 781-641-1215 - Fax: 641-0954 - e-mail: cummingsw@aol.com 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Projections for the 
 

Market Potential of the 
 

Four Gaming Zones in Kansas 
 

Appendix B: 
 

Baseline Projections 
 

DRAFT 
 

May 26, 2008 
 
 
 



DRAFT

List of Exhibits
(All "Projections in Brief")

Exhibit

B-1 Projection in Brief:  Baseline (Likely Future) -- New Facilities Elsewhere
B-2 Baseline -- KCK 7th Street Casino Added (Alone)
B-3 Baseline -- Woodlands Added (Solo, with 800 Slots)
B-4 Baseline -- Woodlands Added (Solo, at $150/day)
B-5 Baseline -- Kansas Speedway Added ($150/day)
B-6 Baseline -- KCK Stateline Added ($150/day)
B-7 Baseline -- KCK Middle Added ($150/day)
B-8 Baseline -- Camptown Added (Alone in S.E.)
B-9 Baseline -- Cherokee Corner Added (with Camptown)

B-10 Baseline -- Cherokee Corner Added (w/o Camptown)
B-11 Baseline -- Cherokee Corner "Stretched" to $120/day
B-12 Baseline -- Cherokee Galena Added (with Camptown)
B-13 Baseline -- Cherokee Galena Added (w/o Camptown)
B-14 Baseline -- Cherokee Galena "Stretched" to $120/day
B-15 Baseline -- Sumner Mulvane Added ($150/day)
B-16 Baseline -- Kansas Wellington Added ($150/day)
B-17 Baseline -- Dodge City Added ($150/day)
B-18 Baseline -- All Facilities (at "least" sites)

B-18B Baseline / All Facilities / Least Sites / Detail for Spending by Source
B-18C Baseline / All Facilities / Least Sites / Detail for Visitation by Source
B-19 Baseline -- All Facilities (at best sites)

B-19B Baseline / All Facilities / Best Sites / Detail for Spending by Source
B-19C Baseline / All Facilities / Best Sites / Detail for Visitation by Source
B-20 Baseline -- All Facilities (at best sites, at $200/day)

B-20B Baseline / All Facilities / Best Sites / $200/day / Detail for Spending
B-20C Baseline / All Facilities / Best Sites / $200/day / Detail for Visitation

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit B-1: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Baseline / Likely Future -- New Facilities Elsewhere
(inc. Powhattan)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 0 $0.0 $0.0

KCK 7th Street
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $191.4 $152 $217.6

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 3,443 $191.4 $152 $217.6

  memo:  Northeast Zone
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $161.6 $225 $179.2
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $74.9 $154 $81.2
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $172.2 $265 $198.5
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $218.6 $199 $248.1
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $627.2 $212 $707.0

  Greater KC Total 8,094 $627.2 $212 $707.0
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $145.8 $57 $163.9
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $93.4 $55 $104.9

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit B-2: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Baseline -- KCK 7th Street Casino Added (Solo)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 0 $0.0 $0.0

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $19.4 $118 $19.4
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $189.9 $151 $215.8

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 3,893 $209.3 $147 $235.2

  memo:  Northeast Zone
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $155.1 $216 $171.9
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $71.7 $148 $77.8
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $166.4 $256 $191.9
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $212.3 $193 $241.0
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $605.6 $205 $682.7

  Greater KC Total 8,544 $625.0 $200 $702.1
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $145.6 $56 $163.7
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $93.3 $55 $104.8

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit B-3: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Baseline -- Woodlands Added (Solo, with 800 slots)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $46.2 $158 $46.2
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 800 $46.2 $158 $46.2

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.7 $114 $18.7
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $188.8 $150 $214.6

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 4,693 $253.7 $148 $279.4

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $46.2 $158 $46.2
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $150.3 $209 $166.6
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.8 $144 $75.7
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $162.5 $250 $187.4
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $207.7 $189 $235.7
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $590.3 $200 $665.5

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $655.2 $192 $730.4
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $145.3 $56 $163.3
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $93.2 $55 $104.7

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit B-4: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Baseline -- Woodlands Added (Solo, $150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 970 95 $53.1 $150 $53.1
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 970 $53.1 $150 $53.1

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.5 $113 $18.5
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $187.8 $149 $213.4

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 4,863 $259.4 $146 $285.0

  memo:  Northeast Zone 970 $53.1 $150 $53.1
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $148.5 $207 $164.6
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.2 $143 $75.1
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $161.1 $248 $185.8
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $206.1 $187 $234.0
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $585.0 $198 $659.5

  Greater KC Total 9,514 $656.6 $189 $731.1
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $145.2 $56 $163.1
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $93.1 $55 $104.6

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit B-5: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Baseline -- Kansas Speedway Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $25.1 $86 $25.1
KCK Speedway 3,960 100 $216.8 $150 $249.2
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 4,760 $241.9 $139 $274.3

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $13.2 $81 $13.2
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $164.4 $131 $186.8

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 8,653 $419.5 $133 $474.3

  memo:  Northeast Zone 4,760 $241.9 $139 $274.3
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $109.6 $152 $121.5
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $54.4 $112 $59.0
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $127.7 $196 $147.2
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $168.4 $153 $191.1
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $460.0 $156 $518.9

  Greater KC Total 13,304 $715.2 $147 $806.4
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $142.1 $55 $159.6
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $91.5 $54 $102.8

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit B-6: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)
Baseline -- KCK Stateline Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $26.2 $90 $26.2
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline 6,300 100 $345.1 $150 $396.6
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 7,100 $371.2 $143 $422.8

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $9.5 $58 $9.5
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $163.0 $130 $185.3

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 10,993 $543.8 $136 $617.5

  memo:  Northeast Zone 7,100 $371.2 $143 $422.8
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $87.7 $122 $97.2
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $38.2 $79 $41.4
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $99.3 $153 $114.5
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $132.8 $121 $150.7
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $358.0 $121 $403.9

  Greater KC Total 15,644 $738.7 $129 $836.1
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $140.5 $54 $157.8
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $91.2 $54 $102.4

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit B-7: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Baseline -- KCK Middle Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $21.9 $75 $21.9
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle 6,830 100 $374.1 $150 $430.0
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 7,630 $396.0 $142 $451.9

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $9.0 $55 $9.0
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $159.0 $127 $180.7

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 11,523 $564.0 $134 $641.6

  memo:  Northeast Zone 7,630 $396.0 $142 $451.9
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $82.2 $114 $91.1
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $39.8 $82 $43.2
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $100.4 $154 $115.8
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $136.2 $124 $154.6
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $358.7 $121 $404.8

  Greater KC Total 16,174 $763.7 $129 $865.7
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $140.1 $54 $157.4
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $90.8 $54 $102.0

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit B-8: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)
Baseline -- Camptown Added (Alone in S.E.)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $46.1 $158 $46.1
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown 600 95 $24.4 $111 $24.4 *
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 1,400 $70.4 $138 $70.4

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.7 $114 $18.7
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $188.3 $150 $214.0

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,293 $277.5 $144 $303.2

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $46.1 $158 $46.1
  memo:  Southeast Zone 600 $24.4 $111 $24.4
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $150.0 $209 $166.3
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.8 $144 $75.6
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $162.2 $249 $187.1
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $207.3 $189 $235.3
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $589.3 $199 $664.4

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $654.1 $192 $729.2
  Greater Joplin Total 7,663 $164.7 $59 $185.1
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $92.7 $55 $104.1

 *  If the numbers were all that mattered, the model indicates that a facililty with 360 slots would
    achieve $150/day, for total win of $19.8 million.  Realistically, the competition is just too intense
    to reach $150/day at "Midwest Standard."  See Appendix E for impacts of a better mousetrap.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit B-9: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Baseline -- Cherokee Corner Added (with Camptown)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $46.0 $157 $46.0
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown 600 95 $23.4 $107 $23.4
Cherokee Corner 600 100 $26.5 $121 $29.8 *
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 2,000 $95.9 $131 $99.2

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.7 $114 $18.7
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $187.7 $149 $213.3

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,893 $302.3 $141 $331.2

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $46.0 $157 $46.0
  memo:  Southeast Zone 1,200 $49.9 $114 $53.2
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $149.8 $208 $166.0
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.7 $144 $75.5
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $161.9 $249 $186.7
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $206.9 $188 $234.8
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $588.2 $199 $663.1

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $652.8 $191 $727.7
  Greater Joplin Total 8,263 $177.9 $59 $199.8
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $92.1 $54 $103.5

 *  If the numbers were all that mattered, the model indicates that a casino with 300 slots would
    achieve $150/day, for total win of $18.6 million.  Realistically, the competition is just too intense
    to reach $150/day at "Midwest Standard."  See Appendix E for impacts of a better mousetrap.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit B-10: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Baseline -- Cherokee Corner Added (w/o Camptown)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $46.1 $158 $46.1
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner 600 100 $27.4 $125 $30.8 *
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 1,400 $73.5 $144 $76.9

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.7 $114 $18.7
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $188.1 $150 $213.8

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,293 $280.3 $145 $309.4

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $46.1 $158 $46.1
  memo:  Southeast Zone 600 $27.4 $125 $30.8
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $150.0 $209 $166.3
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.7 $144 $75.6
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $162.1 $249 $187.0
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $207.2 $188 $235.2
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $589.0 $199 $664.1

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $653.8 $192 $728.8
  Greater Joplin Total 7,663 $159.1 $57 $178.8
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $92.6 $55 $104.0

 *  If the numbers were all that mattered, the model indicates that a casino with 340 slots would
    achieve $150/day, for total win of $21 million.  Realistically, the competition is just too intense
    to reach $150/day at "Midwest Standard."  See Appendix E for impacts of a better mousetrap.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit B-11: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Baseline -- Cherokee Corner "Stretched" to $120/day

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $46.0 $158 $46.0
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner 680 100 $29.9 $120 $33.6
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 1,480 $75.9 $141 $79.6

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.7 $114 $18.7
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $188.1 $150 $213.7

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,373 $282.7 $144 $312.0

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $46.0 $158 $46.0
  memo:  Southeast Zone 680 $29.9 $120 $33.6
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $149.9 $209 $166.2
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.7 $144 $75.6
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $162.1 $249 $186.9
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $207.1 $188 $235.1
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $588.9 $199 $663.9

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $653.6 $192 $728.6
  Greater Joplin Total 7,743 $160.2 $57 $180.0
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $92.5 $55 $104.0

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit B-12: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Baseline -- Cherokee Galena Added (with Camptown)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $46.0 $157 $46.0
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown 600 95 $23.2 $106 $23.2
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 600 100 $29.7 $136 $33.4
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 2,000 $98.9 $135 $102.5

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.7 $114 $18.7
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $187.7 $149 $213.3

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,893 $305.2 $142 $334.5

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $46.0 $157 $46.0
  memo:  Southeast Zone 1,200 $52.9 $121 $56.6
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $149.8 $208 $166.0
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.7 $144 $75.5
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $161.9 $249 $186.7
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $206.9 $188 $234.8
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $588.1 $199 $663.0

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $652.8 $191 $727.7
  Greater Joplin Total 8,263 $183.8 $61 $206.5
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $92.1 $54 $103.5

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit B-13: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Baseline -- Cherokee Galena Added (w/o Camptown)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $46.1 $158 $46.1
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 600 100 $31.3 $143 $35.1
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 1,400 $77.3 $151 $81.2

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.7 $114 $18.7
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $188.1 $150 $213.8

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,293 $284.2 $147 $313.7

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $46.1 $158 $46.1
  memo:  Southeast Zone 600 $31.3 $143 $35.1
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $150.0 $209 $166.3
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.7 $144 $75.6
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $162.2 $249 $187.0
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $207.2 $188 $235.2
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $589.1 $199 $664.1

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $653.9 $192 $728.9
  Greater Joplin Total 7,663 $166.2 $59 $186.7
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $92.6 $55 $104.0

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit B-14: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Baseline -- Cherokee Galena "Stretched" to $120/day

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $46.0 $158 $46.0
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 970 100 $42.6 $120 $47.8
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 1,770 $88.6 $137 $93.8

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.7 $114 $18.7
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $187.8 $149 $213.4

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,663 $295.0 $143 $325.8

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $46.0 $158 $46.0
  memo:  Southeast Zone 970 $42.6 $120 $47.8
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $149.8 $208 $166.1
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.7 $144 $75.6
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $161.9 $249 $186.7
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $206.9 $188 $234.9
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $588.4 $199 $663.3

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $653.1 $191 $728.0
  Greater Joplin Total 8,033 $171.1 $58 $192.3
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $92.3 $55 $103.7

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit B-15:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)
Baseline -- Sumner Mulvane Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $45.8 $157 $45.8
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane 3,160 100 $173.1 $150 $194.5
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 3,960 $218.9 $151 $240.3

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.7 $114 $18.7
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $177.1 $141 $201.2

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 7,853 $414.7 $145 $460.2

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $45.8 $157 $45.8
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone 3,160 $173.1 $150 $194.5

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $149.1 $207 $165.3
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.5 $143 $75.4
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $161.1 $247 $185.7
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $206.1 $187 $233.9
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $585.8 $198 $660.4

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $650.3 $191 $724.8
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $141.1 $55 $158.5
  Greater Wichita Total 7,792 $237.8 $84 $267.1

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit B-16:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Baseline -- Sumner Wellington Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $45.9 $157 $45.9
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington 2,250 107 $123.3 $150 $138.5
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 3,050 $169.1 $152 $184.4

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.7 $114 $18.7
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $178.8 $142 $203.2

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 6,943 $366.6 $145 $406.2

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $45.9 $157 $45.9
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone 2,250 $123.3 $150 $138.5

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $149.3 $208 $165.5
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.6 $143 $75.5
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $161.3 $248 $186.0
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $206.3 $188 $234.2
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $586.4 $199 $661.1

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $651.0 $191 $725.6
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $141.4 $55 $158.9
  Greater Wichita Total 6,882 $190.1 $76 $213.6

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit B-17:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Baseline -- Dodge City Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $46.1 $158 $46.1
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City 650 110 $35.7 $151 $39.7

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 1,450 $81.9 $155 $85.8

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.7 $114 $18.7
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $187.4 $149 $212.9

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,343 $287.9 $148 $317.5

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $46.1 $158 $46.1
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $150.2 $209 $166.5
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.8 $144 $75.7
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $162.4 $250 $187.2
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $207.5 $189 $235.6
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $589.9 $200 $665.0

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $654.7 $192 $729.8
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $145.1 $56 $163.0
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $91.1 $54 $102.3

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit B-18:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Baseline -- All Facilities (at "least" sites)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $24.8 $85 $24.8
KCK Speedway 3,960 100 $213.6 $148 $245.5
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner 600 100 $26.1 $119 $29.3 *
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington 2,250 107 $118.5 $144 $133.1
Dodge City 650 110 $31.7 $134 $35.3

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 8,260 $414.7 $138 $468.0

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $13.2 $80 $13.2
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $154.4 $123 $175.4

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 12,153 $582.3 $131 $656.7

  memo:  Northeast Zone 4,760 $238.4 $137 $270.3
  memo:  Southeast Zone 600 $26.1 $119 $29.3 *
  memo:  South Central Zone 2,250 $118.5 $144 $133.1

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $108.5 $151 $120.2
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $54.1 $112 $58.7
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $126.3 $194 $145.6
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $166.8 $152 $189.3
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $455.6 $154 $513.8

  Greater KC Total 13,304 $707.2 $146 $797.4
  Greater Joplin Total 7,663 $151.3 $54 $170.1
  Greater Wichita Total 6,882 $184.0 $73 $206.7

*  Likely not viable, reducing total Statewide taxable gaming revenues to $438.7 million.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT

Number of Slots
Power Rating
Win/Slot/Day

Kansas Tourists
Kansas Locals

Kansas Total

Missouri Tourists
Missouri Locals

Missouri Total

Okla + Ark Tourists
Okla + Ark Locals

Okla + Ark Total

Iowa

Nebraska

Other Near

Frontage Traffic

Total All Sources

total Tourists
total locals

      Exhibit B-18B:  Detail for Sources of Consumer Spending ($000)
      Baseline  -- All Facilities (at "least" sites)

Total Woodlnds KC Spwy KC statel. KC mid Camptown SE Corner Galena Mulvane Well'n Dodge

8,260 800 3,960 600 2,250 650
95 100 100 107 110

$85 $148 $119 $144 $134

$15,518 $528 $4,781 $712 $6,659 $2,837
319,027 $14,710 $159,232 $3,885 $111,312 $29,888
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$334,545 $15,238 $164,014 $0 $0 $0 $4,597 $0 $0 $117,971 $32,725

$13,445 $1,050 $9,239 $1,353 $1,754 $50
91,352 $8,102 $67,063 $16,187 $0 $0

------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$104,797 $9,151 $76,302 $0 $0 $0 $17,540 $0 $0 $1,754 $50

$6,534 $58 $952 $1,150 $3,191 $1,183
6,427 $0 $0 $2,609 $3,429 $390

------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$12,961 $58 $952 $0 $0 $0 $3,758 $0 $0 $6,620 $1,573

$1,889 $152 $1,672 $0 $0 $0 $20 $0 $0 $40 $5

$3,213 $151 $1,751 $0 $0 $0 $21 $0 $0 $616 $674

$1,357 $54 $853 $0 $0 $0 $81 $0 $0 $128 $240

$9,285 $3,298 $5,988
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$468,036 $24,804 $245,534 $0 $0 $0 $29,315 $0 $0 $133,115 $35,267
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$51,230 $1,993 $19,239 $6,634 $18,374 $4,990

$416,806 $22,811 $226,296 $22,681 $114,741 $30,277

            Note:  Totals may not add due to rounding.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT

Number of Slots
Power Rating
Win/Slot/Day

Kansas Tourists
Kansas Locals

Kansas Total

Missouri Tourists
Missouri Locals

Missouri Total

Okla + Ark Tourists
Okla + Ark Locals

Oklahoma Total

Iowa

Nebraska

Other Near

Frontage Traffic

Total All Sources

total Tourists
total locals

Spending Per Visitor

      Exhibit B-18C:  Detail for Visitation by Source
      Baseline  -- All Facilities (at "least" sites)

Total Woodlnds KC Spwy KC statel. KC mid  Camptown SE Corner Galena Mulvane Well'n Dodge 

8,260 800 3,960 600 2,250 650
95 100 100 107 110

$85 $148 $119 $144 $134

195,900 7,016 56,874 9,456 85,588 36,966
4,461,585 216,804 2,064,989 0 0 0 65,932 0 0 1,644,534 469,326
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
4,657,485 223,821 2,121,863 0 0 0 75,388 0 0 1,730,122 506,292

167,878 14,208 111,748 18,305 22,949 667
1,296,908 124,947 911,062 0 0 0 260,899 0 0 0 0
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
1,464,786 139,155 1,022,811 0 0 0 279,203 0 0 22,949 667

88,653 822 11,926 16,185 43,397 16,323
96,424 0 0 0 0 0 40,239 0 0 50,334 5,851

-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
185,077 822 11,926 0 0 0 56,424 0 0 93,731 22,174

22,878 2,026 19,993 0 0 0 269 0 0 518 72

39,816 2,012 20,831 0 0 0 279 0 0 7,916 8,778

15,500 667 9,430 0 0 0 991 0 0 1,525 2,887

105,428 0 0 38,138 67,290 0
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
6,490,970 368,503 3,206,853 0 0 0 450,692 0 0 1,924,051 540,870
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 

636,053 26,752 230,802 83,623 229,182 65,694
5,854,917 341,751 2,976,051 367,069 1,694,869 475,177

$72 $67 $77 $65 $69 $65

            Note:  Totals may not add due to rounding.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit B-19:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Baseline -- All Facilities (at best sites)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $21.6 $74 $21.6
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle 6,830 100 $369.1 $148 $424.2
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 600 100 $29.3 $134 $32.9 *
Sumner Mulvane 3,160 100 $168.1 $146 $188.9
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City 650 110 $31.2 $132 $34.7

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 12,040 $619.3 $141 $702.3

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $9.0 $55 $9.0
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $147.9 $118 $168.1

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 15,933 $776.2 $133 $879.4

  memo:  Northeast Zone 7,630 $390.7 $140 $445.8
  memo:  Southeast Zone 600 $29.3 $134 $32.9 *
  memo:  South Central Zone 3,160 $168.1 $146 $188.9

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $81.1 $113 $89.9
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $39.5 $81 $42.9
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $99.0 $152 $114.1
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $134.6 $122 $152.7
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $354.1 $120 $399.6

  Greater KC Total 16,174 $753.8 $128 $854.4
  Greater Joplin Total 7,663 $155.8 $56 $175.1
  Greater Wichita Total 7,792 $231.4 $81 $260.1

*  Likely not viable, reducing total Statewide taxable gaming revenues to $669.4 million.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT

Number of Slots
Power Rating
Win/Slot/Day

Kansas Tourists
Kansas Locals

Kansas Total

Missouri Tourists
Missouri Locals

Missouri Total

Okla + Ark Tourists
Okla + Ark Locals

Okla + Ark Total

Iowa

Nebraska

Other Near

Frontage Traffic

Total All Sources

total Tourists
total locals

      Exhibit B-19B:  Detail for Sources of Consumer Spending ($000)
      Baseline  -- All Facilities (at best sites)

Total Woodlnds KC Spwy KC statel. KC mid Camptown SE Corner Galena Mulvane Well'n Dodge

12,040 800 6,830 600 3,160 650
95 100 100 100 110

$74 $148 $134 $146 $132

$16,840 $479 $6,908 $589 $6,455 $2,408
461,140 $13,158 $240,817 $4,657 $172,778 $29,729
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$477,980 $13,638 $0 $0 $247,726 $0 $0 $5,246 $179,233 $0 $32,137

$18,442 $1,001 $14,775 $1,174 $1,445 $47
183,031 $6,558 $153,233 $23,241 $0 $0
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$201,473 $7,558 $0 $0 $168,008 $0 $0 $24,414 $1,445 $0 $47

$7,079 $58 $1,687 $1,080 $3,039 $1,214
3,746 $0 $0 $2,013 $1,333 $401

------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$10,825 $58 $0 $0 $1,687 $0 $0 $3,093 $4,372 $0 $1,615

$3,011 $150 $0 $0 $2,794 $0 $0 $22 $40 $0 $5

$4,011 $150 $0 $0 $2,475 $0 $0 $23 $698 $0 $666

$2,052 $54 $0 $0 $1,560 $0 $0 $84 $114 $0 $240

$2,994 $2,994
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$702,329 $21,608 $0 $0 $424,235 $0 $0 $32,881 $188,894 $0 $34,712
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$54,412 $1,892 $30,184 $2,971 $14,783 $4,581

$647,917 $19,716 $394,050 $29,910 $174,111 $30,130

            Note:  Totals may not add due to rounding.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT

Number of Slots
Power Rating
Win/Slot/Day

Kansas Tourists
Kansas Locals

Kansas Total

Missouri Tourists
Missouri Locals

Missouri Total

Okla + Ark Tourists
Okla + Ark Locals

Oklahoma Total

Iowa

Nebraska

Other Near

Frontage Traffic

Total All Sources

total Tourists
total locals

Spending Per Visitor

      Exhibit B-19C:  Detail for Visitation by Source
      Baseline  -- All Facilities (at best sites)

Total Woodlnds KC Spwy KC statel. KC mid  Camptown SE Corner Galena Mulvane Well'n Dodge 

12,040 800 6,830 600 3,160 650
95 100 100 100 110

$74 $148 $134 $146 $132

210,578 6,502 82,139 7,675 82,803 31,459
6,403,358 204,486 0 0 3,075,601 0 0 76,789 2,577,953 0 468,529
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
6,613,936 210,988 0 0 3,157,740 0 0 84,464 2,660,756 0 499,987

227,540 13,834 178,631 15,575 18,868 632
2,575,280 103,504 0 0 2,102,048 0 0 369,727 0 0 0
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
2,802,820 117,338 0 0 2,280,680 0 0 385,302 18,868 0 632

94,925 842 21,132 14,905 41,246 16,800
55,516 0 0 0 0 0 0 29,967 19,513 0 6,036

-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
150,442 842 0 0 21,132 0 0 44,872 60,759 0 22,837

36,316 2,047 0 0 33,393 0 0 287 518 0 72

49,409 2,031 0 0 29,423 0 0 294 8,955 0 8,706

23,160 678 0 0 17,229 0 0 1,009 1,351 0 2,893

33,588 0 0 0 33,588 0
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
9,709,671 333,925 0 0 5,539,596 0 0 516,228 2,784,796 0 535,127
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 

675,517 25,934 361,947 39,744 187,329 60,562
9,034,154 307,990 5,177,649 476,484 2,597,466 474,565

$72 $65 $77 $64 $68 $65

            Note:  Totals may not add due to rounding.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit B-20:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Baseline -- All Facilities (at best sites, at $200/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $26.6 $91 $26.6
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle 3,930 100 $287.1 $200 $330.0
Camptown *
Cherokee Corner *
Cherokee Galena *
Sumner Mulvane 2,210 100 $161.4 $200 $181.4
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City 400 110 $28.9 $198 $32.1

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 7,340 $504.0 $188 $570.0

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $11.0 $67 $11.0
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $158.3 $126 $179.9

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 11,233 $673.3 $164 $760.9

  memo:  Northeast Zone 4,730 $313.7 $182 $356.6
  memo:  Southeast Zone *
  memo:  South Central Zone 2,210 $161.4 $200 $181.4

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $96.1 $134 $106.5
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $46.6 $96 $50.5
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $114.4 $176 $131.9
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $153.4 $140 $174.2
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $410.5 $139 $463.1

  Greater KC Total 13,274 $735.2 $152 $830.7
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $138.3 $54 $155.4
  Greater Wichita Total 6,842 $227.7 $91 $255.9

*  Under baseline conditions, no scenario yields $200/day at any facility in the Southeast.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT

Number of Slots
Power Rating
Win/Slot/Day

Kansas Tourists
Kansas Locals

Kansas Total

Missouri Tourists
Missouri Locals

Missouri Total

Okla + Ark Tourists
Okla + Ark Locals

Okla + Ark Total

Iowa

Nebraska

Other Near

Frontage Traffic

Total All Sources

total Tourists
total locals

      Exhibit B-20B:  Detail for Sources of Consumer Spending ($000)
      Baseline -- All Facilities (at best sites, at $200/day)

Total Woodlnds KC Spwy KC statel. KC mid Camptown SE Corner Galena Mulvane Well'n Dodge

7,340 800 3,930 2,210 400
95 100 100 110

$91 $200 $200 $198

$12,832 $546 $4,835 $5,595 $1,856
415,829 $17,091 $202,683 $167,694 $28,361
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$428,661 $17,638 $0 $0 $207,518 $0 $0 $0 $173,288 $0 $30,217

$11,870 $1,072 $9,603 $1,162 $34
115,137 $7,494 $107,642 $0 $0
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$127,006 $8,566 $0 $0 $117,245 $0 $0 $0 $1,162 $0 $34

$4,263 $60 $1,044 $2,281 $878
1,327 $0 $0 $996 $331

------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$5,590 $60 $0 $0 $1,044 $0 $0 $0 $3,277 $0 $1,209

$1,898 $152 $0 $0 $1,713 $0 $0 $0 $29 $0 $4

$2,649 $152 $0 $0 $1,530 $0 $0 $0 $519 $0 $448

$1,247 $54 $0 $0 $950 $0 $0 $0 $83 $0 $159

$2,994 $2,994
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$570,034 $26,621 $0 $0 $329,992 $0 $0 $0 $181,352 $0 $32,069
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$37,742 $2,035 $19,666 $12,662 $3,377

$532,293 $24,586 $310,326 $168,690 $28,692

            Note:  Totals may not add due to rounding.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT

Number of Slots
Power Rating
Win/Slot/Day

Kansas Tourists
Kansas Locals

Kansas Total

Missouri Tourists
Missouri Locals

Missouri Total

Okla + Ark Tourists
Okla + Ark Locals

Oklahoma Total

Iowa

Nebraska

Other Near

Frontage Traffic

Total All Sources

total Tourists
total locals

Spending Per Visitor

      Exhibit B-20C:  Detail for Visitation by Source
      Baseline -- All Facilities (at best sites, at $200/day)

Total Woodlnds KC Spwy KC statel. KC mid  Camptown SE Corner Galena Mulvane Well'n Dodge 

7,340 800 3,930 2,210 400
95 100 100 110

$91 $200 $200 $198

149,488 7,174 52,901 67,093 22,320
5,338,917 255,092 0 0 2,363,250 0 0 0 2,314,774 0 405,801
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
5,488,404 262,266 0 0 2,416,151 0 0 0 2,381,867 0 428,121

135,607 14,340 106,689 14,166 411
1,456,619 113,948 0 0 1,342,672 0 0 0 0 0 0
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
1,592,226 128,288 0 0 1,449,360 0 0 0 14,166 0 411

52,777 828 11,982 28,834 11,133
18,043 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13,509 0 4,533

-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
70,820 828 0 0 11,982 0 0 0 42,344 0 15,666

21,238 2,005 0 0 18,838 0 0 0 353 0 43

30,354 2,000 0 0 16,738 0 0 0 6,230 0 5,386

13,072 660 0 0 9,715 0 0 0 926 0 1,771

31,658 0 0 31,658 0
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
7,247,773 396,046 0 0 3,922,783 0 0 0 2,477,544 0 451,399
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 

434,194 27,006 216,862 149,262 41,065
6,813,578 369,040 3,705,922 2,328,283 410,334

$79 $67 $84 $73 $71

            Note:  Totals may not add due to rounding.

Cummings Associates



Cummings Associates 
 

 
 

135 Jason Street, Arlington, Massachusetts  02476 
Telephone: 781-641-1215 - Fax: 641-0954 - e-mail: cummingsw@aol.com 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Projections for the 
 

Market Potential of the 
 

Four Gaming Zones in Kansas 
 

Appendix C: 
 

Projections at Standard Sizes 
 

DRAFT 
 

May 26, 2008 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT

List of Exhibits
(All "Projections in Brief")

Exhibit

C-1 Likely Future -- 4,000 Slots at Kansas Speedway
C-2 Likely Future -- 4,000 Slots at KCK Stateline
C-3 Likely Future -- 4,000 Slots at KCK Middle
C-4 Likely Future -- 1,200 Slots at Cherokee Corner
C-5 Likely Future -- 1,200 Slots at Cherokee Galena
C-6 Likely Future -- 3,000 Slots at Sumner Mulvane
C-7 Likely Future -- 3,000 Slots at Sumner Wellington
C-8 Likely Future -- 800 Slots at Dodge City
C-9 Likely Future -- 1,200 Slots at Cherokee Corner with More Intense

   Competition from Oklahoma

C-10 Likely Future -- 1,200 Slots at Cherokee Galena with More Intense
   Competition from Oklahoma

C-11 Likely Future -- 3,000 Slots at Sumner Mulvane with More Intense
   Competition from Oklahoma

C-12 Likely Future -- 3,000 Slots at Sumner Welllington with More Intense
   Competition from Oklahoma

C-13 Likely Future -- Standard Size at "Least" of Each
C-14 Likely Future -- Standard Size at Best of Each

C-14B Likely Future / Standard Size / Best of Each / Detail for Spending by Sour
C-14C Likely Future / Standard Size / Best of Each / Detail for Visitation by Sourc
C-15 Likely Future -- Best of Each Plus Sugar Creek (MO)
C-16 Likely Future -- Best of Each with No MO Loss Limit
C-17 Downside -- Standard Size at Best of Each
C-18 Upside -- Standard Size at Best of Each

C-18B Upside / Standard Size / Best of Each / Detail for Spending by Source
C-18C Upside / Standard Size / Best of Each / Detail for Visitation by Source

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit C-1: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Likely Future -- 4,000 Slots at Kansas Speedway

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $25.0 $86 $25.0
KCK Speedway 4,000 100 $218.0 $149 $250.6
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 4,800 $243.1 $139 $275.6

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $13.2 $80 $13.2
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $164.2 $131 $186.6

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 8,693 $420.5 $133 $475.4

  memo:  Northeast Zone 4,800 $243.1 $139 $275.6
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $109.3 $152 $121.2
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $54.3 $112 $58.9
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $127.5 $196 $147.0
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $168.1 $153 $190.9
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $459.3 $155 $518.0

  Greater KC Total 13,344 $715.5 $147 $806.8
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $142.1 $55 $159.6
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $91.5 $54 $102.8

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit C-2: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)
Likely Future -- 4,000 Slots at KCK Stateline

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $30.4 $104 $30.4
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline 4,000 100 $271.2 $186 $311.8
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 4,800 $301.6 $172 $342.1

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $11.2 $68 $11.2
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $169.9 $135 $193.0

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 8,693 $482.7 $152 $546.4

  memo:  Northeast Zone 4,800 $301.6 $172 $342.1
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $100.7 $140 $111.6
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $44.5 $92 $48.3
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $112.9 $174 $130.2
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $149.6 $136 $169.9
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $407.8 $138 $460.0

  Greater KC Total 13,344 $720.6 $148 $813.3
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $141.9 $55 $159.4
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $91.8 $54 $103.1

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit C-3: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Likely Future -- 4,000 Slots at KCK Middle

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $26.7 $91 $26.7
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle 4,000 100 $292.0 $200 $335.7
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 4,800 $318.7 $182 $362.4

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $11.0 $67 $11.0
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $167.5 $133 $190.4

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 8,693 $497.2 $157 $563.7

  memo:  Northeast Zone 4,800 $318.7 $182 $362.4
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $96.5 $134 $107.0
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $46.6 $96 $50.5
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $115.1 $177 $132.7
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $154.1 $140 $174.9
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $412.3 $140 $465.2

  Greater KC Total 13,344 $742.0 $152 $838.5
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $141.8 $55 $159.3
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $91.6 $54 $103.0

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit C-4: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Likely Future -- 1,200 Slots at Cherokee Corner

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $46.0 $157 $46.0
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner 1,200 100 $43.6 $100 $49.0
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 2,000 $89.6 $123 $95.0

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.7 $114 $18.7
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $187.6 $149 $213.2

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,893 $295.9 $138 $326.8

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $46.0 $157 $46.0
  memo:  Southeast Zone 1,200 $43.6 $100 $49.0
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $149.7 $208 $166.0
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.7 $144 $75.5
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $161.8 $249 $186.6
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $206.8 $188 $234.8
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $588.0 $199 $662.9

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $652.7 $191 $727.6
  Greater Joplin Total 8,263 $166.6 $55 $187.2
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $92.1 $54 $103.5

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit C-5: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Likely Future -- 1,200 Slots at Cherokee Galena

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $46.0 $157 $46.0
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 1,200 100 $48.5 $111 $54.5
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 2,000 $94.5 $129 $100.5

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.7 $114 $18.7
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $187.5 $149 $213.1

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,893 $300.7 $140 $332.2

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $46.0 $157 $46.0
  memo:  Southeast Zone 1,200 $48.5 $111 $54.5
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $149.7 $208 $166.0
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.7 $143 $75.5
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $161.8 $249 $186.6
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $206.8 $188 $234.7
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $588.0 $199 $662.8

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $652.6 $191 $727.5
  Greater Joplin Total 8,263 $173.9 $58 $195.4
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $92.1 $54 $103.5

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit C-6: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Likely Future -- 3,000 Slots at Sumner Mulvane

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $45.8 $157 $45.8
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane 3,000 100 $171.8 $157 $193.1
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 3,800 $217.7 $157 $238.9

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.7 $114 $18.7
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $177.4 $141 $201.5

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 7,693 $413.7 $147 $459.1

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $45.8 $157 $45.8
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone 3,000 $171.8 $157 $193.1

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $149.1 $208 $165.3
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.5 $143 $75.4
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $161.1 $248 $185.8
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $206.1 $187 $234.0
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $585.9 $198 $660.5

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $650.4 $191 $725.0
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $141.2 $55 $158.6
  Greater Wichita Total 7,632 $236.8 $85 $266.1

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit C-7: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Likely Future -- 3,000 Slots at Sumner Wellington

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $45.8 $157 $45.8
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington 3,000 107 $132.6 $121 $149.0
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 3,800 $178.4 $129 $194.8

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.7 $114 $18.7
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $177.3 $141 $201.5

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 7,693 $374.4 $133 $414.9

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $45.8 $157 $45.8
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone 3,000 $132.6 $121 $149.0

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $149.1 $207 $165.3
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.5 $143 $75.4
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $161.1 $248 $185.8
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $206.1 $187 $233.9
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $585.8 $198 $660.4

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $650.3 $191 $724.9
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $140.8 $55 $158.2
  Greater Wichita Total 7,632 $196.7 $71 $221.0

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit C-8: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Likely Future -- 800 Slots at Dodge City

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $46.1 $158 $46.1
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City 800 110 $37.6 $129 $41.8

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 1,600 $83.8 $143 $87.9

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.7 $114 $18.7
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $187.0 $149 $212.5

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,493 $289.5 $144 $319.1

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $46.1 $158 $46.1
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $150.1 $209 $166.4
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.8 $144 $75.7
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $162.3 $249 $187.2
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $207.5 $189 $235.5
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $589.8 $200 $664.9

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $654.6 $192 $729.7
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $145.0 $56 $162.9
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $90.7 $54 $101.9

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit C-9: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

1,200 Slots at Cherokee Corner / More Intense OK Competition

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $45.7 $157 $45.7
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner 1,200 100 $37.0 $84 $41.5
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 2,000 $82.7 $113 $87.3

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.6 $113 $18.6
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $183.0 $146 $207.9

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,893 $284.3 $132 $313.8

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $45.7 $157 $45.7
  memo:  Southeast Zone 1,200 $37.0 $84 $41.5
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $148.9 $207 $165.1
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.4 $143 $75.3
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $160.7 $247 $185.4
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $205.5 $187 $233.3
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $584.6 $198 $659.1

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $649.0 $190 $723.4
  Greater Joplin Total 8,963 $169.7 $52 $190.7
  Greater Wichita Total 6,332 $103.6 $45 $116.4

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit C-10: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

1,200 Slots at Cherokee Galena / More Intense OK Competition

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $45.7 $157 $45.7
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 1,200 100 $41.4 $94 $46.5
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 2,000 $87.1 $119 $92.2

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.6 $113 $18.6
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $182.9 $146 $207.9

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,893 $288.6 $134 $318.7

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $45.7 $157 $45.7
  memo:  Southeast Zone 1,200 $41.4 $94 $46.5
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $148.9 $207 $165.1
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.4 $143 $75.3
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $160.7 $247 $185.3
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $205.5 $187 $233.3
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $584.6 $198 $659.0

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $648.9 $190 $723.3
  Greater Joplin Total 8,963 $177.0 $54 $198.8
  Greater Wichita Total 6,332 $103.6 $45 $116.4

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit C-11: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

3,000 Slots at Mulvane / More Intense OK Competition

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $45.6 $156 $45.6
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane 3,000 100 $165.9 $151 $186.4
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 3,800 $211.5 $152 $232.0

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.6 $113 $18.6
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $175.4 $140 $199.4

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 7,693 $405.5 $144 $449.9

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $45.6 $156 $45.6
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone 3,000 $165.9 $151 $186.4

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $148.5 $207 $164.6
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.3 $143 $75.2
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $160.3 $246 $184.8
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $205.1 $187 $232.8
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $583.2 $197 $657.4

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $647.4 $190 $721.6
  Greater Joplin Total 7,763 $147.6 $52 $165.8
  Greater Wichita Total 9,332 $239.7 $70 $269.3

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit C-12: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

3,000 Slots at Wellington / More Intense OK Competition

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $45.6 $156 $45.6
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington 3,000 107 $124.5 $114 $139.9
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 3,800 $170.1 $123 $185.5

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.6 $113 $18.6
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $175.4 $140 $199.3

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 7,693 $364.1 $130 $403.4

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $45.6 $156 $45.6
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone 3,000 $124.5 $114 $139.9

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $148.5 $207 $164.6
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.3 $143 $75.2
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $160.2 $246 $184.8
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $205.0 $187 $232.8
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $583.1 $197 $657.3

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $647.3 $190 $721.5
  Greater Joplin Total 7,763 $147.3 $52 $165.6
  Greater Wichita Total 9,332 $198.4 $58 $222.9

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit C-13: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Likely Future -- Standard Size at "Least" of Each

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $24.6 $84 $24.6
KCK Speedway 4,000 100 $214.0 $147 $246.0
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner 1,200 100 $41.0 $94 $46.1 *
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington 3,000 107 $126.8 $116 $142.4
Dodge City 800 110 $32.6 $112 $36.2

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 9,800 $439.1 $123 $495.4

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $13.1 $80 $13.1
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $152.5 $121 $173.3

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 13,693 $604.7 $121 $681.9

  memo:  Northeast Zone 4,800 $238.7 $136 $270.7
  memo:  Southeast Zone 1,200 $41.0 $94 $46.1 *
  memo:  South Central Zone 3,000 $126.8 $116 $142.4

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $108.0 $150 $119.7
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $54.0 $111 $58.5
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $125.7 $193 $144.9
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $166.0 $151 $188.5
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $453.6 $154 $511.6

  Greater KC Total 13,344 $705.4 $145 $795.4
  Greater Joplin Total 8,263 $157.5 $52 $176.9
  Greater Wichita Total 7,632 $189.6 $68 $213.0

*  Likely not viable, reducing total Statewide taxable gaming revenues to $449.3 million.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit C-14: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)
Likely Future -- Standard Size at Best of Each

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $26.3 $90 $26.3
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle 4,000 100 $288.2 $197 $331.3
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 1,200 100 $45.7 $104 $51.3 *
Sumner Mulvane 3,000 100 $166.9 $152 $187.5
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City 800 110 $32.9 $113 $36.5

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 9,800 $560.0 $157 $633.0

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $10.9 $66 $10.9
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $155.5 $124 $176.7

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 13,693 $726.4 $145 $820.6

  memo:  Northeast Zone 4,800 $314.5 $180 $357.6
  memo:  Southeast Zone 1,200 $45.7 $104 $51.3 *
  memo:  South Central Zone 3,000 $166.9 $152 $187.5

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $95.1 $132 $105.4
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $46.2 $95 $50.1
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $113.3 $174 $130.6
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $152.0 $138 $172.6
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $406.6 $138 $458.8

  Greater KC Total 13,344 $732.1 $150 $827.3
  Greater Joplin Total 8,263 $164.5 $55 $184.9
  Greater Wichita Total 7,632 $230.5 $83 $259.0

*  Likely not viable, reducing total Statewide taxable gaming revenues to $581.7 million.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT

Number of Slots
Power Rating
Win/Slot/Day

Kansas Tourists
Kansas Locals

Kansas Total

Missouri Tourists
Missouri Locals

Missouri Total

Okla + Ark Tourists
Okla + Ark Locals

Okla + Ark Total

Iowa

Nebraska

Other Near

Frontage Traffic

Total All Sources

total Tourists
total locals

      Exhibit C-14B:  Detail for Sources of Consumer Spending ($000)
      Likely Future -- Standard Size at Best of Each

Total Woodlnds KC Spwy KC statel. KC mid Camptown SE Corner Galena Mulvane Well'n Dodge

9,800 800 4,000 1,200 3,000 800
95 100 100 100 110

$90 $197 $104 $152 $113

$15,194 $493 $4,382 $1,205 $6,180 $2,935
430,680 $16,929 $203,696 $7,406 $172,042 $30,608
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$445,874 $17,422 $0 $0 $208,077 $0 $0 $8,610 $178,222 $0 $33,543

$13,899 $1,018 $9,181 $2,283 $1,360 $58
150,661 $7,454 $108,766 $34,441 $0 $0
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$164,560 $8,472 $0 $0 $117,947 $0 $0 $36,724 $1,360 $0 $58

$7,378 $58 $1,034 $2,005 $2,873 $1,409
5,430 $0 $0 $3,715 $1,274 $441

------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$12,809 $58 $0 $0 $1,034 $0 $0 $5,720 $4,147 $0 $1,850

$1,978 $152 $0 $0 $1,740 $0 $0 $41 $39 $0 $7

$3,212 $151 $0 $0 $1,544 $0 $0 $42 $673 $0 $802

$1,571 $54 $0 $0 $965 $0 $0 $157 $109 $0 $286

$2,994 $2,994
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$632,986 $26,308 $0 $0 $331,298 $0 $0 $51,294 $187,540 $0 $36,545
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$46,215 $1,925 $18,837 $5,732 $14,225 $5,496

$586,771 $24,383 $312,461 $45,562 $173,315 $31,049

            Note:  Totals may not add due to rounding.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT

Number of Slots
Power Rating
Win/Slot/Day

Kansas Tourists
Kansas Locals

Kansas Total

Missouri Tourists
Missouri Locals

Missouri Total

Okla + Ark Tourists
Okla + Ark Locals

Oklahoma Total

Iowa

Nebraska

Other Near

Frontage Traffic

Total All Sources

total Tourists
total locals

Spending Per Visitor

      Exhibit C-14C:  Detail for Visitation by Source
      Likely Future -- Standard Size at Best of Each

Total Woodlnds KC Spwy KC statel. KC mid  Camptown SE Corner Galena Mulvane Well'n Dodge 

9,800 800 4,000 1,200 3,000 800
95 100 100 100 110

$90 $197 $104 $152 $113

188,875 6,482 48,140 16,326 78,607 39,320
5,805,247 253,281 0 0 2,385,823 0 0 128,033 2,541,697 0 496,412
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
5,994,122 259,763 0 0 2,433,963 0 0 144,359 2,620,305 0 535,732

166,002 13,642 102,440 31,526 17,608 786
2,049,022 113,589 0 0 1,363,157 0 0 572,275 0 0 0
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
2,215,024 127,232 0 0 1,465,597 0 0 603,801 17,608 0 786

100,217 809 11,921 28,829 38,637 20,021
83,177 0 0 0 0 0 0 57,859 18,474 0 6,844

-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
183,395 809 0 0 11,921 0 0 86,689 57,111 0 26,864

22,360 2,007 0 0 19,209 0 0 561 493 0 89

38,823 1,992 0 0 16,961 0 0 575 8,554 0 10,741

17,327 661 0 0 9,905 0 0 1,952 1,276 0 3,533

33,339 0 0 0 33,339 0
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
8,504,389 392,464 0 0 3,957,556 0 0 837,936 2,738,687 0 577,746
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 

566,943 25,594 208,575 79,768 178,515 74,489
7,937,446 366,870 3,748,981 758,168 2,560,172 503,256

$74 $67 $84 $61 $68 $63

            Note:  Totals may not add due to rounding.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit C-15:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Standard Size / Best of Each / Casino at Sugar Creek, MO

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $25.2 $86 $25.2
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle 4,000 100 $276.1 $189 $317.4
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 1,200 100 $45.3 $103 $50.9 *
Sumner Mulvane 3,000 100 $166.6 $152 $187.2
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City 800 110 $32.8 $112 $36.5

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 9,800 $546.0 $153 $617.1

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $10.3 $63 $10.3
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $152.4 $121 $173.2

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 13,693 $708.7 $142 $800.6

  memo:  Northeast Zone 4,800 $301.3 $172 $342.6
  memo:  Southeast Zone 1,200 $45.3 $103 $50.9 *
  memo:  South Central Zone 3,000 $166.6 $152 $187.2

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $90.3 $126 $100.1
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $43.2 $89 $46.8
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $104.2 $160 $120.1
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $135.9 $124 $154.2
Sugar Creek 2,000 94.4 $72.2 $99 $81.2

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 10,094 $445.7 $121 $502.4

  Greater KC Total 15,344 $757.3 $135 $855.3
  Greater Joplin Total 8,263 $163.4 $54 $183.6
  Greater Wichita Total 7,632 $230.1 $83 $258.5

*  Likely not viable, reducing total Statewide taxable gaming revenues to $566.2 million.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit C-16:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Standard Size / Best of Each / No MO Loss Limit

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 95 $24.5 $84 $24.5
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle 4,000 100 $268.0 $184 $308.1
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 1,200 100 $45.1 $103 $50.7 *
Sumner Mulvane 3,000 100 $166.4 $152 $186.9
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City 800 110 $32.8 $112 $36.4

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 9,800 $536.8 $150 $606.6

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $9.9 $60 $9.9
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $149.9 $119 $170.4

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 13,693 $696.6 $139 $786.9

  memo:  Northeast Zone 4,800 $292.5 $167 $332.5
  memo:  Southeast Zone 1,200 $45.1 $103 $50.7 *
  memo:  South Central Zone 3,000 $166.4 $152 $186.9

Argosy Riverside 1,969 101.6 $108.9 $151 $120.7
IOC KC 1,330 85.1 $52.7 $109 $57.1
Harrahs NKC 1,783 107.8 $128.5 $197 $148.1
Ameristar KC 3,012 103.0 $171.4 $156 $194.5
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $461.4 $156 $520.5

  Greater KC Total 13,344 $763.8 $157 $863.0
  Greater Joplin Total 8,263 $162.8 $54 $182.9
  Greater Wichita Total 7,632 $229.8 $82 $258.2

*  Likely not viable, reducing total Statewide taxable gaming revenues to $555.9 million.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit C-17:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Standard Size / Best of Each / Downside

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 90 $22.0 $75 $22.0
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle 4,000 95 $245.5 $168 $282.1
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 1,200 95 $29.1 $66 $32.7 *
Sumner Mulvane 3,000 95 $144.8 $132 $162.7
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City 800 105 $29.2 $100 $32.5

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 9,800 $470.5 $132 $531.9

KCK 7th Street 450 90 $20.7 $126 $20.7
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $156.8 $125 $178.2

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 13,693 $648.0 $130 $730.8

  memo:  Northeast Zone 4,800 $267.4 $153 $304.1
  memo:  Southeast Zone 1,200 $29.1 $66 $32.7 *
  memo:  South Central Zone 3,000 $144.8 $132 $162.7

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $98.7 $137 $109.5
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $47.9 $99 $51.9
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $116.6 $179 $134.4
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $156.0 $142 $177.1
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $419.2 $142 $473.0

  Greater KC Total 13,344 $707.3 $145 $797.7
  Greater Joplin Total 8,963 $177.4 $54 $199.3
  Greater Wichita Total 9,332 $228.2 $67 $256.4

*  Likely not viable, reducing total Statewide taxable gaming revenues to $499.2 million.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit C-18:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Standard Size / Best of Each / Upside

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 100 $30.8 $105 $30.8
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle 4,000 105 $330.8 $227 $380.2
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 1,200 105 $54.2 $124 $60.9 *
Sumner Mulvane 3,000 105 $180.1 $164 $202.4
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City 800 115 $35.8 $123 $39.8

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 9,800 $631.6 $177 $714.0

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $10.2 $62 $10.2
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $150.4 $120 $170.9

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 13,693 $792.2 $158 $895.0

  memo:  Northeast Zone 4,800 $361.5 $206 $411.0
  memo:  Southeast Zone 1,200 $54.2 $124 $60.9 *
  memo:  South Central Zone 3,000 $180.1 $164 $202.4

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $89.6 $125 $99.3
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $43.7 $90 $47.4
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $107.5 $165 $123.9
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $144.9 $132 $164.5
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $385.6 $131 $435.1

  Greater KC Total 13,344 $757.3 $155 $856.2
  Greater Joplin Total 8,263 $169.1 $56 $190.0
  Greater Wichita Total 7,632 $242.0 $87 $272.0

*  Likely not viable, reducing total Statewide taxable gaming revenues to $653.1 million.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT

Number of Slots
Power Rating
Win/Slot/Day

Kansas Tourists
Kansas Locals

Kansas Total

Missouri Tourists
Missouri Locals

Missouri Total

Okla + Ark Tourists
Okla + Ark Locals

Okla + Ark Total

Iowa

Nebraska

Other Near

Frontage Traffic

Total All Sources

total Tourists
total locals

      Exhibit C-18B:  Detail for Sources of Consumer Spending ($000)
      Upside -- Standard Size at Best of Each

Total Woodlnds KC Spwy KC statel. KC mid Camptown SE Corner Galena Mulvane Well'n Dodge

9,800 800 4,000 1,200 3,000 800
100 105 105 105 115

$105 $227 $124 $164 $123

$18,450 $613 $5,421 $1,464 $7,467 $3,485
469,626 $19,174 $225,721 $8,636 $183,585 $32,511
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$488,076 $19,787 $0 $0 $231,142 $0 $0 $10,099 $191,051 $0 $35,996

$18,147 $1,328 $11,992 $2,975 $1,775 $77
178,933 $9,090 $129,877 $39,966 $0 $0
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$197,079 $10,418 $0 $0 $141,868 $0 $0 $42,941 $1,775 $0 $77

$9,723 $80 $1,413 $2,698 $3,794 $1,738
6,926 $0 $0 $4,802 $1,633 $491

------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$16,649 $80 $0 $0 $1,413 $0 $0 $7,500 $5,427 $0 $2,229

$2,689 $205 $0 $0 $2,363 $0 $0 $57 $54 $0 $9

$4,317 $204 $0 $0 $2,086 $0 $0 $58 $909 $0 $1,059

$2,173 $76 $0 $0 $1,342 $0 $0 $220 $153 $0 $382

$2,994 $2,994
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$713,961 $30,770 $0 $0 $380,202 $0 $0 $60,875 $202,361 $0 $39,753
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$58,476 $2,506 $24,605 $7,472 $17,143 $6,750

$655,485 $28,264 $355,598 $53,403 $185,218 $33,002

            Note:  Totals may not add due to rounding.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT

Number of Slots
Power Rating
Win/Slot/Day

Kansas Tourists
Kansas Locals

Kansas Total

Missouri Tourists
Missouri Locals

Missouri Total

Okla + Ark Tourists
Okla + Ark Locals

Oklahoma Total

Iowa

Nebraska

Other Near

Frontage Traffic

Total All Sources

total Tourists
total locals

Spending Per Visitor

      Exhibit C-18C:  Detail for Visitation by Source
      Upside -- Standard Size at Best of Each

Total Woodlnds KC Spwy KC statel. KC mid  Camptown SE Corner Galena Mulvane Well'n Dodge 

9,800 800 4,000 1,200 3,000 800
100 105 105 105 115

$105 $227 $124 $164 $123

223,796 7,849 57,004 19,321 93,536 46,086
6,126,941 277,475 0 0 2,522,331 0 0 144,281 2,664,454 0 518,399
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
6,350,737 285,324 0 0 2,579,336 0 0 163,603 2,757,990 0 564,484

208,957 17,308 127,972 40,010 22,630 1,036
2,324,582 134,171 0 0 1,548,382 0 0 642,028 0 0 0
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
2,533,538 151,479 0 0 1,676,355 0 0 682,038 22,630 0 1,036

128,956 1,077 15,560 37,748 50,215 24,355
103,319 0 0 0 0 0 0 72,536 23,272 0 7,512

-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
232,275 1,077 0 0 15,560 0 0 110,284 73,487 0 31,867

29,170 2,643 0 0 24,964 0 0 759 679 0 124

50,710 2,616 0 0 21,937 0 0 771 11,388 0 13,999

23,226 899 0 0 13,219 0 0 2,676 1,773 0 4,660

32,897 0 0 0 32,897 0
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
9,252,554 444,038 0 0 4,331,370 0 0 960,131 2,900,844 0 616,170
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 

697,711 32,391 260,657 101,286 213,118 90,260
8,554,842 411,647 4,070,714 858,846 2,687,726 525,911

$77 $69 $88 $63 $70 $65

            Note:  Totals may not add due to rounding.

Cummings Associates



Cummings Associates 
 

 
 

135 Jason Street, Arlington, Massachusetts  02476 
Telephone: 781-641-1215 - Fax: 641-0954 - e-mail: cummingsw@aol.com 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Projections for the 
 

Market Potential of the 
 

Four Gaming Zones in Kansas 
 

Appendix D: 
 

“Downside” Projections 
 

DRAFT 
 

May 26, 2008 
 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT

List of Exhibits
(All "Projections in Brief")

Exhibit

D-1 Projection in Brief:  Baseline (Likely Future) -- New Facilities Elsewhere
D-2 "Downside" -- Stronger KCK 7th Street Casino Added (Alone)
D-3 "Downside" -- Woodlands Added (Solo, with 800 Slots)
D-4 "Downside" -- Woodlands Added (Solo, at $150/day)
D-5 "Downside" -- Kansas Speedway Added ($150/day)
D-6 "Downside" -- KCK Stateline Added ($150/day)
D-7 "Downside" -- KCK Middle Added ($150/day)
D-8 "Downside" -- Camptown Added (Alone in S.E.)
D-9 "Downside" -- Cherokee Corner Added (with Camptown)

D-10 "Downside" -- Cherokee Corner Added (w/o Camptown)
D-11 "Downside" -- Cherokee Corner "Stretched" to $120/day
D-12 "Downside" -- Cherokee Galena Added (with Camptown)
D-13 "Downside" -- Cherokee Galena Added (w/o Camptown)
D-14 "Downside" -- Cherokee Galena "Stretched" to $120/day
D-15 "Downside" -- Sumner Mulvane Added ($150/day)
D-16 "Downside" -- Kansas Wellington Added ($150/day)
D-17 "Downside" -- Dodge City Added ($150/day)
D-18 "Downside" -- All Facilities (at "least" sites)
D-19 "Downside" -- All Facilities (at best sites)
D-20 "Downside" -- All Facilities (at best sites, at $200/day)

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit D-1: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Downside -- New Facilities Elsewhere
(inc. Powhattan)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 0 $0.0 $0.0

KCK 7th Street
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $186.4 $148 $211.8

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 3,443 $186.4 $148 $211.8

  memo:  Northeast Zone
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $160.6 $224 $178.1
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $74.6 $154 $80.9
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $170.9 $263 $197.1
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $217.1 $197 $246.4
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $623.2 $211 $702.4

  Greater KC Total 8,094 $623.2 $211 $702.4
  Greater Joplin Total 7,763 $151.8 $54 $170.5
  Greater Wichita Total 6,332 $104.9 $45 $117.8

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit D-2: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Downside -- Stronger KCK 7th Street Casino Added (Solo)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 0 $0.0 $0.0

KCK 7th Street 450 90 $34.0 $207 $34.0
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $184.0 $146 $209.1

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 3,893 $217.9 $153 $243.0

  memo:  Northeast Zone
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $151.0 $210 $167.4
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.9 $144 $75.8
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $162.3 $249 $187.1
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $207.6 $189 $235.7
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $590.8 $200 $666.1

  Greater KC Total 8,544 $624.8 $200 $700.0
  Greater Joplin Total 7,763 $151.4 $53 $170.1
  Greater Wichita Total 6,332 $104.8 $45 $117.7

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit D-3: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Downside -- Woodlands Added (Solo, with 800 slots)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 90 $36.5 $125 $36.5
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 800 $36.5 $125 $36.5

KCK 7th Street 450 90 $33.2 $202 $33.2
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $184.0 $146 $209.1

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 4,693 $253.8 $148 $278.8

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $36.5 $125 $36.5
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $148.1 $206 $164.2
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $68.7 $142 $74.5
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $160.0 $246 $184.5
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $204.7 $186 $232.4
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $581.5 $197 $655.6

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $651.3 $191 $725.3
  Greater Joplin Total 7,763 $151.2 $53 $169.9
  Greater Wichita Total 6,332 $104.7 $45 $117.6

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit D-4: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Downside -- Woodlands Added (Solo, $150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 370 90 $20.2 $150 $20.2
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 370 $20.2 $150 $20.2

KCK 7th Street 450 90 $34.2 $209 $34.2
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $186.3 $148 $211.8

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 4,263 $240.8 $155 $266.3

  memo:  Northeast Zone 370 $20.2 $150 $20.2
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $152.6 $212 $169.2
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $70.2 $145 $76.1
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $163.4 $251 $188.4
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $208.4 $190 $236.6
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $594.6 $201 $670.3

  Greater KC Total 8,914 $649.1 $199 $724.8
  Greater Joplin Total 7,763 $151.4 $53 $170.1
  Greater Wichita Total 6,332 $104.7 $45 $117.7

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit D-5: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Downside -- Kansas Speedway Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 90 $23.3 $80 $23.3
KCK Speedway 2,530 95 $138.5 $150 $159.2
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 3,330 $161.8 $133 $182.5

KCK 7th Street 450 90 $26.5 $162 $26.5
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $168.8 $134 $191.8

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 7,223 $357.1 $135 $400.8

  memo:  Northeast Zone 3,330 $161.8 $133 $182.5
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $120.6 $168 $133.7
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $58.7 $121 $63.6
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $137.1 $211 $158.1
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $179.4 $163 $203.7
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $495.8 $168 $559.1

  Greater KC Total 11,874 $684.1 $158 $768.1
  Greater Joplin Total 7,763 $149.3 $53 $167.7
  Greater Wichita Total 6,332 $103.7 $45 $116.5

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit D-6: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)
Downside -- KCK Stateline Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 90 $24.7 $85 $24.7
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline 4,340 95 $237.7 $150 $273.2
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 5,140 $262.4 $140 $297.9

KCK 7th Street 450 90 $21.0 $128 $21.0
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $167.4 $133 $190.3

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 9,033 $450.8 $137 $509.2

  memo:  Northeast Zone 5,140 $262.4 $140 $297.9
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $102.4 $143 $113.6
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $45.4 $94 $49.3
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $114.6 $176 $132.1
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $151.8 $138 $172.3
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $414.2 $140 $467.2

  Greater KC Total 13,684 $697.6 $140 $786.1
  Greater Joplin Total 7,763 $148.2 $52 $166.5
  Greater Wichita Total 6,332 $103.5 $45 $116.2

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit D-7: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)
Downside -- KCK Middle Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 90 $20.5 $70 $20.5
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle 5,120 95 $280.4 $150 $322.3
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 5,920 $300.9 $139 $342.8

KCK 7th Street 450 90 $19.3 $118 $19.3
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $163.1 $130 $185.3

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 9,813 $483.2 $135 $547.4

  memo:  Northeast Zone 5,920 $300.9 $139 $342.8
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $93.8 $131 $104.0
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $45.3 $93 $49.2
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $112.2 $172 $129.4
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $150.7 $137 $171.1
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $402.0 $136 $453.6

  Greater KC Total 14,464 $722.2 $137 $815.7
  Greater Joplin Total 7,763 $147.7 $52 $165.9
  Greater Wichita Total 6,332 $103.1 $45 $115.9

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit D-8: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)
Downside -- Camptown Added (Alone in S.E.)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 90 $36.5 $125 $36.5
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown 600 90 $19.4 $89 $19.4 *
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 1,400 $55.9 $109 $55.9

KCK 7th Street 450 90 $33.2 $202 $33.2
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $183.8 $146 $208.9

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,293 $272.9 $141 $298.0

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $36.5 $125 $36.5
  memo:  Southeast Zone 600 $19.4 $89 $19.4
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $148.0 $206 $164.1
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $68.7 $141 $74.5
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $159.8 $246 $184.3
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $204.5 $186 $232.2
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $581.1 $197 $655.1

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $650.7 $191 $724.7
  Greater Joplin Total 8,363 $167.4 $55 $188.1
  Greater Wichita Total 6,332 $104.3 $45 $117.2

 *  If the numbers were all that mattered, the model indicates that a facililty with 250 slots would
    achieve $150/day, for total win of $13.8 million.  Realistically, the competition is just too intense
    to reach $150/day at anything below "Midwest Standard" (or perhaps even at it).

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit D-9: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Downside -- Cherokee Corner Added (with Camptown)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 90 $36.5 $125 $36.5
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown 600 90 $18.9 $86 $18.9
Cherokee Corner 600 95 $18.4 $84 $20.7 * 
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 2,000 $73.7 $101 $76.0

KCK 7th Street 450 90 $33.1 $202 $33.1
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $183.5 $146 $208.5

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,893 $290.3 $135 $317.6

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $36.5 $125 $36.5
  memo:  Southeast Zone 1,200 $37.3 $85 $39.5
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $147.8 $206 $163.9
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $68.6 $141 $74.4
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $159.6 $245 $184.0
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $204.2 $186 $231.8
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $580.3 $196 $654.2

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $649.9 $191 $723.8
  Greater Joplin Total 8,963 $176.8 $54 $198.7
  Greater Wichita Total 6,332 $103.9 $45 $116.8

 *  If the numbers were all that mattered, the model indicates that a casino with 130 slots would
    achieve $150/day, for total win of $8 million.  Realistically, the competition is just too intense
    to reach $150/day at anything below "Midwest Standard" (or perhaps even at it).

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit D-10: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Downside -- Cherokee Corner Added (w/o Camptown)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 90 $36.5 $125 $36.5
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner 600 95 $18.8 $86 $21.1 *
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 1,400 $55.3 $108 $57.6

KCK 7th Street 450 90 $33.2 $202 $33.2
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $183.6 $146 $208.6

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,293 $272.0 $141 $299.4

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $36.5 $125 $36.5
  memo:  Southeast Zone 600 $18.8 $86 $21.1
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $147.9 $206 $164.0
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $68.7 $141 $74.5
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $159.7 $245 $184.2
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $204.4 $186 $232.0
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $580.7 $197 $654.7

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $650.4 $191 $724.3
  Greater Joplin Total 8,363 $160.9 $53 $180.8
  Greater Wichita Total 6,332 $104.2 $45 $117.1

 *  If the numbers were all that mattered, the model indicates that a casino with 135 slots would
    achieve $150/day, for total win of $8.3 million.  Realistically, the competition is just too intense
    to reach $150/day at anything below "Midwest Standard" (or perhaps even at it).

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit D-11: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Downside -- Cherokee Corner Shrunk to $120/day

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 90 $36.5 $125 $36.5
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner 230 95 $10.0 $120 $11.3 *
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 1,030 $46.6 $124 $47.8

KCK 7th Street 450 90 $33.2 $202 $33.2
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $183.8 $146 $208.9

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 4,923 $263.6 $147 $289.9

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $36.5 $125 $36.5
  memo:  Southeast Zone 230 $10.0 $120 $11.3
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $148.0 $206 $164.1
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $68.7 $142 $74.5
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $159.9 $246 $184.4
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $204.6 $186 $232.2
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $581.2 $197 $655.2

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $650.9 $191 $724.9
  Greater Joplin Total 7,993 $157.6 $54 $177.1
  Greater Wichita Total 6,332 $104.5 $45 $117.4

*  No more than a truck stop, at best.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit D-12: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Downside -- Cherokee Galena Added (with Camptown)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 90 $36.5 $125 $36.5
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown 600 90 $18.7 $86 $18.7
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 600 95 $20.4 $93 $22.9 *
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 2,000 $75.6 $104 $78.1

KCK 7th Street 450 90 $33.1 $202 $33.1
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $183.4 $146 $208.5

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,893 $292.2 $136 $319.7

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $36.5 $125 $36.5
  memo:  Southeast Zone 1,200 $39.1 $89 $41.6
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $147.8 $206 $163.9
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $68.6 $141 $74.4
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $159.6 $245 $184.0
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $204.2 $186 $231.8
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $580.3 $196 $654.2

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $649.9 $191 $723.8
  Greater Joplin Total 8,963 $182.3 $56 $204.9
  Greater Wichita Total 6,332 $103.9 $45 $116.8

*  Cannot achieve $150/slot/day at any number of slot machines.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit D-13: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Downside -- Cherokee Galena Added (w/o Camptown)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 90 $36.5 $125 $36.5
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 600 95 $21.1 $97 $23.8 *
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 1,400 $57.6 $113 $60.3

KCK 7th Street 450 90 $33.2 $202 $33.2
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $183.6 $146 $208.7

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,293 $274.4 $142 $302.1

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $36.5 $125 $36.5
  memo:  Southeast Zone 600 $21.1 $97 $23.8
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $148.0 $206 $164.0
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $68.7 $141 $74.5
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $159.8 $245 $184.2
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $204.4 $186 $232.1
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $580.8 $197 $654.8

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $650.5 $191 $724.4
  Greater Joplin Total 8,363 $167.5 $55 $188.2
  Greater Wichita Total 6,332 $104.2 $45 $117.1

*  Cannot achieve $150/slot/day at any realistic number of slot machines.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit D-14: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Downside -- Cherokee Galena Shrunk to $120/day

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 90 $36.5 $125 $36.5
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 250 95 $11.0 $120 $12.3 *
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 1,050 $47.5 $124 $48.9

KCK 7th Street 450 90 $33.2 $202 $33.2
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $183.9 $146 $209.0

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 4,943 $264.6 $147 $291.0

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $36.5 $125 $36.5
  memo:  Southeast Zone 250 $11.0 $120 $12.3
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $148.1 $206 $164.2
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $68.7 $142 $74.5
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $159.9 $246 $184.4
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $204.6 $186 $232.3
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $581.3 $197 $655.4

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $651.1 $191 $725.1
  Greater Joplin Total 8,013 $164.1 $56 $184.4
  Greater Wichita Total 6,332 $104.5 $45 $117.4

*  No more than a truck stop, at best.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit D-15:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)
Downside -- Sumner Mulvane Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 90 $36.4 $125 $36.4
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane 2,740 95 $149.8 $150 $168.3
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 3,540 $186.2 $144 $204.7

KCK 7th Street 450 90 $33.1 $202 $33.1
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $177.0 $141 $201.1

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 7,433 $396.3 $146 $439.0

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $36.4 $125 $36.4
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone 2,740 $149.8 $150 $168.3

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $147.4 $205 $163.4
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $68.5 $141 $74.3
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $159.1 $244 $183.5
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $203.7 $185 $231.3
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $578.8 $196 $652.5

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $648.3 $190 $722.0
  Greater Joplin Total 7,763 $148.1 $52 $166.4
  Greater Wichita Total 9,072 $226.6 $68 $254.6

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit D-16:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Downside -- Sumner Wellington Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 90 $36.4 $125 $36.4
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington 1,720 102 $94.1 $150 $105.7
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 2,520 $130.5 $142 $142.2

KCK 7th Street 450 90 $33.1 $202 $33.1
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $179.0 $142 $203.4

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 6,413 $342.7 $146 $378.7

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $36.4 $125 $36.4
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone 1,720 $94.1 $150 $105.7

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $147.6 $205 $163.7
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $68.6 $141 $74.4
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $159.3 $245 $183.8
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $204.0 $186 $231.6
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $579.6 $196 $653.4

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $649.1 $190 $722.9
  Greater Joplin Total 7,763 $148.8 $53 $167.2
  Greater Wichita Total 8,052 $177.6 $60 $199.5

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit D-17:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Downside -- Dodge City Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 90 $36.5 $125 $36.5
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City 540 105 $29.6 $150 $32.9

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 1,340 $66.2 $135 $69.5

KCK 7th Street 450 90 $33.2 $202 $33.2
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $183.5 $146 $208.6

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,233 $282.9 $148 $311.2

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $36.5 $125 $36.5
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $148.1 $206 $164.2
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $68.7 $142 $74.5
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $159.9 $246 $184.4
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $204.6 $186 $232.3
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $581.3 $197 $655.4

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $651.1 $191 $725.1
  Greater Joplin Total 7,763 $151.0 $53 $169.7
  Greater Wichita Total 6,332 $103.1 $45 $115.9

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit D-18:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Downside -- All Facilities (at "least" sites)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 90 $23.2 $80 $23.2
KCK Speedway 2,530 95 $137.6 $149 $158.1
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner 600 95 $18.3 $83 $20.5 *
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington 1,720 102 $91.8 $146 $103.2
Dodge City 540 105 $27.9 $142 $31.0

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 6,190 $298.8 $132 $336.1

KCK 7th Street 450 90 $26.5 $161 $26.5
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $163.4 $130 $185.7

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 10,083 $488.7 $133 $548.2

  memo:  Northeast Zone 3,330 $160.8 $132 $181.3
  memo:  Southeast Zone 600 $18.3 $83 $20.5 *
  memo:  South Central Zone 1,720 $91.8 $146 $103.2

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $119.9 $167 $133.0
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $58.5 $120 $63.4
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $136.3 $209 $157.2
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $178.5 $162 $202.6
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $493.3 $167 $556.2

  Greater KC Total 11,874 $680.5 $157 $764.0
  Greater Joplin Total 8,363 $156.3 $51 $175.6
  Greater Wichita Total 8,052 $173.8 $59 $195.3

*  Likely not viable, reducing total Statewide taxable gaming revenues to $315.5 million.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit D-19:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Downside -- All Facilities (at best sites)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 90 $20.3 $70 $20.3
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle 5,120 95 $278.5 $149 $320.1
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 600 95 $20.3 $93 $22.8 *
Sumner Mulvane 2,740 95 $147.2 $147 $165.4
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City 540 105 $27.4 $139 $30.5

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 9,800 $493.8 $138 $559.1

KCK 7th Street 450 90 $19.2 $117 $19.2
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $156.1 $124 $177.4

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 13,693 $669.1 $134 $755.7

  memo:  Northeast Zone 5,920 $298.9 $138 $340.5
  memo:  Southeast Zone 600 $20.3 $93 $22.8 *
  memo:  South Central Zone 2,740 $147.2 $147 $165.4

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $93.1 $129 $103.2
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $45.2 $93 $49.0
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $111.2 $171 $128.3
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $149.7 $136 $169.9
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $399.1 $135 $450.3

  Greater KC Total 14,464 $717.2 $136 $810.0
  Greater Joplin Total 8,363 $160.3 $53 $180.1
  Greater Wichita Total 9,072 $222.5 $67 $250.0

*  Likely not viable, reducing total Statewide taxable gaming revenues to $536.4 million.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit D-20:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Downside -- All Facilities (at best sites, at $200/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 90 $24.6 $84 $24.6
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle 2,820 95 $205.7 $200 $236.4
Camptown *
Cherokee Corner *
Cherokee Galena *
Sumner Mulvane 1,920 95 $139.7 $199 $157.0
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City 350 105 $25.5 $200 $28.4

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 5,890 $395.5 $184 $446.3

KCK 7th Street 450 90 $22.9 $140 $22.9
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $164.8 $131 $187.2

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 9,783 $583.2 $163 $656.5

  memo:  Northeast Zone 3,620 $230.3 $174 $261.0
  memo:  Southeast Zone *
  memo:  South Central Zone 1,920 $139.7 $199 $157.0

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $108.1 $150 $119.8
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $52.0 $107 $56.4
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $125.8 $193 $145.1
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $166.8 $152 $189.4
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $452.8 $153 $510.7

  Greater KC Total 12,164 $706.0 $159 $794.7
  Greater Joplin Total 7,763 $146.4 $52 $164.5
  Greater Wichita Total 8,252 $219.2 $73 $246.3

*  Under downside assumptions, no scenario yields $200/day at any facility in the Southeast.

Cummings Associates



Cummings Associates 
 

 
 

135 Jason Street, Arlington, Massachusetts  02476 
Telephone: 781-641-1215 - Fax: 641-0954 - e-mail: cummingsw@aol.com 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Projections for the 
 

Market Potential of the 
 

Four Gaming Zones in Kansas 
 

Appendix E: 
 

“Upside” Projections 
 

DRAFT 
 

May 26, 2008 
 

 
 



DRAFT

List of Exhibits
(All "Projections in Brief")

Exhibit

E-1 Projection in Brief:  Baseline (Likely Future) -- New Facilities Elsewhere
E-2 Baseline -- KCK 7th Street Casino Added (Alone)
E-3 "Upside" -- Woodlands Added (Solo, with 800 Slots)
E-4 "Upside" -- Woodlands Added (Solo, at $150/day)
E-5 "Upside" -- Kansas Speedway Added ($150/day)
E-6 "Upside" -- KCK Stateline Added ($150/day)
E-7 "Upside" -- KCK Middle Added ($150/day)
E-8 "Upside" -- Camptown Added (Alone in S.E.)
E-9 "Upside" -- Cherokee Corner Added (with Camptown)

E-10 "Upside" -- Cherokee Corner Added (w/o Camptown)
E-11 "Upside" -- Cherokee Corner "Stretched" to $120/day
E-12 "Upside" -- Cherokee Galena Added (with Camptown)
E-13 "Upside" -- Cherokee Galena Added (w/o Camptown)
E-14 "Upside" -- Cherokee Galena "Stretched" to $120/day
E-15 "Upside" -- Sumner Mulvane Added ($150/day)
E-16 "Upside" -- Kansas Wellington Added ($150/day)
E-17 "Upside" -- Dodge City Added ($150/day)
E-18 "Upside" -- All Facilities (at "least" sites)

E-18B "Upside" / All Facilities / Least Sites / Detail for Spending by Source
E-18C "Upside" / All Facilities / Least Sites / Detail for Visitation by Source
E-19 "Upside" -- All Facilities (at best sites)

E-19B "Upside" / All Facilities / Best Sites / Detail for Spending by Source
E-19C "Upside" / All Facilities / Best Sites / Detail for Visitation by Source
E-20 "Upside" -- All Facilities (at best sites, at $200/day)

E-20B "Upside" / All Facilities / Best Sites / $200/day / Detail for Spending
E-20C "Upside" / All Facilities / Best Sites / $200/day / Detail for Visitation

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit E-1: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Baseline / Likely Future -- New Facilities Elsewhere
(inc. Powhattan)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 0 $0.0 $0.0

KCK 7th Street
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $191.4 $152 $217.6

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 3,443 $191.4 $152 $217.6

  memo:  Northeast Zone
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $161.6 $225 $179.2
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $74.9 $154 $81.2
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $172.2 $265 $198.5
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $218.6 $199 $248.1
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $627.2 $212 $707.0

  Greater KC Total 8,094 $627.2 $212 $707.0
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $145.8 $57 $163.9
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $93.4 $55 $104.9

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit E-2: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Baseline -- KCK 7th Street Casino Added (Solo)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 0 $0.0 $0.0

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $19.4 $118 $19.4
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $189.9 $151 $215.8

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 3,893 $209.3 $147 $235.2

  memo:  Northeast Zone
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $155.1 $216 $171.9
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $71.7 $148 $77.8
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $166.4 $256 $191.9
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $212.3 $193 $241.0
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $605.6 $205 $682.7

  Greater KC Total 8,544 $625.0 $200 $702.1
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $145.6 $56 $163.7
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $93.3 $55 $104.8

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit E-3: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Upside -- Woodlands Added (Solo, with 800 slots)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 100 $56.6 $194 $56.6
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 800 $56.6 $194 $56.6

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.5 $112 $18.5
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $187.6 $149 $213.2

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 4,693 $262.7 $153 $288.3

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $56.6 $194 $56.6
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $148.5 $207 $164.6
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.2 $143 $75.0
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $161.0 $247 $185.7
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $206.0 $187 $233.8
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $584.7 $198 $659.1

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $659.8 $193 $734.2
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $145.2 $56 $163.1
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $93.1 $55 $104.6

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit E-4: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)
Upside -- Woodlands Added (Solo, $150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 1,880 100 $102.9 $150 $102.9
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 1,880 $102.9 $150 $102.9

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $17.1 $104 $17.1
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $181.1 $144 $205.8

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,773 $301.1 $143 $325.8

  memo:  Northeast Zone 1,880 $102.9 $150 $102.9
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $137.8 $192 $152.8
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $65.4 $135 $71.0
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $152.2 $234 $175.5
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $196.1 $178 $222.7
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $551.6 $187 $621.9

  Greater KC Total 10,424 $671.6 $177 $741.9
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $144.5 $56 $162.3
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $92.9 $55 $104.4

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit E-5: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Upside -- Kansas Speedway Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 100 $26.6 $91 $26.6
KCK Speedway 5,540 105 $303.4 $150 $348.8
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 6,340 $330.0 $143 $375.4

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $11.5 $70 $11.5
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $153.9 $122 $174.8

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 10,233 $495.4 $133 $561.8

  memo:  Northeast Zone 6,340 $330.0 $143 $375.4
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $96.7 $135 $107.3
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $49.0 $101 $53.1
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $115.3 $177 $132.9
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $153.3 $139 $174.1
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $414.4 $140 $467.4

  Greater KC Total 14,884 $755.9 $139 $854.3
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $140.1 $54 $157.5
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $90.3 $53 $101.5

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit E-6: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Upside -- KCK Stateline Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 100 $27.3 $93 $27.3
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline 8,240 105 $451.0 $150 $518.4
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 9,040 $478.3 $145 $545.7

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $7.7 $47 $7.7
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $153.1 $122 $173.9

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 12,933 $639.1 $135 $727.4

  memo:  Northeast Zone 9,040 $478.3 $145 $545.7
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $73.8 $103 $81.8
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $31.7 $65 $34.3
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $84.3 $130 $97.2
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $113.7 $103 $129.1
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $303.4 $103 $342.4

  Greater KC Total 17,584 $789.5 $123 $895.8
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $138.1 $54 $155.1
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $90.0 $53 $101.1

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit E-7: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Upside -- KCK Middle Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 100 $23.1 $79 $23.1
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle 8,600 105 $470.9 $150 $541.3
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 9,400 $494.0 $144 $564.4

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $7.6 $46 $7.6
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $149.3 $119 $169.6

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 13,293 $650.8 $134 $741.6

  memo:  Northeast Zone 9,400 $494.0 $144 $564.4
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $70.6 $98 $78.3
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $34.2 $70 $37.1
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $87.7 $135 $101.1
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $120.0 $109 $136.2
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $312.4 $106 $352.6

  Greater KC Total 17,944 $814.0 $124 $924.6
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $137.8 $53 $154.8
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $89.5 $53 $100.6

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit E-8: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)
Upside -- Camptown Added (Alone in S.E.)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 100 $56.5 $193 $56.5
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown 600 100 $28.2 $129 $28.2 *
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 1,400 $84.7 $166 $84.7

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.4 $112 $18.4
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $187.0 $149 $212.5

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,293 $290.1 $150 $315.6

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $56.5 $193 $56.5
  memo:  Southeast Zone 600 $28.2 $129 $28.2
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $148.1 $206 $164.2
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.1 $142 $74.9
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $160.6 $247 $185.2
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $205.5 $187 $233.3
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $583.3 $197 $657.6

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $658.2 $193 $732.5
  Greater Joplin Total 7,663 $167.5 $60 $188.2
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $92.5 $55 $103.9

* Not quite $150/day/slot, but potentially viable.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit E-9: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Upside -- Cherokee Corner Added (with Camptown)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 100 $56.3 $193 $56.3
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown 600 100 $26.9 $123 $26.9
Cherokee Corner 600 105 $32.0 $146 $35.9
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 2,000 $115.2 $158 $119.2

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.4 $112 $18.4
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $186.2 $148 $211.6

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,893 $319.9 $149 $349.2

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $56.3 $193 $56.3
  memo:  Southeast Zone 1,200 $58.9 $135 $62.9
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $147.8 $206 $163.9
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.0 $142 $74.8
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $160.2 $246 $184.7
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $205.0 $186 $232.7
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $581.9 $197 $656.0

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $656.7 $193 $730.8
  Greater Joplin Total 8,263 $184.0 $61 $206.7
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $91.8 $54 $103.2

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit E-10: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Upside -- Cherokee Corner Added (w/o Camptown)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 100 $56.4 $193 $56.4
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner 630 105 $34.4 $150 $38.7
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 1,430 $90.9 $174 $95.1

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.4 $112 $18.4
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $186.8 $149 $212.2

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,323 $296.1 $152 $325.8

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $56.4 $193 $56.4
  memo:  Southeast Zone 630 $34.4 $150 $38.7
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $148.1 $206 $164.2
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.1 $142 $74.9
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $160.5 $247 $185.1
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $205.4 $187 $233.1
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $583.0 $197 $657.3

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $657.9 $193 $732.2
  Greater Joplin Total 7,693 $163.2 $58 $183.4
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $92.4 $55 $103.8

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit E-11: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Upside -- Cherokee Corner "Stretched" to $120/day

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 100 $56.3 $193 $56.3
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner 1,230 105 $53.7 $120 $60.4
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 2,030 $110.1 $149 $116.7

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.4 $112 $18.4
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $186.1 $148 $211.5

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,923 $314.6 $146 $346.6

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $56.3 $193 $56.3
  memo:  Southeast Zone 1,230 $53.7 $120 $60.4
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $147.8 $206 $163.9
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.0 $142 $74.8
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $160.1 $246 $184.7
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $204.9 $186 $232.6
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $581.8 $197 $655.9

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $656.6 $193 $730.7
  Greater Joplin Total 8,293 $173.1 $57 $194.5
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $91.8 $54 $103.1

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit E-12: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Upside -- Cherokee Galena Added (with Camptown)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 100 $56.3 $193 $56.3
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown 600 100 $26.3 $120 $26.3
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 760 105 $41.7 $150 $46.8
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 2,160 $124.2 $158 $129.4

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.4 $112 $18.4
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $186.0 $148 $211.3

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 6,053 $328.6 $149 $359.1

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $56.3 $193 $56.3
  memo:  Southeast Zone 1,360 $68.0 $137 $73.1
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $147.7 $206 $163.8
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.0 $142 $74.8
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $160.0 $246 $184.5
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $204.8 $186 $232.5
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $581.5 $197 $655.6

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $656.2 $192 $730.3
  Greater Joplin Total 8,423 $193.0 $63 $216.8
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $91.6 $54 $102.9

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit E-13: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Upside -- Cherokee Galena Added (w/o Camptown)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 100 $56.4 $193 $56.4
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 880 105 $48.3 $150 $54.2
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 1,680 $104.6 $171 $110.6

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.4 $112 $18.4
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $186.4 $148 $211.8

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,573 $309.5 $152 $340.9

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $56.4 $193 $56.4
  memo:  Southeast Zone 880 $48.3 $150 $54.2
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $147.9 $206 $164.0
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.0 $142 $74.9
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $160.3 $246 $184.9
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $205.2 $187 $232.9
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $582.5 $197 $656.6

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $657.3 $193 $731.5
  Greater Joplin Total 7,943 $175.2 $60 $196.9
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $92.1 $54 $103.4

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit E-14: Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Upside -- Cherokee Galena "Stretched" to $120/day

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 100 $56.2 $193 $56.2
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 1,550 105 $67.9 $120 $76.3
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 2,350 $124.1 $145 $132.5

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.4 $112 $18.4
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $185.7 $148 $211.0

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 6,243 $328.2 $144 $361.9

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $56.2 $193 $56.2
  memo:  Southeast Zone 1,550 $67.9 $120 $76.3
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $147.6 $205 $163.7
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $68.9 $142 $74.8
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $159.9 $246 $184.4
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $204.6 $186 $232.3
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $581.1 $197 $655.1

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $655.7 $192 $729.7
  Greater Joplin Total 8,613 $185.6 $59 $208.5
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $91.4 $54 $102.7

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit E-15:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)
Upside -- Sumner Mulvane Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 100 $56.1 $192 $56.1
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane 3,480 105 $190.6 $150 $214.2
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 4,280 $246.7 $158 $270.3

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.4 $112 $18.4
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $174.2 $139 $197.9

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 8,173 $439.3 $147 $486.6

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $56.1 $192 $56.1
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone 3,480 $190.6 $150 $214.2

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $147.1 $205 $163.1
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $68.9 $142 $74.7
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $159.3 $245 $183.7
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $204.1 $186 $231.7
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $579.4 $196 $653.2

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $653.9 $192 $727.7
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $140.3 $54 $157.7
  Greater Wichita Total 8,112 $253.1 $85 $284.4

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit E-16:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)
Upside -- Sumner Wellington Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 100 $56.1 $192 $56.1
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington 2,600 112 $142.1 $150 $159.7
Dodge City

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 3,400 $198.3 $160 $215.8

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.4 $112 $18.4
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $175.6 $140 $199.5

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 7,293 $392.2 $147 $433.7

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $56.1 $192 $56.1
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone 2,600 $142.1 $150 $159.7

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $147.2 $205 $163.2
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $68.9 $142 $74.7
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $159.5 $245 $183.9
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $204.3 $186 $231.9
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $579.9 $196 $653.8

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $654.5 $192 $728.3
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $140.4 $54 $157.8
  Greater Wichita Total 7,232 $205.5 $78 $230.9

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit E-17:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Upside -- Dodge City Added ($150/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 100 $56.6 $194 $56.6
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City 760 115 $41.6 $150 $46.2

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 1,560 $98.1 $172 $102.8

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $18.5 $112 $18.5
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $185.4 $148 $210.7

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 5,453 $302.0 $152 $331.9

  memo:  Northeast Zone 800 $56.6 $194 $56.6
  memo:  Southeast Zone
  memo:  South Central Zone

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $148.3 $206 $164.4
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $69.2 $142 $75.0
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $160.8 $247 $185.4
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $205.8 $187 $233.6
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $584.0 $198 $658.4

  Greater KC Total 9,344 $659.0 $193 $733.4
  Greater Joplin Total 7,063 $144.8 $56 $162.7
  Greater Wichita Total 4,632 $90.3 $53 $101.4

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit E-18:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Upside -- All Facilities (at "least" sites)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 100 $26.2 $90 $26.2
KCK Speedway 5,540 105 $296.9 $147 $341.3
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle
Camptown
Cherokee Corner 630 105 $32.0 $139 $35.9 *
Cherokee Galena
Sumner Mulvane
Sumner Wellington 2,600 112 $134.5 $142 $151.1
Dodge City 760 115 $35.3 $127 $39.2

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 10,330 $524.8 $139 $593.7

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $11.5 $70 $11.5
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $142.6 $113 $162.0

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 14,223 $678.9 $131 $767.2

  memo:  Northeast Zone 6,340 $323.1 $140 $367.4
  memo:  Southeast Zone 630 $32.0 $139 $35.9 *
  memo:  South Central Zone 2,600 $134.5 $142 $151.1

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $95.5 $133 $105.9
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $48.7 $100 $52.8
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $113.7 $175 $131.1
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $151.5 $138 $172.0
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $409.4 $139 $461.8

  Greater KC Total 14,884 $743.9 $137 $840.7
  Greater Joplin Total 7,693 $152.4 $54 $171.3
  Greater Wichita Total 7,232 $196.4 $74 $220.7

*  Likely not viable, reducing total Statewide taxable gaming revenues to $557.8 million.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT

Number of Slots
Power Rating
Win/Slot/Day

Kansas Tourists
Kansas Locals

Kansas Total

Missouri Tourists
Missouri Locals

Missouri Total

Okla + Ark Tourists
Okla + Ark Locals

Okla + Ark Total

Iowa

Nebraska

Other Near

Frontage Traffic

Total All Sources

total Tourists
total locals

      Exhibit E-18B:  Detail for Sources of Consumer Spending ($000)
      Upside -- All Facilities (at "least" sites)

Total Woodlnds KC Spwy KC statel. KC mid Camptown SE Corner Galena Mulvane Well'n Dodge

10,330 800 5,540 630 2,600 760
100 105 105 112 115
$90 $147 $139 $142 $127

$20,911 $620 $7,436 $813 $8,453 $3,589
378,895 $14,256 $204,482 $4,724 $123,315 $32,119
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$399,806 $14,876 $211,918 $0 $0 $0 $5,537 $0 $0 $131,768 $35,708

$21,730 $1,340 $15,968 $1,789 $2,556 $76
133,263 $9,385 $103,848 $20,030 $0 $0
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$154,992 $10,725 $119,816 $0 $0 $0 $21,819 $0 $0 $2,556 $76

$9,769 $80 $1,755 $1,613 $4,725 $1,596
8,824 $0 $0 $3,500 $4,869 $454

------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$18,593 $80 $1,755 $0 $0 $0 $5,113 $0 $0 $9,595 $2,050

$3,358 $204 $3,053 $0 $0 $0 $29 $0 $0 $63 $9

$5,328 $202 $3,160 $0 $0 $0 $30 $0 $0 $932 $1,004

$2,371 $76 $1,605 $0 $0 $0 $119 $0 $0 $205 $366

$9,285 $3,298 $5,988
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$593,711 $26,162 $341,288 $0 $0 $0 $35,944 $0 $0 $151,105 $39,212
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$72,730 $2,521 $32,959 $7,690 $22,921 $6,639

$520,981 $23,641 $308,329 $28,254 $128,184 $32,573

            Note:  Totals may not add due to rounding.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT

Number of Slots
Power Rating
Win/Slot/Day

Kansas Tourists
Kansas Locals

Kansas Total

Missouri Tourists
Missouri Locals

Missouri Total

Okla + Ark Tourists
Okla + Ark Locals

Oklahoma Total

Iowa

Nebraska

Other Near

Frontage Traffic

Total All Sources

total Tourists
total locals

Spending Per Visitor

      Exhibit B-18C:  Detail for Visitation by Source
      Upside -- All Facilities (at "least" sites)

Total Woodlnds KC Spwy KC statel. KC mid  Camptown SE Corner Galena Mulvane Well'n Dodge 

10,330 800 5,540 630 2,600 760
100 105 105 112 115
$90 $147 $139 $142 $127

263,441 8,165 88,592 10,515 109,002 47,167
5,275,255 207,669 2,653,260 0 0 0 77,435 0 0 1,828,137 508,755
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
5,538,696 215,835 2,741,852 0 0 0 87,949 0 0 1,937,139 555,921

269,587 17,985 193,451 23,575 33,563 1,013
1,869,532 143,365 1,413,767 0 0 0 312,399 0 0 0 0
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
2,139,119 161,351 1,607,218 0 0 0 335,974 0 0 33,563 1,013

131,931 1,114 22,032 22,084 64,480 22,222
130,908 0 0 0 0 0 52,337 0 0 71,683 6,888

-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
262,839 1,114 22,032 0 0 0 74,421 0 0 136,163 29,110

40,584 2,699 36,565 0 0 0 379 0 0 823 117

65,912 2,661 37,648 0 0 0 386 0 0 12,024 13,193

26,982 922 17,766 0 0 0 1,419 0 0 2,444 4,430

104,760 0 0 37,277 67,483 0
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
8,178,892 384,581 4,463,081 0 0 0 537,805 0 0 2,189,639 603,785
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 

903,197 33,546 396,054 95,634 289,820 88,143
7,275,695 351,035 4,067,027 442,171 1,899,820 515,643

$73 $68 $76 $67 $69 $65

            Note:  Totals may not add due to rounding.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit E-19:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Upside -- All Facilities (at best sites)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 100 $22.6 $78 $22.6
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle 8,600 105 $461.5 $147 $530.4
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 880 105 $43.9 $137 $49.3 *
Sumner Mulvane 3,480 105 $182.8 $144 $205.4
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City 760 115 $34.8 $125 $38.6

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 14,520 $745.6 $141 $846.5

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $7.5 $46 $7.5
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $137.2 $109 $155.9

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 18,413 $890.3 $132 $1,009.9

  memo:  Northeast Zone 9,400 $484.1 $141 $553.1
  memo:  Southeast Zone 880 $43.9 $137 $49.3 *
  memo:  South Central Zone 3,480 $182.8 $144 $205.4

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $69.3 $96 $76.8
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $33.9 $70 $36.7
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $86.0 $132 $99.2
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $118.1 $107 $134.0
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $307.2 $104 $346.8

  Greater KC Total 17,944 $798.9 $122 $907.3
  Greater Joplin Total 7,943 $161.0 $56 $180.9
  Greater Wichita Total 8,112 $243.7 $82 $273.9

*  Likely not viable, reducing total Statewide taxable gaming revenues to $797.1 million.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT

Number of Slots
Power Rating
Win/Slot/Day

Kansas Tourists
Kansas Locals

Kansas Total

Missouri Tourists
Missouri Locals

Missouri Total

Okla + Ark Tourists
Okla + Ark Locals

Okla + Ark Total

Iowa

Nebraska

Other Near

Frontage Traffic

Total All Sources

total Tourists
total locals

      Exhibit E-19B:  Detail for Sources of Consumer Spending ($000)
      Upside -- All Facilities (at best sites)

Total Woodlnds KC Spwy KC statel. KC mid Camptown SE Corner Galena Mulvane Well'n Dodge

14,520 800 8,600 880 3,480 760
100 105 105 105 115
$78 $147 $137 $144 $125

$22,284 $559 $9,856 $924 $7,859 $3,086
516,481 $12,980 $279,272 $6,998 $185,233 $31,996
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$538,765 $13,540 $0 $0 $289,128 $0 $0 $7,923 $193,092 $0 $35,082

$28,012 $1,244 $22,713 $2,054 $1,932 $69
245,166 $7,301 $204,429 $33,435 $0 $0
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$273,178 $8,545 $0 $0 $227,142 $0 $0 $35,489 $1,932 $0 $69

$10,915 $80 $2,817 $2,040 $4,323 $1,655
5,954 $0 $0 $3,643 $1,840 $471

------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$16,869 $80 $0 $0 $2,817 $0 $0 $5,683 $6,163 $0 $2,126

$4,944 $201 $0 $0 $4,631 $0 $0 $43 $61 $0 $9

$6,306 $199 $0 $0 $4,061 $0 $0 $43 $1,011 $0 $992

$3,445 $76 $0 $0 $2,663 $0 $0 $166 $175 $0 $366

$2,994 $2,994
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$846,473 $22,640 $0 $0 $530,418 $0 $0 $49,346 $205,426 $0 $38,643
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$78,872 $2,358 $46,717 $5,270 $18,353 $6,175

$767,600 $20,282 $483,702 $44,076 $187,073 $32,468

            Note:  Totals may not add due to rounding.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT

Number of Slots
Power Rating
Win/Slot/Day

Kansas Tourists
Kansas Locals

Kansas Total

Missouri Tourists
Missouri Locals

Missouri Total

Okla + Ark Tourists
Okla + Ark Locals

Oklahoma Total

Iowa

Nebraska

Other Near

Frontage Traffic

Total All Sources

total Tourists
total locals

Spending Per Visitor

      Exhibit B-19C:  Detail for Visitation by Source
      Upside -- All Facilities (at best sites)

Total Woodlnds KC Spwy KC statel. KC mid  Camptown SE Corner Galena Mulvane Well'n Dodge 

14,520 800 8,600 880 3,480 760
100 105 105 105 115
$78 $147 $137 $144 $125

278,616 7,535 117,386 11,997 101,052 40,646
7,170,838 200,169 0 0 3,576,663 0 0 114,634 2,770,970 0 508,402
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
7,449,454 207,704 0 0 3,694,049 0 0 126,630 2,872,022 0 549,048

345,533 17,077 275,081 27,149 25,300 926
3,451,175 114,385 0 0 2,809,254 0 0 527,536 0 0 0
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
3,796,708 131,462 0 0 3,084,335 0 0 554,685 25,300 0 926

146,433 1,138 35,349 28,032 58,820 23,094
88,146 0 0 0 0 0 0 53,968 27,003 0 7,175

-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
234,579 1,138 0 0 35,349 0 0 81,999 85,823 0 30,270

59,631 2,723 0 0 55,447 0 0 557 787 0 117

77,676 2,687 0 0 48,371 0 0 560 12,995 0 13,062

38,910 939 0 0 29,467 0 0 1,989 2,074 0 4,441

33,657 0 0 0 33,657 0
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
######### 346,653 0 0 6,947,018 0 0 766,422 3,032,658 0 597,863
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 

980,455 32,099 561,102 70,284 234,685 82,286
######### 314,554 6,385,916 696,138 2,797,974 515,578

$72 $65 $76 $64 $68 $65

            Note:  Totals may not add due to rounding.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT
Exhibit E-20:  Projection in Brief ($mn / 2007$)

Upside -- All Facilities (at best sites, at $200/day)

# Slots   Power Slot Win win/slot/day  Total Win
Gaming Facility / Location:   Rating ($mn)   ($mn)   

Woodlands 800 100 $28.3 $97 $28.3
KCK Speedway
KCK Stateline
KCK Middle 5,100 105 $371.7 $200 $427.3
Camptown
Cherokee Corner
Cherokee Galena 310 105 $22.6 $200 $25.4 *
Sumner Mulvane 2,400 105 $175.8 $201 $197.6
Sumner Wellington
Dodge City 440 115 $31.8 $198 $35.3

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal Kansas Taxable 9,050 $630.3 $191 $713.9

KCK 7th Street 450 78 $9.3 $57 $9.3
4 Northeast KS Natives 3,443 117 $148.7 $118 $169.0

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Total Kansas 12,943 $788.3 $167 $892.2

  memo:  Northeast Zone 5,900 $400.0 $186 $455.6
  memo:  Southeast Zone 310 $22.6 $200 $25.4 *
  memo:  South Central Zone 2,400 $175.8 $201 $197.6

Argosy Riverside 1,969 96.6 $83.6 $116 $92.7
IOC KC 1,330 80.1 $40.8 $84 $44.2
Harrahs NKC 1,783 102.8 $101.4 $156 $116.9
Ameristar KC 3,012 98.0 $137.4 $125 $156.0
Sugar Creek

---------- ---------- ---------- 
Subtotal KCMO 8,094 $363.2 $123 $409.8

  Greater KC Total 14,444 $772.6 $147 $874.7
  Greater Joplin Total 7,373 $154.1 $57 $173.2
  Greater Wichita Total 7,032 $239.7 $93 $269.3

*  Likely not viable, reducing total Statewide taxable gaming revenues to $688.4 million.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT

Number of Slots
Power Rating
Win/Slot/Day

Kansas Tourists
Kansas Locals

Kansas Total

Missouri Tourists
Missouri Locals

Missouri Total

Okla + Ark Tourists
Okla + Ark Locals

Okla + Ark Total

Iowa

Nebraska

Other Near

Frontage Traffic

Total All Sources

total Tourists
total locals

      Exhibit E-20B:  Detail for Sources of Consumer Spending ($000)
      Upside -- All Facilities (at best sites, at $200/day)

Total Woodlnds KC Spwy KC statel. KC mid Camptown SE Corner Galena Mulvane Well'n Dodge

9,050 800 5,100 310 2,400 440
100 105 105 105 115
$97 $200 $200 $201 $198

$17,703 $657 $7,294 $454 $6,973 $2,326
475,355 $17,128 $243,778 $3,467 $180,492 $30,490
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$493,059 $17,785 $0 $0 $251,072 $0 $0 $3,921 $187,465 $0 $32,816

$19,401 $1,367 $15,517 $881 $1,589 $48
178,565 $8,574 $151,714 $18,277 $0 $0
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$197,966 $9,941 $0 $0 $167,231 $0 $0 $19,158 $1,589 $0 $48

$7,085 $81 $1,796 $811 $3,227 $1,170
3,219 $0 $0 $1,456 $1,372 $392

------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$10,304 $81 $0 $0 $1,796 $0 $0 $2,267 $4,599 $0 $1,561

$3,200 $204 $0 $0 $2,930 $0 $0 $17 $44 $0 $5

$4,216 $204 $0 $0 $2,600 $0 $0 $17 $752 $0 $643

$2,167 $76 $0 $0 $1,669 $0 $0 $65 $126 $0 $231

$2,994 $2,994
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$713,888 $28,290 $0 $0 $427,281 $0 $0 $25,445 $197,567 $0 $35,304
------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
$56,749 $2,588 $31,789 $2,245 $15,703 $4,422

$657,139 $25,702 $395,492 $23,200 $181,864 $30,882

            Note:  Totals may not add due to rounding.

Cummings Associates



DRAFT

Number of Slots
Power Rating
Win/Slot/Day

Kansas Tourists
Kansas Locals

Kansas Total

Missouri Tourists
Missouri Locals

Missouri Total

Okla + Ark Tourists
Okla + Ark Locals

Oklahoma Total

Iowa

Nebraska

Other Near

Frontage Traffic

Total All Sources

total Tourists
total locals

Spending Per Visitor

      Exhibit B-20C:  Detail for Visitation by Source
      Upside -- All Facilities (at best sites, at $200/day)

Total Woodlnds KC Spwy KC statel. KC mid  Camptown SE Corner Galena Mulvane Well'n Dodge 

9,050 800 5,100 310 2,400 440
100 105 105 105 115
$97 $200 $200 $201 $198

205,362 8,536 79,856 5,442 83,562 27,966
6,074,855 252,644 0 0 2,846,370 0 0 51,513 2,488,834 0 435,493
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
6,280,217 261,181 0 0 2,926,226 0 0 56,955 2,572,396 0 463,460

221,295 18,089 172,520 10,744 19,360 582
2,285,427 128,825 0 0 1,893,421 0 0 263,181 0 0 0
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
2,506,722 146,914 0 0 2,065,940 0 0 273,925 19,360 0 582

87,578 1,118 20,625 10,250 40,759 14,827
43,664 0 0 0 0 0 0 19,710 18,589 0 5,365

-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
131,242 1,118 0 0 20,625 0 0 29,960 59,348 0 20,192

35,699 2,671 0 0 32,230 0 0 203 530 0 66

48,065 2,656 0 0 28,462 0 0 208 9,008 0 7,731

22,694 911 0 0 17,073 0 0 724 1,404 0 2,581

31,637 0 0 0 31,637 0
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 
9,056,276 415,449 0 0 5,090,556 0 0 361,977 2,693,683 0 494,611
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- 

652,330 33,980 350,765 27,572 186,260 53,752
8,403,946 381,469 4,739,791 334,405 2,507,423 440,859

$79 $68 $84 $70 $73 $71

            Note:  Totals may not add due to rounding.

Cummings Associates



Kansas Casino Market Study
Task1 – Estimates of gaming revenues for a generic

casino to be located in each of the four gaming zones

Final Report

Prepared For:

Kansas Lottery Gaming Facility Review Board

May 26, 2008

Prepared By:

Wells Gaming Research

495 Apple Street, Suite 205

Reno, NV  89502

775-826-3232

http://www.wellsgaming.com



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

Wells Gaming Research

May 2008

Table of Contents

Page: 

Section 1:  Introduction & Executive Summary

Introduction 1-1

Research Methodology & Scope of Work 1-3

Map - Geographical Trade Areas for the Gaming Zones 1-4

Summary of the Research Results for Kansas 1-6

Limiting Conditions 1-11

Section 2:  Northeast Gaming Zone

Summary of the Trade Area 2-1

Map - Northeast Trade Area 2-2

Detailed Report for the Northeast Gaming Zone Trade Area 2-7

Status Quo for the Northeast Trade Area 2-10

Status Quo Gaming Capacity 2-12

Analysis of Gaming Revenue Scenarios 2-13

Section 3:  Southeast Gaming Zone

Summary for the Trade Area 3-1

Map - Southeast Trade Area 3-3

Detailed Analyses for the Trade Area for the Southeast Gaming Zone 3-8

2007 Status Quo for the Southeast Trade Area 3-12

Status Quo Casino Capacity 3-14

Scenario Results for the Southeast Casino Zone Trade Area (Revenue Forecasts) 3-16

Section 4:  South Central Gaming Zone

Summary of the Trade Area 4-1

Map - South Central Trade Area 4-2

Detailed Analysis of the Trade Area for the South Central Gaming Zone 4-6

Status Quo for the South Central Trade Area 4-9

Current Casino Gaming Capacity for the South Central Trade Area 4-11

Analyses of the Gaming Revenue Scenarios 4-13

Section 5:  Southwest Gaming Zone

Summary of the Trade Area 5-1

Map - Southwest Trade Area 5-2

Detailed Analyses for the Trade Area for the Southwest Gaming Zone 5-6

Status Quo Casino Revenues & Visitors for the Southwest Zone's Trade Area 5-8

Status Quo Estimates of Casino Revenue Flows 5-9

Status Quo Southwest Trade Area Capacity 5-10

Future Capacity with Casino Growth 5-10

Scenario Analyses for the Southwest Trade Area (Revenue Forecasts) 5-11

Section 6: Wells Gaming Research Company Information

Services Offered & Richard H. Wells, Experience & Qualifications 6-1



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

Wells Gaming Research

May 2008

Section 1



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 1-1

Introduction

The State of Kansas has lost gaming revenues for many years to a number of surrounding

states, particularly to Missouri and Oklahoma. The recent development of numerous tribal

casinos in Oklahoma exacerbated the problem.  In an effort to stem the flow of gaming

revenues and related taxes, Kansas’ legislators passed Senate Bill 66 (the Kansas Expanded

Lottery Act), which legalized casino gaming.  SB 66 was signed by the governor in 2007.

Key Provisions of Senate Bill 66

Some key provisions of SB 66 that pertain to this study include:

1.  Establishment of four casino gaming zones:

• Northeast (located in Wyandotte County)

• Southeast (located in Crawford and Cherokee Counties)

• South Central (located in Sumner and Sedgwick Counties)

• Southwest (located in Ford County)

2.  Building one state owned casino in each of the four Kansas gaming zones listed above.

3. Permitting an aggregate of 2,800 slot machines to be installed at the three existing

racetracks.

Senate Bill 66 required the counties located within the four subject gaming zones to hold

referendum elections for the purpose of either approving or disapproving casino gaming, or

slot machines to be located at their respective racetracks.  Three gaming zones have

racetracks (northeast, southeast, and south central).  However, Sedgwick County, located in

the south central gaming zone, rejected gaming in their referendum election.  As a result, slot

machines will be limited to two Kansas racetracks: Woodlands Race Track located in the

Kansas City, Kansas (northeast gaming zone), and Camptown Greyhound Park (closed since

November 2000) located near Frontenac, Kansas (southeast gaming zone).

The Kansas Lottery Commission has appointed an independent Lottery Gaming Facility

Review Board to review all of the gaming applications and select the best ones.  The Board

has engaged a number of outside consulting firms to help with the reviewing process.  To

date, six gaming applications have been received for the northeast zone, one for the southeast

zone, four for the south central zone, and two for the southwest zone.  The applicants that are

selected will be contract managers of the gaming facilities acting on behalf of the Kansas

Lottery Commission.   As planned, the state will own and/or control the gaming portion of

the facilities.  However, the lottery will select a contract manager who will manage the

gaming.  The contract managers that are selected will fund, build, and operate all of the

facilities under contract with the state lottery.

The contract managers will also be required to pay the following taxes that are all based on a

percentage of casino gaming revenues:



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 1-2

• The lottery facility would pay a minimum of 22% of gaming revenues to the state

plus an additional 2% to fund programs for problem gamblers and gaming addictions

issues.

• If a lottery gaming facility were located in either the northeast or southwest gaming

zones, but not in a city, the gaming facility would be required to pay an additional 3%

of gaming revenues to the county where the gaming facility was located.

• If, on the other hand, the gaming facility were located in a city, the facility would pay

1.5% of gaming revenues to the city and 1.5% to the county.

• If the lottery gaming facility were located in either the southeast or the south central

gaming zone, but not in a city, the gaming facility would pay 2% of gaming revenues

to the county in which the facility were located, and an additional 1% to the other

county in the gaming zone (each gaming zone has two counties).

• If a gaming facility were located in a city, a combined tax equal to 3% of gaming

revenues would be paid to the city (1%), to the county in which the facility were

located (1%), and to the second county in the gaming zone (1%).

These state owned casinos are unique and will be the first state owned casinos in the US.

Assessment of the Kansas Gaming Revenue Potential

Before enactment of Senate Bill 66 (the Kansas Expanded Lottery Act), the Kansas Lottery

Commission engaged Christensen Capital to update their study addressing the gaming

revenue potential for the four Kansas gaming zones.  The updated study was released in

March of 2008.

To verify the gaming revenue potential, the Kansas Lottery Gaming Facility Review Board

has engaged a team of casino gaming consultants including Wells Gaming Research (WGR)

and Cummings & Associates.  Both WGR and Cummings were engaged to conduct

independent evaluations of the gaming revenue potential as stated in Task 1 of the work

assignment.   In essence, Task 1 requires a market analysis of each of the gaming zones in

Kansas that have been authorized for casino gaming.  This involved estimating the gross

gaming revenues potential for a generic casino (not associated with any of the proposals) to

be located in each of the gaming zones, and projecting the potential revenue generation for

the State of Kansas.  The results of studies conducted by WGR and Cummings will be

compared with the Christensen Study that was commissioned by the Lottery.

In compliance with the Kansas Lottery Gaming Facility Review Board’s Task 1 assignment,

WGR has conducted an independent assessment of the gaming revenue potential of the four

gaming zones.  WGR’s work has been conducted totally independent of the work performed

by either Cummings or Christensen.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 1-3

Research Methodology & Scope of Work

To assess the gaming revenue potential of the four Kansas gaming zones, Wells Gaming

Research utilized its proprietary gravity modeling system to developed gravity models for

each of the subject gaming zones.  Each gravity model was customized to reflect the market

conditions of the respective gaming zone.

The geographical trade areas for the gaming zones are illustrated by the circles on the map on

page 1-4.  The trade area boundaries for each of the gaming zones extend approximately 100

miles from the proposed casino sites.  Some degree of overlap does occur between the

boundaries of the gaming zones.  The casinos proposed for Kansas, together with the two

racetracks (the Woodlands in Wyandotte County, and Camptown Greyhound Park in

Crawford County) have been plotted on the map.  Also shown are the existing casinos with

which the new Kansas gaming facilities will be competing.

Three key definitions used in the discussions include:

• Gaming Zone - includes the two counties where Kansas Senate Bill 66 has

authorized casinos for each zone.

• Trade Area – encompasses the area within an approximate 100-mile radius of the

generic casino sites.  The trade areas for the casino sites can extend into the

neighboring states of Oklahoma, Arkansas, Missouri, and to a limited extend to

Nebraska and Texas.

• Competitive Market - includes the approximate 150-mile region surrounding a

casino site where competitor casinos vie for players living within a 150-mile radius.

Key elements WGR’s research and analyses included, but were not limited to, the following:

• Detailed population data was obtained from the Bureau of Business & Economic

Research, University of Nevada, Reno at the census tract level for 2000 through 2012.

• The casino gaming capacities and amenities for existing casinos, expansions, and

proposed/planned casinos located within a 150-mile radius of the four casino

development sites were incorporated into the respective gravity models for each casino

site.

• Size, scope, and location assumptions were developed for the each of the four proposed

casinos and the two racetracks.

• The status quo period is 2007.  Thus, statistics from 2007 were used to develop a

baseline case for each of the four gaming zones.



Copyright © and (P) 1988–2006 Microsoft Corporation and/or its suppliers. All rights reserved. http://www.microsoft.com/mappoint/
Portions © 1990–2005 InstallShield Software Corporation. All rights reserved. Certain mapping and direction data © 2005 NAVTEQ. All rights reserved. The Data for areas of Canada includes information taken with permission from Canadian authorities, 
including: © Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Canada, © Queen's Printer for Ontario. NAVTEQ and NAVTEQ ON BOARD are trademarks of NAVTEQ. © 2005 Tele Atlas North America, Inc. All rights reserved. Tele Atlas and Tele Atlas North America are 
trademarks of Tele Atlas, Inc.

Kansas Lottery Project

0 mi 50 100 150 200 250



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 1-5

• Current gaming revenues were projected for each of the gaming zones (gaming

revenues as they existed before any new casinos or expansions were built).  In addition

to the baseline cases, WGR developed three primary scenarios per zone to forecast

gaming revenues.

Scenario-1 projected gaming revenue for the new Kansas Lottery Casino facility

as if it were the only new casino to be built in the gaming zone.

Scenario-2 included scenario-1 plus any proposed/planned casino expansions for

the gaming zone.

Scenario-3 included scenario-2 plus any new casinos that were planned/proposed

for the gaming zone.

• Three gaming revenue projections (low, mid, and high cases) were developed for each

scenario for the 2008 through 2012 period.  WGR believes that three projection cases

encompass a reasonable performance range for casino gaming revenues.  WGR prefers

not to develop single point projections because forecasting casino revenues is far from

an exact science.  Many factors both known and unknown can cause actual

performance to vary significantly from the projections.

By way of background, WGR has developed a custom, proprietary, gravity model for use in

estimating gaming revenues at casinos, as well as for evaluating the impacts of increased

competition on those revenues. WGR’s gravity modeling methodology has proven to be a

flexible and effective tool for estimating gaming revenues for casino projects where the

interplay with existing and/or proposed competing casinos could affect future gaming

revenues.

The concept of gravity modeling is not new to the business world.  William J. Reilly first

advanced the concept of a gravity model in 1931 in his book entitled Law of Retail

Gravitation.  Gravity models use the principal of Isaac Newton’s law of gravity, wherein the

attraction between two objects is proportional to their mass, and is inversely proportional to

the square of their respective distances.  Newton’s law of gravity dealt with planets, the

amount of gravitational force that they exert on each other, and the effects that the forces of

gravity have on their trajectory.  This concept of gravitational force, or pull, can be applied to

various types of problems, including business, retail, and traffic.  Reilly applied the concept

to retail shopping center trade area and customer attraction analysis.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 1-6

Summary of the Research Results for Kansas

To complete the Task 1 assignment, WGR developed four custom gravity models, one for

each of the gaming zones in Kansas.  The gravity models were specifically designed to

project the gaming revenues for the trade areas surrounding the gaming zones.

Population statistics were one of the key variables used in the gravity models to project the

potential casino gaming revenues for the gaming zones.  Statistics were compiled for both the

total and adult segments of the population to determine the size of the respective trade areas

for each gaming zones.  The population statistics included in this report are limited to those

counties located within the specific trade areas and are not representative of the entire state.

Due to the age restrictions on casino gaming, only the adult statistics were used in the gravity

model’s gaming revenue projections.

Exhibit 1-1 shows a comparison of both the total and the adult populations for 2007 (status

quo) relative to 2012.  The data are presented by state and include the total population for

184 counties located within the trade areas of each of the four gaming zones.  The total

population for 2007 was approximately 7.3 million, with 7.6 million forecasted for 2012.

This reflects an average compound growth rate (ACGR) of less than one percent (0.8%).

The adult population segment has been projected to increase at the same rate as the total

population, moving up from approximately 5.1 million in 2007 to nearly 5.3 million by 2012.

Exhibit 1-1 Total & Adult Population by State for the Gaming Zones

2007 2012 ACGR

State  Counties Total Adult Total Adult Adult Pop

AR 8 557,719 386,322 633,954 439,056 2.6%

KS 87 2,686,247 1,842,821 2,753,442 1,888,940 0.5%

MO 51 2,432,987 1,709,651 2,522,479 1,772,325 0.7%

NE 3 18,630 13,311 18,267 13,051 -0.4%

OK 33 1,617,373 1,120,631 1,681,085 1,164,451 0.8%

TX 2 12,779 8,518 13,385 8,919 0.9%

Total 184 7,325,735 5,081,253 7,622,612 5,286,741 0.8%

Data Sources: Bureau of Business & Economic Research, UNR & Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 1-7

Gaming Capacity Outlook with Proposed Growth

If all of the proposed expansions and new casinos were built, the accompanying capacity

statistics would approximate those profiled in Exhibits 1-2.

Exhibit 1-2 Capacity by State Includes Existing, Proposed Expansions & New Casinos

Kansas Oklahoma Missouri Iowa Total

Existing Casinos

# of Casinos 4 65 6 1 76

# of Slots 2,790 33,178 9,748 1,100 46,816

# of Tables 65 543 300 25 933

Expansions 1 5 0 0 6 
1

Proposed New Casinos

# of Casinos 7 11 2 0 20

# of Slots 9,350 13,771 2,500 0 25,621

# of Tables 210 324 71 0 605

Total (Existing,  New Casinos & Expansions)

# of Casinos 11 76 8 1 96

# of Slots 12,140 46,949 12,248 1,100 72,437

# of Tables 275 867 371 25 1,538

Percentage Increases (Existing Versus New Casinos & Expansions)

# of Casinos 175% 17% 33% 0% 26%

# of Slots 335% 42% 26% 0% 55%

# of Tables 323% 60% 24% 0% 65%

Footnote (1): The six expansions have not been added into the total number of casinos.

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.

The top section of Exhibit 1-2 shows the current capacity for all of the casinos located within

an approximate 150-mile radius of the four Kansas gaming zones.   Currently there are 76

casinos equipped with 46,816 slot machines and 933 table games.

If all of the proposed expansions and new casinos were built, and the two racetracks installed

a combined total of 1,400 slot machines (800 at the Woodlands and 600 at Camptown), the

gaming capacity picture would look like the total section of Exhibit 1-2.  The data shows that

the number of casinos would go from 76 to 96, an increase of 20 casinos (26%).  It is

important to note that the six expansions have not been added into the total number of

locations; however, the gaming capacity has been added.  Overall, slot capacity would

increase by 25,621 machines, up from 46,816 to 72,437 (55%).  The number of table games

would increase by 605, up from 933 to 1,538 (65%).



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 1-8

Competition

Strong competition already exists for the four Kansas gaming zones.  The northeast zone is

subject to intense competition from the Kansas City, Missouri casinos and from Tribal

casinos located north of the gaming zone.  In addition to being subject to strong existing

competition, both the southeast and the south central zones are vulnerable to increasing

competition from Oklahoma Tribal casinos, which are located to the south.

Status Quo Gaming Revenue Summary

Exhibit 1-3 profiles WGR’s status quo gaming revenues for 2007 and 2012.  The gaming

revenue estimates are limited to all existing casinos.  None of the proposed casinos or

expansions has been added.

Exhibit 1-3   Status Quo Casino Gaming Revenues for 2007 & Projections for 2012
(Stated in Millions of Dollars)

2007  2012

State

Coming              

From %

Going               

To % Dif

Coming            

From %

Going               

To % Dif

IA $0 0.0% $9 0.4% $9 $0 0.0% $9 0.4% $9

AR $194 7.8% $0 0.0% -$194 $220 8.6% $0 0.0% -$220

KS $841 34.1% $148 6.0% -$693 $865 33.7% $152 5.9% -$713

MO $839 34.0% $1,009 40.9% $170 $869 33.8% $1,044 40.6% $175

NE $7 0.3% $0 0.0% -$7 $7 0.3% $0 0.0% -$7

OK $583 23.6% $1,300 52.7% $717 $605 23.6% $1,364 53.1% $759

TX $3 0.1% $0 0.0% -$3 $3 0.1% $0 0.0% -$3

Total $2,467 100.0% $2,467 100.0% $0 $2,569 100.0% $2,569 100.0% $0

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.

The 2007 status quo gaming revenues are illustrated on the left hand side of Exhibit 1-3.

The data shows where the gaming revenues come from and where they go.  Total gaming

revenues were approximately $2.5 billion in 2007.  The majority (92%) was generated in

three states including Kansas ($841 million, 34.1%), Missouri ($839 million, 34.0%), and

Oklahoma ($583 million, 24%).  Of the total $2.5 billion, approximately $9.0 million (0.4%)

went to Iowa, $148 million (6.0%) went to Kansas, $1.0 billion (41%) went to Missouri, and

$1.3 billion (53%) went to Oklahoma.  Of particular interest are the differences between the

revenues that were generated in Kansas and Oklahoma versus the revenues that flowed back

to these two states.   For example, Kansas generated $841 million in 2007 and only retained

$148 million, a negative difference of $693 million.  On the other hand, Oklahoma generated

$583 million in 2007, while $1.3 billion flowed back to Oklahoma for a gain of $717 million.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 1-9

The right hand side of Exhibit 1-3 shows that without the addition of new casinos or

expansions within any of the states referenced, the 2012 outlook is similar to that of 2007.

Total gaming revenues have been estimated at $2.6 billion (an increase of $102 million over

2007).  Oklahoma has been forecasted to be the big winner generating $605 million in

gaming revenues (24% of the total), while receiving $1.4 billion (53%).  Kansas has been

forecasted to generate $865 million (34% of the total), while retaining $152 million, for a

negative difference of $713 million.  Missouri has been estimated to generate $869 million

(34.0%), with $1 billion flowing back to Missouri, a gain of $175 million.

Gaming Revenue Projections

With Casino Expansions & New Casinos

For purposes of estimating gaming revenues for our statewide gravity model, WGR

identified the competitor facilities (all known and existing casinos, together with all proposed

expansions and new casinos) that were located within the 150-mile trade area of each of the

four gaming zones.  The results are summarized in Exhibit 1-4.  The status quo gaming

revenues (2007) are shown, as well as the gaming revenue forecasts for 2012.  The 2012

forecasts reflect the gaming revenue levels that could be achieved if all of the proposed

casino expansions and new casinos were built and were operational.

Exhibit 1-4 Casino Revenue Projections w/ New Casinos & Expansions
(Stated in Millions of Dollars)

2007  2012

State

Coming              

From %

Going               

To % Dif

Coming            

From %

Going               

To % Dif

IA $0 0% $9 0% $9 $0 0% $6 0% $6

AR $194 8% $0 0% -$194 $225 8% $0 0% -$225

KS $841 34% $148 6% -$693 $936 35% $621 23% -$316

MO $839 34% $1,009 41% $170 $905 34% $837 31% -$68

NE $7 0% $0 0% -$7 $7 0% $0 0% -$7

OK $583 24% $1,300 53% $717 $609 23% $1,221 45% $612

TX $3 0% $0 0% -$3 $3 0% $0 0% -$3

Total $2,467 100% $2,467 100% $0 $2,684 100% $2,684 100% $0

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.

The 2007 statistics and results are the same as those presented in Exhibit 1-3, page 10.

WGR’s forecasts of the flow of casino gaming revenues for 2012 are summarized on the

right hand side of Exhibit 1-4.  The major states of origin for 2012 continue to be Kansas

($936 million, 35%), Missouri ($905 million, 34%), and Oklahoma ($609 million, 23%).



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 1-10

Oklahoma would continue to be the biggest recipient of gaming revenues with an estimated

$1.2 billion (45% of the total) flowing back.  Missouri ranks second with $837 million

(31%), and Kansas ranks third with $621 million (23% of the total) staying in Kansas.

The detailed analyses and results are presented in the following sections of this report for

each of the four gaming zones:

• Section 2 – Northeast Trade Area & Gaming Zone

• Section 3 – Southeast Trade Area & Gaming Zone

• Section 4 – South Central Trade Area & Gaming Zone

• Section 5 – Southwest Trade Area & Gaming Zone



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 1-11

Limiting Conditions

Wells Gaming Research, subject to the following conditions, presents the results of the

Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections to the Kansas Lottery

Gaming Facility Review Board.

Limit of Liability

The liability of Wells Gaming Research, a Nevada corporation, (hereinafter referred to as

WGR) and its employees, is limited to the named Client only.  No obligation or liability to

any third party is foreseen.  If this report is disseminated to anyone other than the Client, the

Client shall make each party aware of all of the limiting conditions, assumptions, and related

discussions of the assignment.  If any of this data are used for limited partnerships,

syndication offerings, stock offerings, or debt offerings, the Client agrees that if any legal

action (including arbitration) is initiated by any lender, partner, part owner in any form of

ownership, tenant, or any other person or entity against WGR or its employees, then the

Client shall hold WGR and its employees completely harmless in any such action from any

and all awards or settlements of any type (including but not limited to the attorney's fees and

costs), regardless of the outcome(s).

Litigation Expenses

In the event that Wells Gaming Research (WGR), Richard H Wells, or any WGR staff

members are named as parties to a law suit or are compelled by a court to provide testimony

and documents relating to WGR’s work for the Kansas Lottery Gaming Facility Review

Board, Client agrees to reimburse WGR for all out-of-pocket expenses including attorney

fees, deposition expenses, travel, and document production expenses required to comply with

a court order or other litigation requirements. If WGR is compelled to be a witness in

litigation arising from this assignment, Client will reimburse WGR at one-half (1/2) WGR’s

customary billing rate for staff time required to comply with the court order.

Copies, Publication, Distribution, & Use of Report

Possession of this report or any copy thereof does not carry with it the right of publication,

nor may it be used for other than its intended limited purpose.  The physical report(s) remain

the property of WGR for use by the Client.  The fee, which the Client has paid, was only for

the Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections, the accompanying

analytical services, and the project reporting that was provided.

This report is to be used only in its entirety.  No part is to be used or displayed without the

whole report.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 1-12

Except as hereinafter provided, the Client may only distribute copies of this report in its

entirety to such third parties as he may select on the conditions stated herein.  Selected

portions of this report shall not be given to third parties without the prior written consent of

WGR.  Neither this report nor any part of this report may be disseminated to the public by

the use of the advertising media, public relations, news, sales, or other media for public

communication without the prior written consent of WGR.

Information Used

No warranty is made for the accuracy of information furnished by others, the Client, his

designee, or public records.  The data relied upon in this report has been confirmed and/or

sources thought reliable have been used.  All sources and data are considered appropriate for

inclusion to the best of our factual judgment and knowledge.  An impractical and

uneconomic expenditure of time would be required in attempting to furnish unimpeachable

verification of all data in all instances.

ACCEPTANCE AND/OR USE OF THE RESULTS AND ANALYSES CONTAINED

IN THIS REPORT BY THE CLIENT OR ANY THIRD PARTY CONSTITUTES

ACCEPTANCE OF THE ABOVE CONDITIONS.  WGR'S LIABILITY EXTENDS

ONLY TO THE STATED CLIENT AND NOT TO SUBSEQUENT PARTIES OR

USERS.  THESE STUDY RESULTS AND ANALYSES ARE NOT

REPRESENTATIONS OR GUARANTEES OF ANY SPECIFIC LEVEL OF

PERFORMANCE THAT MIGHT RESULT FROM THE ADDITION OR

EXPANSION OF CASINOS IN THE KANSAS GAMING MARKET.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

Wells Gaming Research

May 2008

Section 2



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-1

Summary of the Trade Area

for the Northeast Gaming Zone

Highlights of the market for the northeast trade area follow (refer to pages 2-7 through 2-32

for the corresponding detailed analyses and discussions).

Trade Area

The northeast trade area covers the approximate 100-mile radius surrounding Kansas City.

The boundaries extend to the Iowa border on the north; to Crawford County, Kansas and

Vernon County, Missouri on the south; Riley County, Kansas on the west; and Saline and

Cooper Counties, Missouri on the east (refer to the map on page 2-2).

Demographic Statistics

The population and median household income statistics included in this report are limited to

those counties included in the northeast gaming zone trade area and are not representative of

the entire states of Kansas, Missouri, and Nebraska.

Exhibit 2-1 shows that the trade area for the northeast zone includes 71 counties (32 in

Kansas, 36 in Missouri, and three in Nebraska).  In 2007, these counties had an adult

population of approximately 2.17 million.  Median household incomes (MHI) ranged from a

little over $40 thousand in Nebraska, to $48 thousand in Kansas, and approximately $50

thousand in Missouri.

Exhibit 2-1 Adult Population & Median Household Income (MHI)

2007 2007 2012 ACGR

State
# of             

Counties
Adult      

Population MHI
Adult      

Population MHI

Adult 
Population 

07 to 12
MHI                     

07 to 12

KS 32 1,014,311 $47,985 1,051,085 $56,417 0.71% 3.29%

MO 36 1,146,430 $49,660 1,174,840 $56,720 0.49% 2.69%

NE 3 13,311 $40,160 13,051 $49,079 -0.39% 4.09%

Total 71 2,174,051 NA 2,238,976 NA 0.59% NA

Data Sources: Bureau of Business & Economic Research, UNR & Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.

The adult population forecasts increase from 2.17 million in 2007 to 2.24 million by 2012, or

by approximately 70 thousand.  The average compound growth rate for the adult population

was 0.59% between 2007 and 2012. The average compound growth rate for adult population

ranged from a negative 0.39% (three small counties) in Nebraska, to 0.49% in Missouri, and

0.71% in Kansas.

The median household income levels for 2012 have been forecasted at a little over $49

thousand for Nebraska, $56.4 thousand for Kansas, and $56.7 thousand in Missouri.



Copyright © and (P) 1988–2006 Microsoft Corporation and/or its suppliers. All rights reserved. http://www.microsoft.com/mappoint/
Portions © 1990–2005 InstallShield Software Corporation. All rights reserved. Certain mapping and direction data © 2005 NAVTEQ. All rights reserved. The Data for areas of Canada includes information taken with permission from Canadian authorities, 
including: © Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Canada, © Queen's Printer for Ontario. NAVTEQ and NAVTEQ ON BOARD are trademarks of NAVTEQ. © 2005 Tele Atlas North America, Inc. All rights reserved. Tele Atlas and Tele Atlas North America are 
trademarks of Tele Atlas, Inc.

Northeast Kansas Zone

0 mi 50 100 150



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-3

Between 2007 and 2012, the average compound growth rate for median household incomes

ranged 2.69% in Missouri, to 3.29% in Kansas, to 4.09% in Nebraska.

Primary Market

The primary market for the northeast trade area of Kansas is made-up of the six counties

surrounding the casino in Wyandotte County.  Exhibit 2-2 shows that the adult population

was approximately 1.2 million in 2007, 55% of the total adult population in the subject trade

area.  Combined, the six counties located in the primary market have been projected to have

an average compound growth rate of 0.7% between 2007 and 2012.

The total adult population has been forecasted at slightly over 2.2 million for 2012 (for yearly

adult population details, refer Exhibit 2-7, page 2-9).

Exhibit 2-2 Adult Population for the Primary Market

# of      
Counties List of Counties 2007 2012

ACGR            
07 to 12 % 2012

Johnson County, Kansas 364,462 395,339 1.6% 32%

Leavenworth, County, Kansas 49,948 51,318 0.5% 4%

Wyandotte County, Kansas 101,401 98,159 -0.6% 8%

Clay County, Missouri 147,253 154,829 1.0% 13%

Jackson County Missouri 467,495 470,818 0.1% 38%

Platte County, Missouri 59,691 64,189 1.5% 5%

6 Total of Wyandotte & Surrounding Counties 1,190,250 1,234,652 0.7% 100%

29
Total Kansas Counties - Excluding Counties 
Surrounding Wyandotte 498,500 506,269 0.3%

33
Total Missouri Counties - Excluding Counties 
Surrounding Wyandotte 471,990 485,004 0.5%

3 Total Nebraska 13,311 13,051 -0.4%

71 Total Adult Population for Trade Area 2,174,051 2,238,976 0.6%

Data Sources: Bureau of Business & Economic Research, UNR & Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-4

Capacity Statistics & Competition

Capacity statistics are a key component of gaming competition. Exhibit 2-3 shows the

existing capacity, and illustrates the increases that are anticipated in the northeast trade area.

The current capacity includes 18 gaming locations equipped with 16,914 slot machines, 440

table games (pit and poker), and 718 thousand square feet of casino space.  Other visitor

amenities include 107 thousand square feet of convention space, 1,331 hotel rooms, 52

restaurants, 17 entertainment venues, and 19,150 parking spaces.

Following is a profile of the casino capacity located within a 150-mile radius of the

Wyandotte County casino site.

Exhibit 2-3  Capacity Statistics for Casinos

 Located within an Approximate 150 Miles Radius

Existing Expansions New (Proposed) Casinos Total % Change

Capacity Casinos KS KS OK MO Capacity Above Existing

# of Loc 18 1 5 1 1 25 
1

39%

# of Slots 16,914 500 6,050 2,000 1,200 26,664 58%

# of Tables 440 0 140 45 30 655 49%

Casino S.F. 717,691 0 20,000 70,000 40,000 847,691 18%

Convention S.F. 106,520 0 110,000 10,000 12,000 238,520 124%

# of Rooms 1,331 0 750 240 200 2,521 89%

# of Restaurants 52 0 16 2 3 73 40%

Entertainment 17 0 7 0 2 26 53%

Parking 19,150 0 11,000 2,700 2,200 35,050 83%

Footnote (1): The total number of locations is 25 (one is an expansion at an existing casino).

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.

The statistics show that the combined impact of casino growth within a 150-mile radius will

result in a significant escalation in player capacity.  Some key changes include a 44%

increase in the number of gaming locations, from 18 up to 25 (one is an expansion only).

The slot machine inventory will increase by 58%, from approximately 17 thousand to 27

thousand.  The number of table games will increase by 49%, going from 440 to 655.  The

supply of hotel rooms will surge by 89%, from 1,331 to 2521, and the number of restaurants

will increase by 40%, from 52 to 73.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-5

Gaming Revenues

Exhibit 2-4 profiles the revenue flows corresponding to the current status (2007), as well as to

scenarios 1 through 3A (2012).  These scenarios were developed to analyze the gaming

revenue impacts of the expansions and the new casinos.  The column captions from and to

indicate the flow of gaming revenues.   The current status reflects estimated total gaming

revenues of $923 million for the northeast trade area as of 2007.  The net gaming revenue loss

for Kansas was $326 million.  The majority, $275 million, went to Missouri, while $52

million went to Oklahoma.

The gaming revenues forecasted in scenarios 1 through 3A for 2012 were based on the

assumptions set forth in each scenario.  The addition of the casino in Wyandotte County is the

key assumption of scenario 1.  Total gaming revenues from Kansas increased from an

estimated $414 million (2007) to $445 million (2012).  The net impact of adding Wyandotte

County increased the amount of gaming revenues retained by Kansas from $88 million to

$277 million, thereby reducing the Kansas gaming revenue deficit by  $158 million.

Exhibit 2-4  Summary of the 2012 Flow of Gaming Revenues
(Dollars in Millions)

Current 2007 S-1 2012 S-2 2012 S-3 2012 S-3-A 2012

ST From To Dif From To Dif From To Dif From To Dif From To Dif

IA $0 $3 $3 $0 $3 $3 $0 $3 $3 $0 $3 $3 $0 $3 $3

KS $414 $88 -$326 $445 $277 -$168 $445 $277 -$168 $458 $312 -$146 $458 $325 -$133

MO $504 $779 $275 $516 $641 $126 $516 $638 $123 $527 $621 $94 $523 $601 $79

NE $5 $0 -$5 $5 $0 -$5 $5 $0 -$5 $5 $0 -$5 $5 $0 -$5

OK $0 $52 $52 $0 $45 $45 $0 $48 $48 $0 $54 $54 $0 $57 $57

Total $923 $923 $0 $966 $966 $0 $966 $966 $0 $990 $990 $0 $985 $985 $0

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.

Scenario 2, shown above in Exhibit 2-4, includes the existing casinos, as well as the new

casino in Wyandotte County discussed in scenario 1.  Scenario 2 also includes six casino

expansions: one at the Sac & Fox Casino in Powhattan, Kansas, tentatively scheduled to open

in March of 2008; and five expansions that are targeted to open at Oklahoma Tribal casinos

between 2008 and 2009.  Included are the Creek Nation Casino in Tulsa, the Cherokee

Casino Resort in Catoosa, Kickapoo Casino in McLoud, the Osage Million Dollar Elm in

Ponca City, and the Cherokee Casino West Siloam Springs in Watts.  These Oklahoma

casino expansions are too far away to trigger much change in gaming revenues for the trade

area of the northeast gaming zone.  No changes are projected for the gaming revenues

coming from or going to Kansas.  The net loss to Kansas remains at $168 million in scenario

2.  However, the net gaming revenues flowing to Missouri decline by $3 million (down from



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-6

$126 million to $123 million), while the gaming revenues flowing to Oklahoma increase by

$3 million (up from $45 million to $48 million).

Scenario 3 includes the casino additions and expansions included in scenarios 1 and 2, plus

18 new proposed casinos, including the Wyandotte 7th Street Casino located in Kansas City,

Kansas, a new casino in nearby Sugar Creek, Missouri, and 800 slot machines at the

Woodlands Racetrack.  The Wyandotte 7th Street Casino and the 18 proposed casinos are

assumed to be in operation between 2008 and 2010 (refer to page 2-19 for a detailed listing).

Total gaming revenues for scenario 3 have been projected at $990 million.   Of the total,

$458 million would come from Kansas with $312 million staying in Kansas.  The net loss for

Kansas would decline from $326 million (2007 current status) to $146 million (Scenario 3),

or by $180 million.

Scenario 3A included scenario 3 with the exception of the Wild Rose Entertainment Casino

planned for Sugar Creek, Missouri.  Exhibit 2-4, page 2-5, shows the overall gaming

revenues decline from $990 million (scenario 3) to $985 in (scenario 3A) reflecting the loss

of the Wild Rose.  However, the picture improves for Kansas.  The total gaming revenues

remain constant at $458 million, but the revenues staying in Kansas increase from $312 to

$325 million (up $13 million without the Wild Rose, Sugar Creek casino).



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-7

Detailed Report For

Northeast Gaming Zone Trade Area

Population statistics are one of the key variables used in WGR’s gravity model.  WGR

compiled statistics for both the total and adult segments of the population for the northeast

trade area.  However, due to the age restrictions on casino gaming, only the adult statistics

were used in the gravity model’s gaming revenue projections.

Total & Adult Population Statistics

Exhibit 2-5 shows that the total population for the northeast trade area was approximately 3

million in 2007.  Of this, 2.2 million (69.6%) were adults.  The statistics show 1.0 million

adults in Kansas (68.9% of the total), approximately 1.1 million in Missouri (70.3%), and

over 13 thousand adults in Nebraska (71.4% of the total population included in the northeast

trade area).

The total population is projected to be 3.2 million in 2012.  Of the total, 2.2 million (69.6%)

are adults.  The split between total and adult shows over 1.1 million adults in Kansas (69.0%

of the total), approximately 1.2 million in Missouri (70.2%), and over 13 thousand adults in

Nebraska (71.4%).

Exhibit 2-5 Total & Adult Population Statistics

2000 Total & Adult 2007 Total & Adult 2012 Total & Adult

ST

# of 

CO Total Adult

Adult as a 

% of 

Total

Adult % 

of Adult 

Total Total Adult

Adult as 

a % of 

Total

Adult % 

of Adult 

Total Total Adult

Adult as 

a % of 

Total

Adult % 

of Adult 

Total

KS 32 1,389,813 957,425 68.9% 46.3% 1,471,327 1,014,311 68.9% 46.7% 1,524,101 1,051,085 69.0% 46.9%

MO 36 1,561,199 1,096,996 70.3% 53.0% 1,631,872 1,146,430 70.3% 52.7% 1,672,508 1,174,840 70.2% 52.5%

NE 3 20,194 14,433 71.5% 0.7% 18,630 13,311 71.4% 0.6% 18,267 13,051 71.4% 0.6%

TOT 71 2,971,206 2,068,854 69.6% 100.0% 3,121,829 2,174,051 69.6% 100.0% 3,214,876 2,238,976 69.6% 100.0%

Data Sources:  Bureau of Business & Economics, University of Nevada, Reno & Wells Gaming Research.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-8

Exhibit 2-6 illustrates that the total population for the six counties surrounding the casino in

Wyandotte County was 1.7 million in 2007.  Projections show an increase to approximately

1.8 million by 2012.  Of the total, 32% would be located in Johnson County, Kansas, while

38% would be located in Jackson, Missouri.  The trade area total for 2007 was 3.1 million

with projections for 3.2 million by 2012.  Overall, the average compound growth rate has

been projected at 0.6% for the 2007 to 2012 period.

Exhibit 2-6 Total Population Statistics

# of         

Co Counties 2000 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

ACGR            

07 to 12

% Pop/ Co 

2012

Johnson KS 451,086 514,020 522,451 531,013 539,727 548,578 557,579 566,720 1.6% 32%

Leavenworth KS 68,691 71,413 71,803 72,193 72,585 72,979 73,378 73,775 0.5% 4%

Wyandotte KS 157,882 152,385 151,399 150,413 149,441 148,470 147,512 146,556 -0.6% 8%

Clay MO 184,006 206,957 209,136 211,339 213,564 215,813 217,845 219,896 1.0% 12%

Jackson MO 654,880 664,078 664,994 665,910 666,828 667,748 668,733 669,720 0.1% 38%

Platte MO 73,781 83,061 84,340 85,638 86,956 88,295 89,488 90,696 1.5% 5%

6 Total Surrounding Counties 1,590,326 1,691,914 1,704,123 1,716,506 1,729,101 1,741,883 1,754,535 1,767,363 0.7% 100%

29

Total Kansas Counties - 

Excluding Surrounding 

Counties 712,154 723,577 725,674 727,822 730,024 732,308 734,645 737,050 0.3%

33

Total Missouri Counties - 

Excluding Surrounding 

Counties 648,532 669,632 673,402 677,228 681,107 685,048 688,599 692,196 0.6%

3 Total Nebraska 20,194 18,707 18,630 18,553 18,477 18,401 18,334 18,267 -0.4%

71 Total Trade Area Pop 2,971,206 3,103,830 3,121,829 3,140,109 3,158,709 3,177,640 3,196,113 3,214,876 0.6%

Data Sources:  Bureau of Business & Economics, University of Nevada, Reno & Wells Gaming Research.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-9

The adult population was approximately 1.2 million in 2007 for the counties surrounding the

casino in Wyandotte County (refer to Exhibit 2-7).  Projections for 2012 indicate a minor

increase to 1.23 million with 38% in Jackson County Missouri and 32% in Johnson County,

Kansas.   The total adult population of 2.2 million in 2007 is expected to increase to 2.24

million by 2012.  Overall, the average compound growth rate has been projected at 0.6%

between 2007 and 2012.

Exhibit 2-7 Adult Population Statistics

# of      

Co Counties 2000 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

ACGR            

07 to 12

% Pop/ 

Co 2012

Johnson KS 314,676 358,581 364,462 370,431 376,520 382,689 388,966 395,339 1.6% 32%

Leavenworth KS 47,782 49,676 49,948 50,217 50,490 50,764 51,042 51,318 0.5% 4%

Wyandotte KS 105,745 102,067 101,401 100,741 100,090 99,447 98,798 98,159 -0.6% 8%

Clay MO 129,559 145,719 147,253 148,804 150,371 151,954 153,385 154,829 1.0% 13%

Jackson MO 460,385 466,851 467,495 468,139 468,784 469,431 470,124 470,818 0.1% 38%

Platte MO 52,218 58,786 59,691 60,610 61,543 62,490 63,335 64,189 1.5% 5%

6 Total Surrounding Counties 1,110,365 1,181,680 1,190,250 1,198,942 1,207,798 1,216,776 1,225,649 1,234,652 0.7% 100%

29

Total Kansas Counties - 

Excluding Surrounding 

Counties 489,222 497,072 498,500 499,970 501,471 503,032 504,631 506,269 0.3%

33

Total Missouri Counties - 

Excluding Surrounding 

Counties 454,834 469,377 471,990 474,642 477,330 480,061 482,516 485,004 0.5%

3 Total Nebraska 14,433 13,366 13,311 13,256 13,201 13,146 13,098 13,051 -0.4%

71 Total Trade Area Population 2,068,854 2,161,496 2,174,051 2,186,809 2,199,800 2,213,015 2,225,895 2,238,976 0.6%

Data Sources:  Bureau of Business & Economics, University of Nevada, Reno & Wells Gaming Research.

Average Median Household Income

Exhibit 2-8 shows that average median household income statistics for 2007 show

approximately $48 thousand for Kansas, $50 thousand for Missouri, and $40 thousand for

Nebraska.  The median household income projections for 2012 include approximately $56

thousand for Kansas (ACGR of 3.3%), $57 thousand for Missouri (ACGR of 2.7%), and $49

thousand for Nebraska (ACGR of 4.1%).

Exhibit 2-8 Average Median Household Income Statistics

# of       
Co State 2000 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

ACGR            
07 to 12

32 KS $38,336 $46,466 $47,985 $49,557 $51,184 $52,868 $54,612 $56,417 3.3%

36 MO $41,111 $48,359 $49,660 $50,998 $52,372 $53,783 $55,232 $56,720 2.7%

3 NE $30,331 $38,586 $40,160 $41,801 $43,510 $45,290 $47,145 $49,079 4.1%

Data Sources:  Bureau of Business & Economics, University of Nevada, Reno & Wells Gaming Research.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-10

Status Quo

for the Northeast Trade Area

Status Quo Casino Revenues

Exhibit 2-9 shows that the status quo casino gaming revenues were $923 million for 2007

($759 million within a 50 mile radius and approximately $164 million for other competing

casinos).  Without any casino expansions or additions, gaming revenues in the northeast trade

area could be expected to increase to approximately $940.5 million by 2010, and to $952.2

million by 2012.

Exhibit 2-9 Revenues – 2007 Status Quo Northeast trade area

Revenue 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Casinos w/in 50 miles $759,348,000 $764,333,000 $769,402,000 $774,557,000 $779,590,000 $784,703,000

Other Casinos Competing w/in Trade Area $163,641,400 $164,384,900 $165,140,600 $165,919,200 $166,696,800 $167,492,500

Total $922,989,400 $928,717,900 $934,542,600 $940,476,200 $946,286,800 $952,195,500

Data Sources: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.

Status Quo Visitors

Exhibit 2-10 illustrates that the status quo casino visitors for 2007 totaled approximately 14

million (11.8 million within a 50 mile radius, and approximately 2.2 million for other

competing casinos).  Absent any casino expansions or additions, the casino visitor counts

could be expected to increase to approximately 14.4 million by 2012.

Exhibit 2-10 Casino Visitors – 2007 Status Quo Northeast trade area

Visitors 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Casinos w/in 50 miles 11,782,925 11,858,085 11,934,550 12,012,280 12,088,190 12,165,341

Other Casinos 2,162,247 2,172,745 2,183,478 2,194,525 2,205,619 2,217,065

Total 13,945,172 14,030,830 14,118,028 14,206,805 14,293,809 14,382,406

Data Sources: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-11

Status Quo Gaming Revenue Flows

The status quo flow of casino revenues showing what could be expected if no new casino

developments occurred are profiled in Exhibit 2-11.  Focusing on 2007, an estimated $923

million in gaming revenues was generated in the northeast trade area.  Of this amount, an

estimated $414 million came from Kansas; however, Kansas only retained $88 million, a loss

of $326 million.

If there were no casinos expansions or new casinos added, WGR estimates that $952 million

could be generated in the northeast trade area by 2012.  Of this amount, $431 million would

come from Kansas.  However, only an estimated $91 million would flow back to Kansas (a

loss of over $340 million).

Exhibit 2-11 2007 Status Quo Estimates of the Casino Revenue Flows, Northeast Trade Area

Illustrates Where the Gaming Revenues Originated & Where They Went

Revenues Coming From

State 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 ACGR % 2012 Total

KS $414,186,842 $417,457,538 $420,805,847 $424,221,045 $427,702,492 $431,254,327 0.81% 45%

MO $503,538,602 $506,015,208 $508,514,591 $511,053,330 $513,397,492 $515,774,822 0.48% 54%

NE $5,264,895 $5,243,332 $5,222,491 $5,200,061 $5,183,145 $5,165,162 -0.38% 1%

Total $922,990,339 $928,716,078 $934,542,929 $940,474,436 $946,283,129 $952,194,311 0.62% 100%

Revenues Going To

State 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 ACGR % Total

IA $3,431,000 $3,442,000 $3,452,000 $3,463,000 $3,473,000 $3,484,000 0.31% 0%

KS $88,459,000 $88,869,000 $89,294,000 $89,733,000 $90,185,000 $90,653,000 0.49% 10%

MO $778,840,000 $783,919,000 $789,082,000 $794,332,000 $799,456,000 $804,662,000 0.65% 85%

OK $52,259,400 $52,487,900 $52,714,600 $52,948,200 $53,172,800 $53,396,500 0.43% 6%

Total $922,989,400 $928,717,900 $934,542,600 $940,476,200 $946,286,800 $952,195,500 0.62% 100%

Data Sources: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-12

Status Quo Gaming Capacity

Gaming Capacity

Exhibit 2-12 shows that 18 casinos are currently located within approximately 150 miles of

the proposed casino site for the northeast zone.  The combined gaming capacities is 16,914

slot machines, 367 pit table games, 73 poker tables, 868 bingo seats, one race book, and

717,691 square feet of casino space.  Other amenities located at existing casinos include

106,520 square feet of convention/meeting space, 1,331 hotel rooms, 52 restaurants, 17

entertainment venues, and 19,150 parking spaces.

Exhibit 2-12 Status Quo Casino Capacity Statistics

# of     

Loc Casino
# of 

Slots

# of Pit 

Tables

# of 

Poker 

Tables

# of 

Total 

Tables

# of 

Bingo 

Seats

Race 

Book

Casino 

S.F.

Con-

vention 

S.F.

# of 

Rooms

# of 

Restau-

rants

Enter-      

tain-             

ment

Park- 

ing

Iowa:

1 Terrible's Lakeside Casino 1,100 22 3 25 0 0 37,480 8,000 60 2 2 1,500

     Subtotal of Iowa 1,100 22 3 25 0 0 37,480 8,000 60 2 2 1,500

Kansas:

1 Casino White Cloud 350 6 3 9 500 0 21,000 0 0 1 0 500

2 Golden Eagle Casino 786 13 6 19 368 0 45,000 15,000 0 2 1 700

3 Prairie Band Casino & Resort 1,154 26 4 30 0 0 34,878 12,000 297 3 1 1,000

4 Sac & Fox Casino 500 7 0 7 0 0 53,000 0 0 4 0 400

     Subtotal of Kansas 2,790 52 13 65 868 0 153,878 27,000 297 10 2 2,600

Missouri:

1 Ameristar Casino Hotel - Kansas City 3,016 90 15 105 0 0 140,000 14,520 184 11 3 2,660

2 Argosy Riverside Casino Hotel & Spa 1,924 39 8 47 0 0 62,000 18,000 258 5 3 2,700

3 Harrah's North Kansas City Casino & Hotel 1,793 60 12 72 0 0 60,133 10,000 392 6 1 3,122

4 Isle of Capri Casino - Boonville 905 27 6 33 0 0 28,000 12,000 140 3 1 1,102

5 Isle of Capri Casino - Kansas City 1,525 26 6 32 0 0 40,000 0 0 5 1 1,618

6 Terrible's St. Jo Frontier Casino 585 11 0 11 0 0 32,000 7,000 0 1 2 663

     Subtotal of Missouri 9,748 253 47 300 0 0 362,133 61,520 974 31 11 11,865

Oklahoma:

1 Buffalo Run Casino 1,300 20 9 29 0 0 70,000 10,000 0 3 1 1,300

2 Eastern Shawnee Travel Plaza 186 0 0 0 0 0 3,000 0 0 0 0 150

3 High Winds Casino 500 8 0 8 0 0 35,000 0 0 2 0 450

4 Miami Tribe Entertainment 107 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 75

5 Peoria Gaming Center 200 0 0 0 0 0 4,200 0 0 1 0 250

6 Quapaw Casino 483 8 1 9 0 0 27,000 0 0 1 1 700

7 The Stables Casino 500 4 0 4 0 1 25,000 0 0 2 0 260

     Subtotal of Oklahoma 3,276 40 10 50 0 1 164,200 10,000 0 9 2 3,185

18 Totals for Existing 18 Casinos 16,914 367 73 440 868 1 717,691 106,520 1,331 52 17 19,150

Data Sources: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-13

Analyses of the Gaming Revenue Scenarios

WGR developed six scenarios for the northeast trade area.  To project a range of potential

gaming revenue outcomes, WGR developed three cases (low, mid, and high) for each

scenario.  The focus of the discussions that follow is on WGR’s mid case results.  The mid

case was selected because it represents the most likely outcome.

Scenario 1

Scenario 1 includes the casinos currently competing for business within the northeast trade

area, together with the addition of the proposed generic casino to be located in Wyandotte

County.

The Wyandotte Casino has been projected to start operations in 2010 with a gaming capacity

that includes 3,000 slot machines and 100 table games.  Other assumed amenities include

100,000 square feet of convention/meeting space, 500 hotel rooms, six restaurants, and five

entertainment venues (three small and two large).

Revenue Projections

The gaming revenue projections shown in Exhibit 2-13 include WGR’s low, mid, and high

case forecasts for 2010, and 2012.  The mid case projections show casino gaming revenues of

$954 million for 2010, increasing to $966 million by 2012.  The percentage increases in

gaming revenues over 2007 is 3.36% for 2010 and 4.7% for 2012.  The mid case gaming

revenue projections for Wyandotte County are $198 million for 2010 increasing to $201

million for 2012.

Exhibit 2-13 Revenues for Scenario 1

Includes all Existing Casinos + Wyandotte County Proposed for 2010

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Wyandotte County Proposed $0 $156,720,000 $159,175,000 $198,369,000 $201,491,000 $262,328,000 $266,433,000

Casinos w/in 50 miles $759,348,000 $650,898,000 $659,018,000 $615,982,000 $623,502,000 $562,857,000 $569,496,000

All Other Casinos $163,641,400 $146,440,700 $147,815,700 $139,713,600 $141,015,600 $128,879,600 $130,082,700

Total  Scenario 1 $922,989,400 $954,058,700 $966,008,700 $954,064,600 $966,008,600 $954,064,600 $966,011,700

Data Sources: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-14

Gaming Revenue Impacts

Exhibit 2-14 shows that the major gaming revenue impact of adding Wyandotte County

would be a $159 million reduction in the category captioned casinos located within 50 miles.

WGR anticipates that this impact could increase to more than $161 million by 2012.

Exhibit 2-14 Revenue Impacts for Scenario 1

Includes all Existing Casinos + the Casino in Wyandotte County Proposed for 2010

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Wyandotte County Proposed $0 $156,720,000 $159,175,000 $198,369,000 $201,491,000 $262,328,000 $266,433,000

Casinos w/in 50 miles $0 -$123,659,000 -$125,685,000 -$158,575,000 -$161,201,000 -$211,700,000 -$215,207,000

All Other Casinos $0 -$19,478,500 -$19,676,800 -$26,205,600 -$26,476,900 -$37,039,600 -$37,409,800

Total  Scenario 1 $0 $13,582,500 $13,813,200 $13,588,400 $13,813,100 $13,588,400 $13,816,200

Data Sources: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-15

Forecasted Flow Funds

Scenario 1 shows that the northeast trade area generated an estimated $923 million in gaming

revenues in 2007 (refer to the first section of Exhibit 2-15 captioned Scenario 1 Revenues

Coming From).  Of this amount, more than $414 million was generated in Kansas.  Of the

$414 million, an estimated $88.5 million stayed in Kansas (a loss of $326 million).  Refer to

the third section of Exhibit 2-15 captioned Scenario 1 Mid Case - Revenues Going To.

Conversely, $504 million of the $923 million was generated in Missouri in 2007, while $779

million went to Missouri (a $275 million gain).

WGR’s projections of the anticipated shifts in casino revenue flows indicate that of the $438

million projected to be generated in Kansas in 2010, $273 million would stay in Kansas.  The

net loss would decline from the 2007 level of $326 million to $165 million by 2010.

Exhibit 2-15 Flows of Gaming Revenue Funds for Scenario 1

Illustrates Where the Gaming Revenues Originated & Where They Went

Scenario 1 Revenues Coming From

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

KS $414,186,842 44.9% $417,457,538 $420,805,847 $437,796,175 45.9% $441,390,943 $445,057,329 46.1%

MO $503,538,602 54.6% $506,015,208 $508,514,591 $511,064,763 53.6% $513,409,080 $515,786,564 53.4%

NE $5,264,895 0.6% $5,243,332 $5,222,491 $5,200,061 0.5% $5,183,145 $5,165,162 0.5%

Total $922,990,339 100.0% $928,716,078 $934,542,929 $954,060,999 100.0% $959,983,168 $966,009,055 100.0%

Scenario 1 Low Case - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $3,431,000 0.4% $3,442,000 $3,452,000 $3,033,000 0.3% $3,042,000 $3,050,000 0.3%

KS $88,459,000 9.6% $88,869,000 $89,294,000 $235,128,000 24.6% $236,747,000 $238,403,000 24.7%

MO $778,840,000 84.4% $783,919,000 $789,082,000 $669,200,000 70.1% $673,311,000 $677,488,000 70.1%

OK $52,259,400 5.7% $52,487,900 $52,714,600 $46,697,700 4.9% $46,883,200 $47,067,700 4.9%

Total $922,989,400 100.0% $928,717,900 $934,542,600 $954,058,700 100.0% $959,983,200 $966,008,700 100.0%

Scenario 1 Mid Case - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $3,431,000 0.4% $3,442,000 $3,452,000 $2,888,000 0.3% $2,895,000 $2,903,000 0.3%

KS $88,459,000 9.6% $88,869,000 $89,294,000 $272,905,000 28.6% $274,838,000 $276,813,000 28.7%

MO $778,840,000 84.4% $783,919,000 $789,082,000 $633,767,000 66.4% $637,578,000 $641,449,000 66.4%

OK $52,259,400 5.7% $52,487,900 $52,714,600 $44,504,600 4.7% $44,671,900 $44,843,600 4.6%

Total $922,989,400 100.0% $928,717,900 $934,542,600 $954,064,600 100.0% $959,982,900 $966,008,600 100.0%

Scenario 1 High Case - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $3,431,000 0.4% $3,442,000 $3,452,000 $2,651,000 0.3% $2,658,000 $2,665,000 0.3%

KS $88,459,000 9.6% $88,869,000 $89,294,000 $330,654,000 34.7% $333,050,000 $335,494,000 34.7%

MO $778,840,000 84.4% $783,919,000 $789,082,000 $579,773,000 60.8% $583,143,000 $586,565,000 60.7%

OK $52,259,400 5.7% $52,487,900 $52,714,600 $40,986,600 4.3% $41,133,300 $41,287,700 4.3%

Total $922,989,400 100.0% $928,717,900 $934,542,600 $954,064,600 100.0% $959,984,300 $966,011,700 100.0%

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-16

Scenario 2

Scenario 2 incorporates scenario 1 and the following casino expansions:

Kansas

 1. Sac & Fox Casino in Powhattan, KS (March 2008)

Oklahoma

 1. Creek Nation Casino in Tulsa, OK (September 2008)

 2. Cherokee Casino Resort in Catoosa, OK (January 2009)

 3. Cherokee Casino West Siloam Springs in Watts, OK (July 2009)

 4. Kickapoo Casino in McLoud, OK (January 2009)

 5. Osage Million Dollar Elm in Ponca City, OK (January 2009)

Revenue Forecasts

Exhibit 2-16 shows total gaming revenue projections of $954 million for scenario 2 for the

2010 mid case.  Included were $197 flowing to Wyandotte County, $613 million going to

other casinos located within a 50-miles, and $144 million going to all other casinos located

in the northeast trade area.  Total gaming revenue projections for the mid-case are close to

the forecasts developed for scenario 1.  However, with the expansions listed above, gaming

revenues for Wyandotte County are expected to decrease from $198.4 million to $197.1 (a

$1.3 million decline) in 2010, and from $201.5 million to $200.2 million in 2012 (a $1.3

million decrease).

Exhibit 2-16 Revenues for Scenario 2

Includes Scenario 1 + the Expansions Listed Above

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Wyandotte County Proposed $0 $155,714,000 $158,159,000 $197,138,000 $200,247,000 $260,796,000 $264,885,000

Casinos w/in 50 miles $759,348,000 $647,663,000 $655,753,000 $613,087,000 $620,580,000 $560,453,000 $567,069,000

All Other Casinos $163,641,400 $150,686,600 $152,095,700 $143,836,700 $145,180,600 $132,812,900 $134,053,100

Total  Scenario 2 $922,989,400 $954,063,600 $966,007,700 $954,061,700 $966,007,600 $954,061,900 $966,007,100

Data Sources: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-17

Revenue Impacts

Exhibit 2-17 illustrates that the gaming revenue impacts triggered by the casino expansions

proposed in scenario 2 could result in the following revenue shifts when scenario 2 is

compared with scenario 1.  Shown are a loss of $1.2 million in 2010 for Wyandotte County,

and a loss of $2.9 million for casinos located within a 50-miles.  The all other casinos

category could expect an approximate gain of $4.1 million.

Exhibit 2-17 Includes the Revenue Impacts for Scenario 2

Scenario 2 Includes Scenario 1 + the Expansions

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Wyandotte County Proposed $0 -$1,006,000 -$1,016,000 -$1,231,000 -$1,244,000 -$1,532,000 -$1,548,000

Casinos w/in 50 miles $0 -$3,235,000 -$3,265,000 -$2,895,000 -$2,922,000 -$2,404,000 -$2,427,000

All Other Casinos $0 $4,245,900 $4,280,000 $4,123,100 $4,165,000 $3,933,300 $3,970,400

Total  Scenario 2 $0 $4,900 -$1,000 -$2,900 -$1,000 -$2,700 -$4,600

Data Sources: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-18

Revenue Flows

The addition of Wyandotte County (scenario 1), together with the expansions at the casinos

listed on page 2-16 (scenario 2), trigger the shifts in casino revenue flows that are shown in

Exhibit 2-18.  Out of the $438 million generated in Kansas in 2010 (refer to the first section

of Exhibit 2-18 captioned Scenario 2 Revenues Coming From), an estimated $273 million

would stay in Kansas in the 2010 mid case (refer to the third section of Exhibit 2-18

captioned Scenario 2 Mid Case - Revenues Going To).  With the addition of the casino in

Wyandotte County and the casino expansions included in scenario 2, the net loss would

decline from $326 million (2007) to $165 million (2010).

Given the scenario 2 assumptions, Missouri would continue to be the biggest recipient of the

gaming revenues generated in the northeast trade area.  The net difference between what

could be generated in Missouri and what could flow back to Missouri (scenario 2 mid case)

has been estimated at $120 million.

Exhibit 2-18 Flows of Gaming Revenue Funds for Scenario 2

Illustrates Where the Gaming Revenues Originated  & Where They Went

Scenario 2 Revenues Coming From

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

KS $414,186,842 44.9% $417,457,538 $420,805,847 $437,796,175 45.9% $441,390,943 $445,057,329 46.1%

MO $503,538,602 54.6% $506,015,208 $508,514,591 $511,064,763 53.6% $513,409,080 $515,786,564 53.4%

NE $5,264,895 0.6% $5,243,332 $5,222,491 $5,200,061 0.5% $5,183,145 $5,165,162 0.5%

Total $922,990,339 100.0% $928,716,078 $934,542,929 $954,060,999 100.0% $959,983,168 $966,009,055 100.0%

Scenario 2 Low Case - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $3,431,000 0.4% $3,395,000 $3,379,000 $2,974,000 0.3% $2,982,000 $2,991,000 0.3%

KS $88,459,000 9.6% $91,076,000 $90,919,000 $235,742,000 24.7% $237,364,000 $239,021,000 24.7%

MO $778,840,000 84.4% $781,122,000 $784,324,000 $665,741,000 69.8% $669,834,000 $673,996,000 69.8%

OK $52,259,400 5.7% $53,121,900 $55,920,800 $49,606,600 5.2% $49,805,100 $49,999,700 5.2%

Total $922,989,400 100.0% $928,714,900 $934,542,800 $954,063,600 100.0% $959,985,100 $966,007,700 100.0%

Scenario 2 Mid Case - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $3,431,000 0.4% $3,395,000 $3,379,000 $2,833,000 0.3% $2,841,000 $2,849,000 0.3%

KS $88,459,000 9.6% $91,076,000 $90,919,000 $273,277,000 28.6% $275,212,000 $277,186,000 28.7%

MO $778,840,000 84.4% $781,122,000 $784,324,000 $630,663,000 66.1% $634,460,000 $638,316,000 66.1%

OK $52,259,400 5.7% $53,121,900 $55,920,800 $47,288,700 5.0% $47,472,200 $47,656,600 4.9%

Total $922,989,400 100.0% $928,714,900 $934,542,800 $954,061,700 100.0% $959,985,200 $966,007,600 100.0%

Scenario 2 High Case - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $3,431,000 0.4% $3,395,000 $3,379,000 $2,604,000 0.3% $2,611,000 $2,618,000 0.3%

KS $88,459,000 9.6% $91,076,000 $90,919,000 $330,696,000 34.7% $333,089,000 $335,533,000 34.7%

MO $778,840,000 84.4% $781,122,000 $784,324,000 $577,184,000 60.5% $580,540,000 $583,951,000 60.4%

OK $52,259,400 5.7% $53,121,900 $55,920,800 $43,577,900 4.6% $43,743,600 $43,905,100 4.5%

Total $922,989,400 100.0% $928,714,900 $934,542,800 $954,061,900 100.0% $959,983,600 $966,007,100 100.0%

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-19

Scenario 3

Scenario 3 includes scenario 2, plus the other proposed casinos listed below:

Kansas

 1. Wyandotte 7th Street Casino in Kansas City, KS (January 2008)

 2. The Woodlands in Kansas City, KS (January 2009)

 3. Camptown Greyhound Park planned for in Frontenac, KS (January 2009)

 4. Cherokee County planned in Baxter Springs, KS (January 2010)

 5. Sumner County planned in Wellington, KS (January 2010)

Missouri

 1. Barden Development, Inc. planned in Branson, MO (targeted for 2010)

 2. Wild Rose Entertainment casino planned for Sugar Creek, MO (January 2010)

Oklahoma

 1. Downstream Casino Resort in Ottawa, OK (July 2008)

 2. First Council Casino in for Newkirk, OK (March 2008)

 3. Seneca-Cayuga Tribes of Oklahoma planned in Grove, OK (July 2008)

 4. Ioway Casino Resort in Lincoln, OK (January 2009)

 5. Muscogee Creek Nation planned in Eufaula, OK (planned for 2010)

 6. Pawnee Nation Planned in Chilocco, OK (targeted or 2010)

 7. Ponca Tribe Oklahoma planned in Ponca City, OK (proposed for 2010)

 8. Poteau Travel and Smoke Shop in Poteau, OK (planned for 2010)

 9. Shawnee Tribe Oklahoma planned in Oklahoma City, OK (targeted for 2010)

 10. Wichita & Affiliated Tribes planned in Hinton, OK (proposed for 2010)

 11. Wilburton Travel and Smoke Shop in Wilburton, OK (planned for 2010)



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-20

Revenue Forecasts

Exhibit 2-19 illustrates that the scenario 3 forecasts for total gaming revenues were $978

million for the 2010 mid case.   Allocations include $173 million for Wyandotte County,

$27.5 million for the Woodlands Race Track, $76.5 million for proposed casinos within a 50-

mile radius, $35.5 million for other proposed casinos, $539 for casinos located within 50

miles, and $127 million for all other casinos located within the northeast trade area.

Exhibit 2-19 Revenues for Scenario 3

Scenario 3 Includes Scenario 2 + the Other Proposed Casinos

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Wyandotte County Proposed $0 $134,597,000 $136,729,000 $173,005,000 $175,752,000 $233,277,000 $236,958,000

*The Woodlands $0 $30,067,000 $30,496,000 $27,472,000 $27,865,000 $23,834,000 $24,174,000

*Proposed Casinos w/in 50 miles $0 $80,019,000 $80,915,000 $76,456,000 $77,293,000 $70,814,000 $71,561,000

*Other Proposed Casinos $0 $36,530,700 $36,780,900 $35,441,200 $35,677,300 $33,648,300 $33,863,400

Casinos w/in 50 miles $759,348,000 $564,779,000 $571,879,000 $538,786,000 $545,431,000 $498,096,000 $504,051,000

All Other Casinos $163,641,400 $131,705,800 $132,964,100 $126,539,500 $127,740,700 $118,029,300 $119,150,300

Total  Scenario 3 $922,989,400 $977,698,500 $989,764,000 $977,699,700 $989,759,000 $977,698,600 $989,757,700

Data Sources: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.

Revenue Impacts

Exhibit 2-20 indicates that a large share of the gaming revenue impacts in the 2010 mid case

have been forecasted to go to proposed casinos located within 50 miles ($76.5 million), as

well as the other proposed casinos ($35.4 million).  The biggest losses are forecasted for

casinos within 50 miles ($74 million), and the Wyandotte County ($24 million).

Exhibit 2-20 Revenue Impacts of Scenario 3

Scenario 3 Includes Scenario 2 + Other Proposed Casinos

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Wyandotte County Proposed $0 -$21,117,000 -$21,430,000 -$24,133,000 -$24,495,000 -$27,519,000 -$27,927,000

*The Woodlands $0 $30,067,000 $30,496,000 $27,472,000 $27,865,000 $23,834,000 $24,174,000

*Proposed Casinos w/in 50 miles $0 $80,019,000 $80,915,000 $76,456,000 $77,293,000 $70,814,000 $71,561,000

*Other Proposed Casinos $0 $36,530,700 $36,780,900 $35,441,200 $35,677,300 $33,648,300 $33,863,400

Casinos w/in 50 miles $0 -$82,884,000 -$83,874,000 -$74,301,000 -$75,149,000 -$62,357,000 -$63,018,000

All Other Casinos $0 -$18,980,800 -$19,131,600 -$17,297,200 -$17,439,900 -$14,783,600 -$14,902,800

Total  Scenario 3 $0 $23,634,900 $23,756,300 $23,638,000 $23,751,400 $23,636,700 $23,750,600

Data Sources: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-21

Revenue Flows

Exhibit 2-21 illustrates the impact of the proposed casinos in Kansas, Missouri, and

Oklahoma listed under scenario 3.  Kansas would generate $450 million in gaming revenues

for 2010 in scenario 3 (refer to the first section of Exhibit 2-21 captioned Scenario 3

Revenues Coming From).  Of this amount, the mid case shows that $308 million would stay

in Kansas.  The net loss would be $142 million (refer to the third section of Exhibit 2-21

captioned Scenario 3 Mid Case - Revenues Going To). This compares with the net loss

sustained in 2007 of $326 million without the casino additions or expansions.

Given the scenario 3 assumptions, Missouri could generate $522 million in the 2010.  Of this

amount, $614 million should stay in Missouri for an estimated gain of $92 million in the

2010 mid case.

Exhibit 2-21 Flow of Gaming Revenue Funds for Scenario 3

 Illustrates Where the Gaming Revenues Originated & Where They Went

Scenario 3 Revenues Coming From

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

KS $414,186,842 44.9% $423,652,322 $443,800,724 $450,309,623 46.1% $453,908,437 $457,579,439 46.2%

MO $503,538,602 54.6% $507,231,917 $515,228,137 $522,188,007 53.4% $524,584,410 $527,014,529 53.2%

NE $5,264,895 0.6% $5,243,332 $5,222,491 $5,200,061 0.5% $5,183,145 $5,165,162 0.5%

Total $922,990,339 100.0% $936,127,571 $964,251,352 $977,697,691 100.0% $983,675,992 $989,759,130 100.0%

Scenario 3 Low Case - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $3,431,000 0.4% $3,288,000 $3,184,000 $2,592,000 0.3% $2,599,000 $2,606,000 0.3%

KS $88,459,000 9.6% $115,665,000 $169,575,000 $276,469,000 28.3% $278,278,000 $280,127,000 28.3%

MO $778,840,000 84.4% $755,543,000 $726,933,000 $642,410,000 65.7% $646,357,000 $650,365,000 65.7%

OK $52,259,400 5.7% $61,628,400 $64,557,700 $56,227,500 5.8% $56,445,200 $56,666,000 5.7%

Total $922,989,400 100.0% $936,124,400 $964,249,700 $977,698,500 100.0% $983,679,200 $989,764,000 100.0%

Scenario 3 Mid Case - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $3,431,000 0.4% $3,288,000 $3,184,000 $2,487,000 0.3% $2,493,000 $2,500,000 0.3%

KS $88,459,000 9.6% $115,665,000 $169,575,000 $307,684,000 31.5% $309,754,000 $311,871,000 31.5%

MO $778,840,000 84.4% $755,543,000 $726,933,000 $613,558,000 62.8% $617,256,000 $621,013,000 62.7%

OK $52,259,400 5.7% $61,628,400 $64,557,700 $53,970,700 5.5% $54,171,400 $54,375,000 5.5%

Total $922,989,400 100.0% $936,124,400 $964,249,700 $977,699,700 100.0% $983,674,400 $989,759,000 100.0%

Scenario 3 High Case - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $3,431,000 0.4% $3,288,000 $3,184,000 $2,312,000 0.2% $2,318,000 $2,324,000 0.2%

KS $88,459,000 9.6% $115,665,000 $169,575,000 $356,873,000 36.5% $359,345,000 $361,864,000 36.6%

MO $778,840,000 84.4% $755,543,000 $726,933,000 $568,240,000 58.1% $571,560,000 $574,933,000 58.1%

OK $52,259,400 5.7% $61,628,400 $64,557,700 $50,273,600 5.1% $50,455,200 $50,636,700 5.1%

Total $922,989,400 100.0% $936,124,400 $964,249,700 $977,698,600 100.0% $983,678,200 $989,757,700 100.0%

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-22

Scenario 3A

The data shown in Exhibit 2-22 for scenario 3A is the same as scenario 3, but without the

Wild Rose Entertainment Casino that is planned for Sugar Creek, Missouri.

Revenue Forecasts

Overall, the mid case revenue projections for scenario 3A for 2010 are $5 million lower than

in scenario 3 ($978 versus $973).  The biggest difference would be for proposed casinos

located within a 50-mile radius.  The scenario 3 total was $76.5 million.  In scenario 3A,

revenues for this group slip to $20 million reflecting, in part, the loss of the Wild Rose.

Exhibit 2-22 Revenues for Scenario 3A

 Scenario 3A Includes Scenario 3 w/o the Wild Rose Sugar Creek Casino

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Wyandotte County Proposed $0 $141,099,000 $143,341,000 $180,935,000 $183,813,000 $243,089,000 $246,923,000

*The Woodlands $0 $31,529,000 $31,980,000 $28,742,000 $29,155,000 $24,850,000 $25,205,000

*Proposed Casinos w/in 50 miles $0 $21,049,000 $21,265,000 $19,818,000 $20,014,000 $17,934,000 $18,102,000

*Other Proposed Casinos $0 $37,669,300 $37,928,500 $36,479,700 $36,725,900 $34,534,800 $34,758,900

Existing Casinos w/in 50 miles $759,348,000 $605,441,000 $612,987,000 $576,408,000 $583,448,000 $531,134,000 $537,416,000

All Other Existing Casinos $163,641,400 $136,522,300 $137,816,600 $130,925,500 $132,165,600 $121,762,300 $122,918,500

Total Scenario 3A $922,989,400 $973,309,600 $985,318,100 $973,308,200 $985,321,500 $973,304,100 $985,323,400

Data Sources: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.

Revenue Impacts

The gaming revenue impacts linked to scenario 3A show an overall net gain of $19 million

(refer to Exhibit 2-23).  The major gains are in the category captioned other proposed casinos

($36.5 million) and the Woodlands ($29 million).  The casinos located within 50 miles ($37

million) and Wyandotte County ($16 million) are the most likely to sustain the major losses.

Exhibit 2-23 Revenue Impacts for Scenario 3A

Scenario 3A Includes Scenario 3 w/o the Wild Rose Sugar Creek Casino

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Wyandotte County Proposed $0 -$14,615,000 -$14,818,000 -$16,203,000 -$16,434,000 -$17,707,000 -$17,962,000

*The Woodlands $0 $31,529,000 $31,980,000 $28,742,000 $29,155,000 $24,850,000 $25,205,000

*Proposed Casinos w/in 50 miles $0 $21,049,000 $21,265,000 $19,818,000 $20,014,000 $17,934,000 $18,102,000

*Other Proposed Casinos $0 $37,669,300 $37,928,500 $36,479,700 $36,725,900 $34,534,800 $34,758,900

Existing Casinos w/in 50 miles $0 -$42,222,000 -$42,766,000 -$36,679,000 -$37,132,000 -$29,319,000 -$29,653,000

All Other Existing Casinos $0 -$14,164,300 -$14,279,100 -$12,911,200 -$13,015,000 -$11,050,600 -$11,134,600

Total Scenario 3A $0 $19,246,000 $19,310,400 $19,246,500 $19,313,900 $19,242,200 $19,316,300

Data Sources: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-23

Revenue Flows

Exhibit 2-24 shows the gaming revenue flows for scenario 3A (excludes the Wild Rose).

Kansas has been projected to generate more than $450 million in gaming revenues in 2010

(refer to the first section of Exhibit 2-24 captioned Scenario 3A Revenues Coming From).

Approximately $320 would go to Kansas in the mid case, a net loss of $130 million (refer to

the third section of Exhibit 2-24 captioned Scenario 3A Mid Case - Revenues Going To).

Missouri has been forecasted to generate $518 million in gaming revenues in 2010.   In the

2010 mid case, $594 million has been projected to stay in Missouri (a net gain of $76

million).  This compares with scenario 3 (includes the Wild Rose), wherein Missouri

generated $522 million in gaming revenues and retained approximately $614 million (a net

gain of $92 million).

Exhibit 2-24 Flows of Gaming Revenue Funds for Scenario 3A

 Illustrates Where the Gaming Revenues Originated & Where They Went

Scenario 3A Revenues Coming From

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

KS $414,186,842 44.9% $423,652,322 $443,800,724 $450,309,623 46.3% $453,908,437 $457,579,439 46.4%

MO $503,538,602 54.6% $507,231,917 $515,228,137 $517,799,515 53.2% $520,172,606 $522,579,323 53.0%

NE $5,264,895 0.6% $5,243,332 $5,222,491 $5,200,061 0.5% $5,183,145 $5,165,162 0.5%

Total $922,990,339 100.0% $936,127,571 $964,251,352 $973,309,199 100.0% $979,264,188 $985,323,924 100.0%

Scenario 3A Low Case - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $3,431,000 0.4% $3,288,000 $3,184,000 $2,724,000 0.3% $2,731,000 $2,739,000 0.3%

KS $88,459,000 9.6% $115,665,000 $169,575,000 $288,238,000 29.6% $290,128,000 $292,063,000 29.6%

MO $778,840,000 84.4% $755,543,000 $726,933,000 $623,778,000 64.1% $627,608,000 $631,492,000 64.1%

OK $52,259,400 5.7% $61,628,400 $64,557,700 $58,569,600 6.0% $58,794,100 $59,024,100 6.0%

Total $922,989,400 100.0% $936,124,400 $964,249,700 $973,309,600 100.0% $979,261,100 $985,318,100 100.0%

Scenario 3A Mid Case - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $3,431,000 0.4% $3,288,000 $3,184,000 $2,607,000 0.3% $2,614,000 $2,621,000 0.3%

KS $88,459,000 9.6% $115,665,000 $169,575,000 $320,330,000 32.9% $322,491,000 $324,699,000 33.0%

MO $778,840,000 84.4% $755,543,000 $726,933,000 $594,273,000 61.1% $597,846,000 $601,475,000 61.0%

OK $52,259,400 5.7% $61,628,400 $64,557,700 $56,098,200 5.8% $56,308,700 $56,526,500 5.7%

Total $922,989,400 100.0% $936,124,400 $964,249,700 $973,308,200 100.0% $979,259,700 $985,321,500 100.0%

Scenario 3A High Case - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $3,431,000 0.4% $3,288,000 $3,184,000 $2,415,000 0.2% $2,421,000 $2,427,000 0.2%

KS $88,459,000 9.6% $115,665,000 $169,575,000 $370,617,000 38.1% $373,183,000 $375,801,000 38.1%

MO $778,840,000 84.4% $755,543,000 $726,933,000 $548,197,000 56.3% $551,389,000 $554,634,000 56.3%

OK $52,259,400 5.7% $61,628,400 $64,557,700 $52,075,100 5.4% $52,270,700 $52,461,400 5.3%

Total $922,989,400 100.0% $936,124,400 $964,249,700 $973,304,100 100.0% $979,263,700 $985,323,400 100.0%

Data Sources: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-24

Scenario 4

Scenario 4 was developed to evaluate the impact of the Woodlands Race Track on the

gaming revenue forecasts.

Scenario 4 includes the casinos currently in operation (same as in scenario 1), and the mid

case for the Woodlands Race Track.  The gaming capacity additions are limited to the

Woodlands Racetrack and include approximately 800 slot machines and a race book.  Other

amenities proposed for the Woodlands Race Track include four restaurants.

Revenue Forecasts

The total gaming revenues profiled in Exhibit 2-25 are within $3 million of scenario 1, $954

million for scenario 1 versus $951 million for scenario 4 with the Woodlands Race Track.

The allocation of projected gaming revenues would be approximately $47 million for the

category captioned the Woodlands, $741 million for casinos located within 50 miles, and

$162 million for all other casinos.

Exhibit 2-25 Revenues for Scenario 4

Scenario 4 Includes the Current Casinos + the Woodlands Race Track

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*The Woodlands $0 $25,878,000 $26,179,000 $47,329,000 $47,934,000 $66,491,000 $67,384,000

Casinos w/in 50 Miles $759,348,000 $759,991,000 $769,988,000 $741,444,000 $751,167,000 $724,998,000 $734,461,000

All Other Casinos $163,641,400 $164,709,400 $166,271,700 $161,806,700 $163,341,900 $159,091,300 $160,596,300

Total  Scenario 4 $922,989,400 $950,578,400 $962,438,700 $950,579,700 $962,442,900 $950,580,300 $962,441,300

Data Sources: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.

Revenue Impacts

Exhibit 2-26 illustrates the changes in gaming revenue allocations that may be expected

when the Woodlands Race Track is added to the current situation without any other casino

additions or expansions.

Exhibit 2-26 Revenue Impacts for Scenario 4

Scenario 4 Includes the Current Casinos + the Woodlands Race Track

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*The Woodlands $0 $25,878,000 $26,179,000 $47,329,000 $47,934,000 $66,491,000 $67,384,000

Casinos w/in 50 Miles $0 -$14,566,000 -$14,715,000 -$33,113,000 -$33,536,000 -$49,559,000 -$50,242,000

All Other Casinos $0 -$1,209,800 -$1,220,800 -$4,112,500 -$4,150,600 -$6,827,900 -$6,896,200

Total  Scenario 4 $0 $10,102,200 $10,243,200 $10,103,500 $10,247,400 $10,104,100 $10,245,800

Data Sources: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-25

Revenue Flows

Exhibit 2-27 shows the scenario 4 forecasts with the Woodlands Race Track.  The anticipated

shifts in casino revenue flows indicate that $434 million was projected to be generated in

Kansas in the 2010 (refer to the first section of Exhibit 2-27 captioned Scenario 4 Revenues

Coming From).   An estimated $135 million would stay in Kansas (refer to the third section

of Exhibit 2-27 captioned Scenario 4 Mid - Revenues Going To).  The net loss to Kansas

would be $299 million.

Given the scenario 4 assumptions, Missouri would generate $511 million in 2010.  In the

2010 mid case forecasts, $761 million in gaming revenue has been forecasted to stay in

Missouri, for a gain of $250 million.

Exhibit 2-27 Flows of Gaming Revenue Funds for Scenario 4

Illustrates Where the Gaming Revenues Originated & Where They Went

Scenario 4 Revenues Coming From

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2007 2011 2012 % 2012

KS $414,186,842 44.9% $417,457,538 $430,761,089 $434,246,063 47.0% $437,798,317 $441,421,637 45.9%

MO $503,538,602 54.6% $506,015,208 $508,591,673 $511,131,612 55.4% $513,476,830 $515,855,222 53.6%

NE $5,264,895 0.6% $5,243,332 $5,222,491 $5,200,061 0.6% $5,183,145 $5,165,162 0.5%

Total $922,990,339 100.0% $928,716,078 $944,575,253 $950,577,736 103.0% $956,458,292 $962,442,021 100.0%

Scenario 4 Low - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2007 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $3,431,000 0.4% $3,442,000 $3,415,000 $3,426,000 0.4% $3,436,000 $3,446,000 0.4%

KS $88,459,000 9.6% $88,869,000 $114,299,000 $114,886,000 12.4% $115,486,000 $116,105,000 12.1%

MO $778,840,000 84.4% $783,919,000 $774,438,000 $779,612,000 84.5% $784,662,000 $789,791,000 82.1%

OK $52,259,400 5.7% $52,487,900 $52,420,600 $52,654,400 5.7% $52,875,000 $53,096,700 5.5%

Total $922,989,400 100.0% $928,717,900 $944,572,600 $950,578,400 103.0% $956,459,000 $962,438,700 100.0%

Scenario 4 Mid - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2007 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $3,431,000 0.4% $3,442,000 $3,352,000 $3,362,000 0.4% $3,372,000 $3,382,000 0.4%

KS $88,459,000 9.6% $88,869,000 $133,912,000 $134,645,000 14.6% $135,388,000 $136,152,000 14.1%

MO $778,840,000 84.4% $783,919,000 $755,827,000 $760,863,000 82.4% $765,775,000 $770,766,000 80.1%

OK $52,259,400 5.7% $52,487,900 $51,488,200 $51,709,700 5.6% $51,923,200 $52,142,900 5.4%

Total $922,989,400 100.0% $928,717,900 $944,579,200 $950,579,700 103.0% $956,458,200 $962,442,900 100.0%

Scenario 4 - High Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2007 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $3,431,000 0.4% $3,442,000 $3,293,000 $3,303,000 0.4% $3,312,000 $3,322,000 0.3%

KS $88,459,000 9.6% $88,869,000 $151,355,000 $152,225,000 16.5% $153,104,000 $154,007,000 16.0%

MO $778,840,000 84.4% $783,919,000 $739,320,000 $744,224,000 80.6% $749,005,000 $753,864,000 78.3%

OK $52,259,400 5.7% $52,487,900 $50,603,600 $50,828,300 5.5% $51,037,800 $51,248,300 5.3%

Total $922,989,400 100.0% $928,717,900 $944,571,600 $950,580,300 103.0% $956,458,800 $962,441,300 100.0%

Data Sources: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-26

Scenario 5

Scenario 5 includes scenario 4 (the casinos currently in operation plus the Woodlands Race

Track), as well as the following casino expansions:

Kansas

 1. Sac & Fox Casino in Powhattan, KS (March 2008)

Oklahoma

 1. Creek Nation Casino in Tulsa, OK (September 2008)

 2. Cherokee Casino Resort in Catoosa, OK (January 2009)

 3. Cherokee Casino West Siloam Springs in Watts, OK (July 2009)

 4. Kickapoo Casino in McLoud, OK (January 2009)

 5. Osage Million Dollar Elm in Ponca City, OK (January 2009)

Revenue Forecasts

Exhibit 2-28 shows total gaming revenue estimates of $951 million for scenario 5  (2010 mid

case).  Of the total, approximately $47 million went to the Woodlands, $737 million to

casinos located within 50 miles, and $166 to all other casinos located in the northeast trade

area.

Exhibit 2-28 Revenues for Scenario 5

Includes Scenario 4 (Current Casinos + the Woodlands Race Track) & the Expansions

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*The Woodlands $0 $25,702,000 $26,000,000 $47,002,000 $47,603,000 $66,032,000 $66,919,000

Casinos w/in 50 Miles $759,348,000 $755,617,000 $765,569,000 $737,270,000 $746,950,000 $721,005,000 $730,424,000

All Other Casinos $163,641,400 $169,257,500 $170,872,700 $166,303,100 $167,889,300 $163,542,700 $165,096,800

Total  Scenario 5 $922,989,400 $950,578,400 $962,438,700 $950,579,700 $962,442,900 $950,579,700 $962,439,800

Data Sources: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-27

Revenue Impacts

The total revenue impacts show a negligible decrease of $4,600 in overall gaming revenues

for the 2010 mid case of the scenario 5 (refer to Exhibit 2-29).  The category referred to as all

other casinos is the only one showing a gain ($4.5 million).  Negative impacts have been

projected for the Woodlands ($327 thousand) and for casinos located within 50 miles ($4.2

million).

Exhibit 2-29 Revenue Impacts for Scenario 5

Includes Scenario 4 (Current Casinos + the Woodlands Race Track) & the Expansions

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*The Woodlands $0 -$176,000 -$179,000 -$327,000 -$331,000 -$459,000 -$465,000

Casinos w/in 50 Miles $0 -$4,374,000 -$4,419,000 -$4,174,000 -$4,217,000 -$3,993,000 -$4,037,000

All Other Casinos $0 $4,548,100 $4,601,000 $4,496,400 $4,547,400 $4,451,400 $4,500,500

Total  Scenario 5 $0 -$1,900 $3,000 -$4,600 -$600 -$600 -$1,500

Data Sources: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-28

Revenue Flows

Exhibit 2-30 shows 2010 gaming revenues of $951 million (refer to the first section of

Exhibit 2-30 captioned Scenario 5 Revenues Coming From).   These revenues have been

estimated to have been generated in Kansas ($434 million), Missouri ($511 million), and

Nebraska ($5 million).

The 2010 mid case allocations of the $951 million show Iowa ($3.3 million), Kansas ($136

million), Missouri ($756 million), and Oklahoma ($55 million).  Refer to the third section of

Exhibit 2-30 captioned Scenario 5 Mid - Revenues Going To.  The difference for Kansas

between the $434 million projected to be generated in 2010 and the $136 million expected to

be retained in Kansas (2010 mid case) is an outflow of $298 million.  Missouri, on the other

hand, has been estimated to produce $511 million in 2010 and enjoy inflows of $756 million

for a positive difference of $245 million in the 2010 mid case.  Inflows to Oklahoma from the

Tribal casino additions have been estimated at $55 million in the 2010 mid case.

Exhibit 2-30 Flow of Gaming Revenue Funds for Scenario 5

Illustrates Where the Gaming Revenues Originated & Were They Went

Scenario 5 Revenues Coming From

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2007 2011 2012 % 2012

KS $414,186,842 44.9% $417,457,538 $430,761,089 $434,246,063 47.0% $437,798,317 $441,421,637 45.9%

MO $503,538,602 54.6% $506,015,208 $508,591,673 $511,131,612 55.4% $513,476,830 $515,855,222 53.6%

NE $5,264,895 0.6% $5,243,332 $5,222,491 $5,200,061 0.6% $5,183,145 $5,165,162 0.5%

Total $922,990,339 100.0% $928,716,078 $944,575,253 $950,577,736 103.0% $956,458,292 $962,442,021 100.0%

Scenario 5 Low - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2007 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $3,431,000 0.4% $3,395,000 $3,343,000 $3,354,000 0.4% $3,363,000 $3,374,000 0.4%

KS $88,459,000 9.6% $91,076,000 $115,775,000 $116,369,000 12.6% $116,976,000 $117,602,000 12.2%

MO $778,840,000 84.4% $781,122,000 $769,827,000 $774,973,000 84.0% $779,999,000 $785,105,000 81.6%

OK $52,259,400 5.7% $53,121,900 $55,632,000 $55,880,500 6.1% $56,116,200 $56,360,700 5.9%

Total $922,989,400 100.0% $928,714,900 $944,577,000 $950,576,500 103.0% $956,454,200 $962,441,700 100.0%

Scenario 5 Mid - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2007 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $3,431,000 0.4% $3,395,000 $3,282,000 $3,292,000 0.4% $3,302,000 $3,312,000 0.3%

KS $88,459,000 9.6% $91,076,000 $135,230,000 $135,970,000 14.7% $136,718,000 $137,489,000 14.3%

MO $778,840,000 84.4% $781,122,000 $751,421,000 $756,430,000 82.0% $761,321,000 $766,288,000 79.6%

OK $52,259,400 5.7% $53,121,900 $54,639,500 $54,883,100 5.9% $55,117,600 $55,353,300 5.8%

Total $922,989,400 100.0% $928,714,900 $944,572,500 $950,575,100 103.0% $956,458,600 $962,442,300 100.0%

Scenario 5 High - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2007 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $3,431,000 0.4% $3,395,000 $3,225,000 $3,235,000 0.4% $3,244,000 $3,254,000 0.3%

KS $88,459,000 9.6% $91,076,000 $152,537,000 $153,411,000 16.6% $154,296,000 $155,204,000 16.1%

MO $778,840,000 84.4% $781,122,000 $735,096,000 $739,978,000 80.2% $744,738,000 $749,573,000 77.9%

OK $52,259,400 5.7% $53,121,900 $53,715,000 $53,955,700 5.8% $54,180,200 $54,408,800 5.7%

Total $922,989,400 100.0% $928,714,900 $944,573,000 $950,579,700 103.0% $956,458,200 $962,439,800 100.0%

Data Sources: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-29

Scenario 6

Results for scenario 6 are equal to scenario 5 plus the following other proposed casinos:

Kansas

 1. Camptown Greyhound Park in Frontenac, KS (January 2009)

 2. Cherokee County planned in Baxter Springs, KS (January 2010)

 3. Wyandotte 7th Street Casino in Kansas City, KS (January 2008)

 4. Wyandotte County planned in Kansas City, KS (January 2010)

 5. Sumner County planned in Wellington, KS (January 2010)

Missouri

 1. Barden Development, Inc. planned in Branson, MO

 2. Wild Rose Entertainment planned in Sugar Creek, MO (January 2010)

Oklahoma

 1. Downstream Casino Resort in Ottawa, OK (July 2008)

 2. First Council Casino in Newkirk, OK (March 2008)

 3. Iowa Casino Resort in Lincoln, OK

 4. Muscogee Creek Nation planned in Eufaula, OK

 5. Pawnee Nation planned in Chilocco, OK

 6. Ponca Tribe Oklahoma planned in Ponca City, OK

 7. Poteau Travel and Smoke Shop in Poteau, OK

 8. Seneca-Cayuga Tribes of Oklahoma planned in Grove, OK (July 2008)

 9. Shawnee Tribe Oklahoma planned in Oklahoma City, OK

 10. Wichita & Affiliated Tribes planned in Hinton, OK

 11. Wilburton Travel and Smoke Shop in Wilburton, OK



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-30

Revenue Projections

The following 2010 mid case gaming revenue estimates shown in Exhibit 2-31 for scenario 6

include a total of $978 million (incorporates scenario 5 and the proposed new casinos listed

on page 2-29).  Wells Gaming Research’s estimates show $27 million going to the

Woodlands, $173 million to Wyandotte County, $76.5 million to proposed casinos located

within 50 miles, $36 million to other proposed casinos, $539 million to casinos located

within 50 miles, and $127 million to all other casinos located within the northeast trade area.

Exhibit 2-31 Revenues for Scenario 6

Includes Scenario 5 + Other Proposed Casinos

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*The Woodlands $0 $14,102,000 $14,302,000 $27,472,000 $27,865,000 $40,214,000 $40,793,000

*Wyandotte County Planned $0 $177,067,000 $179,870,000 $173,005,000 $175,752,000 $169,223,000 $171,916,000

*Proposed Casinos w/in 50 Miles $0 $77,373,000 $78,223,000 $76,456,000 $77,293,000 $75,572,000 $76,396,000

*Other Proposed Casinos $0 $35,729,300 $35,965,500 $35,441,200 $35,677,300 $35,163,100 $35,396,200

 Existing Casinos w/i 50 Miles $759,348,000 $545,506,000 $552,259,000 $538,786,000 $545,431,000 $532,332,000 $538,872,000

All Other Existing Casinos $163,641,400 $127,922,300 $129,138,300 $126,539,500 $127,740,700 $125,196,000 $126,386,000

Total  Scenario 6 $922,989,400 $977,699,600 $989,757,800 $977,699,700 $989,759,000 $977,700,100 $989,759,200

Data Sources: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.

Revenue Impacts

The major revenue impacts illustrated in Exhibit 2-32 for the scenario 6 mid case for 2010

reflect a net impact of $27 million.  The projected impacts include a negative $19.5 million

for the Woodlands.  Other projected impacts include positive impacts for Wyandotte County

($173 million), proposed casinos located within 50 miles ($76.5 million), and other proposed

casinos ($35 million).   Losses have been forecasted for casinos located within 50 miles

($198.5 million) and for all other casinos ($40 million).

Exhibit 2-32 Revenue Impacts for Scenario 6

Includes Scenario 5 + Other Proposed Casinos

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*The Woodlands $0 -11,600,000 -11,698,000 -$19,530,000 -$19,738,000 -$25,818,000 -$26,126,000

*Wyandotte County Planned $0 177,067,000 179,870,000 $173,005,000 $175,752,000 $169,223,000 $171,916,000

*Proposed Casinos w/in 50 Miles $0 77,373,000 78,223,000 $76,456,000 $77,293,000 $75,572,000 $76,396,000

*Other Proposed Casinos $0 35,729,300 35,965,500 $35,441,200 $35,677,300 $35,163,100 $35,396,200

 Existing Casinos w/i 50 Miles $0 -210,111,000 -213,310,000 -$198,484,000 -$201,519,000 -$188,673,000 -$191,552,000

All Other Existing Casinos $0 -41,335,200 -41,734,400 -$39,763,600 -$40,148,600 -$38,346,700 -$38,710,800

Total  Scenario 6 $0 $27,123,100 $27,316,100 $27,124,600 $27,316,700 $27,120,400 $27,319,400

Data Sources: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-31

Flow of Revenues

Exhibit 2-33 shows that the $978 million in total gaming revenues would come from Kansas

($450 million), Missouri ($522 million), and Nebraska ($5.2 million) in scenario 6 the 2010

(refer to the first section of Exhibit 2-33 captioned Scenario 6 Revenues Coming From).  The

$978 million in gaming revenues forecasted to be generated in the 2010 scenario 6 mid case

has been allocated to Iowa ($2.5 million), Kansas ($308 million), Missouri ($614 million),

and Oklahoma ($54 million) in the 2010 mid case.  The net result for Kansas would be a loss

of $142 million.  The net loss for Kansas would be approximately $143 million (refer to the

third section of Exhibit 2-33 captioned Scenario 6 Mid - Revenues Going To).

Exhibit 2-33 Flows of Gaming Revenue Funds for Scenario 6

 Illustrates Where the Gaming Revenues Originated & Where They Went

Scenario 6 Revenues Coming From

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

KS $414,186,842 44.9% $423,652,322 $443,800,724 $450,309,623 46.1% $453,908,437 $457,579,439 46.2%

MO $503,538,602 54.6% $507,231,917 $515,228,137 $522,188,007 53.4% $524,584,410 $527,014,529 53.2%

NE $5,264,895 0.6% $5,243,332 $5,222,491 $5,200,061 0.5% $5,183,145 $5,165,162 0.5%

Total $922,990,339 100.0% $936,127,571 $964,251,352 $977,697,691 100.0% $983,675,992 $989,759,130 100.0%

Scenario 6 Low - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $3,431,000 0.4% $3,288,000 $3,241,000 $2,516,000 0.3% $2,522,000 $2,529,000 0.3%

KS $88,459,000 9.6% $115,665,000 $151,483,000 $299,591,000 30.6% $301,599,000 $303,651,000 30.7%

MO $778,840,000 84.4% $755,543,000 $743,857,000 $621,030,000 63.5% $624,787,000 $628,603,000 63.5%

OK $52,259,400 5.7% $61,628,400 $65,672,900 $54,562,600 5.6% $54,764,200 $54,974,800 5.6%

Total $922,989,400 100.0% $936,124,400 $964,253,900 $977,699,600 100.0% $983,672,200 $989,757,800 100.0%

Scenario 6 Mid - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $3,431,000 0.4% $3,288,000 $3,184,000 $2,487,000 0.3% $2,493,000 $2,500,000 0.3%

KS $88,459,000 9.6% $115,665,000 $169,575,000 $307,684,000 31.5% $309,754,000 $311,871,000 31.5%

MO $778,840,000 84.4% $755,543,000 $726,933,000 $613,558,000 62.8% $617,256,000 $621,013,000 62.7%

OK $52,259,400 5.7% $61,628,400 $64,557,700 $53,970,700 5.5% $54,171,400 $54,375,000 5.5%

Total $922,989,400 100.0% $936,124,400 $964,249,700 $977,699,700 100.0% $983,674,400 $989,759,000 100.0%

Scenario 6 High - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $3,431,000 0.4% $3,288,000 $3,131,000 $2,458,000 0.3% $2,465,000 $2,471,000 0.2%

KS $88,459,000 9.6% $115,665,000 $185,730,000 $315,469,000 32.3% $317,600,000 $319,775,000 32.3%

MO $778,840,000 84.4% $755,543,000 $711,872,000 $606,377,000 62.0% $610,019,000 $613,716,000 62.0%

OK $52,259,400 5.7% $61,628,400 $63,514,300 $53,396,100 5.5% $53,592,700 $53,797,200 5.4%

Total $922,989,400 100.0% $936,124,400 $964,247,300 $977,700,100 100.0% $983,676,700 $989,759,200 100.0%

Data Sources: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 2-32

Gaming Capacity with Casino Growth

A casino capacity recap showing the impact of the proposed casino expansions and the

additions of new casinos is listed in Exhibit 2-34.  The bottom line illustrates that slot

machines would increase by 58%, pit table games by 54%, poker tables by 21%, total tables

by 49%, race book by 200%, and casino square footage by 18%.  Other amenities including

convention/meeting space would go up by 124%, the number of hotel rooms by 89%, the

number of restaurants by 40%, entertainment venues by 53%, and parking capacity by 83%.

Exhibit 2-34 Capacity Listing w/ Casino Growth (Includes the 6 Scenarios)

# of 

Loc Casinos
# of         

Slots

# of             

Pit 

Tables

# of 

Poker 

Tables

# of 

Total 

Tables

# of 

Bingo 

Seats

Race 

Book 

Casino 

S.F.

Con-

vention 

S.F.

# of 

Rooms

# of 

Restau-

rants

Enter-    

tain-    

ment

Park-       

ing

Capacities for the Existing 18 Casinos 16,914 367 73 440 868 1 717,691 106,520 1,331 52 17 19,150

Scenario 1 - Wyandotte County Proposed 

1 Wyandotte County Proposed 3,000 100 0 100 0 0 0 100,000 500 6 5 7,000

Subtotal of Scenario 1 3,000 100 0 100 0 0 0 100,000 500 6 5 7,000

Scenario 2 - Expansions

1 Sac & Fox Casino 500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Subtotal of Scenario 2 500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Scenario 3 - Other Proposed

1 Camptown Greyhound Park 600 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2 0 700

2 Cherokee County Planned 1,200 40 0 0 0 0 0 10,000 250 3 2 2,500

3 Downstream Casino Resort 2,000 30 15 45 0 0 70,000 10,000 240 2 0 2,700

4 The Woodlands 800 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 4 0 700

5 Wild Rose Entertainment - Sugar Creek 1,200 30 0 30 0 0 40,000 12,000 200 3 2 2,200

6 Wyandotte 7th Street Casino 450 0 0 0 0 0 20,000 0 0 1 0 100

Subtotal of Scenario 3 6,250 100 15 75 0 2 130,000 32,000 690 15 4 8,900

Total Expansions & New Casinos 9,750 200 15 175 0 2 130,000 132,000 1,190 21 9 15,900

Total Existing, Expansions & New 26,664 567 88 615 868 3 847,691 238,520 2,521 73 26 35,050

Scenario 4 - The Woodlands

1 The Woodlands 800 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 4 0 700

Subtotal of Scenario 4 800 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 4 0 700

Scenario 5 - Expansions

1 Sac & Fox Casino 500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Subtotal of Scenario 5 500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Scenario 6 - Other Proposed

1 Camptown Greyhound Park 600 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2 0 700

2 Cherokee County Planned 1,200 40 0 0 0 0 0 10,000 250 3 2 2,500

3 Downstream Casino Resort 2,000 30 15 45 0 0 70,000 10,000 240 2 0 2,700

4 Wild Rose Entertainment - Sugar Creek 1,200 30 0 30 0 0 40,000 12,000 200 3 2 2,200

5 Wyandotte 7th Street Casino 450 0 0 0 0 0 20,000 0 0 1 0 100

6 Wyandotte County Proposed 3,000 100 0 100 0 0 0 100,000 500 6 5 7,000

Subtotal of Scenario 6 8,450 200 15 215 0 1 130,000 132,000 1,190 17 9 15,200

Total Expansions & New Casinos 9,750 200 15 215 0 2 130,000 132,000 1,190 21 9 15,900

16 Total Existing, Expansions & New 26,664 567 88 655 868 3 847,691 238,520 2,521 73 26 35,050

Percent Change Over Current 58% 54% 21% 49% 0% 200% 18% 124% 89% 40% 53% 83%

Data Sources: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

Wells Gaming Research

May 2008

Section 3



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-1

Summary for the Trade Area

For the Southeast Gaming Zone

Highlights of the gaming market for the southeast trade area follow (refer to pages 3-8

through 3-32 for the corresponding detailed analyses and discussions).

Trade Area

The southeast trade area includes the approximate 100-mile radius of the intersection of

Kansas, Missouri, and Oklahoma. Included are 65 counties located in southeast Kansas,

southwest Missouri, northeast Oklahoma, and northwest Arkansas.  The boundaries extend

from Miami County, Kansas on the north; to Sequoyah County, Oklahoma on the south; to

Osage County, Oklahoma on the west; and to Douglas County, Missouri on the east (refer to

the map on page 3-3).

Demographic Statistics

The population and median household income statistics that are included in this report are

limited to those counties within the gaming zone’s specific trade area, and not for the entire

state.

Exhibit 3-1 shows that the southeast trade area includes 65 counties (18 in Kansas, 24 in

Missouri, 15 in Oklahoma, and eight in Arkansas).  In 2007, these counties had a total adult

population of 2.1 million.  Median household incomes (MHI) for 2007 ranged from a low of

$42.5 thousand in Oklahoma to a high of $47.1 thousand in Arkansas.  Kansas came in at

$43.1 thousand.

Exhibit 3-1 Adult Population & Median Household Income (MHI)

2007 2007 2012 ACGR

State

# of             

Counties

 Adult      

Population MHI 2012 MHI

Adult 

Population          

07 to 12

MHI                            

07 to 12

KS 18 190,263 $43,094 189,538 $51,650 -0.1% 3.7%

MO 24 704,244 $42,508 746,615 $49,083 1.2% 2.9%

OK 15 797,857 $47,008 829,285 $54,558 0.8% 3.0%

AR 8 380,290 $47,140 432,831 $57,492 2.6% 4.1%

Totals 65 2,072,654 NA 2,198,269 NA 1.2% NA

Data Sources: Bureau of Business & Economic Research, UNR & Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.

The adult population forecast shows an increase from 2.1 million in 2007 to 2.2 million in

2012, an increase of approximately 124 thousand.  The resulting average compound growth

rate is 1.2%.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-2

The average median household income levels for 2012 are forecasted to range from a low of

$49.1 thousand in Missouri to a high of $57.5 thousand in Arkansas.  The corresponding

average compound growth rates range from a low of 2.9% in Missouri to a high of 4.1% in

Arkansas for the 2007 to 2012 period.  The average median household income for Kansas

was forecasted to average $51.7 thousand, reflecting a 3.7% average compound growth rate.



Copyright © and (P) 1988–2006 Microsoft Corporation and/or its suppliers. All rights reserved. http://www.microsoft.com/mappoint/
Portions © 1990–2005 InstallShield Software Corporation. All rights reserved. Certain mapping and direction data © 2005 NAVTEQ. All rights reserved. The Data for areas of Canada includes information taken with permission from Canadian authorities, 
including: © Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Canada, © Queen's Printer for Ontario. NAVTEQ and NAVTEQ ON BOARD are trademarks of NAVTEQ. © 2005 Tele Atlas North America, Inc. All rights reserved. Tele Atlas and Tele Atlas North America are 
trademarks of Tele Atlas, Inc.

Southeast Kansas Zone

0 mi 50 100 150



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-4

Primary Market

Exhibit 3-2 shows that the southeast trade area is made up of 65 counties.  The combined

adult population was 2.1 million in 2007.  Projections for 2012 show an increase to 2.2

million, with an average compound growth rate of 1.2%.

The primary segment of the southeast trade area is comprised of 11 counties that are

contiguous with the intersection of the states of Kansas, Missouri, and Oklahoma.  The adult

population in the primary market was approximately 255 thousand in 2007 (12% of the total

adult population of 2.1 million).  By 2012, the adult population for the primary market should

reach approximately 262 thousand and continue to represent 12% of the total adult

population of 2.2 million.  As a group, the 11 counties in the primary market are projected to

have an average compound growth rate of 0.5% between 2007 and 2012.

Exhibit 3-2 Adult Population for Primary Market

# of           
Counties List of Counties 2007 2012

ACGR            
07 to 12

% Pop/ 
Co 2012

Bourbon KS 10,509 10,472 -0.1% 4%

Cherokee KS 14,770 14,553 -0.3% 6%

Crawford KS 26,803 27,117 0.2% 10%

Labette KS 15,482 15,396 -0.1% 6%

Neosho KS 10,971 10,560 -0.8% 4%

Barton MO 8,972 9,285 0.7% 4%

Jasper MO 78,643 82,187 0.9% 31%

Newton MO 39,270 41,064 0.9% 16%

Vernon MO 14,058 14,260 0.3% 5%

Craig OK 11,622 12,213 1.0% 5%

Ottawa OK 23,768 24,399 0.5% 9%

11 Total Contiguous Counties 254,869 261,506 0.5% 100%

13

Total Kansas Counties - 
Excluding Contiguous 

Counties 111,728 111,440 -0.1%

20

Total Missouri Counties - 
Excluding Contiguous 

Counties 563,300 599,818 1.3%

13

Total Oklahoma Counties - 
Excluding Contiguous 

Counties 762,467 792,673 0.8%

8 Total Arkansas Counties 380,290 432,831 2.6%

65 Total Trade Area Population 2,072,654 2,198,269 1.2%

Data Sources: Bureau of Business & Economic Research, UNR & Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-5

Capacity Statistics & Gaming Competition

Following in Exhibit 3-3 is a profile of the casino capacity located within a 150-mile radius

of the southeast casino site.  The existing capacity includes 53 gaming locations equipped

with 30,846 slot machines, 591 table games (pit and poker) and 1.4 million square feet of

casino space.  Other amenities include 75 thousand square feet of convention space, 1,619

hotel rooms, 87 restaurants, 21 entertainment venues, and 35,573 parking spaces.

Exhibit 3-3 Capacity Statistics for 150-Mile Radius from Southeast Zone Casino

Existing Expansions New (Proposed) Casinos Total % Change

Capacity Casinos OK KA OK MO Capacity Above Existing

# of Loc 53 4 5 9 2 69
 1

30%

# of Slots 30,846 2,774 7,600 7,740 2,500 51,460 67%

# of Tables 591 44 190 169 71 1,065 80%

Casino S.F. 1,401,874 10,000 0 260,000 97,000 1,768,874 26%

Convention S.F. 74,620 20,000 140,000 30,000 12,000 276,620 271%

# of Rooms 1,619 140 1,025 865 200 3,849 138%

# of Restaurants 87 2 19 16 5 129 48%

Entertainment 21 1 10 5 2 39 86%

Parking 35,573 0 14,600 11,074 3,400 64,647 82%

Footnote 1. The four expansions in Oklahoma have not been added into the total number of locations.

Data Sources: Bureau of Business & Economic Research, UNR & Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.

The statistics show that the impact of casino growth within a 150-mile radius will result in a

significant escalation in player capacity.  Some key capacity changes include the number of

gaming locations, up from 53 to 69 (30%).  The slot inventory will surge from approximately

31 thousand to 51.5 thousand (67%).  The number of table games will increase from 591 to

1,065 (80%).  The supply of hotel rooms will go from 1,619 to 3,849 (138%), and the

number of restaurants will increase from 87 to 129 (48%).



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-6

Gaming Revenues

Exhibit 3-4 shows a summary of the revenue flows that correspond to the current status, as

well as with three of WGR’s scenarios developed to analyze the potential impacts of the

proposed new casinos and expansions on gaming revenues in the southeast trade area.  Shown

are the states indicating where the gaming revenues come from and where they go.   The

current status reflects a net loss of $60 million in gaming revenues that flowed out of Kansas

into neighboring states in 2007.

Scenarios 1 through 3 illustrate the gaming revenues that have been forecasted for 2012 based

on the assumptions set forth in each scenario. The key assumption of scenario 1 is the addition

of the Cherokee County Casino.  The gaming revenue shows that the Cherokee County Casino

has been projected to stem the flow of gaming revenues from Kansas and replace the $60

million loss experienced in 2007 with an $8 million gain.

Exhibit 3-4  Summary of the 2012 Flow of Gaming Revenues
(Dollars in Millions)

Current Status 2007 Scenario-1 2012 Scenario-2 2012 Scenario-3 2012

State
Coming 
From

Going           
To Dif

Coming 
From

Going           
To Dif

Coming 
From

Going           
To Dif

Coming 
From

Going           
To Dif

AR $172 $0 -$172 $196 $0 -$196 $196 $0 -$196 $207 $0 -$207

IA $0 $1 $1 $0 $1 $1 $0 $1 $1 $0 $1 $1

KA $72 $12 -$60 $73 $81 $8 $73 $77 $4 $80 $112 $31

MO $219 $96 -$122 $238 $96 -$141 $238 $92 -$146 $324 $142 -$182

OK $418 $771 $352 $435 $762 $328 $435 $771 $337 $435 $792 $357

Total $880 $880 $0 $941 $941 $0 $941 $941 $0 $1,046 $1,046 $0

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.

Scenario 2 includes the existing casinos, plus the new Cherokee County Casino discussed in

scenario 1 (refer to Exhibit 3-4).  In addition, scenario 2 includes six casino expansions: one

at the Sac & Fox Casino in Powhattan, Kansas, tentatively scheduled to open in March of

2008; and five expansions that are targeted to open at Oklahoma Tribal casinos between 2008

and 2009.  Included are the Creek Nation Casino in Tulsa, Cherokee Casino Resort in

Catoosa, Kickapoo Casino in McLoud, Osage Million Dollar Elm in Ponca City, and the

Cherokee Casino West Siloam Springs in Watts.  Combined, these casino expansions have

been forecasted to reduce the difference between the gaming revenues coming from Kansas

versus those going to Kansas by $4 million (down from $8 million in Scenario 1 to $4 in

Scenario 2).

Scenario 3 includes the casino additions and expansions included in both scenarios 1 and 2,

plus 18 new proposed casinos, including the Wyandotte County casino in Kansas City,

Kansas and the Sumner County casino south of Wichita.  The 18 other proposed casinos have

been assumed to be in operation between 2008 and 2010.  The gaming revenue estimates

developed in scenario 3, based on 2012 mid cases, show that the addition of the Sumner and



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-7

Wyandotte County casinos plus the other proposed casinos could increase the net flow of

gaming revenues into Kansas by approximately $31 million (an estimated $80 million would

come from Kansas while $112 million should stay in Kansas).

Oklahoma is projected to gain revenues in scenario 3 due to the large number of new casinos

under construction or planned.  Even though Oklahoma’s net gains of $328 million and $337

million in scenarios 1 and 2, respectively, would lag behind the 2007 level of $352 million,

the net would increase to $357 million in scenario 3 for a $5 million gain over 2007.

However, gaming revenues remaining in Oklahoma would increase by $21 million from

$771 in scenario 2 to $792 million in scenario 3.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-8

Detailed Analyses for the Trade Area

For the Southeast Gaming Zone

Population statistics were one of the key variables used in the gross gaming revenue

projections developed by WGR’s gravity model.  The population projections summarized in

Exhibit 3-5 show both the total and the adult statistics for the southeast gaming zone.

Exhibit 3-5 Total & Adult Population Statistics

2000 Total & Adult 2007 Total & Adult 2012 Total & Adult

ST

# of 

CO Total Adult

Adult as 

a % of 

Total

Adult % 

of Adult 

Total Total Adult

Adult as 

a % of 

Total

Adult % 

of Adult 

Total Total Adult

Adult as 

a % of 

Total

Adult % 

of Adult 

Total

KS 18 275,788 192,501 69.8% 10.1% 272,691 190,263 69.8% 9.2% 271,725 189,538 69.8% 8.6%

MO 24 909,201 639,536 70.3% 33.6% 1,001,878 704,244 70.3% 34.0% 1,062,383 746,615 70.3% 34.0%

OK 15 1,091,005 755,367 69.2% 39.7% 1,152,626 797,857 69.2% 38.5% 1,198,196 829,285 69.2% 37.7%

AR 8 455,687 315,597 69.3% 16.6% 549,285 380,290 69.2% 18.3% 625,250 432,831 69.2% 19.7%

TOT 65 2,731,681 1,903,001 69.7% 100.0% 2,976,480 2,072,654 69.6% 100.0% 3,157,554 2,198,269 69.6% 100.0%

Data Sources:  Bureau of Business & Economics, University of Nevada, Reno & Wells Gaming Research, May 2008

In 2007, the total population for the southeast trade area was approximately 3.0 million.  Of

this amount, 2.1 million (69.6%) were adults.  State-by-state the adult statistics show 190

thousand for Kansas (9.2% of the adult total), 704 thousand (34.0%) for Missouri, 798

thousand for Oklahoma (38.5%), and 380 thousand for Arkansas (18.3%).

By 2012, the total adult population for the southeast trade area has been forecasted to

increase to 2.2 million, approximately 300 thousand above the 2007 level.  The statistics

show a slight decline in adult population for Kansas, down from 190.3 thousand in 2007 to

189.5 thousand in 2012.   Adult population increases between 2007 and 2012 for the other

states located within the trade area include Missouri, up from 704 thousand to 736 thousand;

Oklahoma, up from 798 thousand to 829 thousand; and Arkansas, up from 380 thousand to

433 thousand.

Due to the age restrictions on casino gaming, only the adult population statistics were used in

developing the gross gaming revenue projections in WGR’s gravity model.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-9

Total Population for Surrounding Counties

Exhibit 3-6 shows that, as a group, the counties surrounding the southeast casino site had a

total population 367 thousand in 2007.  Projections for 2012 show an increase to

approximately 377 thousand. Jasper County, Missouri had the highest population (114

thousand in 2007, with projections for 119 thousand by 2012).  The average compound

growth rate for population within the surrounding counties is 0.5%.

The total population for the southeast trade area was approximately 3 million in 2007 with

forecasted increases to 3.2 million by 2012.  This reflects an average compound growth rate

of 1.2%.

Exhibit 3-6 Total Population Statistics

# of 

Co Counties 2000 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

ACGR            

07 to 12

% Pop/ 

Co 2012

Bourbon KS 15,379 15,234 15,222 15,211 15,201 15,189 15,180 15,169 -0.1% 4%

Cherokee KS 22,605 21,320 21,257 21,194 21,130 21,067 21,005 20,942 -0.3% 6%

Crawford KS 38,242 38,470 38,559 38,649 38,738 38,832 38,920 39,010 0.2% 10%

Labette KS 22,835 22,199 22,175 22,148 22,123 22,099 22,075 22,050 -0.1% 6%

Neosho KS 16,997 15,905 15,784 15,665 15,544 15,426 15,311 15,193 -0.8% 4%

Barton MO 12,541 13,015 13,107 13,199 13,291 13,385 13,474 13,564 0.7% 4%

Jasper MO 104,686 112,505 113,538 114,580 115,631 116,693 117,669 118,654 0.9% 32%

Newton MO 52,636 56,047 56,560 57,077 57,599 58,126 58,632 59,143 0.9% 16%

Vernon MO 20,454 20,455 20,515 20,576 20,636 20,697 20,754 20,810 0.3% 6%

Craig OK 14,950 15,856 16,016 16,176 16,338 16,500 16,665 16,832 1.0% 4%

Ottawa OK 33,194 34,177 34,356 34,537 34,719 34,900 35,084 35,267 0.5% 9%

11 Total Surrounding Counties 354,519 365,183 367,089 369,012 370,950 372,914 374,769 376,634 0.5% 100%

13

Total Kansas Counties - 

Excluding Surrounding 

Counties 159,730 159,794 159,694 159,601 159,519 159,458 159,403 159,361 0.0%

20

Total Missouri Counties - 

Excluding Surrounding 

Counties 718,884 787,633 798,158 808,872 819,769 830,864 840,466 850,212 1.3%

13

Total Oklahoma Counties - 

Excluding Surrounding 

Counties 1,042,861 1,093,736 1,102,254 1,110,848 1,119,538 1,128,298 1,137,161 1,146,097 0.8%

8 Total Arkansas Counties 455,687 535,413 549,285 563,576 578,307 593,478 609,126 625,250 2.6%

65 Total Trade Area Population 2,731,681 2,941,759 2,976,480 3,011,909 3,048,083 3,085,012 3,120,925 3,157,554 1.2%

Data Sources:  Bureau of Business & Economics, University of Nevada, Reno & Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-10

Adult Population for Surrounding Counties

Exhibit 3-7 shows that in 2007 the adult population was 255 thousand for the counties

surrounding the casino site.  Projections for 2012 indicate an increase to approximately 262

thousand.  Jasper County, Missouri, had the highest adult population for a nearby county (79

thousand in 2007 with projections for 82 thousand by 2012).  The average compound growth

rate for population within the surrounding counties as a group is 0.5%.

Overall, the adult population for the southeast trade area was approximately 2 million for

2007 with projections for 2.2 million by 2012.  The resulting average compound growth rate

is 1.2%.

Exhibit 3-7 Adult Population Statistics

# of 

Co Counties 2000 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

ACGR            

07 to 12

% Pop/ 

Co 2012

Bourbon KS 10,617 10,516 10,509 10,501 10,495 10,486 10,479 10,472 -0.1% 4%

Cherokee KS 15,708 14,815 14,770 14,729 14,683 14,640 14,595 14,553 -0.3% 6%

Crawford KS 26,583 26,741 26,803 26,868 26,927 26,993 27,054 27,117 0.2% 10%

Labette KS 15,943 15,497 15,482 15,464 15,445 15,430 15,413 15,396 -0.1% 6%

Neosho KS 11,814 11,055 10,971 10,887 10,804 10,722 10,643 10,560 -0.8% 4%

Barton MO 8,585 8,909 8,972 9,035 9,098 9,163 9,224 9,285 0.7% 4%

Jasper MO 72,512 77,928 78,643 79,365 80,093 80,829 81,505 82,187 0.9% 31%

Newton MO 36,546 38,914 39,270 39,629 39,992 40,358 40,709 41,064 0.9% 16%

Vernon MO 14,016 14,017 14,058 14,100 14,141 14,183 14,222 14,260 0.3% 5%

Craig OK 10,848 11,505 11,622 11,737 11,855 11,973 12,091 12,213 1.0% 5%

Ottawa OK 22,965 23,644 23,768 23,895 24,020 24,146 24,272 24,399 0.5% 9%

11 Total Surrounding Counties 246,137 253,541 254,869 256,211 257,553 258,922 260,206 261,506 0.5% 100%

13

Total Kansas Counties - 

Excluding Surrounding 

Counties 111,836 111,808 111,728 111,653 111,585 111,529 111,485 111,440 -0.1%

20

Total Missouri Counties - 

Excluding Surrounding 

Counties 507,877 555,911 563,300 570,821 578,470 586,258 592,988 599,818 1.3%

13

Total Oklahoma Counties - 

Excluding Surrounding 

Counties 721,554 756,598 762,467 768,379 774,374 780,394 786,508 792,673 0.8%

8 Total Arkansas Counties 315,597 370,689 380,290 390,175 400,370 410,853 421,680 432,831 2.6%

65 Total Trade Area Population 1,903,001 2,048,547 2,072,654 2,097,239 2,122,352 2,147,956 2,172,867 2,198,269 1.2%

Data Sources:  Bureau of Business & Economics, University of Nevada, Reno & Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-11

Average Median Household Income

Exhibit 3-8 shows the average median household income (AMHI) statistics for the southeast

trade area.  State-by-state, the 2007 statistics show $43 thousand for Kansas, $42.5 thousand

for Missouri, $47 thousand for Oklahoma, and $47 thousand for Arkansas.  Assuming an

average compound growth rate of 3.7% for Kansas, the average median household income

would increase to approximately $52 thousand by 2012.  The average median household

income for Missouri would increase to $49 thousand with an average compound growth rate

of 2.9%, Oklahoma would move up to $55 thousand with an average compound growth rate

of 3.0%, and Arkansas would go up to $57.5 thousand with an average compound growth

rate of 4.1%.

Exhibit 3-8 Average Median Household Income Statistics

# of 

Co State 2000 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

ACGR            

07 to 12

18 Kansas $33,525 $41,572 $43,094 $44,676 $46,319 $48,028 $49,804 $51,650 3.7%

24 Missouri $34,628 $41,304 $42,508 $43,748 $45,024 $46,338 $47,691 $49,083 2.9%

15 Oklahoma $38,298 $45,640 $47,008 $48,420 $49,880 $51,388 $52,947 $54,558 3.0%

8 Arkansas $35,686 $45,304 $47,140 $49,049 $51,036 $53,103 $55,254 $57,492 4.1%

Data Sources:  Bureau of Business & Economics, University of Nevada, Reno & Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-12

2007 Status Quo for the Southeast Trade Area

Status Quo Casino Revenues

Exhibit 3-9 shows that the status quo casino gaming revenues were $880 million ($199

million for the Oklahoma Tribal casinos located within 50 miles, and approximately $681

million for other casinos competing within the southeast trade area).  Without any casino

expansions or additions, gaming revenues could be expected to increase to an estimated $912

million by 2010 and to $934 million by 2012.

Exhibit 3-9 Status Quo (2007 to 2012) Revenues for the Southeast Trade Area

Revenue 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Ok Tribal Casinos w/I 50 Miles $199,094,000 $201,741,000 $204,446,000 $207,214,000 $209,938,000 $212,725,000

Other Casinos Competing Within 

Trade Area $681,208,000 $689,000,000 $696,962,000 $705,061,000 $713,103,000 $721,294,000

Grand Total $880,302,000 $890,741,000 $901,408,000 $912,275,000 $923,041,000 $934,019,000

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.

Status Quo for Visitors

The status quo casino visitor counts for 2007 were approximately 14 million (three million

within a 50 mile radius and approximately 11 million for other competing casinos).  Without

any casino expansions or additions, the gaming visitors counts have been projected to

increase to 14.4 million by 2012.

Exhibit 3-10 Status Quo Visitors (2007 to 2012) for the Southeast Trade Area

Visitors 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Ok Tribal Casinos w/I 50 Miles 2,896,293 2,934,676 2,973,877 3,014,050 3,053,784 3,094,416

Other Casinos Competing 

Within Trade Area 10,723,310 10,843,085 10,965,502 11,089,906 11,214,226 11,340,834

Total 13,619,603 13,777,761 13,939,379 14,103,956 14,268,010 14,435,250

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-13

Status Quo Gaming Revenue Flows

Exhibit 3-11, upper section, profiles where the $880 million in gaming revenues for 2007

was generated.  Included were $172 million for Arkansas, $72 million for Kansas, $219

million for Missouri, and $418 million for Oklahoma.

Of the $880 million total, an estimated $1.4 million went to Iowa,  $11.9 million to Kansas,

$96 million to Missouri, and $771 million to Oklahoma Tribal casinos (refer to the lower

section of Exhibit 3-11).

Exhibit 3-11 Status Quo (2007 to 2012) Revenue Flows for the Southeast Trade Area

Current Scenario Revenues Coming From

State 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

AR $171,607,994 $176,210,374 $180,958,899 $185,844,546 $190,891,448 $196,093,017

KS $71,888,705 $71,834,865 $71,779,428 $71,734,110 $71,691,363 $71,649,578

MO $218,630,803 $221,308,664 $224,026,905 $226,787,792 $229,230,335 $231,699,727

OK $418,175,692 $421,387,294 $424,642,871 $427,911,797 $431,229,530 $434,576,446

Total $880,303,194 $890,741,197 $901,408,103 $912,278,245 $923,042,676 $934,018,768

Current Scenario Revenues Going To

State 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

IA $1,427,000 $1,444,000 $1,461,000 $1,479,000 $1,496,000 $1,513,000

KS $11,943,000 $12,064,000 $12,187,000 $12,313,000 $12,431,000 $12,550,000

MO $96,292,000 $97,464,000 $98,656,000 $99,870,000 $100,977,000 $102,100,000

OK $770,640,000 $779,769,000 $789,104,000 $798,613,000 $808,137,000 $817,856,000

Total $880,302,000 $890,741,000 $901,408,000 $912,275,000 $923,041,000 $934,019,000

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.

Without any new casino development in Kansas, the current trends are likely to continue.

The status quo flow for casino revenue for 2012 shows what could be expected.  Of the $72

million in gaming revenues forecasted for the southeast Kansas trade area, only $12 million

would stay in Kansas, resulting in a $60 million net loss.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-14

Status Quo Casino Capacity

Exhibit 3-12 shows that 53 casinos are currently located within approximately 150 miles of

the southeast zone casino site.  Total gaming capacity includes 30,846 slots, 409 pit table

games, 182 poker tables, 3,180 bingo seats, 6 race books, and 1,401,874 square feet of casino

space.  Other amenities include 74,620 square feet of convention/meeting space, 1,619 hotel

rooms, 87 restaurants, 21 entertainment venues, and 35,573 parking spaces.

Exhibit 3-12 Status Quo (2007) Casino Capacity Statistics

# of        

Loc Casino
# of 

Slots

# of Pit 

Tables

# of 

Poker 

Tables

# of 

Total 

Tables

# of 

Bingo 

Seats

Race 

Book

Casino 

S.F.

Con-

vention 

S.F.

# of 

Rooms

# of 

Restau-

rants

Enter- 

tain- 

ment

Park-   

ing

Missouri:

1 Ameristar Casino Hotel - Kansas City 3,016 90 15 105 0 0 140,000 14,520 184 11 3 2,660

2 Argosy Riverside Casino Hotel & Spa 1,924 39 8 47 0 0 62,000 18,000 258 5 3 2,700

3 Harrah's North Kansas City Casino & Hotel 1,793 60 12 72 0 0 60,133 10,000 392 6 1 3,122

4 Isle of Capri Casino - Kansas City 1,525 26 6 32 0 0 40,000 0 0 5 1 1,618

Subtotal of Missouri 8,258 215 41 256 0 0 302,133 42,520 834 27 8 10,100

Oklahoma:

1 7 Clans Paradise Casino 700 8 6 14 0 0 30,000 0 0 2 0 500

2 Blue Ribbon Downs 250 0 0 0 0 1 7,150 2,000 0 1 1 1,640

3 Blue Star Gaming and Casino 228 0 0 0 300 0 20,000 0 0 1 0 500

4 Bordertown Bingo & Casino 886 11 10 21 650 1 73,000 0 0 2 0 400

5 Buffalo Run Casino 1,300 20 9 29 0 0 70,000 10,000 0 3 1 1,300

6 Catoosa Smoke Shop 75 0 0 0 0 0 1,728 0 0 0 0 42

7 Checotah Indian Community Bingo 158 0 0 0 400 0 9,000 0 0 1 0 250

8 Cherokee Casino - Fort Gibson 295 0 0 0 0 0 7,430 0 0 0 0 182

9 Cherokee Casino - Roland 614 6 6 12 0 0 34,375 0 44 1 0 594

10 Cherokee Casino - Sallisaw 251 4 2 6 0 0 27,500 0 0 1 1 250

11 Cherokee Casino - Tahlequah 405 6 3 9 0 0 20,000 0 0 1 0 433

12 Cherokee Casino - West Siloam Springs 1,014 12 12 24 0 0 50,000 0 0 2 1 1,174

13 Cherokee Casino - Will Rogers Downs 250 0 0 0 0 1 18,277 11,000 450 1 1 150

14 Cherokee Casino Resort 1,522 37 35 72 0 0 95,000 7,500 263 8 3 3,100

15 Choctaw Casino - Pocola 1,152 9 0 9 0 1 87,573 0 0 3 1 890

16 Cimarron Bingo Casino 363 0 0 0 0 1 9,600 0 0 1 0 400

17 Creek Nation Casino Eufaula 240 0 0 0 0 0 7,400 0 0 0 0 200

18 Creek Nation Casino Muscogee 584 7 10 17 300 0 30,000 0 0 1 1 800

19 Creek Nation Casino Okemah 132 0 3 3 110 0 1,800 0 0 0 0 200

20 Creek Nation Casino Okmulgee 334 2 3 5 0 0 11,000 0 0 1 0 600

21 Creek Nation Casino Tulsa 1,512 11 11 0 0 38,000 0 0 1 0 2,000

22 Creek Nation Travel Plaza 43 0 0 0 0 0 920 0 0 1 0 50

23 Duck Creek Casino 268 0 0 0 120 0 5,000 0 0 1 0 300

24 Eastern Shawnee Travel Plaza 186 0 0 0 0 0 3,000 0 0 0 0 150

25 Golden Pony Casino 400 0 0 0 0 0 10,000 0 0 1 0 500

26 Grand Lake Casino 879 10 6 16 0 0 45,000 0 0 1 1 1,000

27 High Winds Casino 500 8 0 8 0 0 35,000 0 0 2 0 450

28 Kaw Southwind Casino 1,078 3 4 7 700 0 55,000 0 0 2 0 1,000

29 Keetoowah Cherokee Casino 500 0 0 0 0 0 18,000 0 0 1 0 300

30 Lucky Turtle Casino 101 0 0 0 0 0 3,000 0 0 1 0 200

31 Miami Tribe Entertainment 107 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 75

32 Muscogee Travel Plaza 129 0 0 0 0 0 3,000 0 0 0 0 50

33 Native Lights Casino 612 6 0 6 0 0 22,500 0 0 2 0 405



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-15

Exhibit 3-12 Key Casino Capacity Statistics (Continued)

# of        

Loc Casino
# of 

Slots

# of Pit 

Tables

# of 

Poker 

Tables

# of 

Total 

Tables

# of 

Bingo 

Seats

Race 

Book

Casino 

S.F.

Con-

vention 

S.F.

# of 

Rooms

# of 

Restau-

rants

Enter- 

tain- 

ment

Park-   

ing

34 Osage Million Dollar Elm Casino - Bartlesville 575 6 6 12 0 0 42,000 0 0 0 0 700

35 Osage Million Dollar Elm Casino - Hominy 273 1 2 3 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 250

36 Osage Million Dollar Elm Casino - Pawhuska 135 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 50

37 Osage Million Dollar Elm Casino - Ponca City 222 0 0 0 0 0 7,700 0 0 0 0 150

38 Osage Million Dollar Elm Casino - Sand Springs 601 4 0 4 0 0 25,000 0 0 1 0 500

39 Osage Million Dollar Elm Casino - Skiatook 152 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 28 1 0 200

40 Osage Million Dollar Elm Casino - Tulsa 1,267 10 7 17 600 0 47,000 1,600 0 3 1 800

41 Pawnee Trading Post 130 0 0 0 0 0 3,500 0 0 2 0 250

42 Peoria Gaming Center 200 0 0 0 0 0 4,200 0 0 1 0 250

43 Pocola Travel and Smoke Shop 15 0 0 0 0 0 1,666 0 0 0 0 6

44 Quapaw Casino 483 8 1 9 0 0 27,000 0 0 1 1 700

45 Sac and Fox Casino - Stroud 49 0 0 0 0 0 825 0 0 0 0 34

46 The Stables Casino 500 4 0 4 0 1 25,000 0 0 2 0 260

47 Tonkawa Casino 374 4 0 4 0 0 14,437 0 0 1 0 400

48 West Siloam Springs Smoke Shop 44 0 0 0 0 0 2,160 0 0 0 0 88

49 Wyandotte Nation Casino 500 8 5 13 0 0 50,000 0 0 3 0 750

Total  Subtotal of Oklahoma 22,588 194 141 335 3,180 6 1,099,741 32,100 785 60 13 25,473

53 Total Existing Casinos 30,846 409 182 591 3,180 6 1,401,874 74,620 1,619 87 21 35,573

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-16

Scenario Results for the Southeast Casino Zone Trade Area

WGR developed six scenarios for the southeast trade area.  Summaries of the components of

the scenarios, together with the results of WGR’s research and analyses follow.

Scenario 1

Scenario 1 includes the existing casinos in the southeast trade area, together with the

proposed generic casino located in Cherokee County that is proposed to commence

operations in January of 2010.  As proposed, key gaming capacity assumptions for the

Cherokee County mid case scenario include 1,200 slot machines and 40 table games.  Other

amenities include 10,000 square feet of convention/meeting space, 250 hotel rooms, three

restaurants, and two entertainment venues (one small and one large). This scenario assumes

that no new casino competition in the form of expanded or new casinos will come online,

including the slot machines at Camptown Race Track.

Revenue Projections

The casino gaming revenue projections shown in Exhibit 3-13 include WGR’s low, mid, and

high case forecasts for 2010 and 2012.  The mid case projections show total gaming revenues

of $919.5 million in 2010 increasing to $941 million by 2012.  The Cherokee Casino Resort

has been estimated to attract $68 million in gaming revenues in the 2010 mid case, and

approximately $69.5 million in the 2012 mid case.  Low case estimates are in the $41 to $42

million range while high case estimates are in the $89 to $91 million range.

Exhibit 3-13 Scenario 1 Revenues

Scenario 1 Includes Existing Casinos + Other OK + Cherokee County Proposed for 2009

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Cherokee County (Proposed) $0 $41,117,000 $41,940,000 $67,962,000 $69,404,000 $89,316,000 $91,283,000

Oklahoma Tribal Casinos w/i 50 Miles $199,094,000 $186,017,000 $191,146,000 $172,159,000 $177,006,000 $162,019,000 $166,646,000

All Other Casinos $681,208,000 $692,335,000 $708,210,000 $679,348,000 $694,889,000 $668,135,000 $683,371,000

 Total Scenario 1 $880,302,000 $919,469,000 $941,296,000 $919,469,000 $941,299,000 $919,470,000 $941,300,000

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-17

Revenue Impacts

Exhibit 3-14 profiles the casino gaming revenue impacts anticipated from adding the

Cherokee to the southeast trade area. The category captioned Cherokee County Proposed

could generate $68 million in 2010 gaming revenues and $69.4 million in 2012.  The offset

would be felt by other Oklahoma casinos ($35 million in the 2010 mid case), and all other

existing casinos (approximately $26 million in 2010).  The net gain to the southeast trade

area has been estimated at $7.2 million.

Exhibit 3-14 Scenario 1 Revenue Impacts

Includes Existing Casinos + Other OK + Cherokee County Proposed for 2009

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Cherokee County (Proposed) $0 $41,117,000 $41,940,000 $67,962,000 $69,404,000 $89,316,000 $91,283,000

Oklahoma Tribal Casinos w/i 50 Miles $0 -$21,197,000 -$21,579,000 -$35,055,000 -$35,719,000 -$45,195,000 -$46,079,000

All Other Casinos $0 -$12,726,000 -$13,084,000 -$25,713,000 -$26,405,000 -$36,926,000 -$37,923,000

 Total Scenario 1 $0 $7,194,000 $7,277,000 $7,194,000 $7,280,000 $7,195,000 $7,281,000

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-18

Forecasted Flow Funds

The southeast trade area produced $880 million in gaming revenues in 2007 (refer to the first

section of Exhibit 3-15 captioned Scenario 1 Revenues Coming From).  Of this amount, an

estimated $72 million was generated in Kansas, while only $12 million stayed in Kansas.

This represents a loss of $60 million (refer to the third section of Exhibit 3-15 captioned

Scenario 1 Mid – Revenues Going To).  Oklahoma generated $418 million in 2007; however,

$771 million flowed back to Oklahoma for a net gain of $353 million.  WGR’s 2010 mid

case projections for scenario 1 show that the addition of Cherokee County could increase the

flow of gaming revenues for Kansas to $79 million, or $67 million over 2007.  Even though

Oklahoma’s gaming revenues would decrease from $789 million to $744.5 million (mid case

2009 versus 2010), Oklahoma would continue to be the big winner, generating $428 million

in 2010 with $744 million flowing to Oklahoma in the mid case, for a net gain $316 million.

Exhibit 3-15 Flows of Gaming Revenue Funds – Coming From & Going To

Scenario 1 Revenues Coming From

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

AR $171,607,994 19.5% $176,210,374 $180,958,899 $185,844,546 20.2% $190,891,448 $196,093,017 20.8%

KS $71,888,705 8.2% $71,834,865 $71,779,428 $72,877,762 7.9% $72,835,751 $72,794,759 7.7%

MO $218,630,803 24.8% $221,308,664 $224,026,905 $232,833,198 25.3% $235,320,506 $237,835,066 25.3%

OK $418,175,692 47.5% $421,387,294 $424,642,871 $427,911,797 46.5% $431,229,530 $434,576,446 46.2%

Total $880,303,194 100.0% $890,741,197 $901,408,103 $919,467,303 100.0% $930,277,235 $941,299,288 100.0%

Scenario 1 Low - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $1,427,000 0.2% $1,444,000 $1,461,000 $1,425,000 0.2% $1,441,000 $1,457,000 0.2%

KS $11,943,000 1.4% $12,064,000 $12,187,000 $53,003,000 5.8% $53,524,000 $54,055,000 5.7%

MO $96,292,000 10.9% $97,464,000 $98,656,000 $97,450,000 10.6% $98,533,000 $99,630,000 10.6%

OK $770,640,000 87.5% $779,769,000 $789,104,000 $767,591,000 83.5% $776,780,000 $786,154,000 83.5%

Total $880,302,000 100.0% $890,741,000 $901,408,000 $919,469,000 100.0% $930,278,000 $941,296,000 100.0%

Scenario 1 Mid - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $1,427,000 0.2% $1,444,000 $1,461,000 $1,358,000 0.1% $1,374,000 $1,389,000 0.1%

KS $11,943,000 1.4% $12,064,000 $12,187,000 $79,343,000 8.6% $80,165,000 $81,006,000 8.6%

MO $96,292,000 10.9% $97,464,000 $98,656,000 $94,290,000 10.3% $95,343,000 $96,412,000 10.2%

OK $770,640,000 87.5% $779,769,000 $789,104,000 $744,478,000 81.0% $753,398,000 $762,492,000 81.0%

Total $880,302,000 100.0% $890,741,000 $901,408,000 $919,469,000 100.0% $930,280,000 $941,299,000 100.0%

Scenario 1 High - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $1,427,000 0.2% $1,444,000 $1,461,000 $1,302,000 0.1% $1,316,000 $1,331,000 0.1%

KS $11,943,000 1.4% $12,064,000 $12,187,000 $100,270,000 10.9% $101,349,000 $102,450,000 10.9%

MO $96,292,000 10.9% $97,464,000 $98,656,000 $91,585,000 10.0% $92,614,000 $93,658,000 9.9%

OK $770,640,000 87.5% $779,769,000 $789,104,000 $726,313,000 79.0% $734,997,000 $743,861,000 79.0%

Total $880,302,000 100.0% $890,741,000 $901,408,000 $919,470,000 100.0% $930,276,000 $941,300,000 100.0%

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-19

Scenario 2

Scenario 2 includes scenario 1, and the proposed expansions at the following casinos located

in Kansas and Oklahoma (southeast trade area).  The projected start-up dates for the casino

expansions are also shown:

Kansas

 1. Sac & Fox Casino in Powhattan, KS (March 2008)

Oklahoma

 1. Creek Nation Casino in Tulsa, OK (September 2008)

 2. Cherokee Casino Resort in Catoosa, OK (January 2009)

 3. Kickapoo Casino in McLoud, OK (January 2009)

 4. Osage Million Dollar Elm in Ponca City, OK (January 2009)

 5. Cherokee Casino West Siloam Springs in Watts, OK (July 2009)

Revenue Projections

Exhibit 3-16 shows casino gaming revenue projections for WGR’s low, mid, and high case

forecasts for 2010 and 2012.  The mid case projections reflect total gaming revenues of

$919.5 million in 2010, increasing to $941.3 million by 2012.

Exhibit 3-16 Scenario 2 Revenues Include Scenario 1 + the Expansions

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Cherokee County Proposed $0 $38,832,000 $39,578,000 $64,069,000 $65,372,000 $84,107,000 $85,882,000

Oklahoma Tribal Casinos w/i 50 Miles $199,094,000 $170,250,000 $174,731,000 $157,697,000 $161,942,000 $148,585,000 $152,648,000

All Other Casinos $681,208,000 $710,381,000 $726,986,000 $697,699,000 $713,985,000 $686,775,000 $702,772,000

 Total Scenario 2 $880,302,000 $919,463,000 $941,295,000 $919,465,000 $941,299,000 $919,467,000 $941,302,000

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-20

Revenue Impacts

Overall, the casino gaming revenue impacts to Cherokee County caused by adding

expansions at the competing casinos listed on page 3-18 would be limited to a loss of

approximately $4 million in the Scenario 2 mid case.  The category captioned other existing

casinos would most likely pick up approximately $18 to $19 million between 2010 and 2012.

The majority of the estimated losses ($14 to $15 million in the mid-case for 2010 and 2012)

would be sustained by other Oklahoma casinos and by Oklahoma Tribal casinos

(approximately $4 million in both of the subject years).

Exhibit 3-17 Scenario 2 Revenue Impacts include Scenario 1 + Expansions

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Cherokee County Proposed $0 -$2,285,000 -$2,362,000 -$3,893,000 -$4,032,000 -$5,209,000 -$5,401,000

Oklahoma Tribal Casinos w/i 50 Miles $0 -$15,767,000 -$16,415,000 -$14,462,000 -$15,064,000 -$13,434,000 -$13,998,000

All Other Casinos $0 $18,046,000 $18,776,000 $18,351,000 $19,096,000 $18,640,000 $19,401,000

 Total Scenario 2 $0 -$6,000 -$1,000 -$4,000 $0 -$3,000 $2,000

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-21

Forecasted Flow Funds

Exhibit 3-18 shows WGR’s projections for the 2010 shifts in casino revenue flows.  The

results indicate that Kansas would generate $73 million (refer to the first section captioned

Scenario 2 Revenues Coming From).  However, $75 million could flow back to Kansas for a

net gain of approximately $2 million in the 2010 (refer to the third section of Exhibit 3-18

captioned Scenario 2 Mid - Revenues Going To).

Oklahoma would remain the big winner after the addition of Cherokee County.  Oklahoma is

estimated to generate $428 million, but receive $753 million in gaming revenues.

Exhibit 3-18 Flows of Gaming Revenue Funds for Scenario 2

Illustrates Where the Gaming Revenues Originated & Where They Went

Scenario 2 Revenues Coming From

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

AR $171,607,994 19.5% $176,210,374 $180,958,899 $185,844,546 20.2% $190,891,448 $196,093,017 20.8%

KS $71,888,705 8.2% $71,834,865 $71,779,428 $72,877,762 7.9% $72,835,751 $72,794,759 7.7%

MO $218,630,803 24.8% $221,308,664 $224,026,905 $232,833,198 25.3% $235,320,506 $237,835,066 25.3%

OK $418,175,692 47.5% $421,387,294 $424,642,871 $427,911,797 46.5% $431,229,530 $434,576,446 46.2%

Total $880,303,194 100.0% $890,741,197 $901,408,103 $919,467,303 100.0% $930,277,235 $941,299,288 100.0%

Scenario 2 Low - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $1,427,000 0.2% $1,417,000 $1,345,000 $1,315,000 0.1% $1,330,000 $1,344,000 0.1%

KS $11,943,000 1.4% $12,573,000 $12,028,000 $50,594,000 5.5% $51,072,000 $51,560,000 5.5%

MO $96,292,000 10.9% $96,200,000 $93,737,000 $92,812,000 10.1% $93,831,000 $94,864,000 10.1%

OK $770,640,000 87.5% $780,553,000 $794,296,000 $774,742,000 84.3% $784,040,000 $793,527,000 84.3%

Total $880,302,000 100.0% $890,743,000 $901,406,000 $919,463,000 100.0% $930,273,000 $941,295,000 100.0%

Scenario 2 Mid - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $1,427,000 0.2% $1,417,000 $1,345,000 $1,257,000 0.1% $1,271,000 $1,285,000 0.1%

KS $11,943,000 1.4% $12,573,000 $12,028,000 $75,358,000 8.2% $76,108,000 $76,872,000 8.2%

MO $96,292,000 10.9% $96,200,000 $93,737,000 $89,995,000 9.8% $90,990,000 $91,999,000 9.8%

OK $770,640,000 87.5% $780,553,000 $794,296,000 $752,855,000 81.9% $761,907,000 $771,143,000 81.9%

Total $880,302,000 100.0% $890,743,000 $901,406,000 $919,465,000 100.0% $930,276,000 $941,299,000 100.0%

Scenario 2 High - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $1,427,000 0.2% $1,417,000 $1,345,000 $1,207,000 0.1% $1,221,000 $1,234,000 0.1%

KS $11,943,000 1.4% $12,573,000 $12,028,000 $94,994,000 10.3% $95,975,000 $96,975,000 10.3%

MO $96,292,000 10.9% $96,200,000 $93,737,000 $87,578,000 9.5% $88,552,000 $89,540,000 9.5%

OK $770,640,000 87.5% $780,553,000 $794,296,000 $735,688,000 80.0% $744,531,000 $753,553,000 80.1%

Total $880,302,000 100.0% $890,743,000 $901,406,000 $919,467,000 100.0% $930,279,000 $941,302,000 100.0%

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-22

Scenario 3
Scenario 3 includes Scenario 2, as well as the 18 other proposed casinos listed below:

Kansas

 1. Camptown Greyhound Park in Frontenac, KS (Jan 2009)

 2. The Woodlands in Kansas City, KS (Jan 2009)

 3. Sumner County planned in Wellington, KS (Jan 2010)

 4. Wyandotte 7th Street Casino in Kansas City, KS (Jan 2008)

 5. Wyandotte County planned in Kansas City, KS (Jan 2010)

Missouri

 1. Barden Development, Inc. planned in Branson, MO

Oklahoma

 1. Downstream Casino Resort in Ottawa, OK (July 2008)

 2. First Council Casino in Newkirk, OK (March 2008)

 3. Seneca-Cayuga Tribes of Oklahoma planned in Grove, OK (July 2008)

 4. Ioway Casino Resort in Lincoln, OK (January 2009)

 5. Wild Rose Entertainment planned in Sugar Creek, MO (proposed for January

2010)

 6. Muscogee Creek Nation planned in Eufaula, OK (proposed for 2010)

 7. Pawnee Nation planned in Chilocco, OK (planned for 2010)

 8. Ponca Tribe Oklahoma planned in Ponca City, OK (planned for 2010)

 9. Poteau Travel and Smoke Shop in Poteau, OK (planned for 2010)

 10. Shawnee Tribe Oklahoma planned in Oklahoma City, OK (planned for 2010)

 11. Wichita & Affiliated Tribes planned in Hinton, OK (planned for 2010)

 12. Wilburton Travel and Smoke Shop in Wilburton, OK (planned for 2010)



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-23

Revenue Projections

WGR’s mid case casino gaming revenue projections for scenario 3 are profiled in Exhibit 3-

19.  Total gaming revenues for 2010 are forecasted at approximately $1.0 billion with minor

increases through 2012.

Exhibit 3-19 Scenario 3 Revenues Include Scenario 2 + Other Proposed Casinos

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Cherokee County Proposed $0 $26,031,000 $26,567,000 $46,957,000 $47,955,000 $64,926,000 $66,338,000

*Camptown Greyhound Park $0 $18,453,000 $18,655,000 $17,768,000 $17,962,000 $17,171,000 $17,358,000

*Proposed Casinos w/i 50 Miles $0 $79,488,000 $81,547,000 $74,230,000 $76,194,000 $70,208,000 $72,096,000

*All Other Proposed Casinos $0 $127,169,300 $130,418,700 $124,552,300 $127,740,700 $122,133,400 $125,265,800

Oklahoma Tribal Casinos w/i 50 Miles $199,094,000 $131,980,000 $135,525,000 $126,520,000 $129,951,000 $121,968,000 $125,299,000

All Other Casinos $681,208,000 $638,647,000 $653,158,000 $631,745,000 $646,062,000 $625,369,000 $639,505,000

 Total Scenario 3 $880,302,000 $1,021,768,300 $1,045,870,700 $1,021,772,300 $1,045,864,700 $1,021,775,400 $1,045,861,800

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.

Revenue Impacts

Scenario 3 incorporates the addition of the new casino in Cherokee County (scenario 1), the

casino expansions (scenario 2), and the 18 new casinos listed in scenario 3 that include slot

machines at the Camptown Race Track.  The result is a $102 million addition in gaming

revenue projections for the southeast trade area.  The $125 million in positive impacts

flowing to the category called all other proposed casinos is by far the most significant.  The

proposed new casinos have been estimated to reduce annual gaming revenues at Cherokee

County by amounts ranging from $13 million in the low case, to $17 million in the mid case,

and $19 million in the high case.

Exhibit 3-20 Scenario 3 Revenue Impacts Include Scenario 2 + Other Proposed Casinos

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Cherokee County Proposed $0 -$12,801,000 -$13,011,000 -$17,112,000 -$17,417,000 -$19,181,000 -$19,544,000

*Camptown Greyhound Park $0 $18,453,000 $18,655,000 $17,768,000 $17,962,000 $17,171,000 $17,358,000

*Proposed Casinos w/i 50 Miles $0 $79,488,000 $81,547,000 $74,230,000 $76,194,000 $70,208,000 $72,096,000

*All Other Proposed Casinos $0 $127,169,300 $130,418,700 $124,552,300 $127,740,700 $122,133,400 $125,265,800

Oklahoma Tribal Casinos w/i 50 Miles $0 -$38,270,000 -$39,206,000 -$31,177,000 -$31,991,000 -$26,617,000 -$27,349,000

All Other Casinos $0 -$71,734,000 -$73,828,000 -$65,954,000 -$67,923,000 -$61,406,000 -$63,267,000

 Total Scenario 3 $0 $102,305,300 $104,575,700 $102,307,300 $104,565,700 $102,308,400 $104,559,800

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-24

Forecasted Flow of Funds

Exhibit 3-21 shows that the mid case projections for Kansas include the generation of $80

million in gaming revenues for 2010 (refer to the first section captioned Scenario 3 Revenues

Coming From).  However, due to the expanded gaming activity, as much as $109.5 million

could flow back to Kansas (refer to the third section captioned Scenario 3 Mid - Revenues

Going To).  The result would be a net gain of approximately $29.5 million.  Nonetheless,

Oklahoma casinos would continue to be the big winner.  The Oklahoma portion of the trade

area has been projected to generate an estimated $428 million, while Oklahoma casinos

receive $773 million in revenues flowing back from the southeast trade area.

Exhibit 3-21 Flows of Gaming Revenue Funds for Scenario 3

Illustrate Where the Gaming Revenues Originated & Where They Went

Scenario 3 Revenues Coming From

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

AR $171,607,994 19.5% $176,210,374 $180,958,899 $196,942,472 19.3% $202,113,354 $207,439,752 19.8%

KS $71,888,705 8.2% $73,069,960 $79,814,361 $80,258,196 7.9% $80,208,273 $80,159,359 7.7%

MO $218,630,803 24.8% $226,164,686 $235,119,161 $316,601,315 31.0% $320,093,085 $323,627,194 30.9%

OK $418,175,692 47.5% $421,447,526 $424,703,647 $427,973,116 41.9% $431,291,392 $434,638,878 41.6%

Total $880,303,194 100.0% $896,892,546 $920,596,068 $1,021,775,099 100.0% $1,033,706,104 $1,045,865,183 100.0%

Scenario 3 Low - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $1,427,000 0.2% $1,221,000 $1,149,000 $1,129,000 0.1% $1,141,000 $1,154,000 0.1%

KS $11,943,000 1.4% $13,207,000 $36,838,000 $90,207,000 8.8% $91,026,000 $91,860,000 8.8%

MO $96,292,000 10.9% $86,540,000 $83,026,000 $140,856,000 13.8% $142,640,000 $144,450,000 13.8%

OK $770,640,000 87.5% $795,926,000 $799,585,000 $789,576,300 77.3% $798,897,000 $808,406,700 77.3%

Total $880,302,000 100.0% $896,894,000 $920,598,000 $1,021,768,300 100.0% $1,033,704,000 $1,045,870,700 100.0%

Scenario 3 Mid - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $1,427,000 0.2% $1,221,000 $1,149,000 $1,098,000 0.1% $1,110,000 $1,123,000 0.1%

KS $11,943,000 1.4% $13,207,000 $36,838,000 $109,471,000 10.7% $110,507,000 $111,560,000 10.7%

MO $96,292,000 10.9% $86,540,000 $83,026,000 $138,047,000 13.5% $139,796,000 $141,578,000 13.5%

OK $770,640,000 87.5% $795,926,000 $799,585,000 $773,156,300 75.7% $782,294,000 $791,603,700 75.7%

Total $880,302,000 100.0% $896,894,000 $920,598,000 $1,021,772,300 100.0% $1,033,707,000 $1,045,864,700 100.0%

Scenario 3 - High Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $1,427,000 0.2% $1,221,000 $1,149,000 $1,071,000 0.1% $1,082,000 $1,094,000 0.1%

KS $11,943,000 1.4% $13,207,000 $36,838,000 $125,949,000 12.3% $127,179,000 $128,429,000 12.3%

MO $96,292,000 10.9% $86,540,000 $83,026,000 $135,441,000 13.3% $137,167,000 $138,917,000 13.3%

OK $770,640,000 87.5% $795,926,000 $799,585,000 $759,314,400 74.3% $768,276,100 $777,421,800 74.3%

Total $880,302,000 100.0% $896,894,000 $920,598,000 $1,021,775,400 100.0% $1,033,704,100 $1,045,861,800 100.0%

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-25

Scenario 4 – Camptown Greyhound Park

Scenario 4 includes the current casinos competing within the southeast trade area, together

with the mid case projections for Camptown Greyhound Park.  Added gaming capacities

include 600 slot machines and a race book.  Other assumed customer amenities include two

restaurants.  With the exception of the Camptown Greyhound Park, scenario 4 does not

include any new or expanded competition.

Revenue Projections

The addition of Camptown Greyhound Park has been projected to generate approximately

$24 million in gaming revenues in the mid case.  Overall gaming revenues have been

projected to increase from $880 million (2007 total) to $928 million in 2010, and to $950

million by 2012.

Exhibit 3-22 Scenario 4 Revenues Include Existing Casinos + Camptown Greyhound Park

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Camptown Greyhound Park $0 $16,200,000 $16,364,000 $24,611,000 $24,901,000 $31,753,000 $32,160,000

Oklahoma Tribal Casinos w/i 50 Miles $199,094,000 $204,284,000 $209,753,000 $200,456,000 $205,869,000 $197,302,000 $202,669,000

All Other Casinos $681,208,000 $707,544,000 $723,752,000 $702,966,000 $719,100,000 $698,976,000 $715,040,000

Total  Scenario 4 $880,302,000 $928,028,000 $949,869,000 $928,033,000 $949,870,000 $928,031,000 $949,869,000

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.

Revenue Impacts

In the 2010 mid-case, the addition of Camptown Greyhound Park has been estimated to add

approximately $16 million to the overall southeast trade area.   An estimated $25 million

would flow to Camptown Greyhound Park.  Market losses would be sustained by Oklahoma

Tribal casinos located within 50 miles and all other casinos located in the market.

Exhibit 3-23 Scenario 4 Revenue Impacts

 Include the Existing Casinos + Camptown Greyhound Park

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Camptown Greyhound Park $0 $16,200,000 $16,364,000 $24,611,000 $24,901,000 $31,753,000 $32,160,000

Oklahoma Tribal Casinos w/i 50 Miles $0 -$2,930,000 -$2,972,000 -$6,758,000 -$6,856,000 -$9,912,000 -$10,056,000

All Other Casinos $0 $2,483,000 $2,458,000 -$2,095,000 -$2,194,000 -$6,085,000 -$6,254,000

Total  Scenario 4 $0 $15,753,000 $15,850,000 $15,758,000 $15,851,000 $15,756,000 $15,850,000

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-26

Forecasted Flow Funds

Exhibit 3-24 illustrates potential revenue flows for scenario 4.  The statistics show that

Kansas could produce $79 million in gaming revenues (refer to the first section captioned

Scenario 4 Revenues Coming From).  However, gaming revenue flowing back to Kansas

would be limited to approximately $37 million in 2010 (refer to the third section of Exhibit

3-24 captioned Scenario 4 Mid - Revenues Going To).  Revenue flows with Camptown

Greyhound Park being the only addition to the market would remain relatively proportional

for the other states between 2007 and 2010.

Exhibit 3-24 Flows of Gaming Revenue Funds for Scenario 4

Illustrate Where the Gaming Revenues Originated & Where They Went

Scenario 4 Revenues Coming From

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2010

AR $171,607,994 19.5% $176,210,374 $180,958,899 $185,844,546 20.0% $190,891,448 $196,093,017 20.6%

KS $71,888,705 8.2% $71,834,865 $78,858,604 $78,803,487 8.5% $78,750,400 $78,698,535 8.3%

MO $218,630,803 24.8% $221,308,664 $232,640,653 $235,468,603 25.4% $237,970,967 $240,500,783 25.3%

OK $418,175,692 47.5% $421,387,294 $424,642,871 $427,911,797 46.1% $431,229,530 $434,576,446 45.8%

Total $880,303,194 100.0% $890,741,197 $917,101,027 $928,028,433 100.0% $938,842,345 $949,868,781 100.0%

Scenario 4 Low - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2010

IA $1,427,000 0.2% $1,444,000 $1,494,000 $1,512,000 0.2% $1,529,000 $1,546,000 0.2%

KS $11,943,000 1.4% $12,064,000 $28,623,000 $28,835,000 3.1% $29,034,000 $29,237,000 3.1%

MO $96,292,000 10.9% $97,464,000 $101,036,000 $102,258,000 11.0% $103,368,000 $104,498,000 11.0%

OK $770,640,000 87.5% $779,769,000 $785,951,000 $795,423,000 85.7% $804,908,000 $814,588,000 85.8%

Total $880,302,000 100.0% $890,741,000 $917,104,000 $928,028,000 100.0% $938,839,000 $949,869,000 100.0%

Scenario 4 Mid - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2010

IA $1,427,000 0.2% $1,444,000 $1,466,000 $1,484,000 0.2% $1,501,000 $1,518,000 0.2%

KS $11,943,000 1.4% $12,064,000 $36,723,000 $37,002,000 4.0% $37,263,000 $37,527,000 4.0%

MO $96,292,000 10.9% $97,464,000 $99,475,000 $100,687,000 10.8% $101,787,000 $102,910,000 10.8%

OK $770,640,000 87.5% $779,769,000 $779,433,000 $788,860,000 85.0% $798,286,000 $807,915,000 85.1%

Total $880,302,000 100.0% $890,741,000 $917,097,000 $928,033,000 100.0% $938,837,000 $949,870,000 100.0%

Scenario 4 - High Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2010

IA $1,427,000 0.2% $1,444,000 $1,442,000 $1,460,000 0.2% $1,476,000 $1,493,000 0.2%

KS $11,943,000 1.4% $12,064,000 $43,597,000 $43,936,000 4.7% $44,254,000 $44,578,000 4.7%

MO $96,292,000 10.9% $97,464,000 $98,127,000 $99,330,000 10.7% $100,424,000 $101,536,000 10.7%

OK $770,640,000 87.5% $779,769,000 $773,929,000 $783,305,000 84.4% $792,687,000 $802,262,000 84.5%

Total $880,302,000 100.0% $890,741,000 $917,095,000 $928,031,000 100.0% $938,841,000 $949,869,000 100.0%

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-27

Scenario 5 – Camptown + Expansions

Scenario 5 includes the scenario 4 plus expansions at the following casinos:

Kansas

 1. Sac & Fox Casino in Powhattan, KS (Mar 2008)

Oklahoma

 1. Cherokee Casino Resort in Catoosa, OK (January 2009)

 2. Kickapoo Casino in McLoud, OK (January 2009)

 3. Osage Million Dollar Elm in Ponca City, OK (January 2009)

 4. Cherokee Casino West Siloam Springs in Watts, OK (July 2009)

 5. Creek Nation Casino in Tulsa, OK (September 2008)

Revenue Projections

Exhibit 3-25 profiles gaming revenue projections for scenario 5.  Included is scenario 4 plus

the casino expansions listed above.  WGR’s mid case forecasts show that total gaming

revenues for the southeast trade area are projected at $928 million and $950 million in 2010

and 2012, respectively.  This compares with an estimated $880 million in 2007.

Exhibit 3-25 Scenario 5 Gaming Revenues Include Scenario 4 + the Expansions

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Camptown Greyhound Park $0 $15,585,000 $15,736,000 $23,576,000 $23,841,000 $30,331,000 $30,701,000

Oklahoma Tribal Casinos w/i 50 Miles $199,094,000 $187,005,000 $191,778,000 $183,534,000 $188,263,000 $180,693,000 $185,382,000

All Other Casinos $681,208,000 $725,441,000 $742,353,000 $720,919,000 $737,765,000 $717,004,000 $733,787,000

Total  Scenario 5 $880,302,000 $928,031,000 $949,867,000 $928,029,000 $949,869,000 $928,028,000 $949,870,000

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.

Revenue Impacts

Exhibit 2-26 illustrates that the scenario 5 mid case for 2010 results in a minor negative

change of $4 thousand.  Camptown Greyhound Park shows a loss of $1 million, while

Oklahoma Tribal casinos located within 50 miles reflect projected losses of $17 million.  All

other casinos have been forecasted to pick up approximately $18 million in gaming revenues.

Exhibit 3-26 Scenario 5 Gaming Revenues Include Scenario 4 + the Expansions

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Camptown Greyhound Park $0 -$615,000 -$628,000 -$1,035,000 -$1,060,000 -$1,422,000 -$1,459,000

Oklahoma Tribal Casinos w/i 50 Miles $0 -$17,279,000 -$17,975,000 -$16,922,000 -$17,606,000 -$16,609,000 -$17,287,000

All Other Casinos $0 $17,897,000 $18,601,000 $17,953,000 $18,665,000 $18,028,000 $18,747,000

Total  Scenario 5 $0 $3,000 -$2,000 -$4,000 -$1,000 -$3,000 $1,000

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-28

Forecasted Flow of Funds

Exhibit 3-27 summarizes the gaming revenue flows for scenario 5.  The data shows that

Kansas could produce $79 million in gaming revenues (refer to the first section captioned

Scenario 5 Revenues Coming From).  However, only $36 million is likely to flow back to

Kansas (refer to the third section captioned Scenario 5 Mid - Revenues Going To).  Even

though the forecasted losses to Kansas are substantial, the Scenario 5 results do represent an

estimated improvement of approximately $24 million over 2007.  In general, revenue flows

for scenario 5 remain relatively proportional for the other states between 2007 and 2010.

Exhibit 3-27 Flow of Gaming Revenue Funds for Scenario 5

Illustrates Where the Gaming Revenues Originated  & Where They Went

Scenario 5 Revenues Coming From

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2010

AR $171,607,994 19.5% $176,210,374 $180,958,899 $185,844,546 20.0% $190,891,448 $196,093,017 21.1%

KS $71,888,705 8.2% $71,834,865 $78,858,604 $78,803,487 8.5% $78,750,400 $78,698,535 8.5%

MO $218,630,803 24.8% $221,308,664 $232,640,653 $235,468,603 25.4% $237,970,967 $240,500,783 25.9%

OK $418,175,692 47.5% $421,387,294 $424,642,871 $427,911,797 46.1% $431,229,530 $434,576,446 46.8%

Total $880,303,194 100.0% $890,741,197 $917,101,027 $928,028,433 100.0% $938,842,345 $949,868,781 102.4%

Scenario 5 Low - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2010

IA $1,427,000 0.2% $1,417,000 $1,378,000 $1,395,000 0.2% $1,410,000 $1,425,000 0.2%

KS $11,943,000 1.4% $12,573,000 $27,874,000 $28,076,000 3.0% $28,263,000 $28,454,000 3.1%

MO $96,292,000 10.9% $96,200,000 $96,091,000 $97,241,000 10.5% $98,287,000 $99,347,000 10.7%

OK $770,640,000 87.5% $780,553,000 $791,759,000 $801,319,000 86.3% $810,881,000 $820,641,000 88.4%

Total $880,302,000 100.0% $890,743,000 $917,102,000 $928,031,000 100.0% $938,841,000 $949,867,000 102.4%

Scenario 5 Mid - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2010

IA $1,427,000 0.2% $1,417,000 $1,353,000 $1,369,000 0.1% $1,384,000 $1,399,000 0.2%

KS $11,943,000 1.4% $12,573,000 $35,572,000 $35,832,000 3.9% $36,076,000 $36,322,000 3.9%

MO $96,292,000 10.9% $96,200,000 $94,671,000 $95,813,000 10.3% $96,850,000 $97,902,000 10.5%

OK $770,640,000 87.5% $780,553,000 $785,505,000 $795,015,000 85.7% $804,531,000 $814,246,000 87.7%

Total $880,302,000 100.0% $890,743,000 $917,101,000 $928,029,000 100.0% $938,841,000 $949,869,000 102.4%

Scenario 5 - High Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2010

IA $1,427,000 0.2% $1,417,000 $1,331,000 $1,347,000 0.1% $1,362,000 $1,377,000 0.1%

KS $11,943,000 1.4% $12,573,000 $42,072,000 $42,389,000 4.6% $42,682,000 $42,981,000 4.6%

MO $96,292,000 10.9% $96,200,000 $93,447,000 $94,579,000 10.2% $95,609,000 $96,654,000 10.4%

OK $770,640,000 87.5% $780,553,000 $780,249,000 $789,713,000 85.1% $799,187,000 $808,858,000 87.2%

Total $880,302,000 100.0% $890,743,000 $917,099,000 $928,028,000 100.0% $938,840,000 $949,870,000 102.4%

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-29

Scenario 6 – Camptown + Expansions + New Casinos

Scenario 6 includes scenario 3 and scenario 5, as well as the following other proposed

casinos:

Kansas

 1. The Woodlands in Kansas City, KS (January 2009)

 2. Cherokee County Planned in Baxter Springs, KS (January 2010)

 3. Sumner County Planned in Wellington, KS (January 2010)

Missouri

 1. Barden Development, Inc. planned in Branson, MO (planned for 2010)

Oklahoma

 1. Downstream Casino Resort in Ottawa, OK (July 2008)

 2. First Council Casino in Newkirk, OK (March 2008)

 3. Ioway Casino Resort in Lincoln, OK (planned for 2910)

 4. Muscogee Creek Nation planned in Eufaula, OK (planned for 2010)

 5. Pawnee Nation Planned in Chilocco, OK (planned for 2010)

 6. Ponca Tribe Oklahoma planned in Ponca City, OK (planned for 2010)

 7. Poteau Travel and Smoke Shop in Poteau, OK (planned or 2010)

 8. Seneca-Cayuga Tribes of Oklahoma planned in Grove, OK (July 2008)

 9. Shawnee Tribe Oklahoma planned in Oklahoma City, OK

 10. Wichita & Affiliated Tribes planned in Hinton, OK

 11. Wilburton Travel and Smoke Shop in Wilburton, OK

 12. Wild Rose Entertainment planned in Sugar Creek, MO (January 2010)

 13. Wyandotte 7th Street Casino in Kansas City, KS (January 2008)

 14. Wyandotte County planned in Kansas City, KS (January 2010)



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-30

Revenue Projections

Exhibit 3-28 profiles the gaming revenue projections for scenario 6.  The 2010 and 2012 mid

case projections show overall gaming revenue estimates of over $1.0 billion.  This represents

an increase of approximately $120 million over the 2007 level of $880 million.

Exhibit 3-28 Scenario 6 Revenues Include Scenario 5 + the Other Proposed

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Camptown Greyhound Park $0 $11,626,000 $11,736,000 $17,768,000 $17,962,000 $22,917,000 $23,190,000

*Cherokee County Proposed $0 $47,701,000 $48,706,000 $46,957,000 $47,955,000 $46,380,000 $47,371,000

*Proposed Casinos w/i 50 Miles $0 $75,156,000 $77,131,000 $74,230,000 $76,194,000 $73,493,000 $75,446,000

*All Other Proposed Casinos $0 $125,461,600 $128,664,000 $124,552,300 $127,740,700 $123,740,100 $126,915,400

Oklahoma Tribal Casinos w/i 50 Miles $199,094,000 $127,902,000 $131,349,000 $126,520,000 $129,951,000 $125,418,000 $128,833,000

All Other Casinos $681,208,000 $633,930,000 $648,278,000 $631,745,000 $646,062,000 $629,830,000 $644,109,000

Total  Scenario 6 $880,302,000 $1,021,776,600 $1,045,864,000 $1,021,772,300 $1,045,864,700 $1,021,778,100 $1,045,864,400

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.

Revenue Impacts

Exhibit 3-29 shows the casino gaming revenue impacts anticipated with the casino additions

included in scenario 6.  Of the $1.0 billion in total gross gaming revenues projected for 2010,

the major distributions would go to the categories captioned all other proposed casinos

($124.6 million) and proposed casinos located within 50 miles ($74 million).  Losses of $5.8

million to $5.9 million have been estimated for Camptown Greyhound Park for 2010 and

2012 in the mid case.

Exhibit 3-29 Scenario 6 Revenue Impacts Include Scenario 5 + Other Proposed

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Camptown Greyhound Park $0 -$3,959,000 -$4,000,000 -$5,808,000 -$5,879,000 -$7,414,000 -$7,511,000

*Cherokee County Proposed $0 $47,701,000 $48,706,000 $46,957,000 $47,955,000 $46,380,000 $47,371,000

*Proposed Casinos w/i 50 Miles $0 $75,156,000 $77,131,000 $74,230,000 $76,194,000 $73,493,000 $75,446,000

*All Other Proposed Casinos $0 $125,461,600 $128,664,000 $124,552,300 $127,740,700 $123,740,100 $126,915,400

Oklahoma Tribal Casinos w/i 50 Miles $0 -$59,103,000 -$60,429,000 -$57,014,000 -$58,312,000 -$55,275,000 -$56,549,000

All Other Casinos $0 -$91,511,000 -$94,075,000 -$89,174,000 -$91,703,000 -$87,174,000 -$89,678,000

Total  Scenario 6 $0 $93,745,600 $95,997,000 $93,743,300 $95,995,700 $93,750,100 $95,994,400

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-31

Forecasted Flow Funds

Exhibit 3-30 profiles the flow of gaming revenues for scenario 6.  Projections for 2010 show

that Kansas could produce $80 million in gaming revenues (refer to the first section

captioned Scenario 6 Revenues Coming From).  An estimated $109.5 million could flow

backs in the 2010 mid case for a gain of approximately $30 million (refer to the third section

captioned Scenario 6 Mid - Revenues Going To).  The $109.5 million in flow backs would be

approximately $98 million higher than the 2007 level of $12 million.  Oklahoma has been

projected to generate $428 million in gaming revenues with flow backs of $773 million, a

positive difference of $345 million.  Missouri has been forecasted to generate an estimated

$317 million in 2010 gaming revenues with flow backs limited to $138 million.

Exhibit 3-30 Flows of Gaming Revenue Funds for Scenario 6

Illustrates Where the Gaming Revenues Originated & Where They Went

Scenario 6 Revenues Coming From

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2010

AR $171,607,994 19.5% $176,210,374 $180,958,899 $196,942,472 19.3% $202,113,354 $207,439,752 20.3%

KS $71,888,705 8.2% $73,069,960 $79,814,361 $80,258,196 7.9% $80,208,273 $80,159,359 7.8%

MO $218,630,803 24.8% $226,164,686 $235,119,161 $316,601,315 31.0% $320,093,085 $323,627,194 31.7%

OK $418,175,692 47.5% $421,447,526 $424,703,647 $427,973,116 41.9% $431,291,392 $434,638,878 42.5%

Total $880,303,194 100.0% $896,892,546 $920,596,068 $1,021,775,099 100.0% $1,033,706,104 $1,045,865,183 102.4%

Scenario 6 Low - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2010

IA $1,427,000 0.2% $1,221,000 $1,167,000 $1,111,000 0.1% $1,123,000 $1,135,000 0.1%

KS $11,943,000 1.4% $13,207,000 $30,417,000 $104,531,000 10.2% $105,530,000 $106,547,000 10.4%

MO $96,292,000 10.9% $86,540,000 $84,020,000 $139,091,000 13.6% $140,850,000 $142,638,000 14.0%

OK $770,640,000 87.5% $795,926,000 $804,996,000 $777,043,600 76.0% $786,200,300 $795,544,000 77.9%

Total $880,302,000 100.0% $896,894,000 $920,600,000 $1,021,776,600 100.0% $1,033,703,300 $1,045,864,000 102.4%

Scenario 6 Mid - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2010

IA $1,427,000 0.2% $1,221,000 $1,149,000 $1,098,000 0.1% $1,110,000 $1,123,000 0.1%

KS $11,943,000 1.4% $13,207,000 $36,838,000 $109,471,000 10.7% $110,507,000 $111,560,000 10.9%

MO $96,292,000 10.9% $86,540,000 $83,026,000 $138,047,000 13.5% $139,796,000 $141,578,000 13.9%

OK $770,640,000 87.5% $795,926,000 $799,585,000 $773,156,300 75.7% $782,294,000 $791,603,700 77.5%

Total $880,302,000 100.0% $896,894,000 $920,598,000 $1,021,772,300 100.0% $1,033,707,000 $1,045,864,700 102.4%

Scenario 6 High - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2010

IA $1,427,000 0.2% $1,221,000 $1,135,000 $1,088,000 0.1% $1,100,000 $1,112,000 0.1%

KS $11,943,000 1.4% $13,207,000 $42,200,000 $113,650,000 11.1% $114,719,000 $115,806,000 11.3%

MO $96,292,000 10.9% $86,540,000 $82,158,000 $137,108,000 13.4% $138,852,000 $140,624,000 13.8%

OK $770,640,000 87.5% $795,926,000 $795,100,000 $769,932,100 75.4% $779,035,700 $788,322,400 77.2%

Total $880,302,000 100.0% $896,894,000 $920,593,000 $1,021,778,100 100.0% $1,033,706,700 $1,045,864,400 102.4%

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 3-32

Gaming Capacity with Casino Growth in the Southeast Trade Area

Exhibit 3-31 recaps the current capacity and shows the impacts of adding new casinos and

casino expansions.  For ease of reference, the data has been categorized by state.

Exhibit 3-31 Casino Capacity Statistics with Growth

# of        

Loc Casino
# of 

Slots

# of Pit 

Tables

# of 

Poker 

Tables

# of 

Total 

Tables

# of 

Bingo 

Seats

Race 

Book

Casino 

S.F.

Con-

vention 

S.F.

# of 

Rooms

# of 

Restau-

rants

Enter- 

tain- 

ment

Park-   

ing

 Current Capacity for Existing Casinos  Current Capacity for Existing Casinos

Existing 53 Casinos 30,846 409 182 591 3,180 6 1,401,874 74,620 1,619 87 21 35,573

Casino Expansions in Oklahoma Casino Expansions in Oklahoma

1 Cherokee Casino- West Siloam Springs 486 10 0 10 0 0 10,000 20,000 140 1 1 0

2 Cherokee Nation Casino - Tulsa 1,788 34 0 34 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3 Osage Million Dollar Elm - Ponca City 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0

4 Sac & Fox Casino 500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Expansions 2,774 44 0 44 0 0 10,000 20,000 140 2 1 0

Kansas Proposed Casinos Missouri Proposed Casinos

1 Camptown Greyhound Park 600 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2 0 700

2 Cherokee County Planned 1,200 40 0 40 0 0 10,000 250 3 2 2,500

3 Sumner County Planned 2,000 50 0 50 0 0 0 30,000 275 4 3 3,700

4 The Woodlands 800 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 4 0 700

5 Wyandotte County Planned 3,000 100 0 100 0 0 100,000 500 6 5 7,000

Total Kansas Proposed Casinos 7,600 190 0 190 0 2 0 140,000 1,025 19 10 14,600

Oklahoma Proposed Casinos

1 Downstream Casino Resort 2,000 30 15 45 0 0 70,000 10,000 240 2 0 2,700

2 First Council Casino 900 8 8 16 0 0 40,000 0 0 2 1 950

3 Ioway Casino Resort 1,500 50 0 50 0 0 0 0 250 3 2 2,500

4 Muscogee Creek Nation 400 6 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 400

5 Pawnee Nation Chilocco 1,200 24 0 24 0 0 0 0 150 3 1 1,500

6 Ponca Tribe Oklahoma Planned 500 10 0 10 0 0 50,000 20,000 100 2 0 1,200

7 Poteau Travel & Smoke Shop 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12

8 Seneca-Cayuga Tribes of Oklahoma 1,200 18 0 18 0 0 100,000 0 125 3 1 1,800

9 Wilburton Travel & Smoke Shop 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12

Total Oklahoma Proposed Casinos 7,740 146 23 169 0 0 260,000 30,000 865 16 5 11,074

Missouri Proposed Casinos

1 Barden Development 1,300 41 0 41 0 0 57,000 0 0 2 0 1,200

2 Wild Rose Entertainment - Sugar Creek 1,200 30 0 30 0 0 40,000 12,000 200 3 2 2,200

Total Missouri Proposed Casinos 2,500 71 0 71 0 0 97,000 12,000 200 5 2 3,400

Grand Total 51,460 860 205 1,065 3,180 8 1,768,874 276,620 3,849 129 39 64,647

Percent Increase Over Current 67% 110% 13% 80% 0% 33% 26% 271% 138% 48% 86% 82%

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, April 2008.

The bottom line of Exhibit 3-31 shows that slot machines would increase by 67%, pit table

games by 110%, poker tables by 13%, number of total tables by 80%, race books by 33%,

casino square footage by 26%, convention/meeting space by 271%, the number of hotel

rooms by 138%, the number of restaurants by 48%, entertainment venues by 86%, and

parking capacity by 82%.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

Wells Gaming Research

May 2008

Section 4



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 4-1

Summary of the Trade Area

for the South Central Gaming Zone

Highlights of the market for the south central trade area follow (refer to pages 4-6 though 4-

22 for the corresponding detailed analyses and discussions).

Trade Area

The south central trade area covers portions of Kansas and Oklahoma located within the

approximate 100-mile radius surrounding Wellington, Kansas.  The boundaries extend to

Saline and Dickinson Counties, Kansas on the North; Logan and Lincoln Counties,

Oklahoma on the South; Kiowa and Comanche Counties, Kansas on the West; and Labette

County, Kansas on the East (refer to the map on page 4-2).

Demographic Statistics

The population and median household income statistics included in this report section are

limited to those counties located in the south central trade area and do not include the entire

states of Kansas and Oklahoma.

Exhibit 4-1 shows that the south central trade area includes 53 counties (34 in Kansas and 19

in Oklahoma).  In 2007, these counties had a total adult population of approximately 1.5

million.  The corresponding median Household Income (MHI) was approximately $50

thousand in Kansas and $47 thousand in Oklahoma.

Exhibit 4-1 Adult Population & Median Household Income (MHI)

2007 2007 2012 ACGR

State

# of 

Counties

Adult 

Population MHI

Adult 

Population MHI

Adult 

Population           

07 to 12

MHI                               

07 to 12

KS 34 729,120 $50,429 737,115 $58,998 0.22% 3.2%

OK 19 820,137 $47,237 847,642 $54,561 0.66% 2.9%

Total 53 1,549,257 N/A 1,584,757 N/A 0.45% N/A

Data Sources:  Bureau of Business & Economics Research, UNR Reno & Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.

The adult population forecasts include a minor increase of approximately 35 thousand

between 2007 and 2012, up from 1.5 million to 1.6 million.  The corresponding average

compound growth rate for the adult population would be 0.45% between 2007 and 2012.

The median household income levels for 2012 have been forecasted at approximately $59

thousand for Kansas and $55 thousand for Oklahoma.  This reflects average compound

growth rates between 2007 and 2012 of 3.2% for Kansas and 2.9% for Oklahoma.



Copyright © and (P) 1988–2006 Microsoft Corporation and/or its suppliers. All rights reserved. http://www.microsoft.com/mappoint/
Portions © 1990–2005 InstallShield Software Corporation. All rights reserved. Certain mapping and direction data © 2005 NAVTEQ. All rights reserved. The Data for areas of Canada includes information taken with permission from Canadian authorities, 
including: © Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Canada, © Queen's Printer for Ontario. NAVTEQ and NAVTEQ ON BOARD are trademarks of NAVTEQ. © 2005 Tele Atlas North America, Inc. All rights reserved. Tele Atlas and Tele Atlas North America are 
trademarks of Tele Atlas, Inc.

South Central Kansas Zone

0 mi 50 100 150



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 4-3

Primary Market

The primary market for the south central trade area of Kansas is made up of 10 counties

surrounding the proposed casino site in Sumner County.  Exhibit 4-2 shows adult population

of approximately 500 thousand for the primary market in 2007.   The 10 counties combined

have been projected to have an average compound growth rate of 0.5% between 2007 and

2012.  One-third of the south central zone trade area adult population lives within these ten

counties and within 50 miles or less from the assumed generic casino site.

The total adult population has been forecasted at slightly over 1.5 million for 2012 reflecting

an average compound growth rate of 0.1% (refer to Exhibit 4-7, page 4-8 for a detailed year

by year population statistic from 2006 through 2012).

Exhibit 4-2 Adult Population for the Primary Market

# of 

Counties List of Counties 2007 2012

ACGR            

07 to 12 % 2012

Butler KS 46,781 52,348 2.3% 3%

Cowley KS 24,502 23,838 -0.5% 2%

Harper KS 4,259 4,025 -1.1% 0%

Harvey KS 23,641 24,185 0.5% 2%

Kingman KS 5,848 5,811 -0.1% 0%

Reno KS 42,425 40,200 -1.1% 3%

Sedgwick KS 321,246 329,963 0.5% 22%

Sumner KS 17,169 16,964 -0.2% 1%

Grant OK 3,637 3,637 0.0% 0%

Kay OK 10,546 10,675 0.2% 1%

10 Total Surrounding Counties 500,054 511,646 0.5% 34%

26

Total Kansas Counties - Excluding 

Surrounding Counties 243,249 239,781 -0.3% 16%

17

Total Oklahoma Counties - Excluding 

Surrounding Counties 768,657 768,657 0.0% 51%

53 Total Trade Area Population 1,511,960 1,520,084 0.1% 100%

Data Sources:  Bureau of Business & Economics Research, UNR Reno & Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 4-4

Capacity Statistics & Competition

Exhibit 4-3 shows the existing casino capacity and illustrates the increases that are

anticipated for the south central trade area.  The current capacity includes 54 gaming

locations equipped with 28,532 slot machines, 467 table games (pit and poker) and 1.3

million square feet of casino space.  Other amenities include 57 thousand square feet of

convention space, 741 hotel rooms, 79 restaurants, 15 entertainment venues, and 39,912

thousand parking spaces.

Capacity increases include the expansions at the Sac & Fox Casino in Kansas, and the five

casino expansions in Oklahoma.  Also included are the 12 new casinos (four in Kansas and

eight in Oklahoma).

Exhibit 4-3 Capacity Statistics with Proposed Casino Growth

Existing Expansions New (Proposed) Casinos Total % Change

Capacity Casinos KS OK KS OK Capacity Above Existing

# of Loc 54 1 5 4 8 72 33%

# of Slots 28,532 500 3,681 4600 9,650 46,963 65%

# of Tables 467 0 75 110 243 895 92%

Casino S.F. 1,318,784 0 252,000 0 260,000 1,830,784 39%

Convention S.F. 57,350 0 20,000 45,000 30,000 152,350 166%

# of Rooms 741 0 140 625 1,265 2,771 274%

# of Restaurants 79 0 6 12 19 116 47%

Entertainment 15 0 3 8 11 37 147%

Parking 39,912 0 0 8,600 15,800 64,312 61%

Data Source:  Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.

The combined impact of the proposed expansions at six casinos and the addition of 12 new

casinos will result in substantial increases in casino capacity in the south central trade area.

Notable capacity changes shown in Exhibit 4-3 include a 33% increase in the number of

gaming locations (up from 54 to 72), a 65% increase in the number of slot machines (up from

29 thousand to 47 thousand), and a 92% increase in the number of table games  (up from 467

to 895).  In addition, the number of hotel rooms are forecasted to increase by 274% (up from

741 to 2,771), the number of restaurant are estimated to increase by 47% (up from 79 to 116),

the number of entertainment venues have been projected to increase by 147% (up from 15 to

37), and parking capacity should increase by 61% (up from 39,912 spaces to 64,312).



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 4-5

Gaming Revenues

Exhibit 4-4 shows the revenue flows that correspond to the current status (2007), as well as

to the 2012 projections for scenarios 1 through 3.  The scenarios were developed to analyze

the impact of the expansions and new casinos.  Exhibit 4-4 shows, by state, where the

revenues came from and where they went.  The current status indicates that Kansas suffered a

net loss of $224 million in 2007.  Of this amount, $1 million went to Iowa, $42 million to

Missouri, and $181 million to Oklahoma.

The key assumption of scenario 1 is the addition of Sumner County near the I-35 exit at

Wellington.  No other new or expanded casinos have been assumed.  With Sumner County

added in, the net loss for Kansas has been forecasted to decline from $224 million (2007) to

$153 million for scenario 1 in 2012.  Out of the $153 million, $1 million has been forecasted

to go to Iowa, $34 million to Missouri, and $118 million to Oklahoma.

Exhibit 4-4 Summary of the 2012 Flow of Gaming Revenues
(Dollars in Millions)

Current Status 2007 Scenario-1 2012 Scenario-2 2012 Scenario-3 2012

State

Coming 

From

Going           

To Dif

Coming 

From

Going           

To Dif

Coming 

From

Going           

To Dif

Coming 

From

Going           

To Dif

IA $0 $1 $1 $0 $1 $1 $0 $1 $1 $0 $1 $1

KS $242 $18 -$224 $294 $141 -$153 $294 $137 -$157 $299 $128 -$171

MO $0 $42 $42 $0 $34 $34 $0 $32 $32 $0 $28 $28

OK $424 $605 $181 $438 $556 $118 $438 $562 $124 $438 $580 $142

Total $666 $666 $0 $732 $732 $0 $732 $732 $0 $737 $737 $0

Data Source:  Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.

Scenario 2 includes all existing casinos competing in the south central trade area, Sumner

County, plus six expansions.  Five of these expansions are in Oklahoma (refer to page 4-16

for a list) and one is in Kansas (the Sac & Fox Casino).  The Oklahoma expansions have

been projected to substantially overshadow the impact of the expansion at the Sac & Fox

Casino.  As a result, the net loss for Kansas has been projected to be $157 million, $4 million

higher than the $153 million loss projected in scenario-1.  In contrast, Oklahoma’s net gain is

expected to go up to $124 million, $6 million above the $118 million projected in scenario 1.

Scenario 3 includes all of the casino additions and expansions incorporated into scenarios 1

and 2, plus six new casinos proposed for Kansas, two for Missouri, and 11 for Oklahoma

(refer to page 4-19 for a list by state).  With all of the projected growth in new casinos, the

net loss for Kansas has been projected to increase to $171 million in scenario 3, an increase

of $14 million in losses over scenario 2.  Even so, the scenario 3 losses of $171 million are

$53 million less than the $224 million loss sustained in 2007.  On the other hand,

Oklahoma’s net gain has been projected to increase to $18 million in scenario 3 by absorbing

$14 million from Kansas and another $4 million from Missouri.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 4-6

Detailed Analysis of the Trade Area

for the South Central Gaming Zone

Population statistics were one of the key variables used in the gross gaming revenue (GGR)

projections developed for the south central gravity model.  WGR compiled statistics for the

total population, and for the adult population segment located within the 100-mile trade area

surrounding Sumner County.  Because of the age restrictions on casino gaming, only the

adult population statistics were used in the Wells Gaming Research’s gravity model to

project gaming revenues.

Total & Adult Population Statistics

The total population for the south central trade area was 2.2 million in 2007, with 1.5 million

adults (69% of the total).  This market included a total population of approximately 1.0

million in Kansas and 1.1 million in Oklahoma.

Exhibit 4-5 Total & Adult Population Statistics

2000 Total & Adult 2007 Total & Adult 2012 Total & Adult

ST

# of 

CO Total Adult

Adult as a 

% of Total

Adult % 

of Adult 

Total Total Adult

Adult as a 

% of Total

Adult % 

of Adult 

Total Total Adult

Adult as a 

% of Total

Adult % 

of Adult 

Total

KS 34 1,043,904 718,267 68.8% 47.9% 1,060,641 729,120 68.7% 47.1% 1,072,849 737,115 68.7% 46.5%

OK 19 1,127,204 782,730 69.4% 52.1% 1,181,390 820,137 69.4% 52.9% 1,221,225 847,642 69.4% 53.5%

TOT 53 2,171,108 1,500,997 69.1% 100.0% 2,242,031 1,549,257 69.1% 100.0% 2,294,074 1,584,757 69.1% 100.0%

Data Source:  Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.

The adult population in the south central trade area has been projected to increase from 1.5

million in 2007 to 1.6 million by the year 2012, with 737 thousand adults (46.5%) living in

Kansas and 848 thousand (53.5%) in Oklahoma.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 4-7

Total Population

Exhibit 4-6 shows that the population located in the ten counties surrounding Sumner

Country totaled 733 thousand in 2007. The corresponding population for 2012 has been

forecasted at 750 thousand, reflecting an average annual compound growth rate of 0.5%.

Exhibit 4-6 Total Population Statistics for 2000 and 2006-2012

# of 

Co Counties 2000 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

ACGR            

07 to 12

% Pop/ 

Co 2012

Butler KS 59,482 68,152 69,701 71,285 72,908 74,566 76,262 77,994 2.3% 10%

Cowley KS 36,291 35,907 35,709 35,514 35,320 35,127 34,935 34,744 -0.5% 5%

Harper KS 6,536 5,965 5,899 5,833 5,767 5,703 5,639 5,576 -1.1% 1%

Harvey KS 32,869 33,915 34,070 34,225 34,382 34,537 34,696 34,854 0.5% 5%

Kingman KS 8,673 8,403 8,392 8,381 8,370 8,361 8,350 8,339 -0.1% 1%

Reno KS 64,790 60,430 59,778 59,138 58,505 57,877 57,256 56,644 -1.1% 8%

Sedgwick KS 452,869 471,520 474,057 476,602 479,161 481,729 484,318 486,917 0.5% 65%

Sumner KS 25,946 25,441 25,379 25,319 25,258 25,196 25,136 25,076 -0.2% 3%

Grant OK 5,144 5,100 5,100 5,100 5,100 5,100 5,100 5,100 0.0% 1%

Kay OK 14,833 14,998 15,037 15,074 15,110 15,148 15,185 15,221 0.2% 2%

10 Total Surrounding Co 707,433 729,831 733,122 736,471 739,881 743,344 746,877 750,465 0.5% 100%

26

Total Kansas Counties - 

Excluding Surrounding 

Counties 356,448 348,684 347,656 346,639 345,632 344,643 343,676 342,705 -0.3%

17

Total Oklahoma Counties  

- Excluding Surrounding 

Counties 1,107,227 1,153,518 1,161,253 1,169,059 1,176,927 1,184,852 1,192,852 1,200,904 0.7%

53 Total Trade Area Pop 2,171,108 2,232,033 2,242,031 2,252,169 2,262,440 2,272,839 2,283,405 2,294,074 0.5%

Data Source:  Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.

The total population for the south central trade area was approximately 2.2 million in 2007

with forecasted increases to 2.9 million by 2012.  This reflects an average compound growth

rate of 0.5%.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 4-8

Adult Population

The adult population for the ten contiguous counties was 500,054 in 2007.  Projections

indicate that the adult population could reach 511,646 by 2012, thereby reflecting an average

compound growth rate of 0.5% per year.  The total adult population for the south central

trade area was 1.51 million in 2007.  With an average compound growth rate of 0.1%, the

2012 adult population would be 1.52 million.

Exhibit 4-7Adult Population Statistics for 2000 and 2006 to 2012

# of 

Co Counties 2000 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

ACGR            

07 to 12

% Pop/ 

Co 2012

Butler KS 39,923 45,743 46,781 47,844 48,936 50,048 51,185 52,348 2.3% 10%

Cowley KS 24,901 24,638 24,502 24,370 24,236 24,104 23,971 23,838 -0.5% 5%

Harper KS 4,719 4,307 4,259 4,211 4,164 4,118 4,071 4,025 -1.1% 1%

Harvey KS 22,808 23,534 23,641 23,749 23,858 23,965 24,076 24,185 0.5% 5%

Kingman KS 6,044 5,855 5,848 5,841 5,834 5,826 5,818 5,811 -0.1% 1%

Reno KS 45,980 42,885 42,425 41,970 41,519 41,074 40,634 40,200 -1.1% 8%

Sedgwick KS 306,890 319,528 321,246 322,973 324,706 326,445 328,201 329,963 0.5% 64%

Sumner KS 17,554 17,213 17,169 17,129 17,088 17,047 17,006 16,964 -0.2% 3%

Grant OK 3,669 3,637 3,637 3,637 3,637 3,637 3,637 3,637 0.0% 1%

Kay OK 10,404 10,520 10,546 10,574 10,598 10,625 10,651 10,675 0.2% 2%

10 Total Surrounding Counties 482,892 497,860 500,054 502,298 504,576 506,889 509,250 511,646 0.5% 100%

26

Total Kansas Counties - 

Excluding Surrounding 

Counties 249,448 243,966 243,249 242,533 241,828 241,138 240,465 239,781 -0.3%

17

Total Oklahoma Counties - 

Excluding Surrounding 

Counties 768,657 768,657 768,657 768,657 768,657 768,657 768,657 768,657 0.0%

53 Total Trade Area Population 1,500,997 1,510,483 1,511,960 1,513,488 1,515,061 1,516,684 1,518,372 1,520,084 0.1%

Data Source:  Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.

Average Median Household Income

The average median household income statistics for 2007 show $50 thousand and $47

thousand, respectively, for counties located in Kansas and Oklahoma that fall within the

south central trade area.  Based on an average compound growth rate of 3.2%, Kansas would

have an average median household income of $59 thousand in 2012.  With an average

compound growth rate of 2.9%, Oklahoma would have an average median household income

of $55 thousand.

Exhibit 4-8 Average Median Household Income Statistics for 2000 and 2006 to 2012

# of    

Co State 2000 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

ACGR            

07 to 12

34 KS $40,552 $48,880 $50,429 $52,031 $53,687 $55,398 $57,168 $58,998 3.2%

19 OK $38,736 $45,906 $47,237 $48,610 $50,028 $51,491 $53,002 $54,561 2.9%

Data Source:  Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 4-9

Status Quo

for the South Central Trade Area

Gaming Revenues

The status quo assumes that there will not be any new casinos or casino expansions.  The

status quo (2007) gaming revenues totaled approximately $666 million for the south central

trade area.  Over $82 million of the total was generated by Oklahoma Tribal casinos located

within 50 miles.  Without any casino expansions or additions in the south central trade area,

gaming revenues could increase to approximately $684 million by 2012, for a 2.7% change

over 2007.

Exhibit 4-9 2007 to 2012 Status Quo Revenues for the South Central Zone

Revenue 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Oklahoma Tribal Casinos w/i 50 Miles $82,203,000 $82,497,000 $82,790,000 $83,090,000 $83,395,000 $83,702,000

All Other Casinos $583,803,000 $587,038,100 $590,322,200 $593,636,300 $596,995,400 $600,378,500

Total $666,006,000 $669,535,100 $673,112,200 $676,726,300 $680,390,400 $684,080,500

Data Source:  Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.

Visitors

The status quo (2007) casino visitors totaled approximately 10.4 million.  Absent any casino

expansions or additions, casino visitor counts could increase to approximately 10.7 million

by 2012, a 2.9% change over 2007.

Exhibit 4-10 2007 to 2012 Status Quo Visitors for the South Central Zone

Visitors 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Oklahoma Tribal Casinos w/i 50 Miles 1,184,502 1,188,497 1,192,510 1,196,630 1,200,776 1,204,953

All Other Casinos 9,215,264 9,269,027 9,323,456 9,378,336 9,433,911 9,489,892

Total 10,399,766 10,457,524 10,515,966 10,574,966 10,634,687 10,694,845

Data Source:  Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 4-10

Estimates of Casino Revenue Flows

The status quo for casino revenue shows what could be expected if no new casino

development occurred in the south central trade area.  In 2007, an estimated $666 million

was generated in total gaming revenues.  Of the $666 million, an estimated $242 million

(36%) was generated in Kansas and $424 million (64%) in Oklahoma.  However, the vast

majority of the $666 million, approximately $605 million (91%), flowed back to Oklahoma

leaving $1.3 million (0.2%) for Iowa, $17.9 million (3%) for Kansas, $42.3 million (6%) for

Missouri.

Exhibit 4-11 Status Quo Flow of Gaming Revenue Funds

for  the Southeast Trade Area for 2007 to 2012

Current Scenario Revenues Coming From

State 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

KS $242,053,193 $242,771,774 $243,508,022 $244,259,946 $245,031,932 $245,814,353

OK $423,949,380 $426,764,405 $429,605,224 $432,467,142 $435,357,292 $438,265,147

Total $666,002,573 $669,536,179 $673,113,246 $676,727,088 $680,389,224 $684,079,500

Current Scenarios Revenues Going To

State 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

IA $1,278,000 $1,282,000 $1,287,000 $1,292,000 $1,297,000 $1,302,000

KS $17,915,000 $17,978,000 $18,041,000 $18,106,000 $18,173,000 $18,240,000

MO $42,293,000 $42,439,000 $42,590,000 $42,744,000 $42,900,000 $43,058,000

OK $604,520,000 $607,836,100 $611,194,200 $614,584,300 $618,020,400 $621,480,500

Total $666,006,000 $669,535,100 $673,112,200 $676,726,300 $680,390,400 $684,080,500

Data Source:  Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.

Total gaming revenues for the south central trade area have been projected to increase to

$677 million by 2010 and to $684 million by 2012, an approximate increase of $18 million

between 2007 and 2012.  The projected allocations for 2010 and 2012 relative to 2007 show

that the distribution could be expected to remain fairly constant.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 4-11

Current Casino Gaming Capacity

For the South Central Trade Area

A compilation of the current casino gaming capacity located within approximately 150 miles

of the casino site in the south central zone is shown in Exhibit 4-12.  The results indicate that

54 casinos are currently in operation.  All are located in Oklahoma.

Exhibit 4-12 Status Quo Casino Capacity Statistics

# of           

Loc Casino
# of 

Slots

# of Pit 

Tables

# of 

Poker 

Tables

# of 

Total 

Tables

# of 

Bingo 

Seats

Race 

Book Casino S.F.

Con-

vention 

S.F.

# of 

Rooms

# of 

Restau-

rants

Enter-

tain-

ment

Park-

ing

Oklahoma:

1 7 Clans Paradise Casino 700 8 6 14 0 0 30,000 0 0 2 0 500

2 Blue Star Gaming and Casino 228 0 0 0 300 0 20,000 0 0 1 0 500

3 Bordertown Bingo & Casino 886 11 10 21 650 1 73,000 0 0 2 0 400

4 Buffalo Run Casino 1,300 20 9 29 0 0 70,000 10,000 0 3 1 1,300

5 Catoosa Smoke Shop 75 0 0 0 0 0 1,728 0 0 0 0 42

6 Cherokee Casino - Fort Gibson 295 0 0 0 0 0 7,430 0 0 0 0 182

7 Cherokee Casino - Will Rogers Downs 250 0 0 0 0 1 18,277 11,000 450 1 1 150

8 Cherokee Casino Resort 1,522 37 35 72 0 0 95,000 7,500 263 8 3 3,100

9 Cimarron Bingo Casino 363 0 0 0 0 1 9,600 0 0 1 0 400

10 Creek Nation Casino Muscogee 584 7 10 17 300 0 30,000 0 0 1 1 800

11 Creek Nation Casino Okemah 132 0 3 3 110 0 1,800 0 0 0 0 200

12 Creek Nation Casino Okmulgee 334 2 3 5 0 0 11,000 0 0 1 0 600

13 Creek Nation Casino Tulsa 1,512 0 11 11 0 0 38,000 0 0 1 0 2,000

14 Creek Nation Travel Plaza 43 0 0 0 0 0 920 0 0 1 0 50

15 Duck Creek Casino 268 0 0 0 120 0 5,000 0 0 1 0 300

16 Eastern Shawnee Travel Plaza 186 0 0 0 0 0 3,000 0 0 0 0 150

17 Feather Warrior Casino 89 0 0 0 0 0 2,200 0 0 0 0 59

18 FireLake Casino 800 7 2 9 500 0 50,000 5,000 0 3 0 800

19 FireLake Grand Casino 1,800 23 19 42 0 0 125,000 0 0 5 2 4,000

20 Golden Pony Casino 400 0 0 0 0 0 10,000 0 0 1 0 500

21 Goldsby Gaming Center 182 0 0 0 300 1 15,462 0 0 1 0 300

22 Grand Lake Casino 879 10 6 16 0 0 45,000 0 0 1 1 1,000

23 High Winds Casino 500 8 0 8 0 0 35,000 0 0 2 0 450

24 Kaw Southwind Casino 1,078 3 4 7 700 0 55,000 0 0 2 0 1,000

25 Kickapoo Casino 525 9 0 9 0 0 12,000 0 0 1 0 600

26 Kickapoo Conoco Station 52 0 0 0 0 0 900 0 0 0 0 30

27 Lucky Star Casino - Clinton 423 5 4 9 0 0 13,000 0 0 1 0 400

28 Lucky Star Casino - Concho 930 13 11 24 0 0 40,000 0 0 1 0 1,000

29 Lucky Turtle Casino 101 0 0 0 0 0 3,000 0 0 1 0 200

30 Miami Tribe Entertainment 107 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 75

31 Muscogee Travel Plaza 129 0 0 0 0 0 3,000 0 0 0 0 50

32 Mystic Winds Casino 354 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 50

33 Native Lights Casino 612 6 0 6 0 0 22,500 0 0 2 0 405

34 Newcastle Gaming Center I 1,199 0 0 0 0 0 10,452 0 0 1 0 900

35 Newcastle Gaming Center II 0 14 14 28 0 0 10,521 0 0 0 0 150

36 Osage Million Dollar Elm Casino - Bartlesville 575 6 6 12 0 0 42,000 0 0 0 0 700



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 4-12

Exhibit 4-12 Status Quo Casino Capacity Statistics (Continued)

# of           

Loc Casino
# of 

Slots

# of Pit 

Tables

# of 

Poker 

Tables

# of 

Total 

Tables

# of 

Bingo 

Seats

Race 

Book

Casino                 

S.F.

Con-

vention 

S.F.

# of 

Rooms

# of 

Restau-

rants

Enter-

tain-

ment

Park-

ing

Oklahoma:

37 Osage Million Dollar Elm Casino - Hominy 273 1 2 3 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 250

38 Osage Million Dollar Elm Casino - Pawhuska 135 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 50

39 Osage Million Dollar Elm Casino - Ponca City 222 0 0 0 0 0 7,700 0 0 0 0 150

40 Osage Million Dollar Elm Casino - Sand Springs 601 4 0 4 0 0 25,000 0 0 1 0 500

41 Osage Million Dollar Elm Casino - Skiatook 152 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 28 1 0 200

42 Osage Million Dollar Elm Casino - Tulsa 1,267 10 7 17 600 0 47,000 1,600 0 3 1 800

43 Pawnee Trading Post 130 0 0 0 0 0 3,500 0 0 2 0 250

44 Peoria Gaming Center 200 0 0 0 0 0 4,200 0 0 1 0 250

45 Quapaw Casino 483 8 1 9 0 0 27,000 0 0 1 1 700

46 Remington Park 650 0 0 0 0 1 55,000 0 0 3 0 6,700

47 Riverwind Casino 2,317 32 21 53 0 1 76,308 14,000 0 10 3 4,000

48 Sac and Fox Casino - Shawnee 466 5 5 10 0 0 8,600 0 0 1 0 550

49 Sac and Fox Casino - Stroud 49 0 0 0 0 0 825 0 0 0 0 34

50 Seminole Nation Trading Post 200 0 0 0 0 0 3,424 0 0 0 0 125

51 The Stables Casino 500 4 0 4 0 1 25,000 0 0 2 0 260

52 Thunderbird Casino 600 6 2 8 0 1 61,000 8,250 0 3 1 600

53 Tonkawa Casino 374 4 0 4 0 0 14,437 0 0 1 0 400

54 Wyandotte Nation Casino 500 8 5 13 0 0 50,000 0 0 3 0 750

54 Total Existing Casinos 28,532 271 196 467 3,580 8 1,318,784 57,350 741 79 15 39,912

Data Source:  Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.

The foregoing data shows that there are currently a total of 54 casinos located in the south

central trade area  All are located in Oklahoma.  Combined capacities for the 54 casinos

include 28,532 slot machines, 271 pit table games, and 196 poker tables (467 total table

games), 3,580 bingo seats, 8 race books, and 1.3 million square feet of gaming space.  Other

amenities include over 57 thousand square feet of convention/meeting space, 741 hotel

rooms, 79 restaurants, 15 entertainment venues, and approximately 40 thousand parking

spaces.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 4-13

Analyses of the Gaming Revenue Scenarios

Scenario 1

Assumptions

Scenario 1 includes the existing casinos, as well as the generic casino proposed for Sumner

County.  The mid case scenario for the proposed new Sumner County casino includes

projected gaming capacity of 2,000 slot machines and 50 table games.  Other amenities

include 30,000 square feet of convention/meeting space, 275 hotel rooms, four restaurants,

and three entertainment venues (two small and one large).  The location assumed for this

generic casino was near the I-35 exit at Wellington.

Revenue Projections for Scenario 1

Exhibit 4-13 shows the current gaming revenues (2007) for the south central trade area,

together with projections for WGR’s low, mid, and high case forecasts for scenario 1.  Total

gaming revenues have been forecasted at $666 million for 2007.  With Sumner County added

in, total gaming revenues in the mid case could increase to $724 million for 2010, and again to

$732 million for 2012.  It should be noted that the same size casino located near the I-35 exit

at Mulvane would generate more revenue due to proximity to the more heavily populated

Wichita area.

WGR’s projected allocations include $126 million for 2010 and $127 million for 2012 for the

category captioned Summer County Proposed.  Projections for the category Oklahoma casinos
located within 50 miles of the proposed casino site are approximately $61 million in both

2010 and 2012.  Projected allocations for all other casinos located in the south central trade

area are forecasted to generate approximately $538 million in 2010 increasing to $544 million

in 2012.

Exhibit 4-13 Scenario 1 Gaming Revenues

Includes Existing Casinos + Sumner County Proposed for 2008

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Sumner County Proposed $0 $84,285,000 $85,053,000 $125,566,000 $126,721,000 $152,419,000 $153,813,000

Oklahoma Tribal Casinos w/in 50 Miles $82,203,000 $70,919,000 $71,430,000 $60,809,000 $61,231,000 $54,436,000 $54,807,000

All Other Casinos $583,803,000 $568,981,500 $575,311,700 $537,810,200 $543,840,400 $517,326,800 $523,176,900

Total  Scenario 1 $666,006,000 $724,185,500 $731,794,700 $724,185,200 $731,792,400 $724,181,800 $731,796,900

Data Source:  Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 4-14

Revenue Impacts

The category captioned Sumner County Proposed has projected gaming revenue allocations

for 2010 of $126 million, increasing to $127 million by 2012.  Projected decreases include

$22 million for Oklahoma Tribes located within 50 miles, and a $55.8 million decrease in

gaming revenues currently flowing to all other casinos located in the south central trade area.

Exhibit 4-14 Scenario 1 Revenue Impacts Includes the Existing Casinos

 + Sumner County Proposed for 2008

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Sumner County Proposed $0 $84,285,000 $85,053,000 $125,566,000 $126,721,000 $152,419,000 $153,813,000

Oklahoma Tribal Casinos w/in 50 Miles $0 -$12,171,000 -$12,272,000 -$22,281,000 -$22,471,000 -$28,654,000 -$28,895,000

All Other Casinos $0 -$24,654,800 -$25,066,800 -$55,826,100 -$56,538,100 -$76,309,500 -$77,201,600

Total  Scenario 1 $0 $47,459,200 $47,714,200 $47,458,900 $47,711,900 $47,455,500 $47,716,400

Data Source:  Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 4-15

Forecasted Flow Funds

Exhibit 4-15 shows that, of the total $666 million in gaming revenues for 2007, $242 million

(36.3%) was generated by people from Kansas who frequented Oklahoma Tribal casinos

located near the southern border of Kansas (refer to the first section of Exhibit 4-15

captioned Scenario 1 Revenues Coming From).

The scenario 1 mid case shows that in 2007 only $18 million of the $666 million stayed in

Kansas, $605 million went to Oklahoma Tribal casinos, $42.3 million went to Missouri, and

$1.3 million went to Iowa (refer to the mid section of Exhibit 4-15).  Refer to the third

section of Exhibit 4-15 captioned Scenario 1 Mid - Revenues Going To.

The addition of Sumner County (scenario 1) in the 2010 mid case could result in an

important shift in the flow of casino revenues.  Of the $292 million projected to be generated

in Kansas, $140 million could stay in Kansas.  As forecasted, an estimated $550 million

would continue to flow to Oklahoma, $34 million to Missouri, and $1 million to Iowa.

Assuming no additional competition enters the market, this trend could be expected to

continue through 2012.

Exhibit 4-15 Flows of Gaming Revenue Funds for Scenario 1

Illustrates Where the Gaming Revenues Originated &  Where They Went

Scenario 1 - Revenues Coming From

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

KS $242,053,193 36.3% $242,771,774 $243,508,022 $291,715,359 40.3% $292,616,176 $293,530,157 40.1%

OK $423,949,380 63.7% $426,764,405 $429,605,224 $432,467,142 59.7% $435,357,292 $438,265,147 59.9%

Total $666,002,573 100.0% $669,536,179 $673,113,246 $724,182,501 100.0% $727,973,468 $731,795,304 100.0%

Scenario 1 Low - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $1,278,000 0.2% $1,282,000 $1,287,000 $1,195,000 0.2% $1,198,000 $1,202,000 0.2%

KS $17,915,000 2.7% $17,978,000 $18,041,000 $101,094,000 14.0% $101,526,000 $101,961,000 13.9%

MO $42,293,000 6.4% $42,439,000 $42,590,000 $39,223,000 5.4% $39,339,000 $39,459,000 5.4%

OK $604,520,000 90.8% $607,836,100 $611,194,200 $582,673,500 80.5% $585,905,600 $589,172,700 80.5%

Total $666,006,000 100.0% $669,535,100 $673,112,200 $724,185,500 100.0% $727,968,600 $731,794,700 100.0%

Scenario 1 Mid - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $1,278,000 0.2% $1,282,000 $1,287,000 $1,014,000 0.1% $1,017,000 $1,020,000 0.1%

KS $17,915,000 2.7% $17,978,000 $18,041,000 $139,943,000 19.3% $140,557,000 $141,176,000 19.3%

MO $42,293,000 6.4% $42,439,000 $42,590,000 $33,528,000 4.6% $33,618,000 $33,710,000 4.6%

OK $604,520,000 90.8% $607,836,100 $611,194,200 $549,700,200 75.9% $552,784,300 $555,886,400 76.0%

Total $666,006,000 100.0% $669,535,100 $673,112,200 $724,185,200 100.0% $727,976,300 $731,792,400 100.0%

Scenario 1 High - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $1,278,000 0.2% $1,282,000 $1,287,000 $897,000 0.1% $900,000 $902,000 0.1%

KS $17,915,000 2.7% $17,978,000 $18,041,000 $165,202,000 22.8% $165,927,000 $166,661,000 22.8%

MO $42,293,000 6.4% $42,439,000 $42,590,000 $29,835,000 4.1% $29,911,000 $29,988,000 4.1%

OK $604,520,000 90.8% $607,836,100 $611,194,200 $528,247,800 72.9% $531,236,800 $534,245,900 73.0%

Total $666,006,000 100.0% $669,535,100 $673,112,200 $724,181,800 100.0% $727,974,800 $731,796,900 100.0%

Data Source:  Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 4-16

Scenario 2

Assumptions

Scenario 2 includes scenario 1 (existing casinos plus the new generic casino in Sumner

County), as well as expansions at the following casinos located in Kansas and Oklahoma:

Kansas

 1. Sac & Fox Casino in Powhattan, KS (March 2008)

Oklahoma

 1. Cherokee Casino Resort in Catoosa, OK (January 2009)

 2. Kickapoo Casino in McLoud, OK (January 2009)

 3. Osage Million Dollar Elm in Ponca City, OK (January 2009)

 4. Cherokee Casino West Siloam Springs in Watts, OK (July 2009)

 5. Creek Nation Casino in Tulsa, OK (September 2008)

Revenue Projections

The following casino revenue projections include WGR’s low, mid, and high case forecasts

for scenario 2 (includes the addition Sumner County plus the expansions listed in scenario 2).

Of the total $724 million forecasted in the mid case for 2010, an estimated $121.2 million

would go to the category captioned Sumner County Proposed, increasing slightly to $122.3

million by 2012; $59.4 million would likely go to Oklahoma casinos located within 50 miles;

and, $544 million would go to all of the other casinos located in the south central trade area.

The combined gaming revenues have been estimated to increase from an estimated $724

million in 2010 to $732 million by 2012, or by 1.1%.

Exhibit 4-16 Scenario 2 Gaming Revenues Include Scenario 1 + Expansions

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Sumner County Proposed $0 $80,747,000 $81,479,000 $121,210,000 $122,323,000 $147,766,000 $149,116,000

Oklahoma Tribal Casinos w/in 50 Miles $82,203,000 $68,964,000 $69,455,000 $59,447,000 $59,856,000 $53,378,000 $53,738,000

All Other Casinos $583,803,000 $574,473,800 $580,855,900 $543,525,700 $549,623,800 $523,035,300 $528,941,400

Total  Scenario 2 $666,006,000 $724,184,800 $731,789,900 $724,182,700 $731,802,800 $724,179,300 $731,795,400

Data Source:  Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 4-17

Revenue Impacts

The net gaming revenue impacts between scenarios 1 and 2 show losses for Sumner County
Proposed of $4.4 million and for Oklahoma tribes located within 50 miles of $1.4 million.

The all other casinos category has been forecasted to go up by an additional $5.7 million in

gaming revenues. The bottom line differences between scenarios 1 and 2 are minor, $2.5

thousand in 2010 and $10.4 thousand in 2012.

Exhibit 4-17 Revenue Impacts – Scenario 2 – Scenario 1 + Expansions

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Sumner County Proposed $0 -$3,538,000 -$3,574,000 -$4,356,000 -$4,398,000 -$4,653,000 -$4,697,000

Oklahoma Tribal Casinos w/in 50 Miles $0 -$1,955,000 -$1,975,000 -$1,362,000 -$1,375,000 -$1,058,000 -$1,069,000

All Other Casinos $0 $5,492,300 $5,544,200 $5,715,500 $5,783,400 $5,708,500 $5,764,500

Total  Scenario 2 $0 -$700 -$4,800 -$2,500 $10,400 -$2,500 -$1,500

Data Source:  Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 4-18

Forecasted Flow Funds

The addition of the scenario 2 casino expansions and Sumner County (scenario 1) could

trigger the following casino revenue flows.  Kansas has been projected to generate $292

million in the 2010 (refer to the first section of Exhibit 4-18 captioned Scenario 2 Revenues
Coming From).  The mid case results show that an estimated $136 million has been

forecasted to stay in Kansas), while $556 million could flow to Oklahoma, $32 million to

Missouri, and $1 million to Iowa (refer to the third section of Exhibit 4-18 captioned

Scenario 2 Mid - Revenues Going To).  Absent other market changes, this trend could

continue through 2012.

Exhibit 4-18 Flow of Gaming Revenue Funds for Scenario 2

Illustrates Where the Gaming Revenues Originated & Where They Went

Scenario 2 - Revenues Coming From

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

KS $242,053,193 36.3% $242,771,774 $243,508,022 $291,715,359 40.3% $292,616,176 $293,530,157 40.1%

OK $423,949,380 63.7% $426,764,405 $429,605,224 $432,467,142 59.7% $435,357,292 $438,265,147 59.9%

Total $666,002,573 100.0% $669,536,179 $673,113,246 $724,182,501 100.0% $727,973,468 $731,795,304 100.0%

Scenario 2 Low - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $1,278,000 0.2% $1,246,000 $1,199,000 $1,127,000 0.2% $1,130,000 $1,134,000 0.2%

KS $17,915,000 2.7% $18,595,000 $17,940,000 $97,661,000 13.5% $98,074,000 $98,493,000 13.5%

MO $42,293,000 6.4% $41,245,000 $39,727,000 $37,013,000 5.1% $37,125,000 $37,236,000 5.1%

OK $604,520,000 90.8% $608,456,000 $614,251,100 $588,383,800 81.2% $591,647,800 $594,926,900 81.3%

Total $666,006,000 100.0% $669,542,000 $673,117,100 $724,184,800 100.0% $727,976,800 $731,789,900 100.0%

Scenario 2 Mid - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $1,278,000 0.2% $1,246,000 $1,199,000 $961,000 0.1% $964,000 $966,000 0.1%

KS $17,915,000 2.7% $18,595,000 $17,940,000 $135,746,000 18.7% $136,339,000 $136,938,000 18.7%

MO $42,293,000 6.4% $41,245,000 $39,727,000 $31,776,000 4.4% $31,863,000 $31,951,000 4.4%

OK $604,520,000 90.8% $608,456,000 $614,251,100 $555,699,700 76.7% $558,811,700 $561,947,800 76.8%

Total $666,006,000 100.0% $669,542,000 $673,117,100 $724,182,700 100.0% $727,977,700 $731,802,800 100.0%

Scenario 2 High - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $1,278,000 0.2% $1,246,000 $1,199,000 $852,000 0.1% $855,000 $857,000 0.1%

KS $17,915,000 2.7% $18,595,000 $17,940,000 $160,725,000 22.2% $161,430,000 $162,142,000 22.2%

MO $42,293,000 6.4% $41,245,000 $39,727,000 $28,343,000 3.9% $28,414,000 $28,486,000 3.9%

OK $604,520,000 90.8% $608,456,000 $614,251,100 $534,259,300 73.8% $537,274,400 $540,310,400 73.8%

Total $666,006,000 100.0% $669,542,000 $673,117,100 $724,179,300 100.0% $727,973,400 $731,795,400 100.0%

Data Source:  Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 4-19

Scenario 3

Scenario 3 includes scenario 2 and the following new casinos that have been proposed for

Kansas, Missouri, and Oklahoma:

Kansas

 1. Wyandotte 7th Street Casino in Kansas City, KS (January 2008)

 2. Camptown Greyhound Park in Frontenac, KS (January 2009)

 3. The Woodlands in Kansas City, KS (January 2009)

 4. Cherokee County planned in Baxter Springs, KS (January 2010)

 5. Wyandotte County planned in Kansas City, KS (January 2010)

 6. Ford County planned in Dodge City, KS (proposed for 2010)

Missouri

 1. Barden Development, Inc. planned in Branson, MO

 2. Wild Rose Entertainment planned in Sugar Creek, MO (Jan 2010)

Oklahoma

 1. First Council Casino in Newkirk, OK (March 2008)

 2. Downstream Casino Resort in Ottawa, OK (July 2008)

 3. Seneca-Cayuga Tribes of Oklahoma planned in Grove, OK (July 2008)

 4. Ioway Casino Resort in Lincoln, OK (January 2009)

 5. Muscogee Creek Nation planned in Eufaula, OK (proposed for 2010)

 6. Pawnee Nation Planned in Chilocco, OK (proposed for 2010)

 7. Ponca Tribe Oklahoma planned in Ponca City, OK (proposed for 2010

 8. Poteau Travel and Smoke Shop in Poteau, OK (proposed for 2010)

 9. Shawnee Tribe Oklahoma planned in Oklahoma City, OK (proposed for 2010)

 10. Wichita & Affiliated Tribes planned in Hinton, OK (proposed for 2010)

 11. Wilburton Travel and Smoke Shop in Wilburton, OK (proposed for 2010)



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 4-20

Revenue Projections

The mid case estimates for scenario 3 with the opening of the 19 new casinos shown on page

4-19 totaled $730.4 million in 2010 increasing to $738 million in 2012.  The mid case

projections include $93.2 million for Sumner County Proposed, $46.7 million for the casinos
proposed within 50 miles, $79.7 million for all other proposed casinos, $42.3 million for

Oklahoma casinos located within 50 miles, and $468.6 million for all other casinos in the

south central zone. Gaming revenue estimates for Sumner County Proposed (Wellington

location) totaled $93 to $94 million in the mid case.  The Mulvane location would most

likely generates $50 to $60 million more than the Wellington location.

Exhibit 4-19 Revenues – Scenario 3 – Scenario 2 + Other Proposed

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Sumner County Proposed $0 $58,549,000 $59,071,000 $93,228,000 $94,080,000 $117,931,000 $119,012,000

*Proposed Casinos w/in 50 Miles $0 $53,308,000 $53,689,000 $46,679,000 $46,999,000 $42,122,000 $42,401,000

*All Other Proposed Casinos $0 $86,007,900 $86,788,200 $79,673,700 $80,396,100 $75,086,500 $75,767,800

Oklahoma Tribal Casinos w/in 50 Miles $82,203,000 $47,235,000 $47,604,000 $42,287,000 $42,608,000 $38,853,000 $39,141,000

All Other Casinos $583,803,000 $485,335,300 $490,804,400 $468,572,100 $473,871,200 $456,446,300 $461,634,400

Total  Scenario 3 $666,006,000 $730,435,200 $737,956,600 $730,439,800 $737,954,300 $730,438,800 $737,956,200

Data Source:  Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.

Revenue Impacts

Overall, the net gaming revenue impact of adding the casinos proposed in scenario 3 to

would result in $6.3 loss in gaming revenues.  Negative impacts of scenario 3 over those

profiled in scenario 2 include a $28 million decrease for Sumner County in 2010 and 2012,

an approximate decline of $17 million for Oklahoma casinos located within 50 miles, and a

loss of $74 million in gaming revenues for all other casinos located in the south central trade

area.   All other proposed casinos have been forecasted to pick up approximately $80 million

in gaming revenues.

Exhibit 4-20 Scenario 3 Revenue Impacts  Include Scenario 2 + Other Proposed

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Sumner County Proposed $0 -$22,198,000 -$22,408,000 -$27,982,000 -$28,243,000 -$29,835,000 -$30,104,000

*Proposed Casinos w/in 50 Miles $0 $53,308,000 $53,689,000 $46,679,000 $46,999,000 $42,122,000 $42,401,000

*All Other Proposed Casinos $0 $86,007,900 $86,788,200 $79,673,700 $80,396,100 $75,086,500 $75,767,800

Oklahoma Tribal Casinos w/in 50 Miles $0 -$21,729,000 -$21,851,000 -$17,160,000 -$17,248,000 -$14,525,000 -$14,597,000

All Other Casinos $0 -$89,138,500 -$90,051,500 -$74,953,600 -$75,752,600 -$66,589,000 -$67,307,000

Total  Scenario 3 $0 $6,250,400 $6,166,700 $6,257,100 $6,151,500 $6,259,500 $6,160,800

Data Sources:  Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 4-21

Forecasted Flow Funds

Exhibit 4-21 illustrates that the addition of the proposed casinos included in scenario 3

(incorporates the expansions and additions outlined in scenarios 1 and 2) resulted in the

following forecasted flow of casino revenues.  Out of a total of $730 million in 2010, $298

million has been forecasted to be generated in Kansas and $433 million in Oklahoma (refer

to the first section of Exhibit 4-21 captioned Scenario 3 Revenues Coming From).  The mid

case forecasts shows that only $129 million would stay in Kansas, while $573 million would

flow into Oklahoma (refer to the third section of Exhibit 4-21 captioned Scenario 3 Mid -
Revenues Going To).  Other mid case results include an estimated $28 million flowing to

Missouri, and $727 thousand to Iowa.  Without any significant changes in the south central

trade area, this trend could continue through 2012.

Exhibit 4-21 Flow of Gaming Revenue Funds for Scenario 3

Illustrates Where the Gaming Revenues Came From & Where They Went

Scenario 3 - Revenues Coming From

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

KS $242,053,193 36.3% $243,429,855 $244,971,726 $297,764,725 40.8% $298,616,770 $299,481,888 40.6%

OK $423,949,380 63.7% $426,764,405 $429,708,105 $432,672,430 59.2% $435,564,475 $438,474,269 59.4%

Total $666,002,573 100.0% $670,194,260 $674,679,831 $730,437,155 100.0% $734,181,245 $737,956,157 100.0%

Scenario 3 Low - Revenues Going To

State 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $1,278,000 0.2% $1,107,000 $1,018,000 $817,000 0.1% $819,000 $821,000 0.1%

KS $17,915,000 2.7% $17,479,000 $21,279,000 $97,952,000 13.4% $98,302,000 $98,650,000 13.4%

MO $42,293,000 6.4% $36,592,000 $33,744,000 $31,106,000 4.3% $31,197,000 $31,287,000 4.2%

OK $604,520,000 90.8% $615,018,100 $618,643,400 $600,560,200 82.2% $603,864,400 $607,198,600 82.3%

Total $666,006,000 100.0% $670,196,100 $674,684,400 $730,435,200 100.0% $734,182,400 $737,956,600 100.0%

Scenario 3 Mid - Revenues Going To

State 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $1,278,000 0.2% $1,107,000 $1,018,000 $727,000 0.1% $729,000 $731,000 0.1%

KS $17,915,000 2.7% $17,479,000 $21,279,000 $128,731,000 17.6% $129,224,000 $129,724,000 17.6%

MO $42,293,000 6.4% $36,592,000 $33,744,000 $27,816,000 3.8% $27,890,000 $27,965,000 3.8%

OK $604,520,000 90.8% $615,018,100 $618,643,400 $573,165,800 78.5% $576,340,100 $579,534,300 78.5%

Total $666,006,000 100.0% $670,196,100 $674,684,400 $730,439,800 100.0% $734,183,100 $737,954,300 100.0%

Scenario 3 High - Revenues Going To

State 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

IA $1,278,000 0.2% $1,107,000 $1,018,000 $662,000 0.1% $664,000 $666,000 0.1%

KS $17,915,000 2.7% $17,479,000 $21,279,000 $150,612,000 20.6% $151,207,000 $151,808,000 20.6%

MO $42,293,000 6.4% $36,592,000 $33,744,000 $25,453,000 3.5% $25,517,000 $25,581,000 3.5%

OK $604,520,000 90.8% $615,018,100 $618,643,400 $553,711,800 75.8% $556,789,000 $559,901,200 75.9%

Total $666,006,000 100.0% $670,196,100 $674,684,400 $730,438,800 100.0% $734,177,000 $737,956,200 100.0%

Data Source:  Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 4-22

Current & Proposed Casino Capacity

Exhibit 4-22 recaps casino capacity and illustrates what could be expected with the proposed

casino additions and expansions.

Exhibit 4-22 Casino Capacity Including Proposed Growth

# Of 

Loc Casinos
# of         

Slots

# of      

Pit        

Tables

# of 

Poker 

Tables

# of       

Total         

Tables

# of 

Bingo 

Seats

Race 

Book 

Casino 

S.F.

Con-

vention 

S.F.

# of 

Rooms

# of 

Restau-

rants

Enter-  

tain-  

ment

Park-   

ing

 Current Capacity for Existing Casinos

54 Existing Casinos 28,532 271 196 467 3,580 8 1,318,784 57,350 741 79 15 39,912

Casino Expansions in Kansas

1 Sac & Fox Casino - Powhattan 500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Kansas Expansions 500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Casino Expansions in Oklahoma

1 Cherokee Casino- West Siloam Springs 486 10 0 10 0 0 10,000 20,000 140 1 1 0

2 Cherokee Nation Casino - Tulsa 1,788 34 0 34 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3 Kickapoo Casino - McLoud 675 31 0 31 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0

4 Osage Million Dollar Elm - Ponca City 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0

5 Cherokee Casino Resort-Catoosa 732 0 0 0 0 242,000 0 0 2 2 0

Total Oklahoma Expansions 3,681 75 0 75 0 0 252,000 20,000 140 6 3 0

Kansas Proposed Casinos

1 Sumner County Planned 2,000 50 0 50 0 0 0 30,000 275 4 3 3,700

2 Camptown Greyhound Park 600 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2 0 700

3 Cherokee County Planned 1,200 40 0 40 0 0 0 10,000 250 3 2 2,500

4 Ford County Planned 800 20 0 20 0 0 5,000 100 3 3 1,700

Total Kansas Proposed Cassinos 4,600 110 0 110 0 1 0 45,000 625 12 8 8,600

Oklahoma Proposed Casinos

1 Downstream Casino Resort 2,000 30 15 45 0 0 70,000 10,000 240 2 0 2,700

2 First Council Casino 900 8 8 16 0 0 40,000 0 0 2 1 950

3 Ioway Casino Resort 1,500 50 0 50 0 0 0 0 250 3 2 2,500

4 Pawnee Nation Chilocco 1,200 24 0 24 0 0 0 0 150 3 1 1,500

5 Ponca Tribe Oklahoma Planned 500 10 0 10 0 0 50,000 20,000 100 2 0 1,200

6 Seneca-Cayuga Tribes of Oklahoma 1,200 18 0 18 0 0 100,000 0 125 3 1 1,800

7 Shawnee Tribe Oklahoma Planned 2,000 75 0 75 0 0 0 400 3 6 4,800

8 Wichita & Affiliated Tribes Planned 350 5 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 350

Total Kansas Proposed Cassinos 9,650 220 23 243 0 0 260,000 30,000 1,265 19 11 15,800

72 Grand Total 46,963 676 219 895 3,580 9 1,830,784 152,350 2,771 116 37 64,312

Percent Increase Over Current 65% 149% 12% 92% 0% 13% 39% 166% 274% 47% 147% 61%

Data Source:  Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.

The grand total and the percent increase lines reflect the capacity increases that could be

anticipated if all of the proposed casino additions and expansions take place.  The number of

casino locations would increase from 54 to 72.  Key gaming capacity changes include a 65%

increase in slot machines, a 92% increase in the total number of table games, and a 39%

expansion in casino square footage.  Other amenities include a 166% expansion in

convention/meeting space, a 274% escalation in hotel rooms, a 47 % increase in the number

of restaurants, a 147% increase in the number of entertainment venues, and a 61% increase in

parking capacity.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

Wells Gaming Research

May 2008

Section 5



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 5-1

Summary of the Trade Area

For the Southwest Gaming Zone

Highlights of WGR’s study on the southwest trade area (Ford County) are presented directly

below (refer to pages 5-6 through 5-17 for the corresponding detailed analyses and

discussions).

Trade Area

The southwest trade area includes an approximate 100-mile radius of Dodge City, Kansas.  It

extends to Sheridan and Graham Counties, Kansas on the north; the Texas panhandle on the

south taking in parts of Ochiltree and Lipscomb Counties, Texas, as well as Ellis County,

Oklahoma on the south; Hamilton, Stanton, and Morton Counties in Kansas on the west (near

the Colorado border); and Reno County, Kansas on the east.  (For reference, refer to the map

on page 5-2).

Demographic Statistics

The population and median household income statistics included in this report are limited to

those counties included in the southwest trade area and are not representative of the entire

states of Kansas, Oklahoma, or Texas.

Exhibit 5-1 shows that the southwest trade area includes 60 counties (51 in Kansas, seven in

Oklahoma, and two in Texas).  In 2007, these counties had a total adult population of 343

thousand.  Median household incomes (MHI) ranged from a little over $38 thousand in

Oklahoma, to approximately $44 thousand in Kansas, and $45 thousand in Texas.

Exhibit 5-1 Adult Population & Median Household Income (MHI)

2007 2007 2012 ACGR

State

# of 

Counties

Adult 

Population MHI

Adult 

Population MHI

Adult 

Population           

07 to 12

MHI                               

07 to 12

KS 51 284,463 $43,822 280,482 $50,930 -0.3% 3.1%

OK 7 50,021 $38,196 52,359 $42,358 0.9% 2.1%

TX 2 8,518 $44,958 8,919 $52,000 0.9% 3.0%

Total 60 343,002 NA 341,760 NA -0.1% NA

Data Sources: Bureau of Business & Economic Research, UNR & Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.

Adult population forecasts for 2012 were slightly lower than 2007, approximately 342

thousand (the minor decline is expected in Kansas).  The resulting average compound growth

rate (ACGR) for adult population is slightly negative (0.1%) for the 2007 and 2012 period.

The median household income levels for 2012 are forecasted at $42 thousand in Oklahoma,

$51 thousand in Kansas, and $52 thousand in Texas.  The average compound growth rate for



Copyright © and (P) 1988–2006 Microsoft Corporation and/or its suppliers. All rights reserved. http://www.microsoft.com/mappoint/
Portions © 1990–2005 InstallShield Software Corporation. All rights reserved. Certain mapping and direction data © 2005 NAVTEQ. All rights reserved. The Data for areas of Canada includes information taken with permission from Canadian authorities, 
including: © Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Canada, © Queen's Printer for Ontario. NAVTEQ and NAVTEQ ON BOARD are trademarks of NAVTEQ. © 2005 Tele Atlas North America, Inc. All rights reserved. Tele Atlas and Tele Atlas North America are 
trademarks of Tele Atlas, Inc.

Southwest Kansas Zone

0 mi 50 100 150



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 5-3

median household income ranged from 2.1% in Oklahoma, 3.0% in Texas, and to 3.1% in

Kansas for the 2007 to 2012 period.

Primary Market

The primary market for the southwest trade area is made up of the eight counties surrounding

the proposed casino in Ford County.  Exhibit 5-2 shows that the adult population for the

primary market was approximately 61 thousand in 2007, which represented 18% of the total

adult population in the subject trade area.  This adult population segment has been forecasted

to be approximately 62 thousand by 2012.  As a group, the eight counties making up the

primary market are projected to have an average compound growth rate of 0.5% between

2007 and 2012.

Exhibit 5-2  Adult Population for Counties Surrounding Ford County Casino

# of

Counties County Names 2007 2012

ACGR            

07 to 12

% Pop/ Co 

2012

Clark KS 1,723 1,760 0.4% 1%

Edwards KS 1,999 1,777 -2.3% 1%

Ford KS 20,948 21,370 0.4% 6%

Gray KS 4,413 4,904 2.1% 1%

Hodgeman KS 1,589 1,709 1.5% 1%

Kiowa KS 2,238 2,228 -0.1% 1%

Meade KS 3,047 3,014 -0.2% 1%

Finney KS 24,810 25,482 0.5% 7%

8 Total Surrounding Counties 60,767 62,244 0.5% 18%

43

Total Kansas Counties - Excluding 

Surrounding Counties 223,696 218,238 -0.5% 64%

7 Total Oklahoma Counties 50,021 52,359 0.9% 15%

2 Total Texas Counties 8,518 8,919 0.9% 3%

60 Total Trade Area Population 343,002 341,760 -0.1% 100%

Data Sources: Bureau of Business & Economic Research, UNR & Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 5-4

Gaming Capacity & Competition

Casino gaming capacity for the approximate 150-mile radius of the Ford County casino site

is summarized in Exhibit 5-3.  Currently, there is no gaming capacity within this area.  The

casino proposed for Ford County (scenario 1 below) would introduce 800 slots and 20 table

games.  Other amenities would include 100 hotel rooms.

Scenario 2 shows expansions that are planned at four northern Oklahoma casinos.  These

expansions are located beyond the 150-mile radius.  They would not be close enough to add

their capacity to the southwest trade area’s total.  Nonetheless, the gaming facilities could

compete with casinos located in the southwest trade area for casino players.

Exhibit 5-3 Capacity Statistics for the Southwest Trade Area

Casinos
# of 
Slots

# of 
Tables

# of 
Rooms Parking

Existing Capacity - Southwest Gaming Zone 0 0 0 0

Scenario 1 - Capacity for Ford County Casino (Planned) 800 20 100 1,700

Scenario 2 - Expansions in Northern Oklahoma 0 0 0 0

Scenario 3 - Other Proposed (11 Casinos including                                 
Sumner County) 2,000 50 275 3,700

Total Existing, Expansions, & New Casinos 2,800 70 375 5,400

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.

Eleven new casinos have been incorporated into scenario 3.  However, gaming capacity

shown in this schedule reflects only the new Sumner County casino with 2,000 slot machines

and 50 table games.  Assumed amenities include 275 hotel rooms and 3,700 parking spaces.

The remaining new casinos are beyond the 150-mile radius, but are in the gravity model and

compete to a limited extent for business within the southwest trade area.

The total casino capacities include 2,800 slot machines and 70 table games.  Other amenities

include 375 hotel rooms and 5,400 parking spaces.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 5-5

Gaming Revenues

The forecasted gaming revenues that correspond with the foregoing scenarios are

summarized in Exhibit 5-4.  The dollar flows shows where the gaming revenue came from

and where they went.  The current status reflects a loss of $57 million that flowed out of

Kansas into Oklahoma.  Texas also lost $3 million to Oklahoma.  Scenarios 1 through 3

illustrate the gaming revenue that has been forecasted for 2012 given the assumptions of each

scenario.

Exhibit 5-4  Summary of the 2012 Flow of Gaming Revenues
(Dollars in Millions)

Current Status 2007 Scenario-1 2012 Scenario-2 2012 Scenario-3 2012

State
Coming 
From

Going           
To Dif

Coming 
From

Going           
To Dif

Coming 
From

Going           
To Dif

Coming 
From

Going           
To Dif

KS $57 $0 -$57 $102 $44 -$58 $102 $43 -$60 $106 $51 -$55

OK $18 $78 $60 $22 $83 $61 $22 $84 $63 $22 $80 $58

TX $3 $0 -$3 $3 $0 -$3 $3 $0 -$3 $3 $0 -$3

Total $78 $78 $0 $127 $127 $0 $127 $127 $0 $130 $130 $0

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.

The key assumption of scenario 1 is the addition of the new generic casino in Ford County,

which serves to increase the gaming revenues for Kansas from the current level of $57

million to $102 million.  Given the competition, Kansas is only able to retain $44 million.

The revenues flowing into Oklahoma increase to $83 million.

Scenario 2 includes the new casino in Ford County and the expansions at Oklahoma casinos.

The revenue data shows that Kansas continues to generate $102 million, but only retains $43

million for a net loss of $59 million.  Oklahoma continues to generate $22 million, but

receives $84 million for a net gain of $62 million.  Thus, Oklahoma enjoys $60 million

flowing out from Kansas plus another $3 million flowing from Texas.  The bottom line totals

for scenarios 1 and 2 are the same, suggesting that the casino expansions in Oklahoma had

very little impact on bottom line gaming revenues.

The casino is Sumner County, as well as other new casinos in Oklahoma, are added to the

mix in scenario 3.  Overall, gaming revenues increase by $3 million, from $127 million to

$130 million.  Total gaming revenues generated in Kansas increase to $106 million, up by $4

million.  Revenues going to Kansas increased by $8 million, from $43 to $51, thereby cutting

the loss from $60 million to $55 million.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 5-6

Detailed Analyses for the Trade Area

For the Southwest Gaming Zone

Population Statistics

For background reference, WGR compiled both total and adult population statistics for the

100-mile trade area surrounding Ford County.  However, due to the age restrictions on casino

gaming, only the adult population statistics were used to forecast gross gaming revenues.

The total population for the southwest trade area was 504,936 in 2007.  Included were

420,547 in Kansas, 71,610 in Oklahoma, and 12,779 in Texas.

The corresponding adult population totaled 343,002 (68% of the total) in 2007.  The adult

population has been projected to decline to 341,760 by 2012, reflecting a negative annual

growth rate of .04%.

Exhibit 5-5 Total & Adult Population Statistics

2000 Total & Adult 2007 Total & Adult 2012 Total & Adult

ST

# of 

CO Total Adult

Adult          

% of                

Total

Adult            

% of            

Adult            

Total Total Adult

Adult          

% of                

Total

Adult            

% of            

Adult            

Total Total Adult

Adult              

% of            

Total

Adult            

% of            

Adult            

Total

KS 51 435,574 295,274 67.8% 84.2% 420,547 284,463 67.6% 82.9% 415,219 280,482 67.6% 82.1%

OK 7 67,281 47,201 70.2% 13.5% 71,610 50,021 69.9% 14.6% 75,178 52,359 69.6% 15.3%

TX 2 12,063 8,045 66.7% 2.3% 12,779 8,518 66.7% 2.5% 13,385 8,919 66.6% 2.6%

TOT 60 514,918 350,520 68.1% 100.0% 504,936 343,002 67.9% 100.0% 503,782 341,760 67.8% 100.0%

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, May 2008.

In 2007, the total population of the eight counties surrounding Ford County was 96,059.  The

2012 projections increased to 98,219, reflecting an annual growth rate of 0.5%.

Exhibit 5-6 Total Population Statistics for 2000 and 2006-2012

# of         
CO Counties/Parishes 2000 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

ACGR            
07 to 12

% Pop/ 
Co 2012

Clark KS 2,390 2,430 2,441 2,451 2,462 2,472 2,483 2,493 0.5% 3%

Edwards KS 3,449 2,860 2,793 2,728 2,664 2,602 2,542 2,482 -2.8% 3%

Ford KS 32,458 32,666 32,797 32,928 33,059 33,191 33,322 33,456 0.5% 34%

Gray KS 5,904 6,669 6,810 6,956 7,104 7,255 7,410 7,567 2.6% 8%

Hodgeman KS 2,085 2,289 2,323 2,357 2,392 2,427 2,463 2,499 1.8% 3%

Kiowa KS 3,278 3,128 3,125 3,123 3,120 3,117 3,114 3,111 -0.1% 3%

Meade KS 4,631 4,536 4,526 4,516 4,505 4,496 4,486 4,476 -0.3% 5%

Finney KS 40,523 41,024 41,244 41,464 41,687 41,911 42,135 42,135 0.5% 43%

8 Total Surrounding Counties 94,718 95,602 96,059 96,523 96,993 97,471 97,955 98,219 0.5% 100%

43

Total Kansas Counties - 
Excluding Surrounding 

Counties 340,856 326,077 324,488 322,917 321,356 319,810 318,279 317,000 -0.6%

7 Total Oklahoma Counties 67,281 70,946 71,610 72,293 72,987 73,701 74,431 75,178 1.2%

2 Total Texas Counties 12,063 12,664 12,779 12,896 13,014 13,132 13,257 13,385 1.1%

60 Total Trade Area Population 514,918 505,289 504,936 504,629 504,350 504,114 503,922 503,782 -0.1%

Data Sources: Bureau of Business & Economic Research, UNR & Wells Gaming Research, May 2008



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 5-7

In 2007, the adult population in the eight surrounding counties was 60,767.  The adult

population has been projected to grow at an average compound growth rate of 0.6% per year

to 62,244 by 2012.

Exhibit 5-7 Adult Population Statistics for 2000 and 2006-2012

# of 
CO Counties 2000 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

ACGR            
07 to 12

% Pop/ 
Co 2012

Clark KS 1,687 1,715 1,723 1,730 1,738 1,745 1,753 1,760 0.5% 3%

Edwards KS 2,469 2,047 1,999 1,953 1,907 1,863 1,820 1,777 -2.8% 3%

Ford KS 20,731 20,864 20,948 21,031 21,114 21,199 21,283 21,370 0.5% 34%

Gray KS 3,826 4,322 4,413 4,508 4,604 4,702 4,802 4,904 2.6% 8%

Hodgeman KS 1,426 1,566 1,589 1,612 1,636 1,660 1,685 1,709 1.8% 3%

Kiowa KS 2,348 2,241 2,238 2,237 2,235 2,233 2,231 2,228 -0.1% 4%

Meade KS 3,118 3,054 3,047 3,040 3,033 3,027 3,021 3,014 -0.3% 5%

Finney KS 24,507 24,679 24,810 24,944 25,077 25,211 25,346 25,482 0.6% 41%

8 Total Surrounding Counties 60,112 60,488 60,767 61,055 61,344 61,640 61,941 62,244 0.6% 100%

43

Total Kansas Counties - 
Excluding Surrounding 

Counties 235,162 224,812 223,696 222,580 221,482 220,381 219,296 218,238 -0.6%

7 Total Oklahoma Counties 47,201 49,582 50,021 50,469 50,920 51,391 51,870 52,359 1.1%

2 Total Texas Counties 8,045 8,442 8,518 8,595 8,673 8,751 8,834 8,919 1.1%

60 Total Trade Area Population 350,520 343,324 343,002 342,699 342,419 342,163 341,941 341,760 -0.1%

Data Sources: Bureau of Business & Economic Research, UNR & Wells Gaming Research, May 2008

Average Median Household Income

The average median household income (AMHI) statistics in 2007 for counties located within

the three states in the southwest trade area were approximately $44,000 (Kansas), $38,000

(Oklahoma), and $45,000 (Texas).  Based on the stated average compound growth rates for

2012, the median household incomes have been forecasted at approximately $51,000,

$42,000, and $52,000, respectively for the three states.

Exhibit 5-8 Average Median Household Income Statistics for 2000 and 2006-2012

# of CO State 2000 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

ACGR            

07 to 12

51 KS $35,628 $42,537 $43,822 $45,151 $46,524 $47,944 $49,412 $50,930 3.7%

7 OK $33,023 $37,413 $38,196 $38,995 $39,811 $40,643 $41,492 $42,358 2.5%

2 TX $36,765 $43,675 $44,958 $46,281 $47,646 $49,055 $50,505 $52,000 3.6%

Data Sources: Bureau of Business & Economic Research, UNR & Wells Gaming Research, May 2008



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 5-8

Status Quo Casino Revenues & Visitors

for the Southwest Zone’s Trade Area

Status Quo Casino Revenues

The status quo (2007) gaming revenues totaled approximately $78.7 million for the

southwest trade area.  Casino players from Kansas who visit Oklahoma Tribal casinos

located near the southern Kansas border generated over $58 million of this revenue.  Without

any casino expansions or additions in the southwest trade area, gaming revenues would most

likely decline slightly to $77.97 million by 2012.

Exhibit 5-9 Status Quo Gaming Revenues (2007-2012) for the Southwest Trade Area

Revenue 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

All Existing Casinos $78,668,000 $78,512,000 $78,363,000 $78,224,000 $78,093,000 $77,966,000

Total $78,668,000 $78,512,000 $78,363,000 $78,224,000 $78,093,000 $77,966,000

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, May 2008

Status Quo Visitors

The status quo casino visitors totaled approximately 912 thousand.  Absent casino

expansions or additions, visitor counts could also be expected to decrease to approximately

902 thousand by 2012.

Exhibit 5-10 Status Quo Visitors for the Southwest Trade Area

Visitors 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

All Existing Casinos 911,608 909,430 907,306 905,290 903,368 901,512

Total 911,608 909,430 907,306 905,290 903,368 901,512

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, May 2008



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 5-9

Status Quo Estimates of Casino Revenue Flows

The status quo for casino revenue shows what could be expected if no new casino

development occurred in the southwest trade area.  Focusing on 2007, the southwest trade

area generated an estimated $79 million in total gaming revenues.  Of the total, an estimated

$58 million was generated by Kansas residents.  Another $18 million came from Oklahoma,

and approximately $3 million flowed in from Texas.  However, the total amount ($78.7

million) flowed back to Oklahoma.

Exhibit 5-11 Status Quo Casino Revenue Flows (2007-2012) for the Southwest Trade Area

Current Scenario Revenues Coming From

State 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

KS Total $58,101,210 $57,818,892 $57,540,952 $57,267,051 $56,998,266 $56,733,601

OK Total $17,727,675 $17,830,255 $17,932,721 $18,040,946 $18,149,847 $18,261,236

TX Total $2,840,656 $2,865,391 $2,891,123 $2,916,051 $2,943,580 $2,971,027

Total $78,669,541 $78,514,538 $78,364,796 $78,224,048 $78,091,693 $77,965,864

Current Scenario Revenues Going To

State 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

OK Total $78,668,000 $78,512,000 $78,363,000 $78,224,000 $78,093,000 $77,966,000

Total $78,668,000 $78,512,000 $78,363,000 $78,224,000 $78,093,000 $77,966,000

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, May 2008



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 5-10

Status Quo Southwest Trade Area Capacity

The following list of gaming capacity illustrates that there are currently no casinos (gaming

capacity) operating within approximately 150 miles of the casino site in the southwest zone.

Exhibit 5-12 Current Casino Capacity Statistics

Casinos
# of 

Slots

# of        

Pit           

Tables

# of 

Poker 

Tables

# of 

Total 

Tables

# of 

Bingo 

Seats

Race 

Book 

Casino 

S.F.

Con-

vention 

S.F.

# of 

Rooms

# of 

Restau-

rants

Enter 

tain 

ment

Park-  

ing

 Current Capacity for Existing Casinos  Current Capacity for Existing Casinos

Existing Casinos 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Scenario 1 - Ford County Proposed Scenario 1 - Ford County Proposed

Ford County Planned 800 20 0 20 0 0 10,000 100 3 3 1,700

Subtotal Of Scenario 1 800 20 0 20 0 0 0 10,000 100 3 3 1,700

 Scenario 2 - Expansions

Subtotal of Scenario 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 Scenario 3 - Other Proposed

Sumner County Planned 2,000 50 0 50 0 0 30,000 275 4 3 3,700

Subtotal of Scenario 3 2,000 50 0 50 0 0 0 30,000 275 4 3 3,700

Total Expansions & New Casinos 2,800 70 0 70 0 0 0 40,000 375 7 6 5,400

Total Existing, Expansions & New 2,800 70 0 70 0 0 0 40,000 375 7 6 5,400

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, May 2008

Future Capacity with Casino Growth

Casino capacity is being proposed for the future.  Scenario 1, above, includes the new casino

to be located in Ford County, which will be equipped with 800 slot machines and 20 table

games.  Other amenities will include 10,000 square feet of convention/meeting space, 100

hotel rooms, three restaurants, and three entertainment venues, and 1,700 parking spaces.

Even though scenario 2 includes expansions at four casinos located in northern Oklahoma,

the subject casinos are located beyond the 150-radius and are not included in this schedule.

Thus, scenario 2 has been acknowledged above, but does not add any new capacity to the

southwest trade area.

Scenario 3 includes the gaming capacity projected for a casino in Sumner County, which will

be equipped with 2,000 slot machines and 50 gaming tables.  Other amenities include 30,000

square feet of convention/meeting space, 275 hotel rooms, four restaurants, and three

entertainment venues, and 3,700 parking spaces.

Combined, scenarios 1 through 3 would add 2,800 slot machines and 70 table games.  Other

proposed amenities include 40,000 square feet of convention/meeting square footage, 375

hotel rooms, seven restaurants, six entertainment venues, and 5,400 parking spaces.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 5-11

Scenario Analyses for the Southwest Trade Area

Scenario 1

Assumptions

Scenario 1 includes the addition of a casino located at the western edge of Dodge City in Ford

County, Kansas.  The mid case projections are for a casino equipped with 800 slot machines

and 20 table games.  Other proposed amenities include 10,000 square feet of

convention/meeting space, three restaurants, 100 hotel rooms, three entertainment venues (two

small and one large), and 1,700 parking spaces.

Revenue Projections

The following gaming revenue projections include WGR’s 2010 and 2012 low, mid, and high

case forecasts for scenario 1.  The mid case projections show casino gaming revenues of $127

million in 2010 and 2012.  An estimated $44 million would come from the casino in Ford
County and $83 million would come from all existing casinos.

Exhibit 5-13 Revenue Forecasts for Scenario 1

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Ford County (Proposed) $0 $32,263,000 $32,464,000 $44,022,000 $44,239,000 $52,167,000 $52,385,000

All Existing Casinos $78,668,000 $94,991,000 $94,719,000 $83,233,000 $82,950,000 $75,088,000 $74,800,000

Total  Scenario 1 $78,668,000 $127,254,000 $127,183,000 $127,255,000 $127,189,000 $127,255,000 $127,185,000

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, May 2008

Revenue Impacts

Currently, there is no gaming activity in the southwest trade area of Kansas.  The revenue

impacts for the mid case include a total of $49 million.  Minor increases have been projected

for the 2012 gaming revenues.

Exhibit 5-14 Revenue Impacts for Scenario 1

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Ford County (Proposed) $0 $32,263,000 $32,464,000 $44,022,000 $44,239,000 $52,167,000 $52,385,000

All Existing Casinos $0 $16,767,000 $16,753,000 $5,009,000 $4,984,000 -$3,136,000 -$3,166,000

Total  Scenario 1 $0 $49,030,000 $49,217,000 $49,031,000 $49,223,000 $49,031,000 $49,219,000

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, May 2008



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 5-12

Forecasted Flow of Funds

Scenario 1 shows that in 2007 the southwest trade area generated $79 million in total gaming

revenues (refer to the first section of Exhibit 5-15 captioned Scenario 1 Revenues Coming
From).  Of the total, an estimated $58 million (74%), was generated by casino players in

Kansas.  As shown in the scenario 1 mid case for 2007, none of the $58 million stayed in

Kansas.  Rather, it all went to Tribal casinos in Oklahoma (refer to the third section of

Exhibit 5-15 captioned Scenario 1 Mid Case - Revenues Going To).

Kansas has been projected to generated $103 million in 2010; however, the 2010 mid case

shows that Kansas would only retain $44 million, a net loss of $59 million.  An estimated

$83 million would flow back to Oklahoma (the $24 million coming from Oklahoma and

Texas plus the $59 million coming from Kansas).  Assuming no additional competition

enters the market, this trend could be expected to continue through 2012.

Exhibit 5-15 Flows of Gaming Revenue Funds for Scenario 1

Illustrates Where the Gaming Revenues Originated & Where They Went

Scenario 1 - Revenues Coming From

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

KS $58,101,210 74% $57,818,892 $57,540,952 $102,869,150 81% $102,624,581 $102,388,917 81%

OK $17,727,675 23% $17,830,255 $17,932,721 $21,208,264 17% $21,382,157 $21,559,736 17%

TX $2,840,656 4% $2,865,391 $2,891,123 $3,176,700 2% $3,206,939 $3,237,134 3%

Total $78,669,541 100% $78,514,538 $78,364,796 $127,254,114 100% $127,213,677 $127,185,787 100%

Scenario 1 Low Case - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

KS $0 0% $0 $0 $32,263,000 25% $32,362,000 $32,464,000 26%

OK $78,668,000 100% $78,512,000 $78,363,000 $94,991,000 75% $94,851,000 $94,719,000 74%

Total $78,668,000 100% $78,512,000 $78,363,000 $127,254,000 100% $127,213,000 $127,183,000 100%

Scenario 1 Mid Case - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

KS $0 0% $0 $0 $44,022,000 35% $44,129,000 $44,239,000 35%

OK $78,668,000 100% $78,512,000 $78,363,000 $83,233,000 65% $83,085,000 $82,950,000 65%

Total $78,668,000 100% $78,512,000 $78,363,000 $127,255,000 100% $127,214,000 $127,189,000 100%

Scenario 1 High Case - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

KS $0 0% $0 $0 $52,167,000 41% $52,273,000 $52,385,000 41%

OK $78,668,000 100% $78,512,000 $78,363,000 $75,088,000 59% $74,939,000 $74,800,000 59%

Total $78,668,000 100% $78,512,000 $78,363,000 $127,255,000 100% $127,212,000 $127,185,000 100%

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, May 2008



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 5-13

Scenario 2

Assumptions

Scenario 2 incorporates the casino in Ford County included in scenario 1, as well as the

following proposed expansions at Oklahoma casinos:

Oklahoma

 1. Cherokee Casino Resort in Catoosa, OK (January 2009)

 2. Kickapoo Casino in McLoud, OK (January 2009)

 3. Osage Million Dollar Elm in Ponca City, OK (January 2009)

 4. Creek Nation Casino in Tulsa, OK (September 2008

Revenue Projections

The following casino gaming revenue projections include WGR’s low, mid, and high case

forecasts for 2010 and 2012.  The mid case projections show total casino gaming revenues of

approximately $127 million for the 2010 to 2012 period, almost identical to that of scenario

1. The added competition of the Oklahoma expansions simply shifts the distribution between

the two revenue categories.

Exhibit 5-16 Gaming Revenues Projections for Scenario 2

 Includes Scenario 1 Plus the Proposed Expansions

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Ford County (Proposed) $0 $31,126,000 $31,325,000 $42,551,000 $42,767,000 $50,540,000 $50,759,000

All Existing Casinos $78,668,000 $96,128,000 $95,860,000 $84,702,000 $84,419,000 $76,714,000 $76,430,000

Total  Scenario 1 $78,668,000 $127,254,000 $127,185,000 $127,253,000 $127,186,000 $127,254,000 $127,189,000

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, May 2008

Revenue Impacts

The gaming revenue impacts show that the addition of the Oklahoma expansions results in a

negative difference of $ 2,000 between scenarios 1 and 2.

Exhibit 5-17 Revenue Impacts  of  Scenario 2

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Ford County (Proposed) $0 -$1,137,000 -$1,139,000 -$1,471,000 -$1,472,000 -$1,627,000 -$1,626,000

All Existing Casinos $0 $1,137,000 $1,141,000 $1,469,000 $1,469,000 $1,626,000 $1,630,000

Total  Scenario 1 $0 $0 $2,000 -$2,000 -$3,000 -$1,000 $4,000

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, May 2008



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 5-14

Forecasted Flow of Funds

The addition of the casino in Ford County, together with the expansions at Oklahoma Tribal

casinos, would trigger changes in the following revenue flows.  Kansas has been forecasted

to generate approximately $103 million in 2010 (refer to the first section of Exhibit 5-18

captioned Scenario 2 Revenues Coming From).  However, in the 2010 mid case, Kansas has

been projected to retain $43 million (a net loss of $60.5 million).  Refer to the third section of

Exhibit 5-18 captioned Scenario 2 Mid Case - Revenues Going To. Absent additional

competition, the foregoing revenue flows would most likely remain constant through 2012.

Exhibit 5-18 Flows of Gaming Revenue Funds for Scenario 2

Illustrates Where the Gaming Revenues Originated & When They Went

Scenario 2 - Revenues Coming From

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

KS $58,101,210 74% $57,818,892 $57,540,952 $102,869,150 81% $102,624,581 $102,388,917 81%

OK $17,727,675 23% $17,830,255 $17,932,721 $21,208,264 17% $21,382,157 $21,559,736 17%

TX $2,840,656 4% $2,865,391 $2,891,123 $3,176,700 2% $3,206,939 $3,237,134 3%

Total $78,669,541 100% $78,514,538 $78,364,796 $127,254,114 100% $127,213,677 $127,185,787 100%

Scenario 2 Low Case - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

KS $0 0% $0 $0 $31,126,000 24% $31,224,000 $31,325,000 25%

OK $78,668,000 100% $78,517,000 $78,362,000 $96,128,000 76% $95,988,000 $95,860,000 75%

Total $78,668,000 100% $78,517,000 $78,362,000 $127,254,000 100% $127,212,000 $127,185,000 100%

Scenario 2 Mid Case - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

KS $0 0% $0 $0 $42,551,000 33% $42,657,000 $42,767,000 34%

OK $78,668,000 100% $78,517,000 $78,362,000 $84,702,000 67% $84,556,000 $84,419,000 66%

Total $78,668,000 100% $78,517,000 $78,362,000 $127,253,000 100% $127,213,000 $127,186,000 100%

Scenario 3 High Case - Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

KS $0 0% $0 $0 $50,540,000 40% $50,647,000 $50,759,000 40%

OK $78,668,000 100% $78,517,000 $78,362,000 $76,714,000 60% $76,568,000 $76,430,000 60%

Total $78,668,000 100% $78,517,000 $78,362,000 $127,254,000 100% $127,215,000 $127,189,000 100%

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, May 2008



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 5-15

Scenario 3
Assumptions

Scenario 3 includes the assumptions in scenarios 1 and 2, as well as the following casinos

that are proposed for the southwest trade area:

Kansas

 1. Camptown Greyhound Park in Frontenac, KS (January 2009)

 2. Sumner County planned in Wellington, KS (January 2010)

 3. Cherokee County planned in Baxter Springs, KS (January 2010)

Oklahoma

 1. Downstream Casino Resort in Ottawa, OK (Jul 2008)

 2. First Council Casino in Newkirk, OK (Mar 2008)

 3. Ioway Casino Resort in Lincoln, OK (Jan 2009)

 4. Pawnee Nation planned in Chilocco, OK

 5. Ponca Tribe Oklahoma planned in Ponca City, OK

 6. Seneca-Cayuga Tribes of Oklahoma planned in Grove, OK (Jul 2008)

 7. Shawnee Tribe Oklahoma planned in Oklahoma City, OK

 8. Wichita & Affiliated Tribes planned in Hinton, OK

Revenue Projections

Following in Exhibit 5-19 are WGR’s low, mid, and high case casino revenue forecasts for

scenario 3, 2010 and 2012.  The mid case projections show gaming revenues of more than

$130 million for 2010 and 2012.  The estimated revenue allocations project a reduction going

to Ford County, approximately $34 million (down from the $42 to $44 million range

projected in scenarios 2 and 1, respectively).  Other revenue allocations include $41.5 million

allocated to other proposed casinos, and $55 million allocated to all existing casinos.

Exhibit 5-19 Revenues Forecasts for Scenario 3

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Ford County (Proposed) $0 $24,801,000 $24,985,000 $33,969,000 $34,181,000 $40,733,000 $40,957,000

Other Proposed Casinos $0 $45,112,000 $44,903,000 $41,477,000 $41,261,000 $38,779,000 $38,561,000

All Existing Casinos $78,668,000 $60,531,000 $60,432,000 $54,998,000 $54,877,900 $50,933,300 $50,804,100

Total  Scenario 3 $78,668,000 $130,444,000 $130,320,000 $130,444,000 $130,319,900 $130,445,300 $130,322,100

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, May 2008



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 5-16

Revenue Impacts

Following are the combined gaming revenue impacts of scenarios 1 and 2, together with the

expansions proposed in scenario 3.  These include the three casinos in Kansas and the eight

casinos in Oklahoma.  Overall, the changes in gaming revenue would be limited to an

increase of approximately $3.2 million over the totals for scenarios 1 and 2.

Exhibit 5-20 Revenue Impacts for Scenario 3

Includes Scenario 1, the OK Expansions, & Three KS Casinos

Current Low Case Mid Case High Case

2007 2010 2012 2010 2012 2010 2012

*Ford County (Proposed) $0 -$6,325,000 -$6,340,000 -$8,582,000 -$8,586,000 -$9,807,000 -$9,802,000

*Other Proposed Casinos $0 $45,112,000 $44,903,000 $41,477,000 $41,261,000 $38,779,000 $38,561,000

All Existing Casinos $0 -$35,597,000 -$35,428,000 -$29,704,000 -$29,541,100 -$25,780,700 -$25,625,900

Total  Scenario 3 $0 $3,190,000 $3,135,000 $3,191,000 $3,133,900 $3,191,300 $3,133,100

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, May 2008



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 5-17

Forecasted Flow of Funds

WGR’s projections for shifts in casino revenue flows, given the assumptions of scenario 3,

are summarized in Exhibit 5-21.  Projections for Kansas include $106 million 2010 (refer to

the first section of Exhibit 5-21 captioned Scenario 3 Revenues Coming From).  In the 2010

mid case estimates, less than one-half ($51 million) would go to Kansas. The net loss to

Kansas has been estimated at $55 million (refer to the third section of  Exhibit 5-21 captioned

Scenario 3 Mid Case - Revenues Going To).  Oklahoma and Texas combined are projected to

generate $24.3 million in 2010.  However, nearly $80 million would flow back to Oklahoma

in the mid case.  Without additional changes in the southwest trade area’s gaming market, the

2010 forecasts could be expected to remain constant through 2012.

Exhibit 5-21 Flows of Gaming Revenue Funds for Scenario 3

Illustrates Where the Gaming Revenue Originated & Where They Went

Scenario 3 - Revenues Coming From

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

KS $58,101,210 74% $57,917,795 $57,639,207 $106,059,235 81% $105,785,654 $105,521,431 81%

OK $17,727,675 23% $17,832,355 $17,934,814 $21,210,349 16% $21,384,236 $21,561,807 17%

TX $2,840,656 4% $2,865,391 $2,891,123 $3,176,700 2% $3,206,939 $3,237,134 2%

Total $78,669,541 100% $78,615,541 $78,465,144 $130,446,284 100% $130,376,829 $130,320,372 100%

Scenario 3 - Low Case Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

KS $0 0% $0 $645,000 $42,730,000 33% $42,751,000 $42,774,000 33%

OK $78,668,000 100% $78,617,000 $77,820,000 $87,714,000 67% $87,628,000 $87,546,000 67%

Total $78,668,000 100% $78,617,000 $78,465,000 $130,444,000 100% $130,379,000 $130,320,000 100%

Scenario 3 - Mid Case Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

KS $0 0% $0 $645,000 $50,634,000 39% $50,668,000 $50,706,000 39%

OK $78,668,000 100% $78,617,000 $77,820,000 $79,810,000 61% $79,712,000 $79,613,900 61%

Total $78,668,000 100% $78,617,000 $78,465,000 $130,444,000 100% $130,380,000 $130,319,900 100%

Scenario 3 - High Case Revenues Going To

State 2007 % 2007 2008 2009 2010 % 2010 2011 2012 % 2012

KS $0 0% $0 $645,000 $56,446,000 43% $56,485,000 $56,531,000 43%

OK $78,668,000 100% $78,617,000 $77,820,000 $73,999,300 57% $73,888,300 $73,791,100 57%

Total $78,668,000 100% $78,617,000 $78,465,000 $130,445,300 100% $130,373,300 $130,322,100 100%

Data Source: Wells Gaming Research, May 2008



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

Wells Gaming Research

May 2008

Section 6



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 6-1

Information on Wells Gaming Research & Richard H. Wells

Following is detailed information regarding Wells Gaming Research’s many services, as well

as personal information about Richard H. Wells, WGR’s president:

• Professional Services Offered (page 6-2)

• Casino Feasibility Studies (page 6-3)

• Casino Gaming Market Studies (page 6-3)

• Competitive Gaming Equipment Inventories (page 6-4)

• Litigation & Legislative Support (page 6-4)

• Marketing Research (page 6-4)

• Marketing Surveys (page 6-5)

• Market & Financial Due Diligence (page 6-5)

• Financial Benchmark Studies (page 6-5)

• Special Projects (page 6-5)

• Other Casino Gaming Services (page 6-6)

• Corporate Background (page 6-6)

• Online Casino Player Count Service™ (page 6-7)

• Richard H. Wells, Experience and Qualifications (page 6-8)

• Client List, including current and previous WGR clients (page 6-9)



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 6-2

Professional Services Offered:

Wells Gaming Research (hereinafter referred to as WGR) is a highly respected provider of a

wide-range of research and advisory services for the casino gaming industry.

Casino Player Count Service™:

WGR's Casino Player Count Service™ has become the standard for measuring relative

player count performance within the casino gaming industry.  Our player count service is

widely used by casinos, as well as by equity analysts who track public gaming companies.

WGR’s weekly online player count reports are accompanied by a host of powerful, user

friendly analytical tools that make it quick and easy for a client casino to monitor the

competition.  Client casinos can log on to WGR’s website and evaluate their competitors

using the following performance criteria:

• Casino rankings based on player count volume

• Number of table game and/or slot machine players

• Percent distribution of players

• Gaming capacity inventory for both table games and slot machines

• Percent distribution of market capacity

• Percent of capacity utilized

• User defined market fair share percentages

Fair Share Goal Setting Targets for User Defined Markets

One of the newest and most exciting features of WGR’s Casino Player Count Service™ is

fair share goal setting for user-defined markets.  WGR’s online player count service

automatically calculates the number of players required for a casino to reach a series of fair

market share targets (for example, 100%, 105%, and 110%).

Gaming Capacity Inventories

WGR updates the gaming capacity inventory statistics for the player count service on a

quarterly basis.  Client casinos can easily monitor capacity adjustments for both table games

and slot machines for their casino, as well as for their competitors.  WGR’s website also

provides a capacity trend analysis feature.

Equity Analysts

Equity analysts use WGR’s Casino Player Count Service™ reports to monitor player counts

for individual casinos owned by public companies, and to track entire market areas.  WGR’s

player count statistics are also given consideration by equity analysts when forecasting

quarterly casino revenues.

Data Collection for WGR’s Casino Player Count Service

WGR’s field representatives physically count casino players five or more times per week in

164 casinos located throughout the U.S.  WGR’s current player count service areas include

California, Louisiana, Mississippi, Nevada, and New Mexico.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 6-3

Casino Feasibility Studies

WGR’s databases contain a detailed history of casino player counts collected in eleven major

gaming markets located throughout the U.S.  This exclusive player count information

provides WGR with a proprietary resource that is unmatched for projecting player volume,

which is a key variable in the revenue function.

WGR has conducted casino feasibility studies and financial projections for a number of new

casinos, including those proposed in:

• Mississippi – Tunica.

• Nevada  - Las Vegas  (the Strip, the Offstrip, and North Las Vegas), as well as for

Reno, Henderson, and Jackpot.

• Nova Scotia - Halifax and Sydney.

Casino Gaming Market Studies

WGR’s databases contain over 350,000 casino player counts collected between 1990 and

2007.  Capacity information is collected and updated regularly on each casino’s inventory

capacity mix of slot machines and table games.  The player count data allows WGR to track

individual casinos, groups of casinos, and casino markets more closely and accurately than

any other organization except the state gaming regulatory authorities.

WGR has developed a custom casino gravity modeling system designed to forecast casino

revenues while taking into account the impacts that new or expanded competing casinos

could have on the project.  The model is customized to include the appropriate trade area and

competitive casinos for each project.

 Major market studies include:

• Las Vegas, Nevada area (Strip, Offstrip, North Las Vegas, & Henderson)

• Reno & Sparks, Nevada

• Minden/Gardnerville, Nevada

• Carson City, Nevada

• Northern California

• South Lake Tahoe

• Mississippi (Tunica, Natchez, & Vicksburg)

• Shreveport, Louisiana

• Iowa (Spencer, Ottumwa, Emmetsburg, Waterloo, Davenport, & Bettendorf)

• Sugar Creek, Missouri

• Southern Kansas

• Southern Indiana

• North-East Kentucky



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 6-4

Competitive Gaming Equipment Inventories

WGR conducts capacity inventories of slot machines, electronic player tracking systems, and

other gaming equipment located in casinos throughout the U.S.  The client selects the casinos

to be inventoried.  Then, WGR conducts the equipment inventories and does the comparative

analyses.  WGR's clients include both casinos and major slot machine manufacturers.  Slot

machine inventory projects include:

• 38 Tribal casinos in California.

• 108,000 slot machines located in 50 U.S. casinos, as well as five Canadian casinos

(inventories are conducted twice each year).

• 18,000 slot machines located in eight large Las Vegas casinos.

Litigation & Legislative Support

WGR provides a host of gaming related services to attorneys in the form of:

• Financial and market analyses

• Expert testimony and depositions

• Analyses of opposing expert reports

• Development of questions for depositions

• Development of exhibits for use in court

• Competitive analyses for anti-trust issues

• Exhibits, documents, and expert testimony for legislative issues

Marketing Research

WGR has conducted a wide variety of gaming related marketing research studies for casino

clients, as well as for proprietary internal use.  For example, WGR has analyzed:

• The demographics and gambling characteristics of golfers on a nationwide basis.

• The gambling and demographic characteristics of local residents in both Reno and

Las Vegas.

• The growth of various forms of gaming in Reno's four major feeder markets

(California, Oregon, Washington, and British Columbia).



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 6-5

Marketing Surveys

Recent market research surveys include:

• 600 Las Vegas Strip visitors for a casino client

• 465 slot directors for a slot manufacturer

• 900 gaming establishments for a slot manufacturer

• 600 telephone inquiries to casino slot departments regarding online slot machine

systems

Market & Financial Due Diligence

WGR is well positioned to assist casino buyers in evaluating gaming markets in terms of:

• Competition

• Financial and operating performance

• Improvement potential of casino acquisition candidates

Financial Benchmark Studies

WGR conducts financial benchmark studies for existing casinos.  Both revenue and expense

line items are compared with a casino's peer group of competitors.  Differences are flagged.

One such study greatly aided the Client in improving its financial performance and in turning

losses into profits.

Special Projects

WGR conducts special projects on an ongoing basis.  Some examples include:

• Casino market supply and demand analyses

• Slot and table game trends

• Casino player trend analyses

• Utilization analyses (table games including Caribbean Stud and Let-It-Ride, as well

as slot machines and automatic shuffler)

• Competitive analyses of slot machine inventories and utilization

• Table game instruction programs

• Average bets by table minimums for blackjack and craps

• Player counts by ethnic groups



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 6-6

Other Casino Gaming Services

Slot Payback Certification

WGR provides verification and certification of win percentages for slot machines and video

poker machines.  Casinos have successfully used the win percentages in advertising

campaigns.

Pedestrian Traffic Counts

WGR has conducted pedestrian traffic studies to determine pedestrian volumes, directions,

and other characteristics of pedestrian traffic behavior in targeted areas in Las Vegas and

Reno.  Two specific locations were the intersection of Las Vegas Boulevard and Tropicana

Avenue in Las Vegas and on Virginia Street in downtown Reno.

Special Event Attendance

WGR conducts attendance counts at special events, primarily in Nevada (Reno, Las Vegas,

and Laughlin) for convention authorities and other clients.  WGR has conducted attendance

counts at most of Reno’s special events.

Corporate Background

WGR was established in 1990.  In 1995, WGR was incorporated under the laws of the State

of Nevada.

WGR is a privately held corporation.  The principal officers include Richard H. Wells,

President and Peggy P. Wells, Vice President and Secretary/Treasurer.

WGR’s president, Richard H. Wells, has over thirty years of experience in conducting

financial and market feasibility studies for the casino, hotel, banking, and oil and gas

industries.  Wells is supported by a well-trained staff with experience and expertise in

computer programming, finance, economics, and market analyses.

In addition to the staff, WGR subcontracts, on an as-needed basis, with highly qualified and

respected professionals who specialize in a wide-range of technical disciplines including

marketing research, statistics, demographic statistics and data analyses, economic and social

impact analyses, and legal counsel.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 6-7

Online Casino Player Count Service™

WGR has converted its player count reporting system from a weekly hard copy report to a

suite of powerful, online, easy-to-use reporting and analysis tools.  The Internet now makes it

possible for WGR to share these tools with our clients.

WGR is not only providing its Casino Player Count Service™ Reports online via the

Internet, we are also providing our clients with a host of online analytical tools.  For

example, WGR’s clients can now select a specific set of competitive casinos and time

periods to conduct custom analyses.

A total of seven (7) online reporting menu options are offered:

 1. Monthly

 2. Weekly

 3. Daily

 4. Multi-Month Trend Analysis

 5. User Defined Two-Period Comparisons

 6. Capacity Trend Analysis

 7. Average Counts by Day-of-Week or Time-of-Day

Four (4) options are provided for viewing, downloading, and printing the user defined

reports:

 1. Web Browser,

 2. Tab Delimited Download (Excel or other spreadsheet compatible)

 3. PDF file uncompressed

 4. PDF file compressed (ZIP)

Weekend player counts are now available to our clients by Monday afternoon, 5PM Pacific

Time.  All weekly player count data is audited and finalized by Thursday afternoon, 5PM

Pacific Time.  This puts the player count data in the clients’ hands several days earlier than

the hard copy reports.

Online Access & Client Training:

Each person in our Client's organization who needs access to WGR online service will be

assigned a username and password for secure website access.  WGR's clients are allowed an

unlimited number of users, at no additional cost.

WGR will conduct a training session to acquaint Client users with the new online system.

WGR's new online reporting system is easy-to-use and quick at creating user defined custom

player count reports.  A half-hour training/orientation session is all that is needed for a user

to get started with WGR's new online reporting system.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 6-8

Richard H. Wells, Experience & Qualifications

Wells is founder and president of Wells Gaming

Research, a Nevada Corporation that provides

Casino Player Count Service™, a market share

tracking service, to over 160 casino clients in

Nevada, Mississippi, Louisiana, New Mexico, and

California.

Wells Gaming Research also performs a wide range

of consulting and gaming research assignments

including casino market studies, financial feasibility

studies, financial projections, due diligence,

litigation support, legislative issue support, and

gaming industry expert witness services for the

gaming industry.

Wells has fifteen years experience as a senior executive in the casino-hotel industry with

Holiday Inns, Harrah’s, and Bally’s.  Wells has also held positions in management, planning,

and financial analysis for a large regional bank and a major international oil company.

Wells has a B.S. degree in business from Oklahoma State University and completed a post-

graduate program in Systems Dynamics at M.I.T.  Wells has participated in a wide range of

community service activities and is listed in Marquis Who’s Who in Finance and Industry

and Marquis Who's Who in America.



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 6-9

Wells Gaming Research Client List
(Current and/or Prior Customers)

Aladdin Gaming, LLC: GEM, LLC ~ Reno, Nevada

Aladdin Resort & Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada Harrah's Casino Hotel ~ Lake Tahoe, Nevada

Ameristar Casinos, Inc. ~ Las Vegas, Nevada Harrah's Casino Hotel ~ Laughlin, Nevada

Alamo Travel Center ~ Sparks, Nevada Harrah's Hotel Casino ~ Reno, Nevada

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. ~ Las Vegas, Nevada Harrah's Hotel Casino ~ Tunica, Mississippi

Arizona Charlie's Casino Hotel ~ Las Vegas, Nevada Hollywood Casino ~ Tunica, Mississippi

Arizona Charlie's East Casino Hotel  ~ Las Vegas, Nevada Horseshoe Casino & Hotel ~ Bossier City, Louisiana

Avi Resort & Casino ~ Laughlin, Nevada Innovative Gaming Corporation of America

Baldini's Sports Casino ~ Reno, Nevada International Gaming Technology

Bear Stearns Companies, Inc. Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc.:

Binion's Horseshoe ~ Tunica, Mississippi Isle of Capri Casino ~ Bossier City, Louisiana

Boyd Gaming Corporation: Isle of Capri Casino ~ Biloxi, Mississippi

California Hotel & Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada Isle of Capri Casino - Lula, Mississippi

Fremont Hotel & Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada Isle of Capri Casino - Vicksburg, Mississippi

Main Street Station Hotel Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada Isleta Casino & Resort - Albuquerque, New Mexico

Sam's Town Hotel & Gambling Hall ~ Las Vegas, NV ITT Sheraton Gaming Division

Sam's Town Tunica Hotel & Gambling Hall ~ Tunica, MS John Ascuaga's Nugget ~ Reno, Nevada

Stardust Resort & Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada Lady Luck Hotel Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada

Bronco Billy's Sports Bar & Casino ~ Cripple Creek, CO Little Creek Casino ~ Shelton, Washington

Caesars Palace Hotel & Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada Majestic Star Casinos:

Cannery Casino Hotel ~ Las Vegas, Nevada Fitzgeralds Hotel Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada

Clay County Gaming Initiative, Inc. ~ Clay Co, Iowa Fitzgeralds Hotel Casino ~ Tunica, Mississippi

Club Cal-Neva/Virginian Hotel Casino ~ Reno, Nevada Mandalay Resort Group:

Coast Hotel & Casinos, Inc.: Circus Circus Hotel Casino ~ Reno, Nevada

Gold Coast Hotel Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada Circus Circus Hotel Resort & Casino ~ Las Vegas, NV

Suncoast Hotel & Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada Colorado Belle Hotel & Casino ~ Laughlin, Nevada

The Orleans Hotel & Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada Edgewater Hotel & Casino ~ Laughlin, Nevada

Copa Casino ~ Gulfport, Mississippi Excalibur Resort Hotel & Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada

DRKW - Grantchester, Inc. ~ New York, New York Gold Strike Casino & Resort ~ Tunica, Mississippi

Eldorado Hotel Casino ~ Reno, Nevada Luxor Resort Hotel & Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada    

Fallon Paiute-Shoshone Tribe ~ Fallon, Nevada Mandalay Bay Resort & Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada

Fidelity Investments ~ Boston Monte Carlo Resort & Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada

Fitzgeralds Hotel Casino ~ Reno, Nevada Silver City ~ Las Vegas, Nevada

Four Queens Hotel Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada Silver Legacy Resort & Casino ~ Reno, Nevada

Greenspun Corporation ~ Las Vegas, Nevada Slots-A-Fun  ~  Las Vegas, Nevada

Guild, Russell, Gallagher, & Fuller, LTD ~ Reno, Nevada Monarch Casino & Resort, Inc.:

Galleria Associates ~ Henderson, Nevada Atlantis Casino Resort ~ Reno, Nevada

Golden Phoenix Hotel Casino ~ Reno, Nevada



Kansas Casino Market Study & Gaming Revenue Projections

May 2008 Wells Gaming Research Page 6-10

Wells Gaming Research Client List (Continued)
(Current and/or Prior Customers)

Mikhon Gaming Corporation Ramada Inn Speakeasy Casino ~ Reno, Nevada

Nevada Resort Association ~ Las Vegas, Nevada Rampart Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada

MGM • Mirage: Reno/Sparks Convention & Visitor’s Authority

Beau Rivage Hotel & Casino ~ Biloxi, Mississippi Rio Suite Hotel Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada

Bellagio Hotel & Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada River Palms Resort Casino ~ Laughlin, Nevada

Golden Nugget Hotel & Casino ~ Laughlin, Nevada Riverside Resort Hotel Casino ~ Laughlin, Nevada

MGM Grand Hotel Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada Riviera Hotel & Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada

New York New York Hotel & Casino ~ Las Vegas, NV Sands Regency Hotel Casino ~ Reno, Nevada

The Mirage Hotel & Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada Seven Circle Resorts, Inc.

Treasure Island at the Mirage ~ Las Vegas, Nevada Sheraton Casino ~ Halifax, Novia Scotia

Palms Casino Hotel ~ Las Vegas, Nevada Sheraton Hotel Casino ~ Tunica, Mississippi

Park Place Entertainment: Showboat Hotel Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada

Bally's Casino Las Vegas ~ Las Vegas, Nevada Si Redd's Oasis Hotel & Casino ~ Mesquite, Nevada

Bally's Casino Tunica ~ Tunica, Mississippi Silicon Gaming, Inc.

Flamingo Las Vegas ~ Las Vegas, Nevada Silver Club Hotel Casino ~ Sparks, Nevada

Flamingo Laughlin ~ Laughlin, Nevada Silverton Hotel & Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada

Grand Casino Biloxi ~ Biloxi, Mississippi Station Casinos, Inc.:

Grand Casino Gulfport ~ Gulfport, Mississippi Boulder Station Hotel & Casino ~ Las Vegas, NV

Grand Casino Tunica ~ Tunica, Mississippi Fiesta Henderson ~ Las Vegas, Nevada

Las Vegas Hilton ~ Las Vegas, Nevada Fiesta Rancho Casino Hotel ~ Las Vegas, Nevada

Oshea's ~ Las Vegas, Nevada Green Valley Ranch Resort & Spa ~ Las Vegas, NV

Paris Las Vegas ~ Las Vegas, Nevada Palace Station Hotel & Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada

Reno Hilton ~  Reno, Nevada Santa Fe Station Hotel Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada

Sheraton Casino ~ Tunica, Mississippi Sunset Station Hotel & Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada

Peppermill, Inc.: Texas Station Gambling Hall & Hotel ~ Las Vegas, NV

Peppermill Hotel Casino ~ Reno, Nevada Stratosphere Casino Hotel & Tower ~ Las Vegas, Nevada

Western Village Inn & Casino ~ Sparks, Nevada Terrible's Casino Hotel ~ Las Vegas, Nevada

Penn National Gaming, Inc. Thunder Valley Casino ~ Lincoln, California

Boomtown Casino ~ Biloxi, Mississippi Treasure Bay Casino Resort ~ Biloxi, Mississippi

Casino Magic ~ Bay St. Louis, Mississippi Tropicana Hotel Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada

Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc.: Tuscany Hotel & Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada

Boomtown Hotel • Casino • RV Park ~ Reno, Nevada Venetian Resort Hotel Casino ~ Las Vegas, Nevada

Casino Magic ~ Biloxi, Mississippi WMS Gaming Inc. ~ Waukegan, Illinois

Boomtown Casino ~ Bossier City, Louisiana Wild Game NG:

R&R Advertising Siena Hotel Spa & Casino ~ Reno, Nevada

Rail City Casino ~ Sparks Wynne Resorts, LTD ~ Las Vegas, Nevada

Ramada Express Hotel & Casino ~ Laughlin, Nevada Zeh Saint-Aubin Spoo ~ Reno, Nevada



Kansas Lottery Gaming Facility Review Board 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 
 

DATE OF MEETING: June 3, 2008 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Discussion, consideration and possible action on: 

a. Amending July 23 and 24 meeting dates to July 24 and 25. 
b. Requesting from the governor 60-day extensions for the 

southeast, south central, southwest and northeast gaming zones. 
c. Adoption of zone meeting locations and meeting times. 
d. Adoption of zone meeting schedules. 
e. Adoption of a Lottery Gaming Facility Review Board budget 

and assessments to each prospective lottery gaming facility 
manager. 

f. Implementing the provisions of K.S.A. 74-8736(d)(2). 
 
PRESENTERS:   Stephen Martino, Executive Director,  

Jay Hall, Review Board Liaison 
 
ISSUE SUMMARIES:  

 
a. A conflict arose for the July 23 and 24 meeting dates. This can be resolved by shifting the 

meeting from July 23 and 24 to July 24 and 25. 
 
b. The Expanded Lottery Act gives the Lottery Gaming Facility Review Board 60 days within 

which to make its determination regarding the “best possible contract” in each gaming zone.  
K.S.A. 74-8736(f)  That 60-day clock began May 6 for the southeast zone and May 28 for the 
other three zones. During the April 11 telephone meeting, the Review Board approved a 
schedule with the understanding that it would request the statutorily allowed extensions from 
the governor. This request is to formalize that intent.  The Lottery Commission earlier sought 
and received 60-day extensions to negotiate contracts with prospective managers in each 
zone. 

 
c. KRGC staff has secured locations for each of the zone meetings to facilitate presentations by 

the potential managers as well as public comment. The attached listing of locations has been 
selected for zone meetings with fairness and convenience in mind.  

 
d. To ensure a fair process for each applicant, the zone meetings presentations by prospective 

lottery gaming facility managers should follow an established protocol. The format for these 
presentations will be forwarded to each prospective manager so that bidders can prepare their 
presentation consistent with the requirements of the Review Board and provide the board 
with common information and comparisons. 

 

06.03.2008  Staff Agenda Memo 



The following meeting protocol is offered for consideration: 
 

i. Prospective manager:  90 minutes 
1. The following matters must be addressed during the presentation (though not 

necessarily in this order): 
a. Revenue projections of facility 
b. Ability to attract tourism 
c. Class III gaming management experience 
d. Ability to raise capital to start and maintain the project 
e. Ability to increase capacity of gaming if market demands allow 
f. Concept and architecture of facility 
g. Marketing strategy 
h. Development timeline 
i. Approach to regulatory compliance 
j. Use of temporary facilities 
k. Limit all comments and timelines to Phase 1 of project  

ii. Lottery Commission:  30 minutes 
iii. Endorsing authority:  15 minutes 
iv. Public comments 

1. Public comments will be limited to 90 minutes per gaming zone, starting no 
later than 30 minutes after the conclusion of the final presentation.  Comments 
will be limited to no more than 2 minutes per person, and all persons addressing 
the board must sign-up in advance in a manner established by the executive 
director.  The board chairman has the authority to cut short any comment that he 
deems duplicative or threatening. 

  
e. K.S.A. 74-8735(h) allows the Review Board to assess prospective lottery gaming facility 

managers for costs related to the Lottery Gaming Facility Review Board. KRGC staff has 
developed a budget to account for all known costs associated with the board’s operations.  
The lottery has negotiated 11 total contracts in all zones.  At this time, staff is reviewing the 
budget and seeking potential savings in light of the withdrawal of one applicant in the south 
central gaming zone.  An assessment amount will be recommended before the June 3 
meeting.  Any assessment should be due within 10 business days of board action, and any 
outstanding balances would be returned to all prospective managers in equal shares without 
interest. 

 
f. K.S.A. 74-8736(d)(2) gives the Lottery Gaming Facility Review Board the discretion to refer 

any contract back to the Lottery Commission if the Board determines that the contract is not 
the “best possible contract.”  Some prospective managers have inquired about what the 
policy of the board might be in returning contracts, such as whether all contracts from a zone 
will be returned or if only one or some will be sent back for further negotiations if all are 
found unsuitable.  To add clarity to the process, the procedure for referring contracts back to 
the Lottery Commission for further negotiation would benefit from discussion.  

 

06.03.2008  Staff Agenda Memo 



06.03.2008  Staff Agenda Memo 

BOARD ACTION REQUESTED/REQUIRED: 
 
a. Approve the amendment to the schedule, changing the July 23 and 24 meeting to July 24 and 

25. 
 
b. Authorize the executive director to request an extension from the governor in accordance 

with K.S.A. 8736 (f) 
  
c. Adopt the location and times for zone meetings. 
 
d. Adopt a format for zone meeting presentations. 
 
e. Adopt the proposed budget for the Lottery Gaming Facility Review Board and authorize the 

executive director to assess the expenses to prospective managers as outlined, in accordance 
with K.S.A. 74-8735(h). 

 
f. Discussion, consideration and possible action on a policy to refer lottery gaming facility 

management contracts back to the Kansas Lottery Commission for further negotiation, if 
necessary.  



Lottery Gaming Facility Review Board 
In-Zone Meeting Location 

 
 
July 9, 2008 
Southeast zone 
 
Columbus –    Community Building  

320 East Maple  
Columbus, Kansas 66725 

 
 
July 10-11, 2008 
South central zone 
 
Belle Plaine –    Belle Plaine High School 
    822 North Merchant 
    Belle Plaine, Kansas 67013 
 
 
July 31, 2008 
Southwest zone 
 
Dodge City –    Dodge City Civic Center 
    2110 First Avenue 
    Dodge City, Kansas 67801 
 
 
August 13-15 
Northeast zone 
 
Kansas City –    Kansas City, Kansas, Community College Theatre 
    7250 State Avenue 
    Kansas City, Kansas 66112 
    



Actual Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate FY Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Etimate Estimate FY
Jan Feb Mar April May June 2008 July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 2009 Total

Expenditure/Estimates

Salaries
LGFRB Salaries 4,320 54,776 23,500 23,500 23,500 23,500 153,097 28,500 28,500 28,500 28,500 28,500 28,500 171,000 324,097

0 0
    TOTAL SALARIES 4,320 54,776 23,500 23,500 23,500 23,500 153,097 28,500 28,500 28,500 28,500 28,500 28,500 171,000 324,097

Travel
Airfare  ^ 0 3,300 4,950 8,250 0 8,250
Lodging 0 754 2,250 500 2,000 5,504 20,000 16,500 11,000 500 500 500 49,000 54,504
Mileage 168 235 550 677 725 725 3,080 6,500 2,000 1,500 725 725 725 12,175 15,255
Meals/Subsistance 15 126 684 1,053 250 250 2,378 2,525 1,400 550 250 250 250 5,225 7,603
Misc. 0 700 700 700 700 2,800 700 700 700 700 200 200 3,200 6,000

TOTAL TRAVEL 183 361 5,988 9,630 2,175 3,675 22,012 29,725 20,600 13,750 2,175 1,675 1,675 69,600 91,612

Contractual Services
William Eadington, Ph.D 0 27,500 27,500 41,500 96,500 45,500 45,500 45,500 136,500 233,000
Cummings Associates 0 25,000 25,000 27,000 77,000 32,000 32,000 32,194 96,194 173,194
Hawkins Consulting Services 0 6,600 2,200 8,800 0 8,800
Meridian Business Advisors 0 10,000 10,000 19,000 39,000 30,000 30,000 30,189 90,189 129,189
Wells Gaming Research 0 24,000 24,000 35,000 83,000 31,000 31,000 31,700 93,700 176,700
John Mills 7,000 7,000 11,000 25,000 16,000 16,000 16,016 48,016 73,016
Probe Strategy Group 30,000 30,000 39,000 99,000 45,000 45,000 45,400 135,400 234,400
Professional Fees Misc 902 1,651 1,651 500 500 1,800 7,004 9,000 10,800 9,000 1,500 1,500 1,000 32,800 39,804
Supplies 91 170 200 200 200 200 1,061 500 500 500 200 200 200 2,100 3,161
Meeting Room Rental 250 250 250 250 1,000 2,000 3,500 4,900 3,500 500 500 500 13,400 15,400

0 0 0
TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SVS 1,243 1,821 2,101 131,050 126,650 175,500 438,365 212,500 215,700 213,999 2,200 2,200 1,700 648,299 1,086,664

Background Checks  * 50,000 50,000 0 50,000

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,746 56,958 31,589 214,180 152,325 202,675 663,474 270,725 264,800 256,249 32,875 32,375 31,875 888,899 1,552,372

*Don Brownlee estimated the cost to perform Security Backgrounds for the Review borad to be approximately $50,000.
^The only out of state travel budgeted is the Las Vegas trips.

Lottery Gaming Facility Review Board Budget
January 1, 2008 thru December 31, 2008


	2008-06-03 LGFRB Agenda
	Page 2

	WEC - Projections for Gaming Potential
	Gaming Potential
	Table of Contents and Appendices
	List of Exhibits
	Executive Summary
	Exhibit A

	1.  Introduction 
	2.  The Gravity-Model Methodology
	3.  Major Assumptions
	3. Projected Gaming Revenues 
	4.  Conclusions as to Market Potential
	Bibliography
	Exhibits
	Exhibit 1
	Exhibit 2
	Exhibit 3
	Exhibit 4
	Exhibit 5
	Exhibit 6
	Exhibit 7
	Exhibit 8
	Exhibit 9
	Exhibit 10
	Exhibit 11
	Exhibit 12
	Exhibit 13
	Exhibit 14
	Exhibit 15
	Exhibit 16
	Exhibit 17
	Exhibit 18
	Exhibit 19
	Exhibit 20
	Exhibit 21

	Appendices - Projections for Market Potential
	Appendix A
	List of Exhibits
	Exhibit A-1
	Exhibit A-2
	Exhibit A-3
	Exhibit A-4
	Exhibit A-5
	Exhibit A-6
	Exhibit A-7
	Exhibit A-8
	Exhibit A-9
	Exhibit A-10
	Exhibit A-11
	Exhibit A-12
	Exhibit A-13
	Exhibit A-14
	Exhibit A-15
	Exhibit A-16
	Exhibit A-17
	Exhibit A-18
	Exhibit A-19
	Exhibit A-20

	Appendix B
	List of Exhibits
	Exhibit B-1
	Exhibit B-2
	Exhibit B-3
	Exhibit B-4
	Exhibit B-5
	Exhibit B-6
	Exhibit B-7
	Exhibit B-8
	Exhibit B-9
	Exhibit B-10
	Exhibit B-11
	Exhibit B-12
	Exhibit B-13
	Exhibit B-14
	Exhibit B-15
	Exhibit B-16
	Exhibit B-17
	Exhibit B-18
	Exhibit B-18B
	Exhibit B-18c
	Exhibit B-19
	Exhibit B-19b
	Exhibit B-19c
	Exhibit B-20
	Exhibit B-20b
	Exhibit B-20c

	Appendix C
	List of Exhibits
	Exhibit C-1
	Exhibit C-2
	Exhibit C-3
	Exhibit C-4
	Exhibit C-5
	Exhibit C-6
	Exhibit C-7
	Exhibit C-8
	Exhibit C-9
	Exhibit C-10
	Exhibit C-11
	Exhibit C-12
	Exhibit C-13
	Exhibit C-14
	Exhibit C-14b
	Exhibit C-14c
	Exhibit C-15�
	Exhibit C-16
	Exhibit C-17
	Exhibit C-18
	Exhibit C-18b
	Exhibit C-18c

	Appendix D
	List of Exhibits
	Exhibit D-1
	Exhibit D-2
	Exhibit D-3
	Exhibit D-4
	Exhibit D-5
	Exhibit D-6
	Exhibit D-7
	Exhibit D-8
	Exhibit D-9
	Exhibit D-10
	Exhibit D-11
	Exhibit D-12
	Exhibit D-13
	Exhibit D-14
	Exhibit D-15
	Exhibit D-16
	Exhibit D-17
	Exhibit D-18
	Exhibit D-19
	Exhibit D-20

	Appendix E
	List of Exhibits
	Exhibit E-1
	Exhibit E-2
	Exhibit E-3
	Exhibit E-4
	Exhibit E-5
	Exhibit E-6
	Exhibit E-7
	Exhibit E-8
	Exhibit E-9
	Exhibit E-10
	Exhibit E-11
	Exhibit E-12
	Exhibit E-13
	Exhibit E-14
	Exhibit E-15
	Exhibit E-16
	Exhibit E-17
	Exhibit E-18
	Exhibit E-18b
	Exhibit E-18c
	Exhibit E-19
	Exhibit E-19b
	Exhibit E-19c
	Exhibit E-20
	Exhibit E-20b
	Exhibit E-20c




	WGR - KS Casino Market Study
	Kansas Casino Market Study
	Table of Contents
	Section 1
	Introduction
	Research Methodology & Scope of Work
	Map - Geographical Trade Areas for the Gaming Zones

	Summary of the Research Results for Kansas
	Limiting Conditions

	Section 2 - NE Trade Area
	Summary of the Trade Area
	Map - NE Trade Area

	Detailed Report for the Trade Area
	Status Quo for the NE Trade Area 
	Status Quo Gaming Capacity
	Analysis of Gaming Revenue Scenarios
	Scenario 1
	Scenario 2
	Scenario 3
	Scenario 3A

	Scenario 4
	Scenario 5
	Scenario 6

	Gaming Capacity with Casino Growth

	Section 3 - SE Trade Area
	Summary for the Trade Area
	Map - SE Trade Area

	Detailed Analyses for the Trade Area
	2007  Status Quo for the Trade Area 
	Status Quo Casino Capacity
	Scenario Results for theTrade Area 
	Scenario 1
	Scenario 2
	Scenario 3
	Scenario 4
	Scenario 5
	Scenario 6

	Gaming Capacity with Casino Growth

	Section 4 - SC Trade Area 
	Summary of the Trade Area
	Map - SC Trade Area
	Detailed Analysis of the Trade Area
	Status Quo for the Trade Area 
	Current Casino Gaming Capacity
	Analyses of the Gaming Revenue Scenarios
	Scenario 1
	Scenario 2
	Scenario 3

	Current & Proposed Casino Capacity

	Section 5 - SW Trade Area
	Summary of the Trade Area
	Map - SW Trade Area

	Detailed Analyses for the Trade Area
	Status Quo Casino Revenues & Visitors
	Status Quo Estimates of Casino Revenue
	Status Quo SW Trade Area Capacity
	Future Capacity with Casino Growth
	Scenario Analyses for the Trade Area
	Scenario 1
	Scenario 2
	Scenario 3


	Section 6
	Information on Wells Gaming Research & Richard Wells



	Staff Memo
	Review Board Zone Meeting Locations
	Proposed Review Board Budget



